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Group Overview

Group Overview

Future plc is a global platform for specialist medjia, listed on the London
Stock Exchange (symbol: FUTR). These highlights refer to the Group's
annual results for the year ended 30 September 2020.

Media division KPls

Online users' (miilion)

FY 2020 IR 2218

Fy 2019 NS
FY 2018 TN
FY 2017 R

181.0
na.e
49.0

Total global monthly oniine users to Future websites. Source: Google Analytics

TAIl figures are excluding forums as they are non-commercial websites for

witict Future does not write content or actively ge ar {

ise. Previously

reported figures have been resrated to exclude forums. FY 2020 forums only
anline users are 17.0m (FY 2019: 25.3m). Online users figures from FY 2019 have

also been restated to exclude SmanBrief nawsletter subscribers which have

been ified to email ters.

eCommerce transactions {million)

FY 2020 R
FY 2019 NN

Fy 2018 NS

FY 2017 Wl

Number of transactions made via affillate links on Future websites.

Event attendees (thousand]}

FY 2020 IR

Fy 2019 I
Fy 2018 RN
Fy 2017 N

100
151
155
76

Number of visitors ta Future events Includes 32 in-person events held virtually

in FY 2020 due to COVID-19.

Email newsletter subscribers {million)

Magazine division KPIs

Total circulation {million)

Fy 2018
FY 2017

Total of each fon per issue.

6 / FUTURE PLC

13.6 FY 2020 T 9.4
9.8 FY 2019 D 7.0
3.2
2.0

Total subseribers to Future email newsletters. Data available from FY 2019,
Total subscribers (million)

38 FY 2020 1.5
15 Fy 2012 I Q.9
1.3 Fy 2018 IR 0.9
1.0 FY 2017 IS 05

Number of subscribers to Future magazines per issue.




Strategic Report

Corporate KPIs

Revenue (Emillion) Global audience (million)

FY 2020 I 339.6 Fy 2020 I 393.6
Fy 2019 I 2215 Fy 2019 I 269.2
Fy 2018 IR 130.1 Fy 2018 RN 193.4
Fy 2017 NN 84.4 Fy 2017 N 85.6
Consolidated Group revenue. Inciudes r ines and bookazines circulation, onfine users (excluding

forums), event attendees, social media followers (Twitter, Facebook and
YouTube) and newsletter subscribers.

Adjusted operating profit (Emillion)
FY2020 ISR $  93.4

FY 2012 He 52.2
FY 2018 HEENE 18.5
FY 2017 B 8.9

Adjusted operating profit represents earnings befare share-based payments
(relating to equity-settled awards with vesting periods longer than 12 months) and

cemel | .

related social security costs, interest, tax, amertisation of acq| ir le assets,

fair value movements on contingent consideration (and unwinding of associated

discount} and currency option, and exceptional items, and any related tax effects.

Adjusted operating profit margin Reported operating profit (Emillion)

Fy 2020 N 28% Fy 2020 I 50.7
Fy 2012 A 24% Fy 2019 I 26.7
FY 2018 I 14% Fy 2018 N 53
FY 2017 TN 1% Fr2017 1 0.8
Adjusted operating profit margin is adjusted operating profitas a Consolidated ¥ op ing profit,

percentage of revenue.

Adjusted free cash flow (Emillion) Free cash flow (Emillion)

FY 2020 96.0 FY 2020 N 879
FY 2019 N 53.7 FY 2019 49.7
FY 2018 Bem 17.4 FY 2018 N 12.3
FY 2017 I 15.3 Fy2017 Hl 10.2
Adjusted free cash flow is defined as adjusted operating cash inflow less Free cash flow is defined as a statutory operating cash inflow less.

capital expenditure. Adjusted operating cash inflow represents operating capltal expenditure.

cash inflow adjusted to exclude cash flows relating to exceptional items and

settlement of employer's social security costs on share-based payments, and

ta Include lease repayments following adoption of IFRS 16 Leoses.

Adjusted diluted EPS (p) Leverage

FY 2020 I 4.7 Fy 2020 IS 60x
Fr 2019 I 475 Fy 2019 NN TJ4x
Fy 2018 I 24.3 Fy 2018 I 86X
FY 2017 T 18.4 FY 2017 I Ox
AdJusted diluted EPS represents adjusted profit after tax divided by the For FY 2020 leverage Is defined as debt as a proportion of EBITDA adjusted for
weighted average dilutive number of shares at the year end date. the impact of IFRS 16 and including the 12-menth trailing impact of acquired

businesses (in line with the Group's bank covenants definition). For previous
years leverage is defined as total net debt divided by adjusted EBITDA.

Notes
2. FY 2018 restated for IFRS 15 Revenue from controcts with customers. 3. Restated for FY 2018 rights issue.
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Chairman’s
Statement

Richard Huntingford
Chairman

ear Shareholders,

Ir this highly unusual and challenging
year, itis my pleasure to report that Future
has continued to thrive, with Future's

content now read by one in three pecple in the UK and US.
Global audiences increased rapidly during FY 2020 from a
mix of underlying growth in audience engagement,
through new launches and acquisitions, and the increased
consumption of digital content during the pandemic.

This growth in audience has helped igad to another
exceptional year of results. Revenue for the year increased
by 53% to £339.6m., with organic revenue growih of 6%
driven by strang organic Media revenue growth of 23%
which offset the impact of COVID-19 on Magazines
revenue, which declined organically by 29%. Adjusled
operating profitincreased 79% o £93.4m. These results
were delivered despite the uniprecedented challenges
arising from the pandemic,

Clear strategy
The Group contmues to successiully execute on the
strategy of being a global piatform for specialist media.
with scalabile, diversified brands, and this has resuited in
streng financial performance and total shareholder
return.

We maintain our focus on our purpose,
which is to change people’s lives through
sharing knowledge and expertise with
others, making it easy and fun for them to
do what they want. The proven success of
our strategy makes it enduring. Our
commitment to producing high-quality
content, delivered across multiple platiorms.,
helps us expand the loyal communities and
audiences we've built up over many years.

With this content at our heart, the
Group has a diversified range
of revenue streams from
consumer direct
purchases,
advertising,

8 [ FUTURE PLC
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eCommerce and events. Qur innovative and scalable
technology stack is critical in our ability to respond to the
changing media landscape; our eCommerce capability
gives our intent audience what they need to be guided
through online purchases, and our advertising tech stack
provides advertising clients wittt high-value targeted
audiences.

Value-led business
As a value-led business, we are driven by our purpose and
defined by our values. We have continued this year to focus
on embedding our value-based culture, Our values support
our strategy and the way we execute it, so we rely on ocur
Future Playbocok to bring alignment in the way we behave
and werk Despite the social, economic and environmental
challenges of this year beyond just the pandemic, we have
seen the positive effects of our staff living our values. These
chalfenges have brought out the best in our staff: from
innovative solutions to continuing to deliver high-quality
content and experiences to our communities and our
cliertts, to support and engagement of cuttural change,
inclusion and diversity. We recognise that {o continue the
success of the business we must continue to facilitate a
value-led cullure, encouraging and enabling our
employees to operate in this way.

Stakeholder engagement
pages 44 to 48

As you will read later in this Ahnual Report,
our value-led cuiture was very much to the fore
in the boardroom, when the pandemic unfolded,
aswe sought to understand, respond o and
halance the needs and priorities of our different
stakehalder groups, whose interests and well-being
are dependent on our decision-making. | firmly
believe that we got the balance as fairly
weighted as could have been expacted.

Challenging market
FY 2020 has been a year of significant
market challenges. from the COVID-19
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Imoge removed

pandemic to economic, social and political disruption,
and as we enter the financial year 2021 these challenges
centinue. Despite this uncertain backdrop. the Group has
not just been resilient; it has thrived. This is evidenced by
the financial and operational performance, which proves
not only that our strategy is enduring and robust, but also
that our value-led culture is a differentiatorina
challenging landscape.

The Group initiated a three-pronged approach,
focusing on our employees, clients and stakehelders as
we considered how to lessen the impact of the pandemic.
We believe that our approach has proven successful and
enabled us to deliver our current results and maintain the
momentum into our new financral year. Futureis a
global-first business, which congregates around a shared
culture and vision, not locations. and is able therefore to
pivot quickly to adapt to market conditions. We are used
toworking in a collaborative way acraoss locations, so the
move to homeworking had minimal impact on our ability
to deliver to our audiences and customers. Our
diversified business model reduces risk and our unified
processes and platforms allow us to serve our audience
and clients in multiple ways.

r

Investing in growth

The Group has a clear acquisition strategy of buying
businesses in which we can add value through our
diversified business model. Gur acquisitions complement
and accelerate our organic growth, and we continualty
diversify by moving info adjacencies, new verticals, and
by building cut our platform.

The robustness of our business model - and ability to
grow during difficult market conditions - means that we
remain committed to our strategy to grow both
organically and through acquisitions, During FY 2020 the
Group has been able to continue to invest in growth, with
anumber of new launches into new verticals and the
successful compiletion of two acquisitions: Barcroft
Studios, in November 2019; and the transformational
acquisition of T Media in April 202Q. Our proven
integration model enabled us to integrate these
businesses in line with our investment case, despite the
restrictions around office working. Since the period end.,
we acquired CinemaBlend, in early October 2020.

Barcroft Studios is a video production company with
expertise inmonetising audiences through social media.
Barcroft creates content for global platferms, including

ABOVE: Barcroft
creates content
for global
platforms such
as YouTube,

as well as
producing high-
end television
for networks,
broadcasters
and streaming
platforms.

-1

“I want to thank the incredible team at Future who
have worked tirelessly and adapted to a new way
of working as the Group has continued to provide

high quality content to our communities. Once
again, Future has proven itself to be one of the most
innovative and agilc media companies, and that is
reflected with this year's exeellent financial results.
The Group’s resilience against a challenging market

is testament to our strategy and our people.” K

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS Fy 2020 / ©
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image removed

Snapchat and YouTube, as well as producing high-end
original productions for networks, broadcasters and
streaming platforms, including Netflix, National
Gaographic Channel, the BBC and Channel 4.

Ti Media is a UK-based, print-led consumer magazine
and digital publisher, with deep industry heritage and a
portfotio of popular brands. including Country Life,
Woman & Home, Decanter and Marie Claire. This exciting
ancuisition has introduced to Future substantial new
specialist audiences, including wamean's litestyle, TV
entertainment, gardening, wine, golf and a number of
additional sports verticals, as well as growing the Group’s
presence in homae interest, cycling and country sports.
The oppertunities ta grow these portfalios through
Future's platform of diversified revenue streams, as well
as growing the brands globally, is significant and has
already barne fruit, with new launches over the last few
rnonths in gardening. TV viewing, outdoors, health and
women's lifestyle. The Group atso announced that
expected cost synergies of £20m per annum will be
achieved within 24 months, an increase from the £15m
initially identified. The delivery of these savings is
progressing well, with the Group already securing annual
cost synergies of over £20m. of which £3m has benefited
FY 2020. Both of these acquisitions biring an exceifent

opportunity for the Group to accelerate growth, in both its
global presence and alseo the continual development of the

diversified pfatform business model. i am excited by the

opportunities that these acguisitions bring to the Group.
On the 25 Novernber 2020 the Group announced that

we have agreed the terms of a recommended offer ta

acquire the entire issued and to be issued share capital of

GoCo Groua plc. We believe that the cormbination wilt
significantly strengthen the Group's proposition of
seeking to address the growing consumer demand for
informed and value driven purchasing decisions enabled
by intent driven content.

10/ FUTURE PLC

ABOVE: The
opportunities

to grow these
portfolios through
Future's plfatform
of diversified
revenue strearns,
as well as
growing the
brands gloahally,
is significant and
has already borne
fruit.

The Group also decided to invest in the creation of 150
new roles across digital media and technology to support
the growth plans; this was announced in early October,
andis an invesiment in the region of £5-6m. This
investment inresource wiil support and accelerate our
significant online audience growth potential.

People

At Future, we believe our people are our greatest asset.
Their commitrnent. integrity. resilience and flexibility have
enabled the Group to thrive in these mera challenging
market conditions. They bring our values 1o iife in the way
they work and collaborate with each ather, I addition, as
the Group continues to expand through acquisition, which
brings ¢changes to the business. our ermployees have
shown great resilience and adaptability throughout.

On behalf of the Board and cur shareholders, | would
like to thank ail our emplayees for their hard work,
dedication and continued passion to the Fulure cause
during FY 2020, which has been the driving force behind
the Group’s outstanding resuits.

| would also like ta make special mention of our Chief
Executive Zillan Byng-Thorne, and ner executive
leadership team. The pandemic has highlighted the
difference between the iarge cohort of Chief Executives
deermed to be “good leaders” of the companies ihat they
run and the small pool of Chief Executives who are “truly
outstanding leaders™ individuals who are able to respond
to the need for difficult, urgent and far-reaching decision-
making and who, in hugely challenging times, lead with
clarity, bravery, authenticity and empathy, whilst putting
the needs of others before their own. Zillah has shown
herself {o be just such a leader, supported magnificently
by her executive team.

How we create value for our stakeholders
pages 44 to 48




Capital structure and dividends

The Group continues to be highly cash generative.
Adjusted free cash flow was 103% of adjusted operating
profit (FY 2019: 103%). with net debt of £62.1m at the
end of the year. The Board's policy is that leverage should
not exceed 1.5x. with an exception for acguisition spikes:
our year end leverage was 0.6x. Therefore, the Board is
delighted to propose an increased final dividend of L.6p a
share (FY 2019: 1.0p), payable on 16 February 2021 to all
shareholders on theregister at the close of business on
15 January 2021. Our goal continues to be the
implementation of a pregressive dividend pelicy. and at
the same time to balance sharehclder returns and
investment in the company to suppert future growth and
optimise value for shareholders.

Following the end of the year, the Group agreed a
£215m two year term loan in order to part-fund the
recommended offer for GoCo Group plc. tn addition the
Group's £30m shert dated COVID-19 facility was
cancelled. This ensures that the business has a balance
sheet and debt capacity in line with its objective of not
operating with leverage of more than 1.5x (outside of
exceptional circumstances). In conjunction with this, and
as part of the viabllity assessment on page 43, the Board
undertoock a detailed going concern review. This included
reviewing the Group's forecasts and projections, after
applying a number of severe but plausible downside
sensitivities to those projections, and assessing the
headroom on the Group's credit facilities. Future's
diversified revenue model, and strong balance sheet,
which includes current headrecom of over £100m on
available facilities at 3C September 2020 leave the Group
well positioned to continue ¢ adapt to market conditions
in these uncertain times.

The continuing success of the Group and the
transformative steps we have taken this year is reliant on
the support of our shareholders and our banking

Strategic Report

syndicate, so | would ke to thank them for their
continued confidence in our strategy.

Board composition

We have a strong Board team in terms of experience,
entrepreneurial and ambitious spirit and business
acumen. ltisimportant that we continue to build a
Beard that is aligned to the Group's culture and values,
and commensurate with the Group’s FTSE250 status
and growth ambitions. The three appecintments we have
announced this year reflect this commitment.

In February 2020 we announced the appointment of
Meredith Amdur as an Independent Non-Executive
Director. Meredith is currently Chief Executive Officer of
Rhetorik, a leading data supplier t¢ technology vendors.
She brings knowledge, understanding and experience
of the US media market, and especially digitally-led
environments.

As previously announced, Rachel Addison was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Group,
effective 1 June 2020. Rachel is a great addition to the
Future Board as we continue to strengthen and diversify
our collective acumen and experience, Rachel,
previcusly Chief Financial Officer at Tl Media. has
significant experience in the media market: | am
delighted to welcome her to the Board. Rachel takes the
nlace of Penny Ladkin-Brand, who has stepped into her
new role as Chief Strategy Officer. | would like to take
this opportunity to extend my thanks to Penny for her
guidance to the Board over the last five years as CFO.

In September we announced the appeintment of
Mark Brocker as an Independent Non-Executive
Director with effect from 1 October 2020. | am delighted
to welcame Mark, who has a wealth of experience of
executive and non-executive board roles; his insight and
understanding of platform-based businesses will hugely
benefit the Group.

Corporate Governance Section
pages 50 to 53

Looking to the future

After such an exceptional year the Group faces the
future with confidence. Qur value-led culture,
outstanding tearn, resilient strategy and confident
investment in growth means this is an exciting time for
Future. | am confident that we will continue to deliver
significant long-term value for sharehclders.

(o et D

Richard Huntingford
Chairman
10 December 2020
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At Future, our success is the product of aligning our visicn and strategy
within our organisation, and how we enforce the strategy.

Why we exist (Our Purpose)

“We change people’s lives through
sharing our knowledge and expertise
with others, making it easy and fun
L for them to do what they want.” J

Future is a global platform
for specialist media driven
by technology, with
diversified revenue streams

At Future, we pride curselves on the

our communities.

Offering core expertise, we are the
trusted advisor, who helps enthusiasts
follow their passion through
high-quality content, innovative
technology and unique experiences.

12 [ FUTURE PLC

heritage of our brands and the loyalty of

%

We create loyal comrunities and

fans of our brands by giving them a
place they want to spend their time
and meet their needs

We succeed by delivering content that connects
with audiences. in areas in which we have expertise,
recoghising that in today’s media landscape
providing the answers to our audience's needs is
the first requirement if you want them to spend
time with you.

As we strengther our giohal reach acrossour
core verticals, we continue to he proud of the way
we bring people together to enjoy shared passions
wherever they are i the world. Cultivaiing a highly
engaged audience that through our help we are able
tomonetise is fundamental to everything that we
do, and we now reach a global audience of 393.6m
(FY 2019: 268.2m) through our websites, events,
social media and magazines.

We are diversifying our
monetisation models to
create significant revenue
streams. We are focused on
three material revenue
types: Advertising,
Consumer Direct and Intent
We look to grow profitably and generate
cash returns, both organically and
through acquisitions, and aim to do this
through diversifying our audience and
developing new sources of
monetisation.



Image removed

We leverage our data
and analytics to drive
innovation and execution
of our strategy

We are a data-rich company, which
uses data insight to better understand
and serve our audience, as weil as
Serving our commercial partners.
Through our data insight, we have
launched new products across our
verticals, like the innovation of our
proprietary new lead generation
product - Falcon, and into new verticals
where we see an opportunity, like the
launch of our pets vertical with
PetsRadar.com.

We are expanding our global
reach through organic
growth, acquisitions

and strategic partnerships

Investing in our business is a core part
of our strategy. That includes ensuring
we invest in our core brands. technology
and people as well as looking to acquire
new assets. In determining what
businesses we acquire we are keento
ensure that they align with and enhance
our existing portfolio and further cur
strategic vision. We look for scalable
brands that have loyal and specialist
audiences that can be monetised in
different ways and that will add value to
the Group.

Strategic Report

Our strategy is
underpinned by a
number of principles:

1- Activators

Future i1s our first team and
content is our first thought

We are aligned on our strategy
and purpose. We call this the
“Future Playbook”

We have common goals. We call
this “what's important right now”

We think about the long term as
well as the short, We call this
“horizon planning”

We operate a matrix, which means
we go slower to go faster. We use
responsibility assignment
matrices (RACIs) to help

We are diversified glcbally,
divisionally and vertically

We take the time to operate as a
lean and simple business

We are ambitious. We think in
terms of leaps not increments

We are also brilliant at the basics
and believe in marginal gains

We take calculated risks in some
areas, and we protect those risks
through adopting a “maximum
acceptable loss" approach

2 - Differentiators

We offer the easiest-to-access 'how to’
advice wherever our audiences are

We have the most relevant review
content in the world

We demeoenstrate the value
of criginal content

® We disrupt through platferms

® We anticipate our customers' needs

- Competitive essentials

We create meaningful relationships
with strategic partners

We blend human and artificial
intelligence

We have simple but brilliant
proprictary software

We know our customers

we have world-class Search
Engine Optimisation

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 / 13
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How we execute
our strategy

We believe that strategy is abouthaving
a series of infentional steps tohelp us
achieve our goal. Future’s vision is clear:
to be a global feader in helping people
achirve their goals, utilising our expert
advice and content.

We use McKinsey's Three Horizons of
Growth planning approach across the
organisation as a means of ensuring
that each year our intentional steps
achieve our ambitions. This approach
encourages cur people o engage with
the strategy in a meaningful and
relatable way and ensures that we
detiver a mix of performance today and
investrnent in future performance. We
beligve this is critical fo underpinning
our fonger-term growth. We also beiieve

that by breaking our strategy down into
intentional steps we manage risk and
can adapt to changing tandscapes inan
agile way.

Annually we set out our key areas of
tocus and whal we want o de in order tn
ensure we achieve our overarching
strategic ambitions - we call this What's
Important Right Now. We have ensured
that our plan for FY 202] has encugh
focus on the things which wili continue
the success of the last three years.
Agreeing on the right priorities is key to
delivering on our strategic objectives
and we want to continue cur growth
momenturm through both crganic
growth in FY 2021 and growth plans for
FY 2022 and beyond. We wili focus on

achieving a balance of more predictable
ravenue streams, with increased
recurring revenues ontine to further
ensure stability in our business. As the
way we reach our audiences and how we
menetise them is experiencing
disruptiorn:, we have ensured that our
goals are focused on staying relevant for
newer generations and new media
models. To deliver operating leverage
we are focused on continuing to
optimise our centres of excellence,
streamlined operational base and
low-cost locations, while the continual
transition from print to online enabiles
margin expansion.

We have three underlying pillars that
help us execute our strategy.

1. Protect the core, grow existing brands & audiences

As a purpose-foctised company, we concentrate on
growing and leveraging our ecosystem of brands, as
these are the touchpoints in which we engage with aur
communities, making it easier for them o do the things
they iove. We have a combination of heritage and
acquired brands that help us expand market share
within our verticals as well as allowing us to enter new
verticals and access new communities while continuing
to ensure we provide expertise in these areas. Qur
brands help us deliver targeted highly qualified
audiences to our advertising and eCommerce partners.

We continue to nurture our tegacy brands by focusing
on optimising their revenue streams and innovating
content. For example, last financial year we expanded
the monetisation of our music brands by launching The
Guitarist of the Year competition, a new paid-entry
awards event from GuitarWorld, GuitarPlayer and
BassPlayer. This enabled us toJeverage the
relationships we had with our audiences across these
[eading magazines, and websites, to create a frufy
unique event. Fuiure's deep vertical knowledge and
communities of special inferest ensure that one of its
unique selling points is the ability to create new brands
from the relationships it has with other niche brands.
For example, T3 is a lifestyle brand which helps

audiences buy premiurm products. Its content is highly
flexible in that it can pivot to focus on premium products
outside of its core of technology and gadgets and cover
other verticals, such as premium men's grooming, cars
and sports equipment.

Future's brands reach nver 393.6m consumers and
business decision-makers every month. By reaching 1in
3internetusers inthe US and UK, we are one of the
leading media publishers across the UK, US and
Australia. This level of engagement gives us market-
leading positions in many of our verticals, Future is the
go-to media partrer for specialist endemic advertisers,
while this scale opens up further monetisation. For
example, our launch of the Totally Games video series,
sponsored by Acer, utilises the best of our gaming
brands (Future Games Show, GamesRadar and our
games ragazines) and Barcroft’s video monetisation
model, Overall. we have seen phenomenal online
audience growth of 56% year-on-year (excluding
forums?) to 281.8m, with 48% organic growth. Whilst
this growth was bolstered by the pandemic lockdown,
as people increasingly went online for entertainment,
news and online shopping, the underlying online
audisnce growth (adjusting for COVID-19 impact) was
Ad%, with organic growth of 37%. as our content

92020 onhine audience to forums: 17.1m, -32% year-on-year
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continues to meet and exceed the need of cur specialist
audiences. Structurally, as there is an acceleration to
oniine, we are best placed to benefit from this as we
develop cur brands to serve cur communities' needs:
Live Science's coverage of COVID-19 information and
news helped our audience better understand the
pandemic. Qur B2B education brand Tech & Learning
produced a range of content about at-home education
including how-tos and tips such as our evergreen article
"Free Online Learning Resources For Schools”.

We hold 23 market-leading positions online, in print
and in events, We continue to focus on growing our
market share through organic means and through
acquisition. The right acquisitions for Future are ones
where we believe we can uniquely create additional value
while accelerating our strategy. Our acquired brands
benefit from the standard processes and platforms of
our legacy brands allowing us to optimise their
performance.

The acquisition of TI Media in April 2020 has provided
us with an exceptional opportunity to move into new
verticals, such as women's lifestyle, TV and wellness.
Here we can further monetise these new communities
by applying cur platform business model to diversify the
revenue streams and further grow the audience in

Strategic Report
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previously untapped territories such as the US. The
value of the vertical presence and expertise thatcame
with this acquisition is already evident in our launches of
new websites Gardening Etc, Fit & Well, What to Watch.
Advnture, PetsRadar and My Imperfect Life - launched
within just five months of acquisition compteticn. The
speed with which we are able to grow in these acquired
verticals is a testament to the Group's operating
leverage built on standard practices and platforms and
flexible operating model, given that this all happened
during the Spring pandemic lockdowns. We are already
progressing the pipeline for migrating TI Media's
websites onto our standard Vanilla web platform, with
Homes & Gardens, Livingetc and Woman & Home all
migrated. While the modular nature of our tech stack
means that those sites that are not yet migrated have
benefited from being plugged inte our ad tech stack,
Hybrid, and our eCommerce technology. Hawk, to drive
previously untapped advertising and eCommerce

revenues. This is what makes the Tl Media acquisition so

exciting. as we apply our expertise in serving high-
guality content specific to these communities’ needs,
which is highly flexible in terms of reacting to current

trends, as well as our innovative and scalable technology

stack to enable us to fully monetise these communities.

ABOVE: Live
Science's
coverage of
COVID-19
information and
news helped our
audience better
understand the
pandemic.
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How we execute our strategy
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2. Ongoing diversification

We continue to focus on diversifying our business, by
expanding into new monetisation streams and new verticals,
which we do organically and through acquisition. Qur
product offering has changed materially with over 240
brarids in the Group's portfolio. across 18 specialist audience
verticals, through innovative new launches, te acquisitions.
Diversification allows us to have a strong defence against the
impact of detrimental changes to any one revenue strearm, as
evidenced by the way we pivoled to mitigate the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic on magazines and events, anda
strong offence by seeding longer term opportunities that
enable continued organic revenue growth. Diversification
across verticals, revenue streams and global footprint also
accelerates our growth, making it a key driver of our stratcgy.

Future has operations across the UK and US but weare a
giobal-first company that reaches a global audience. The
growth of our US audience is a key part of our diversification
strategy as we grow arganically and through acquisition,
Revenue from the US is now at 49% of the Group's total
revenue, foliowing the acquisition of TV Media in Aprit 2020.
We are focusing on launching .com brands, in particular
utilising the strong brand equity and new verticals acauired
with Ti Media, and growing these brand audiences inthe US.
The growth of Realhomes.com is one example of our ability
to grow brands in this way. The Real Homes brand, when
acquired from Centaur in August 2017, was a UK-focused
print brand. We launched Realhomes.com a few months later
and since then traffic has continued to grow substantially,
with 3496 of oniine users now in the US and Canada.
Similarly, we acquired Team Rock in February 2017 and
subsequently launched Loudersound.com, which has seen
significant growth globally and in the US.

in order to grow online brands in the US, we take defiberate
steps to adopt a US-first mindset. These steps inciude
switching from .co.uk to .com, focusing keyword and critical
terms research on US traffic volumes, encouraging the use
of US Englist over UK English, changing our social strategy to
focus more on US peak hours, and where appropriate
internationalise content. nternally, we ensure traffic targets
are global, we conduct US relevance checks on new and
acquired websites, and ensure that the US audience team
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works closely with UK content teamns.

Thesuccess of this US-first strategy is evident in the
growth of US online users to Whathifi.com. Having acquired
What Hi-Fiin May 2018, a predominately UK-focused brand,
we focused or growing the website in the US using the steps.
detailed above, this has resulted in US online users increasing
by 479% to 2.1m in September 2020 compared to 366k in
September 2018.

Our acquisition of Barcroft Studios in November 2019,
presented us with an excellent opportunity to build a new
revenue stream in social media video production, which we
recognise as an important growth area. Barcroft has
significant expertise in effectively monetising video. To fully
utilise this expertise and embed video monetisation inte our
diversified business model, which we call the Future Wheel,
we faunched, in September 2020, Future Studios, a
highly-skilled video preduction centre of excellence, which
focuses on producing and distributing valuable original video
conient.

0On 25 November 2020 we announced that we had made a
recommended offer for GoCo Group plc - a business which
owns Gocompare.com, a leading price comparison site,
LookAfterMyBilis.com, an energy automated switching site
and Myvouchercodes.co.uk, a vougher deals site. This
acquisition, which is subject to shareholder approval. is one
that we befieve is a compeiling mix of compiementarity and
growth opportunity that will create substantial value for both
sets of sharehoiders, The full details of the recommend offer
are set out in the Rule 2.7 Announcement.

Through the acquisition, we expect to create aleading
offering for consumers to help them save money more easily
by bringing together our depth of audience insight and reach
with GoCo Group's expertise in price comparison and
financial services, underpinned by the proprietary
technology of both groups.

For example, with the benefit of the GoCo Group's
technology, readers of Realnomes.com making a decision on
home improvements will also have access to relevant energy
products and switching options within the same content,
minimising friction for the reader and anticipating their
purchasing needs, in the same way our Hawk technology
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alse provides details on the best products and prices.

The new verticals that have come from the Tl Media
acquisition provide significant eCommerce potential. For
example, the wormen's lifestyle sector covers a multitude of
markets including beauty, fashion, wellness and homes.
Wellness is a prime market for eCemmerce. with fitness
products ranging from at-home gym equipment to
weighing scales. The launch of our new website Fit & Well
makes the most of this opportunity, combining the content
expertise acquired with Tl Media and Future's eCommetce
technology. Additionally, the Tl Media acquisition has
significantly increased our sports portfolio, a significantly
large eCommerce market, off the back of which we have
launched website Advnture. We've seen a significant
increase in affiliate click throughs across all the Tl Media
sites following the rollout of Hawk. Widget clicks have more
than doubled from Tl Media’s legacy systern to cur
eCommerce technology Hawk, and this should only
improve further as we execute on our eCommerce content
plan.

Diversified verticals enable us to grow our overall
audience faster, since we can reach awider group of
potential readers. Further progress this year has led to 69%
of revenuie now coming from outside of the technology
vertical, up from 63% in FY 2019.

We place equal importance on growing our existing
verticals to entering new ones. This is because, by owning a
number of brands within the same vertical, we are able to
implement our successful content strategy and ensure we
meet all our audiences’ needs from Future brands.
Diversification across multiple content verticals and brands
reduces the risk of search engine algorithm updates
affecting overal! traffic materially, as those changes tend to
ke vertical-specific rather than broad.,

In spite of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
global economy, Future has performed strongly; our
diversified revenues help us to compensate for downturns
in any one revenue stream. We had to cancelthree
significant in-person exhibitions this year and magazine
sales were affected by the closure of high street stores, but
we saw incredible uplift in both eCommerce and digital

ABOVE: We

are focusing

on launching
.com brands, in
particular utilising
the strong brand
equity and new
verticals acquired
with Tl1 Media,
and growing
these brands
audiences in the
US. The growth of
Realhomes.com

is one example of
our ability to grow
brands in this way.
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advertising during the lockdown period, proving the
resilience of our strategy.

At the start of the financial year, we launched Future
|abs, an agile tearm that acts as an innovation incubator.
Future Labs has built a playbook that industrialises Harizon
3 strategic planning, by identifying opportunities that spark
change and then cost-effectively innovate the conceptinto
a minimum viable product. Projects are then incubated by
Labs untit validated, and once a proven revenue stream,
successful projects graduate out of Labs and are integrated
into Future's normal operations. This financial year Labs
has inngvated a new lead generation technology, Falcon,
which captures in-market customer information generated
from our eCommerce sales and monetises it multiple times
at high cost-per-lead. We have already implemented the
Falcon widget onto 15 of our websites and continue to work
on adding itto the rest of our sites. With B2B as the core
focus for lead generation we have focused on implementing
Falcon on tc B2B websites.

We also ensure that we diversify within our revenue
streams by reducing reliance on any cne partner. Interms
of eCommerce partners we have a diversified retailer mix;
in FY 2020 Amazon made up 30% of eCommercerevenue,
compared to 51% n FY 2017. Our partners cover numerous
markets, which allows us to fully utilise them across all our
verticals. Our Hawk technology means we are always able
to provide the best price in the market at any given time,
and this also includes a stock availability feature. As a resuit
during the peak of the global lockdowns we were able to
pivot results to where the products were available,
demonstrating the power of the diversified retailer base. As
our content is data-led we drive high-intent traffic to our
eCommerce pages. Our eCommerce strategy is builton
optimising all areas of the purchase funnel. By working to
improve all metrics, rather than focusing on one, we are
creating a multiplayer effect, driving significant revenue
growth.

At Future. we work closely with Google and other
strategic partners to constantly optimise and evolve our
Advertising Technology infrastructure. We have partnered
with anumber of leading global 'identity’ organisations that
allow us to maintain cur ability to serve personalised
advertising whilst protecting user privacy. Future operates
across a number of highly verticalised areas generating
significant amounts of rich first party data of engaged and
intent-based audience segmerits. This first party data,
which is completely unaffected by changes to third party
cookies, is already used in the delivery of advertising
campaigns. This detailed understanding of our audiences
enables superior targeting capabilities which allows for
advertisers to reach special interest audiences and their
purchase intents.

Future is well positioned to capitalise as buying strategies
evolve; buyers will look for the trusted first party rich
audiences that our portfolio delivers. The advertising
technology solutions we have implemented and continue o
develop ensures we can transact in a multitucde of ways to
deliver known and first party audiences at scale.
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3. Operating leverage

A number of core elements underpin our operating
teverage, from our internal systems and processes to the
diversification of our revenue streams. We continue to
focus on driving our Media revenues, which are higher
margin and subsequently improves our operating
leverage. Animportant part of our strategy for TI Media
brands is to grow their online presence.

At Future we ensure that we have standard core
processes and systems under a simplified business
structure, to ensure there is no duplication of costs.
These are our centres of excellence which range from
back-office functions to editorial practices. We have
created a number of Playbooks to ensure equal
standards of excellence within all areas of the business.
Our Playbooks are embedded into our People & Culture
site alongside key information such as peopie policies
and procedures our colleagues and managers need to
help them manage their people and career. Additionally,
we are working on roliing out Future University modules
focused on embedding the Playbooks into the way we
work.

In September 2020 we launched Future Studios, a new
video centre of excellence, which unites expertise from
Futiire and Barcroft Studios which we acquired in
November last year, Future Studios focuses on praducing
and distributing valuable original video content for
internal clients acrass the Future family. We are investing
increasingly in original video preduction. distribution and
monetisation as 5G adoption will see average mobile
speads exceed those experienced at home and this will
lead to an acceleration in video consumption.

Our philesophy around systemising, having structures
and repeatable processes means we are not refiant on
being in an office and we are able to pivot quickly. We
believe that habit is the key driver of activity withinany
organisation and so the rhythms and rituais are crifical to
driving behaviour. We completed the acquisition of Tl
Media in April 2020, more than doubling the number of
staffin the UK. It is a testament to these centres of
excellence that we have been able to onboard these staff
and progress swiftly with the integration despite all staff
warking from home and, largely, continuing to do se. In
order to onboard our Tl Media colleagues remotely we
created the Future University, an online training portat to
share best practices, and held over 1,000 one-to-one
virtual meet and greets within just fwo weeks, Despite the
acquisition completing during the Government-enforced
lockdown relating to COVID-19, we are exactly ontrack in
terms of integration.

Due to the pandemic, we had to cancel a number of
in-person events. However, the flexibility of our business
operations and the ingenuity and dedication of our staff

18 / FUTURE PLC

tmage removed

meant we quickly adapted to hold a {otal of 32 virtual
events and webinars between March and Sepiember this
year, including serving the games market with the Future
GCaming Show, since the largest games show of the year,
E3, could not go ahead. The PC Gaming Show was also a
huge suiccess, with an 18% year-ori-year incraase in
advertising revenue. Our events team also reconfigured
the Decanter World Wine Awards tasting event (usually
held over five days at ExCel) to rum in the office within ait
appropriate guidelines across three weeks in August to
deliver £3m entry revenue. Some of our biggest events,
The Photography Show and New York TV Week, both
held virtually in September 2020, and three
Homebuilding & Renovating Shows, held virtually in July
and September 2020, achieved over 32,300 attendees. it
is a testament to the value of our content and our
passionate commiunities that we continue to engage with
them whichever the platform.

We are a giobal-first company with a structure that
means we can insource to the lowest cost locations. At
Future. as a result of the global cperating model, we are
not pinned to local offices but are based around
information sharing, virtual meetings and collaborative
documents. Qur tools, which were designed to be global
by their very nature, are digital and therefore can operate
virtually. As a giobal-first company, we value continuai
communication, particularly during the leckdown, and as
such in addition to a number of other formats we hald
rmonthly virtual “town hall” meetings with the Executive
L eadership Team for the entire company, utilising chat
technology for staff to ask questions directty.

ABOVE: Some

of our biggest
events, The
Photegraphy
Show, New York
Week and three
Homebuilding

& Renovating
Shows, were held
virtually this year.
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Future is a value-based. purpose-led company and as
such, we aim to achieve cultural alignment between all
our staff. Qur culture is more democratic than
hierarchical and this empowers cur staff to make
decisions, streamlining the process and ensuring that
great ideas come to the fore and we continue to innovate.

One of the core enablers of our operating leverage is
our approach to content creation. We write content once
and then publish multipie times. Revenue content
compounds over time; content paid for in prior years

Total Digital Revenue
- Stacked by Article Creation Financial Year (Excluding Mobile Nations)
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continues to deliver revenue in FY 2020. While by
focusing on content that has the potential to drive the
most revenue we attract intent traffic to our websites
which feeds our eCommerce revenue stream. Much of
this content is “evergreen” in nature, which means that
articles we paid for and published years ago are still
driving revenue for us today.

Qur flexible and scalable tech stack supports organic
growth and acquisitions. 38 sites are now on our Vanilla
web platform. two of which are TI Media sites (with an
additional TI Media site migrated since the end of the
financial year), white six new launches in the last six
months have been in relation to the brands developed as
aresult of TI Media acquisition - My imperfect Life,
Gardening Etc, Fit & Well, What to Walch, Advnture and
PetsRadar. We have a one platform approach with all
staff operating on common systems and swift transition
following integration. Implementing our tech stack onto
newly acquired websites enables Future to gain scale.

The successful implementation of our technology
stack and centres of excellence to cur acquisitions of
Mobile Nations, SmartBrief, cycling brands and Barcroft
Studios, has resulted in revenue growth of 12%
year-on-year, on a full year FY 2019 proforma basis.
despite the challenges of the pandemic. Barcroft
receives a commission on advertising-based video on
demand revenue for their videos on social channels,
which has increased by 45% year-on-year, and
additionally, advertising-based video on demand
revenue we sel! directly for the Group has increased by
156% year-on-year.
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How we execute our strategy

THE FUTURE PLAYBOOK

We have created the Future Playbook, which is a guide for our staff on the "rules of the game" at work. We share
the Playbook with every new member of staff to ensure we are aligned on our strategy and how we exacute it.
As a value-ted business the Playbook plays a pivotal role in ensuring we have an aligned culture by including our
six values on how we behave. Providing staff with a clear guide to our values and our strategy ensures we are
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focusing on the same goals. We move faster when we all pull in the same direction.

We are
part of the

audience and
their community

QOur passion for our products makesus
part of the community we engage with.
Our audiences give us a voice and that's
an incredible privilage that we treat
with reverence. We embrace afithe
ways we are able to cornmunicate
to our audiences - print, onfline
and in person —and iove
doing so.

We are
proud of our
past and excited
about our future

We are proud to work at Future,
because being part of this team
feels good. We are cne team,
ong company with big
ambitions.

We all
row the boat

No matter how long you've worked
here, or what your role is at Future, your
contribution counts - so grab an car! We
rmove faster when everyone pullsin the
same direction. 50 what you do —and

how you do it — matters. We take

responsibility because that's the
best way to get things done. We
collaborate because we're
stronger together.

20 J FUTURE BLC

Let's
do this

We take the best decisions we can
in the face of uncertainty. it makes
us think each decision through ~then
we go for it. We commit to what we've
agreed and have the confidence to
persevere through tough times. But
we're able to admit mistakes
because that helps us learn and
chart a new course when we
need to. That's called
‘doing it right’.

It's the
people in the
boat that matter

Having the right team inthe boat is
mission critical. We are all successful
when we are self-motivateq,
self-aware and self-disciplined, We
support each other, challenge each
other and have fun with each other.
We are determined to hire people
wa raniearn from and who
we would have as our
boss.

Results
matter -
success feels good

We love being successful, We
restlessly look to improve, be ever
creative, and commercial in our
ventures, Great results mean we are
able to align the needs and
expectations of cur audiences,
communities, clients and
shareholders,
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Future’s Business Model
The Fuhure Strategy Wheel

We have a clear purpose: to change people’s lives through sharing
knowledge and expertise with others, making it easy and fun for them
to do what they want,

Our strategy is aligned with fulfilling this purpose by building our
global communities and increasing the ways in which we serve them
our content, in line with their needs. One of our key differentiators is
that we are part of our communities, meaning we enjoy sharing our
knowledge and expertise with our audience.

To ensure that cur business model is truly diversified our strategy
of diversification is focused on three distinct elerments:

1. globally.

2. divisionally; and

3. vertically.

It is the combination of these three elements that drives the
success of our diversification strategy. as we are able to capitalise an
all opportunities and win across all areas. Alongside this is our
diversified business model, which we continue to build on in order to
meet our audience's needs inwhichever way required. This is the
Future Wheel.
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Monetising the wheel

We continue to build onour Future Wheel, this year adding video and
lead generation reverue streams. We have also made significant
progress in monetising our brands and their content, organic and
acquired. through the different revenue streams. The Future Wheel
serves our audiences through online, events, print and video. ensuring
that we previde our content in the most useful way possible.

Qur robust and scalable tech stack means that it is simple for us to
grow brands by adding new revenue streams. We have already
intreduced our eCommerce technology Hawk and our ad technology
Hybrid to the acquired T! Media websites, We also focus on making our
content as monetisable as possible by focusing on reusable content,
such as from magazine to online content and content that can be easily
translated to other geographic territories, This means we maximise
our editorial tearns’ efficiency as well as increasing the evergreen
nature of our content for which revenue compounds over time.

We acquired Rea! Homes in July 2017. The brand was UK-focused
with little digital reach. We transformed the brand by building out its
revenue streams into eComimerce, a video series, and re-launched the
website on our Vanilla platform with our ad tech stack implemented.
Additionally we significantly broadened its online reach outside the
UK:; US enline users to the website have grown from 7.1k online users
when it was re-launched in November 2017 to 456k online usersin
September 2020.
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Lens one - globally

LENS ONE ~ GLOBALLY

Future's Markets

Our business model is global-first in that our content, processes and
systems are not fixed to where we operate geographically. We run
this global approach from our operations across two geographies.

us

wWae fiave substantial reach in the US and Canadia,
reaching a total 0f 136 2rm onling users (Bxcluding
forums). US operations consist of editorial, video
production, advertising sates and everits across
websites, video, newsletters and magazines. The
largest part of our B2B content and operations are
based in the U5, including SmartBriefwhich is based
in Wasturngton DC. The US accounts for 49% of
Group revenue, and 57% of Group organic revenue,
driven by our US-first brand strategy.

FY 2020 FY 2019
Revenue £m* 1677 nes
Online users m* 136.2 91.0
No. of events 30 3
Circulation m 0.4 0.6
Subscribers m 0.4 0.5

*Ravenue axcludas intra-group revenues

Online users exclude forums. FY 2020 US & Can online users
to forums: 7.4m, «34% year-on-year. FY 2019 online users
restated due ta re-classification of SinartBricf online newsletter
subscribers to email newsletters.

UK

The UK operations inciude our Australia business,
which acts as a rnmiplete satellite branch. The UK
operations rometise all of owr vnlineg audience
outside of the US and Canada. The UK is where the
rmajerity of our consumer pnnt Magazines are
produced, aswell as joint centres of excellence for
back office, including finance, HR and technology,
with facilities i Bath and Grenable, France. The UK
also houses the Group's licensing operation which
facilitates content distribution for both online and
print publications into 37 countrnes. In Australia we
have brands including Get Price, APC and PC
PowerPlay which all serve the local market.

43% of Croup organic revenue came from the UK
operations in 2020, which is a result of us focusing on
expanding aur US audience. Total revenue in the UK
made up 51% of Group revenue, which is a reflection of
the UK-based T Media acquisition,

FY 2020 FY 2019
Revehue £m® ms 1027
Online users m’ £B.5 303
No. of events 20 25
Circulation m 3.4 0.9
Subscribers m Tl 0.4

7Online users exclude forums and include online users from
UK 46.5m and AU & NZ12.0m., Rest of Werld online users 87.1m
are not inciuded

Image removed -
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United States

Number
of staff:
398

Offices:
New York and
Washington DC

OFFICE LOCATIONS

France

Number
of staff:
s

Office:
Grenoble

L
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United Kingdom

Number
of staff:
1,600

Offices:
London, Bath,
Farnborough

Australia

Number
of staff:
24

Office:
Sydney

-
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ENumber of staff as at September 2020
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LENS TWO - DIVISIONALLY

Media Division
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I Our Media division consists of all revenue streams outside of magazines. MEDIA KPis

This inchudes eCommerce, digital advertising, cvents, lead generation,

newsletters and CRM, and digital licensing. Our digital advertising revenues are ‘@

generated from first party soid, programmatic and content solutions. eCommerce =]

revenies are where we recelve a commission on sales made by our retail partners.

Lead generation r nerated f tching our customers with 261.8m 160k event
g ion revenues are generated from us matching o i onfine users attendees,

the right product suppliers, for which they pay per lead. Events and integrated (excluding both live

forums) and virtual

marketing revenue is generated from sponsorship and ticket sales to our
consumer and B2B events, as well as events we hold for our advertising partners
as part of creative solutions. Our CRM revenue streams are primarily generated
from SmartBrief which produces, and monetises threugh advertising and emait
newsletters for our B2B partners.

181.0m in FY 20198 151k in FY 2019

It

13.6m 38 digital
Our Media division drives significant growth withirn our business as we focus on eCommerce licensing
, . . .. . transactions partners
deiivering our content digitalfy. This is underpinned by our scafabie tech stack 5.8m in FY 2019 14in Y 2019
which allows us to accelerate online growth through eCommerce tech Hawk, ad _
tech Hybrid, lead generation tech Falcon, email newsletter tech, as weli as our [@
common web platform Vanilla. Additicnally, the acquisition of Barcroft Studics in h
November 2019 added an important new elerment to our Media division - that of 98.7m social 9.4m email

media followers newsletter
52.0m in FY 2019 subscribers
7.0m in FY 2019

video production and monetisation.
Media revenues are now generated from 111 websites and 66 events (50 of
which were held this year) in the UK, US and Australia.

#2020 onltng users to forums: 17.1m, -32% year-a-year. FY 2019 onkine users restated due to
24 I FUTURE PLC re-classihcation of SmantBrief enline newsletter subscrbers 10 emall newslettors
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The Magazine division is the home of our extensive range of specialist MAGAZINE KPIs
magazines and bockazines both in print and digital format. Qur
magazines are exported to many countries in addition to being sold in the UK
on the newsstand and through subscription. We have a portfolio of 115
magazines. which has increased this year due to the acquisition of Tl Media in
April 2020. We have an extensive range of bookazines, and published 410 Z,f:,,:::::,m subscribers
throughout FY 2020. Our total global circulation of magazines and i5min FY 2019 0.9m in FY 2019
bockazines is 3.8m, up from 1.5m in FY 2019. Subscriptions make up 39% of
total circulation' and we continue to focus on building engagement with our
readers to increase subscription sales.
We also have a strong print licensing revenue stream, where we generate
revenue from our specialised content. We have a total of 96 regutar frequency 115 magazines

410 bookazines
print licensing agreements across 28 countries. published published

: . ) ) o 78 in FY 2012 568 in FY 2019
Future Fusion, our in-house creative services agency, also sits within the

Magazine division and creates content and strategy for ambitious brands that
want to power up their own channels with effective content.

10Total of each magazing and bookazine circulation per 1ssue.
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LENS THREE - VERTICALLY |
Loyal Communities
— Our Verticals

By creating content that meets the needs of our audiences and helping them do
the things they love, we create strong specialist communities. At Future, we
helieve that loyal communities are a differentiator in media; where we create
content that meets a need and as a résuit has a value for our partners.

Qur brands span three core verticals: Passions, Living, and B2B.

-

Reaching large
audiences across
diversified
verticals

@28

16m

HOMES &
GARDENS

"Sum of verticals does not equal total due to rounding
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Davina McCall photographed for
Woman & Home magazine
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Future Passions

Qur Passions core vertical is focused on consumer hobbies and interests. The word
passions reflects the high engagement of the audience in this core vertical. They are
passionate about their interests and as part of our communities we are too.

Tech Specialist

Our tech specialist portiolio inciudes
Future legacy brands like TechRadar, and
acquisitions such as What Hi-Fi, Tom's
Hardware, Windows Central, Android Cenlral
and iMare. Each brand focuses on a distinct
niche within consumer technology and
includes magazines. websites and events,
reaching a total audience of 107.6m. Gniine
audience figures are 98.9m (excluding
forums), up 27% year-on-year. Our expert,
specialist content connects with users
across the consumer spectrum, providing
acceassible, informative technology news,
reviews, how-tos and buying guides.

Gaming & Entertainment

Our gaming & entertainment portfolic has
been the voice of authority and source of
influence for gamers across digital, events
and print for over 30 years. Cur content
engages with a wide audience from hardcore
gamers to casual and social gamers. Our
brands have a total audience reach of 62 3m
and an ontine audienice of 44.6m {excluding
forums), up 67% year-on-year. Brands include
GamesRadar, Future Games Summitand PC
Gamer, the nimber one PC gaming website in
the UK, US and Austraha.

Photography & Design

Qur photography portfolio s market leading -
with our flagship photography website Digital
Camera World holding number one position
in the UK and number three in the US. Qur

28 { FUTURE PLC

photography brands provide photography
professionals, amateurs and enthusiasts
advice on how to Improve their images. find
the best gear and get inspiration.

Our exlensive gasign partinlio provides
insight and inspiration to professional
designers and illustrators. sharing peer-to-
peer advice to heip therm he more successful,
We are market-leading both in print and online
in the UK and online in the US.

We have seen strong growth in online
audience to our photography and design
portfolio, up 27% year-on-year {excluding
forums), with Digital Camera World in
particular showing significant growth of 34%
(excluding the forum).

Music

We are the UK's most extensive music
portfolio, with websites, magazines and
events covering ol genres, fromrack to
acoustic, drumming to electronic music,
MusicRadar provides trusted gear reviews,
alongside current gear news and expert
tuition. Our music audience is highly engaged
with 11.4m social media followers, and a total
onfine auchence of 9.5m, up 32% year-on-year.

Knowledge & Wellness

With expert editorial teams across history,
science and technology, our knowledge
rortfolio provides engaging and authoritative
content for all ages. During the COVID-19
pandemic our science brand Live Science
has been invaluable in providing accurate

BREAKOUT CASE STUDY

A\ Advnture

Launched in July 2020 Advnture.com is the home of outdoor buying advice,
providing expert guidance and inspiration for everyone taking part in outdoor
sports and activities, Advnture capitalises on the eCommerce oppartunity
around outdoor gear and fully utilising content from our sports magazines.

and timely information, Live Science holds a
number one position in the UK and US. This
vertical is also the home of our new wellness
websife Fit & Well, helping people live a better,
healthier, happier and longer life. We have
significant total audience reach of 582111 with;
online users up 53% year-on-year (excluding
forums).

Sports

Qur sporting brands combine expert
editorial with decades of heritage. We are
atrusted destination for a wide range of
sports enthusiasts, whatever their skill level,
from football to rugby, cycling to yachting.
QOur acquisition of Tl Media significantly
boosted our sports pertfolio and we took

the opportunity to combine editorial and
commercial expertise tolaunch a new sports
website Advnture in July 2020. Our sports
brands have a total audience reach of 17m and
our road cycling portfolio is market-leading in
the UK. Online audience is up 217% year-on-
year to 10.7m (excluding forums).

Homes & Gardens

Creating beautiful content for the home lover,
our home interest brands cover everything
from the vintage and classic tomodern
interiors and home-building projects. With an
audience reach of 16.4m, across magazines,
online and events we are the market leader

in home interest in the UK. Online audience

is up 417% year-on-year to 6.8m (excluding
forums).

Image removed
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imoge removed

Brands include:

REAL
HOMES

SPACE!  Fit&ewell  [lcaeanveston

Vertical audience stats:

ﬁﬁéﬂ k [@

Total Totai online Total events: Total social
circulation: users: 19 (down from media
13m 225.7m 26 in FY 2019), followers:
{up frem {up fram 859k atlendees 64.1m
1min 153.6min (dewn from 144k

FY 2019) Fy 2010013 n FY 2019)

Market-leading positions:

Number 1 publisher in technology onling in the UK l’ \\
Nurber1in home interest in print and in homebuilding events in the UK
Number1space websitein the US and UK

Number 1 music-making print publisher in the UKand US

Number1photo website and event in the UK

Number1in creative design online and in printin the UK and online in the US
Number1road cycling website in the UK

Number1hi-fi priat publisher in the UK

Number1equestrian print publisher in the UK

Number1 boating and yachting print publisher inthe UK
Numberlgames print publisher inthe UK

Total of each magazine and bookazine circulation per Issue,
B Excludes forums. 2020 Future Passions onling users ta forums'
13.6m. -30% year-on-year.

image rermoved
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Futurc Living

Our Future Living core vertical provides a focus on all things lifestyle and the way
we live. Home to many iconic brands Living has a digital-first, global headset.

Women'’s Lifestyle

QOur women's lifestyle vertical
inspires and entertains women in an
approachable and lively manner by focusing
on the things that matter to them. This new
vertical, established with the acquisilion of
T! Media, includes iconic brands such as
Woman & Home and Marie Claire UK, the
portfolio has an audience reach of 21.3m
globaliy, including 12.1m onfine, up 45%
year-on-year on a proforma basis. Launched
in September 2020, website My imperfect
Life is an informative and relatable site
helping young millennial women navigate
the realities and demands of their lives
today.

TV & Film

With & global audience reach of 4.9m,

our TV & film portfolio consists of Iconic
brands such as Total Film and SFX as weli

as heritage brands such as TV Times. The
portfolio covers TV histings, TV and film news
and reviews and exciting entertaimment
features. Our hew launch of website

What to Watch in July 2020 and our
acquisition of website CinemaBlend in
Octeber 2020, furthers our digital presence
and ensures that this vertical remains at the
forefronl of TV and film content.

Country lLifestyle

Our heritage country lifestyle print brands
have a combined age of more thath 400
years, We are the UK's feading country
lifestyle portfolio with an audience reach

of 2.m, with online audience of 1L4m, up
32% year-on-year on a proforma basis. Qur
diverse range of brands cover all countryside
pursuits and interests from celebrating the
rmost beautiful countryside. finest houses
and gardens, to caravanning, and shooting.

Tech Lifestyle

Tech Iifestyle is our newly created vertical,
opanng Up rew viportunitics ta diversidy
our brands and reach larger audiences.
The portfolio includes Decanter, the UK's
leading wine media brand. providing
authoritative content, independent advice

tmage removed

BREAKOUT CASE STUDY
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whattowatch

Website What to Watch was launched in
July 2020, The site harnesses the content,
expertise and broad audience reach
of Future's TV eptertainment brands,
helping users to binge smarter and guides
consumers through today's confusing video
programming cheices, advising them on the
services and gear they need.

and inspirational events and competitions,
design and lifestyle magazine Wallpaper,
and tech lifestyle brands T3 and Tom's
Guide for tech innovation lovers as well

as travel, fitness and style. The portfolic
also encompasses new launch PetsRadar,
a digital pets brand with a mission to help
the world's pets lead happier, healthier and
langer lives. The portfotic has an audience
reach of 42.1m across print, onling and
events. Online users are up 63% year-on-
year to 38.1m (excluding forums).

Real Life

Our real iife vertical’'s mission is to inspire the
world through our amazing real life stories.
These brands pesition us at the forefront

of popular cuiture and allow us to reach
large and growing audiences through our
focused social and digital strategies. The
acquisition of Barcroft Studios in Novermber
2019 introduced video and social strategy
which is the linchpin of the realiife vertical.
The porticlio reaches 19.8m social media
followers.




Image removed

Image removed

Brands include:

marie dalre (FVreeiciire) - wWomanshome

CINEMABLEND (%1 FILM whattowatch

*acquisition post
period end

TVTmes COUNTRY LIFE THE FIELD

Decanter fetseapaz  wallpaper®

Vertical audience stats:

N I

Total Total online
circulation™: 2.2m  users: 53.9m
{up from 106k {up frorm 252
in £Y 2019) in Fy 2019)"

Total social media
followers: 33.8m

Market-leading positions: 3

R R R

Number1 Number1 Number]
Countryside & shooting print wine magazine
county print publisher inthe UK
publisher in inthe UK

the UK

“Total of each magazine and bockazine circulation per 1ssue.
SExcludes forums. 2020 Future Living online users to forums:
3.5m, -40% year-on-year.

Image removed

Image removed
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Future B2B

3338 2
000 %

[alalals!
- T T T T Total Total email
circulation's; nawsle_tter
J Qur B28 portfolio incfudes many leading B28B pubfications, (2;::,‘ from Zl,:::mberg
websites and events. With a total audience reach of 9.6m, our B2B i‘j‘;c‘;‘gl g‘g;’?:“
brands connect audiences with expert content inteliigently, effectively FY 2019)

and efficiently. The portfalio covers a diverse range of sectors including
education, telecornmunications, AV, media and entertainment, and
technology.

Qur B28 vertical takes full acvantage of our diversified business model,
with revenue streams from newsietters, online advertising, print and
events. The acquisition of SmartBrief in July 2019 gave Future access to
new B?R sprtnrs As well as expertise in newsletter menetisiation. This
expertise combined with Future's centres of exceilence in marketing ana
advertising has resulted in a scaiabie and robust B2EB business model.

Q2

Number1
AV tech print
publisher in the US

BREAKOUT CASE STUDY

TECHSLEARNING

Response to COVID-19 pandemic: our B2B vertical showed its strength and
flexibility during the pandemic. The B2B events team auickly adapted to the
ciosure of live events to host a total of 24 virtual B2B events, with total attendees
of 12.3k. Additionatly, the B28 editarial teams were quick to adapt content to
provide audiences with the most relevant and needed content, particularly in
the education portfolio which offered advice on at home teaching.

Brands include:

SmartBrief MAFECHIEAEE  TECHUEARNING

Installation E W

TVTlechnology AVNetwork TWRIUROPE

Vertical audience stats:

3

Total
online

users: 216m

{un froem
21zman
FY 2019)

Market-leading positions: 1

‘“ﬁ;:a\ of eachmagazine and bookazine circulatian per issue.
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Total Total
events: attendees
n 14.6k

(up from [up from
30 events 72k in

n Fy 2019y FY 2019)
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Strategic Report

SOURCES &
DEFINITIONS

Organic

Organic growth defined as the portfolio
at constant FX rates (i} excluding
acquisitions and disposals made
during FY 2019 and FY 2020 and (ii)
including the impact of closures and
new launches.

Online audience

Online audience is online users taken
from Google Analytics. Unless
ctherwise stated. cnline users are the
monthly average for the year.

Online internet users reach
Online reach of internet users is taken
from comScore Media Metrix; UK

is as at July 2020, desktop age 6+

and mobile age 18+ and USis as at
September 2020, desktop age 2+ and
mobile age 18+.

Total audience reach
Audience reach consists of: the sum
of each magazine and bookazine
circulation per issue + monthly online
users {excluding forums) + event
attendees + newsletter subscribers

+ online subscribers + social media
followers (Twitter followers. Facebook
fans, YouTube subscribers and
Instagram followers).

Market positions

= Online market positions are based
on comScore online unicue visitars
in relevant comScore categories and
competitive sets - July 2020 (UK).
September 2020 (US), deskton age 2+
and mobile age 18+.

s Print market positions are based on
newstrade copy sales (Oct 2019 -
September 2020) and ABC circulation
within ABC defined market sectors for
the period January-June 2020.

» Advertising market positions are
based on competitor ad spend from
MediaRadar (July 2019-June 2020).
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Chief

Execu.tive’s
Bevww

he Group achieved exceptional resultsin

FY 2020. Despite the challenging market

resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic,

Future has thrived by taking advantage of the
changing market landscape to deliver content to our
communities in different ways. The success has been
driven by Future’s value-fed cufture, which is alighed
throughout the business. resuiting in agite and innovative
staff who have adapted and thrived under challenging
circumstances.

Group revenue has grown by 53% year-on-year {o
£339.6m (FY 2019: £221.5m). driven by acombination of
organic growth and acquisitions, underpinned by
continued online audience growth (+56%) to 281.8mY
(48% organic growth). Group organic revenue grew by 6%
(H1: 11%; H2: 19} as cur diversified strategy more than
offset any impact of COVID-19. Organic Media growth was
strong at 23%, driven by eCommerce growth of 58% and
digital advertising growth of 16% offsetting the impact of
event cancellations, which declined organically by 43%.
Qur Magazines division (21% of Group organic revenue)
was more impacted with organic revenue decline of 29%
(H1: -12%; HZ; -45%). Adjusted operating profit is up 79%
year-on-year to £93.4m, with adjusted difuted EPS up 57%

Zillah Byng-Thorne
Chief Executive

to 747p (FY 2019: 47.5p).

The Group continues to increase the Media division
share of total revenues, and eCommerce and digital
advertising have had a phenomenal year in terms of
revenue, up organically 58% and 15% year-on-year
respectively. These revenue streams have benefited from
the significant increase in our audience scale during the
lockdown period, which accelerated the growth in people
consuming content and shopping onfine. While we
benefited from the impact of the growth during lackcown,
whatwas particularly pleasing to see was exit audience
gruwlh rates of 20% in September 2020, owtlining the
core underlying strength of the business outside of
lockdown. Media accounts for 70% of total revenue, and
proferma with full year TI Media financials it accounts for
58% of revenue, We are committed to driving Media
revenue of Tl Media brands to further increase the share of
revenue from the Media division. Organic growth in the
Media division was partly offset by declines in Magazines
organic revenue of 20%, reflecting the impact of store
closures during COVID-19.

Adjusted operating profit margin increased to 28% (FY
2013: 24%), driven by the increase in higher-margin Media
revenues. This growth is a reflection of our continued

“Our exceptional results demonstrate the continued
strength of our strategy, as well as the innovation,
fortitude and agility of our business, focused on
its purpose, delivered by its people. Despite
continued market uncertainty, we remain
well-positioned to continue our strong growth.”

TExtluding torurms. 2020 forums only online users are 17.1m(2019: 25.3m).
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focus onimproving operating leverage. Our efficient
operating model supported by a robust and scalable
technology stack, as well as centres of excellence, provide
acostadvantage, enabling us to invest mare in new
innovation.

Futureis & highly cash-generative business with strong
adjusted free cash flow of 1039 of adjusted operating
profit (FY 2019: 103%), demonstrating the Group's
continued focus on efficient working capital management
and operating leverage.

Our strategy and performance review
Qur strategy remains clear and simple, to build a specialist
global media platform that drives intent, enabled by
technology and insight with scalable, diversified brands.
Our strategy continues te deliver despite macro
uncertainty, and we have been able to keep investing in our
ongoing growth whilst ensuring that we manage costs
effectively during the challenging macro environment. The
recormmended offer for GoCo Group is in line with this
strategy and will create a leading specialist media
platform, providing consumers with insights, informing
them and enabling them to save money on their key
purchasing decisions.

Contentis at the heart of what we do and this works
hand in hand with our technology and business mocdel to
meet our audiences' changing needs. Over the last
financial year we have invested over £50m in content
creation, with editorial headeount now accounting for
around 46% of total workforce. As aresult of our focus to
grow Tl Media brands in the US and digitally. coupled with
our ongeing investment in new content areas, we
announcedin October 2020 that we would be investing in
over 150 new positions in Editorial, Video and Engineering
this year.

Cnline we reach one in three people inthe US and UK,
generating a total of 281.8m online users'®, We hold 23
market-leading pesitions across 11 of our verticals and
across onfine, print and events. We have seen phenomenal

ABOVE: The
addition of
CinemaBlend
boosts our
presence in
the TV & Film
and Games &
Entertainment
verticals,
particularly in
the US.

audience growth this year, bolstered by the increase in
onling activity during the pandemic lockdown period. Total
online users grew 56% year-on-year, with organic growth
of 48%. Additionally, 25 websites grew over 50% on a
proforma basis for acquisitions made in FY 2019 and

FY 2020. We were able to adapt our content to suit the
needs of our audience, by producing COVID-19 related
content such as Live Science's infermative articles on the
pandemic, to buying guides for at-home office equipment
and at-home education advice through our Tech &
Learning brand.

As part of the development of our audience strategy we
launched eight new websites this financial year, sixin the
last three months of the financial year. The strength of our
operating leverage means we were able to continue the
fast pace of our development pipeline. despite the impact
of COVID-19. Many of these new launches are in new
verticals, introduced by the Tl Media acquisition. For
example, new website launches Advnture, Fit & Well,
Gardening Etc, PetsRadar, What to Watch and My
Imperfect Life utilise the content expertise of the TI Media
tearn in these verticals, white our scalable advertising and
eCommerce technology stack enables a strong path to
revenue growth.

We are significantly progressed with our strategy to
migrate the TI Media ".com” brands to our proprietary
Vanila website platform which allows a standardised
approach to online content creation, ensuring it can be
reused, published in different languages and analysed
effectively. Woman & Home, Livingetc and Homes &
Gardens websites were all migrated during the Autumn. In
addition, as outlined above. our strategy to faunch new
".com’” websites in pre-existing Tl Media audience verticals
is well progressed. We are excited about the online
revenue potential of these new launches.

Through our Future Labs team, established earlier this
financial year, we have developed a new lead generation
technelogy, Falcon, as we seek to continue the
diversification of our revenue streams and the expansion

#0nline users for forums are 17.1 millon, -32% ygar-on-year,
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of aur technology stack. We have significant global
audience reach of 393.6m across all our channels and
Falcon will provide the opportunity to add a further
incremental revenue stream to our modei.

Execution underpinned by values

We pride ourselves on being a values-led businass that s
underpinned by its purpose of helping people through
sharing our knowledge and expertise. We are committed
to embedding aur values throughout the business, as we
believe that businesses with strong cultures are the most
successful, particularly in times of market uncertainty. [tis
a testarment to the success of this approach and our
ermnployees that we have defivered strong results this year;
their passion and ability to adapt and innovate during the
initial lockdown has meant that rather than simply survive
during these unprecedented times, we have thrived, while
also ensuring that we have continued to support out wider
stakeholder base.

Our values encompass the way weoperate asa
business externally as well as internally, from our
commitment to sustainability to the inclusion and diversity
of our workforce. We strive to create an inclusive culture
that embraces the breadth of experience that a truly
diverse workforce can offer. We have launched our "l am
Future” Inclusion and Diversity initiative and the Future
Foundation which aims to help increase sociai mohility and
support our most vulnerable. This included making
financial donations towards the provision of free school
meals in the UK. In response to Biack Lives Matter, we
have committed to ten pledges to ensure we are equally
representing black people - covering advertising, editorial
content & photography, to training and awareness and
diversity targets, including ensuring our editorial
represents our communities.

COVID-12 update

Our main focus is to protect our staff, clients and
stakeholders and as such we have taken a three-pronged
approach to navigate the challenges brought by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The health and safety of our staff is our utmost priority
and so from the middie of March, we moved to globally
working from home ahead of local government enforced
lockdowns. Due to our global-first operating model, the
business was already set up for rermote working and
therefore the change has been almost seamless. Our
colleagues have heen outstanding and have adapted
quickly ta the new environment. We place great
importance on good communication, and so {o adapt to
the reduction in contact time, we have increased
communication frequency including weekly Chief
Executive letters, weekly leadership team calls, consisting
of around 100 coileagues, and virtual town halls, as wall as
increasing mental health support including weekly virtual
yoga and mental health first aiders. During this time we
aiso set up a COVID-19 Hardship Fund for colieagues who,
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ABOVE: Three
events which
would normally
be held in March
were cancelled,
and were instead
held virtually with
great success. A
total of 32 virtual
events were held
this year, which
demonstrates the
flexibiiity of not
just our operating
modael, but also
our staff.

as aresult of issues beyond their employment at Future,
may have suffered hardship.

It has been important for us to support our
cornmunities during the pandemic. In the UK we allowed
all staff to take one day of leave per week to volunteer for
the NHS should they wish to. We cansidered it equally
important for us to support our partners during these
times, as a consequence we launched a number of
initiatives including evolving the magazine distribution
model to make it easier for warehouse and shop staff to
handle our magazines safely, cancelling events swillly to
minimise costs for partners, and processing customer
requested refunds promptly.

At the start of the lockdown we did not know what lay
ahead and as a result, the business pivoted quickly to
ensure it exercised finahcial restraint while assessing the
wider impact of the pandemic on the business. The Board
and senior leaders, plus staff volunteers took up to 20%
pay culs (see Director's Remuneration Repart for more
details). Additionally, as a precaution, Future (and Ti Media
pre-transfer) accessed £0.5m of UK Government support
from the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. This
ensured that if the outcomes were more severe, we would
protect jobs at a time of great uncertainty.

It quickly becarme apparent that the impact of the
pandertic would be less material to the Group than first
anticipated. As a cansecuence, all employees (with the
exception of the Board who took a pay reduction during
March-May} were repaid their saiary reductions, and full
pay was restored. Similarly, all government support in the
UK and US was repaid in full.

Cverall the Group has performed very strongly during
the COVI(D-19 pandemic period. The two areas most
impacted by the pandemic were magazine sales and
events, reflecting the closure of high-street stores and
restrictions on holding in-person events. As aresult, we
cancelled 27 in-person events, which in FY 2019 delivered



£8.9m of revenue. For three of our larger events brands
(The Photography Show, The Naticnal Homebuilding &
Renovating Franchise and New York City TV Week) we
pivoted to host these virtually with great success. The
Photography and Videc Show was held at the end of
September with 16,890 attendees enjoying 175 seminars
and 130 exhibitors. A total of 32 virtual events were held
this year, contributing £1.4m of revenue, which
demonstrates the flexibility of not just our operating
model, but also our colleagues. We estimate the impact of
retail closures resulted in approxmately £20m of lost
magazine sales,

Despite the impact on retail, the lockdown period
presented us with a valuable opportunity to trial new titles
and launch into print media sectors that reflected the
sudden shift in readers' interests. Market data highlighted
asurge in popularity of topics such as well-being &
mindfulness, hebbies, puzzles and pastimes, and we were
able to respond with a number of new bookazines that
have proven to be popular with readers. The ability to
respond to our readers’ needs has been further refiected
in our bookazine sales channel, and as retail outlets
globaily have reopened these sales have recovered mare
quickly than magazines.

Acquisitions

A core partof our strategy 15 to buy and build where we
identify assets which, we believe combined with Future,
present a unique opportunity to add value. We have a
systematic appreach to all acquisitions, resulting in a
number of transactions to date being originated in-house.
We have made significant progress on the integration of Tl
Media, which is now complete. The Finance andmagazine
subscription systems have been migrated onto our
comrnon platforms, and our ad stack and Hawk widgets
have been integrated across all non-Vaniila websites,
alongside the migration of Homes & Gardens, Livingetc
and Woman & Home websites to cur web platform Vanilla.
Delivery on synergres continues to progress well with
£20m already secured ahead of earlier forecasts of £15m
per annum, of which £3m benefits our FY 2020 results.
We continue to expect the cost to deliver the synergies to
be in the region of £12m, of which £3.9m (being £9.1m
restructuring and £0.8m impairment of the Tl Media
legacy finance system) is reflected in our FY 2020 results
as acharge to profit.

In November 2019 we acquired Barcroft Studios fora
total consideration of £23.4m, of which 40% was satisfied
by the issue of shares, with the remainder paid in cash.
Barcroft is an award-winning TV and digital video
production company that creates original content, which
is then published an a variety of owned and operated
social sites in addition to being distributed across mass
mediia channels. Barcroft's videos, which focus onreal life
stories, are watched by millions. Now fully integrated, this
is an exciting acquisition as it has added another
significant new revenue stream in video production to the

Strategic Report

Future Wheel and presents opportunities for the Group to
further monetise through video. In addition, by utilising
Barcroft's expertise in monetising and engaging with
social audiences, we are able to drive social media
engagement across our other Future verticals and brands.

In Qctober 2020 we acquired CinemaBlend, a
high-growth digital brand focused on the TV, film and
entertainment market, based inthe US. The addition of
CinemaBlend boosts our presence inthe TV & Film and
Games & Entertainment verticals. particularly in the US.
Additionally, the acquisition also provides an opportunity
to accelerate the development of our recently launched
website What to Watch by establishing a strong market
position from which to grow both online brands, as well as
benefiting from collaboration, content sharing and new
expertise.

Onthe 25 November 2020 we announced that we have
agreed the terms of a recornmended offer for GoCo Group
plc. the price comparison business, which values the
entire issued and to be issued share capital of GoCo Group
at £594m on a fully diuted basis. We believe that the
Combination will significantly strengthen the Future
Group's proposition of seeking to address the growing
consumer demand for nformed and value driven
purchasing decisions enabled by intent driven content. We
believe the Combination provides a truly unigue
opportunity to capitalise on the combination of Future's
deep audience insight with GoCo's expertise in price
comparison and the proprietary technolegy of both the
Future Group and the GoCo Group.

Current trading and outlook

The new financial year (FY 2021) has started well. and we
benefit from engoing momentumn from the organic
business as well as from acquisitions. Our enline audience
continues to show strong growth, which was underpinned
by our recent successful Amazon Prime Day in Cctober.

We meet the ongoing challenges of the COVID-19
pandemic through our three-pronged approach focusing
onh our employees, clients and stakeholders as we
consider how to lessen the impact to the business.

The strength of our performance in FY 2020 combined
with the long-term fundamentals of groewing global digital
advertising spend and eCommerce growth add to our
confidence that, despite market uncertainty, we remain
well-positioned to continue our strong growth.

Qur diversified strategy continues to offset theimpacts
of the ongoing macro uncertainty, and, as a result, the
positive trends we have seen in FY 2020 are expected to
continue in FY 2021.

(f
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.-
Zillah Byng-Thome, Chief Executive
10 December 2020

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 f 37



v
o
-
£
1]
-
-
[T
o
c
=)
o
c
°
W
X
4
3

Risks and
uncertainties

Effective risk management is essential
to support the achievement of cur
strategic and operational objectives as
we address the challenges and
uncertainties facing businesses today.

The Board recognises that the appropriate management of risk is key
to the delivery of the Group's sirategic objectives and the continued
delivery of superior returns for all of our stakeholders (you canread
more about our key stakeholders on pages 44 to 48). As set out on
pages 12 and 21, we actively capitalise on the opportunities impacting
our industry to ensure that the Group remains well positioned to
deliver on the evelving needs of our audience.

The Board has overali responsibility for the risk management
framework and for ensuring that we manage risks appropriately.
Future takes its approach to the identification, evaluation and
mitigation of risk and uncertainty extremely seriously, and applies a
robust framework that embeds risk rnanagement throughout its
organisation and across its operations. Whilst it is accepted that nisk

Risk management framework

forms a part of operating in business, delivering its strategic
objectives whilst mitigaling those risi is o fundamental ohjective for
Futire's Bodid and its cxecutive management tfeams.

Approach to risk
In the current year and ongoing, in addition to its broad strategic
responsibilities, the Board:-

- twice annually reviews the principal and emerging risks faced by
the Group and approves the Group Risk Register.

- twice annually understands the impact of principal and ermnerging
risks and assesses the robustness of mitigations and internal
controls in place.

- annually approves the Group's Risk Appetite Statement.

The Audit and Risk Committee reinforces the process further by
conducting ‘deep dive' reviews, either on specific risks such as cyber
security, or through discussions with Executive Leadership Team
members to challenge their particular risk registers.

Prioritising and reporting risks

The management of risk is embedded in the day-to-day operations of
the management teams. Key risk indicators are monitared through
menthly trading meetings and quarterly business reviews where any
areas of opportunity or risks to the business are discussed as a
standing agenda item. Any changes are fed back to the Executive
Leadership Team (ELT). Audit and Risk Committee and the Board.

Second line First line

Group Finance

Leadership Team Function

Defence Oversight Third line
Responsibility Board Controls Reviews
Actions » Sets the Group's risk + Monitors the adequacy

appetite taking into
accouht its strategic
objectives

systems

ldentifies principal
Group risks

Conducts ‘deep dives’ into
specific Principal Risks
basis

Carries out a robust
assessment of any
ernerging risks

Assesses the impact of
Principal Risks when
analysing the Group’s
long-term viability and
sustainability

.

Considers views from
managerment and the
Audit and Risk Committee
as part of its review of the
effectiveness of the system
of internal controls
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and effectiveness of
internal control and
risk management

Reports te the Audit
and Risk Committee
and Board on a regular

Prioritises Principal
Risks through a format
bi-annual review process

o Maintains the risk
register & conducts
interviews with the
Executive Leadership

Aliocates resources to Team

manage risks according
o potential impact

Communicates
priorities to the business

Reviews detailed risk
registers to agree
Principal Risks

ldentifies any
emerging actions
where Group-wide
action is required

implements risk
mitigation plans




Group-level risks are either derived from ‘top-down’ or ‘bottom-up’
review of a broad range of individual current strategic and operational
risks. The ELT is responsible for identifying risks and working with the
Group Finance Director to capture them inthe Group's risk register.
Allrisks identified by the ELT are scored out of 5 {(with 5 being the
highest) in respect of three areas: the likelihood of the risk
crystallising, the impact if the risk does crystallise, and the strength
of any mitigation in place (in respect of mitigation. a score of 1
represents streng mitigation). A combined score 1s then calculated by
multiplying each of these scores together (with 125 being the highest
possible score).

Each of these Group-level risks is then assessed by the Board in
terms of its potential impact on the Group and its key stakeholders,
The Group prioritises risk mitigation actions by considering risk
likelihood and potential severity,

Emerging risk

Whilst Future eperates in an evolving environment with several clear
risks, it takes a pro-active and robust approach to identifying any new
risks, and evaluating and mitigating all known risks through a regular
review process.

Ourinternal controls seek ta minimise the impact of risks, either by
reducing their likelihood or mitigating their impact. as explained
further in the Corporate Governance report on pages 74 to 77, and
during the year we have continued to develop those controls. Effective
risk management remains at the core of the Group's strategy, which
includes a formal, six-monthly review by the ELT and the addition of
risk management to the Audit and Risk Committee as a standard
agenda item for every meeting. There have been no significant
controi failings or weaknesses identified during the year in respect of
risk management. Climate change is not currently considered to be
an emerging or a principal risk for the Group.

Risk appetite

The Board recognises that continuing to deliver superior returns for
shareholders and other stakeholders is dependent upon accepting
a level of risk. Our risk appetita sets out how we balance risk and
opportunity in pursuit of our strategic objectives.

Zero tolerance

The Group has zero tolerance for risk which may impact:
» The safety of our people

» QOur reputation and brand

« Qurlegal and regulatory compliance

Core business model
The Group has low tolerance
for risk in its core operations.

Strategy and vision

The Group accepts a moderate
level of risk in pursuing new
opportunities, including
potential new markets.

Strategic Report

Our Principal Risks

The output from the above process is a sumrmary of Principal Risks
that is set out in the table on pages 40 to 42 and summarised in the
heat map on page 42. The heat map sets out the relative likelihood of
the risk crystallising and the impact on the Group if the risk did
crystallise — effectively the ‘gross' risk score before considering the
strength of any mitigation. The relative strength of the mitigation
available to the Group to combat each risk is depicted in the cclour of
the risk on the heat map (green being strong. amber being average
and red being low mitigation). The symbol X has been included in the
Summary of Principal Risks table overleaf to indicate principal risks
emergingin FY 2020.

Each Principal Risk has been analysed according te its impacton
both the Group's existing business model. as set out in the ‘Future
Strategy Wheel', and the core elements of the Group's strategy as set
out in the ‘Future Playbook”. More information on the Future Strategy
Wheel and the Future Playbook can be found on the website.
Considering both the existing business model together with the
strategic direction of the Group, the Board carried out arobust
assessment of long term viability, which included performing
sensitivity analysis and reverse stress-testing.

The symbol V has been included in the Summary of Principal Risks
table overleaf to indicate those that have been taken into account
when performing the viability testing.

Changes to the Group's risk

assessment in the year

As aresult of the risk reviews undertaken during the current financial
year, the risk below has been identified as a prior year Principal Risk
that is no lenger considered to be as significant due to improved
mitigations and is therefore not included in the Summary of Principal
Risks table overleaf -

FY 2019 principal
risks not included in
FY 2020 assessmeant

Reason for reduction in risk rating

The business has an established track
record of acquisitions and integrations
which has been further validated with
recent transactions, Additionally, in

Fv 2020 the executive leadership team
was expanded to inciude a dedicated
ME&A function.

Acquisitions - the risk
that any acquisition
and its subseguent
integration fail to
create shareholder

M&A activity will continue to be
value

monitored as a risk but the Group does
not feel that it currently meets the
criteria for being a principal risk.

- ]
In addition. the prior year risk titled ‘reliance on *search™ has been

incorporated into the new risk, reliance on third party distribution
platforms.
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Summary of Principal Risks

Gross Risk mavement relative to prior year ‘ . =

Risk Risk Risk

Personal data

vOo

Business Moadel link: iil, iv, vi, viii

Strategy link: 1,3, 4
| ]
-

Residual Risk mavement relative to prior year G {} E

Staff — Key person risk
vo

Business Model link: i-viii

Strategy link 1-5
| N
[ [ ]

New Principal Risk x

Cyber security and IT
L

Business Mode fink: 1, if, vi, vil, viii,
Strategy link: 1, 4

A AV

Description

The coliection, storage and use of personal
data by the Group presents a risk of misuse,
loss of personal data, or cyber-attack which
could result in high penalties from the
Information Commissioner's Othce (1ICO)

or claims from data subjects. Future may
suffer reputational risk, as wel! as a significant
financial penaity, If it 1s resporisible for the
treach.

Future (and the third parties it refies on) is
tequired to camply with strict data protection
and privacy legislation, mcluding the General
Data Protection Regulation (GDPR}. Such
laws restrict Future's ability to collect and use
personal information and place significant
fransparency and accountability obligations
on Future. The need to comply with data
protection fegisiation is a significant control,
operational and reputational risk which can
aftect the Gruup.

Acquisitions increase the level of risk
relating te personai data due {o the increased
volume of data being processed and the
requirement to migrate the data from legacy
systems and suppliers which may not be
operating with the sarne standards as Future
and its partners.

Mitigation

The Data Protection Officer oversees all
data protection matters and works witli
stakeholders within the Group 1o review,
develop and improve its data practices and
procedures.

Controls and contract provisions are
in place to ensure compliance with data
protection legrsiation and confirmation is
saught fram alt third parties wha might be
involved in providing or processing datato
ensure they are also in compliance with such
jegisiation.

The Group has implemented a process
to respond to subject access requestsina
proper and timely fashion and uses a Consent
Management Platiorm on its websites
withinthe IAB's Consent and Transparency
Framework.,

Governance oversight

The Audit Committes regularty reviews
results of internal control reports and the
Board receives internal corporate governance
and compliance updates, You can read more
about our governance framewark on page 64.

Description
Qur future success will depend upon our
continued ability to identify, hire, develop,
motivate and retain highly skilled individuals
in both the UK and US, in our senior
management and technical teams.

The Group has a long standing CEQ with
a successiul track record In growing the
profitability of the business and maintaining
its strategic direction.

Mitigation

The Group has recruited several new senior
roles recently to provide additional strength
and depth to the leadership team, while
erucially transitioning to a new CFC during
the pericd.

The editerial and operational leadership
has been expanded with the Tl acquisition.

In addition, during FY 2020 we created a
number of new executive leadership roles to
include, B2t MO, CSO. CMO and CPO.

Techinology has heen split from a single
role into two separate executive leadership
roles, with one of these roles focused
solely on our front-end website platform
developrnent and technolegy.

In order to atiract and retain top talent
and ensure that Future remains an attractive
place towark, appropriate reward packages
{including long term incentive plans) are in
placg frr key meviduals.

Governance oversight

The Nemination Commitiee regulariy
reviews Board succession planning and the
Board receives updates on senior talent
management grogrammes. You can read
more about the work of the Nomination
Committee on page 70

Description

Cyber security covers the prolection of our
devices, services, and networks and the
information stored within them from theft or
damage. A cyber security incident could result
ininterruption to trading, darmage to reputation
and financial penalties along with remediation
costs and diversion of management time.

Mitigation

Effective cyber security governance is in place
with regular Group steering meetitigs and a
gedicated role responsible for overseeing risk
and recommending actionable roagrmaps to
improve information security procedures and
protections across the Group,

Future seeks to ensure all of its systems
and public owned and operated infrastructure
complies with best practice as regards to
security by continually investing in and
upgrading IT systems and processes.

The Group’s core network is protected by
Two-Factor authentication security anu firewail
restrictions with a plan in place to mitigate the
effects af any hack.

All warkstations are protected by antivirus
software which is kept up-to-date and
websites are subject te menthly wuinerability
assessments with any required remediation
being completed in a timely manner.

To protect against system/network cutages
(caused by fraud or other issues), Future's
tielwutk has multiple back-ip facilities held in
different locations that minimises any single
point of failure. Servers are distributed across
two main data centre focations and several
coritroiled server rooms in different buildings in
Bath and New York.

Following campletion of acquisitions, assets
are quickly moved onto the Group's existing
infrastructure (data centres and cloud based
providers) except where not possible or
practicable. Websites acquired by the Group
are usually transitioned to the Group's platform
to ensure they meet the required security and
best practice standards.

Governance oversight

The Audit and Risk reviews Cyber Security
assessment reports, {T network management
and security reviews, and receives extemal
advisary guidance on key cyber risks. You can
read more about the work of the Audit and Risk
Committee on page 74.
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Key:

Link to Future's Business Model:

i Advertising

ii. Contant publishing & licensing
ifi. Events and integrated marketing
iv. Membership & Subs

v. Newstrade

vi. CRM

vii. Platform as a service

viii. Ecommerce & lead Gen

Risk

Economic &
Geo-political uncertainty
vO

Business Mode] link: i-viii
Strategy link: 3,5

*=

Link to our vision and strategy:

1. A global specialist media platform

2. Fans of brands and loyal communities
3. Diversifying monetisation

4. Leveraging our data and analytics

5. Expanding global reach

Mitigation: @ Strong mitigation

Risk

Digital Advertising market
changes

ov

Business Model Link: i, ii, viii -
Strategy link: 1-5 ] O

Long-term viability:

O Average mitigation

Strategic Report

Vv Risk taken into account as part of the
Company's long term viability assessment (see overleaf)

W Low mitigation

Risk

Reliance on third party
distribution platforms
Ve

Business Model Link: i, i, viii x
Strategy link: 1-5
Includes the prior year risk relating to rellance on 'search’

Description

Group performance could be adversely
impacted by factors beyond our control such
as the econcmic conditions and political
uncertainty in key markets.

The macroeconomic climate and
continued uncertainty surrounding the
impact of Brexit on the UK economy and the
S political landscape couid lead to reduced
consumer spending and a related downturn
in advertising.

Mitigation

This risk is mitigated by keeping abreast of
macro-econamic developments and ensuring
that the Group respends swiftly to any as they
materialise.

The Group is diverse geographically and
continues to grow the diversity of its revenue
segments. This mitigates the impact of
political or economic stability in any particular
country or region.

The Group has demenstrated through the
ongoing pandemic that its diversified revenue
streams across different media have provided
aresilience to econemic shocks.

in addition, the Group has focused on being
the market leader wherever pessible, which
should result in more resilience in economic
downturns,

Covernance oversight

The Chief Executive and Chief Financial
Officer present reviews and forecasts on the
impact of the macroeconomic environment
at each Board meeting. You can also read
rmore about this in the Strategic Report on
pages 6 to b3,

Description

Continuing changes to the digital advertising
landscape and changing user habits may impact
Future's share of advertising market revenues and
advertising vield:

(i) the move to increased privacy standards
across the advertising ecosystem, may have
potential effects on yield from removing 'targeted
personalised ads’;

(ii) the changing mix of media advert
consumption means that increasingly more users
are viewing adverts on mobile devices, which also
has a higher mix of video advertising formats.
Future needs to ensure that its advertisement
proposition stays relevant to ensure that it can
capitalise in these markets while maintaining a
premium yield;

(i) the abikity to compete for a share of
available advertising expenditures may be
more ¢hallenged as more traditional offline and
ermerging media companies continue to enter the
online advertising market.

Mitigation

Future 1s a premium publisher with large market
shares of highly endemic audiences and as a
consequence advertising partners work with
Future because of the brands and audiences

it has. Future's sales tearns are trained to sell
the benefits associated with working with
Future {rather than acquiring advertising
programmatically).

Future has enhanced first party audience
capabhilities with which it is currently targeting
advertiser's campaigns with rich first party
audience data. This allows advertisers to hyper
target Future's special interest user base and their
purchase intents. This first party data proposition
is completely unaffected by any third party cookie
changes.

Continued investment in Future's Hybrid
technology ensures that Future drives the best
avaitable audiences in the market.

The Group's expansion of its video offering,
facilitated further by the acquisition of Barcroft
(specialist digital vides proeduction and social
channel distributicn company) enakles Future
to capitalise both on growing video advertising
demand and the social channel advertising
market.

Governance oversight

The Board receives updates on innovation and
reviews digita! advertising risks as part of the
corperate plan process. You can also read more
about our Business Model and our approach
to Digital Advertising in the Strategic Report on
pages 6t 53.

Description

We depend on our continued ability to market,
distribute and monetise our content through
search engines and social media platforms.
These platforms could decide not to market
or distribute some or all of cur products and
services, change their terms and conditions of
use at any time and/or significantly increase
fees.

Changes in algorithms and strategies of
tech giants could materially impact traffic
and rmegha revenues. For mstance, search
engines can make changes to their ranking
algarithms, rmethodologies and design layouts
that could reduce the prominence of links to
websites offering our content and negatively
impact traffic.

Mitigation

Although Future has not been rmaterially
impacted by any algorithm changes to date,
the Group s not complacent.

Future has a dedicated audience
developrnent team whoe work to ensure Future
embeds best practice within its editorial and
technical teams.

The Group continues toinvestinthe
creation of expert guality content that meets
the needs of audiences including internat
critical review of our approach to. and success
in, delivering the information and advice cur
users are searching for.

We continue to invest in our online
platforims to provide a secure environment
with strong user expenence and are
committed to ensure that we adhere to online
advertising standards.

The Barcroft acquisition has strengthened
our expertise in distributing and monetising
content across a broader group of digital
platforms with which Future has strong
partnerships.

The Group's recent diversificaticn intc B2B
helps drive a direct relationship with the end
customer and the Group continues to invest
in cther direct sources to drive direct traffic.

Governance oversight

The Board discusses third party distribution
platforms with specific focus onthe
investment needed. You can also read more
about our Business Model and how our
business is diversified in the Strategic Report
on pages 610 53.

continued overleaf:
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Summary of Principal Risks continued

Risks Risks Risks

Reliance on key third party Pandemic Media market disruption and
service providers impact continues changing consumer habits
va Ve vO

Business Model Link; ii, v, viii Business Model link: i-viil Business Moede! link: i, i, viii

Strategy link:1,3 x Strategy link.3,5 x Strategy link: 1-5 x
Description Description Description

Certain third parties are critical to the operations
of our businesses. A failure of one of our critical
third parties may cause disruption fo business
operations, impact our ability to deliver products
and services and result in financial loss. The
reputation of our businesses may be darmaged
by poor performance or a regulatory breach by
critical third parties.

Key third parties include:

« Printers and paper suppliers

« Magazine wholesalers and hauliers

« Data centre and cloud service providers

Mitigation
Robust continuity arrangements are in place for
aisruption to key third parties.

Print opticns and contingency plans are
regularly assessed.

Qur magazine wholesaler finances are kept
under constant review. Gperational contingency
plans arein place fo switch to alternative networks
shouid a failure occur in both wholesalers.

Future operatas muitiple data centres in order
to ensure resilience in key services and avoid
unplanned downtime or service disruption.

OQperational and financial due diligence 1s
undertaken for any new key suppliers or matetial
changes. Contracts, service fevels and outputs are
closely managed on an on-going basis for key third
party services.

Gaovernance oversight

The Board regularly discusses the security of
supply and receives presentations from ELT
rmembers in regard to their key suppliers where
the Board deems an update is required. You can
also read more about our Business Model and
how our business is diversified in the Strategic
Report on pages 610 53.

Principal Risks Heat Map

@ Strong mitigation

Grass Risk [before mitigation)

1. Personal data

2. Staff - Key person tisk

3. Cyber security and IT

4. Econormic & geo-political uncertainty
5. Digital advertising market changes

6. Reliance on third party distribution platforms
7. Reliance on third party service providers

8. Pandemic impact continues

9. Media market disrupticn and changing consumer habits

42 | FUTURE PLC

O Average mitigation

Whilst Future's trading results overall have proven
resilent during the pandemic period of FY 2020,
continuation of the pandemic may have ionger
termimpacts on other stakeholders such as
employees, customers, suppliers, the wider
economy and consequantly the success of the
Group.

Mitigation

The satety of Future's employees has been a
priority. All staff are supported in their need to
work from home according to their personal
circumstances.

Intra-company communication has continued
at regular intervals using accessible technology
- monthly town hall streaming of communication
to all staff including real time Q&A sessions, in
addition te listening sessions hosted by senior
business leaders.

Effort to keep in touch and maintain contact
with customers has been a focus with credit
extended to regular customers when necessary
to assist and ease pressure on their cash flows
during the recent periods of difficuity.

Supplier payments have continued to be made
in accordance with supplier payment terms,

Governance oversight

The Board has received regular updates on the
impact of COVID-19 on our people and on the
business and the mitigations being put in place
{0 protect them. You can read more about this on
page 49.

Failure to anticipate and respond to market
disruption and changing consumer habits
may affect demand fer our products and
services and our ability to drive long-term
growth.

Mitigation

Future's strategy priority is to stay relevant
for newer generations and new media
models.

The Group continues to grow its organic
audience and that of its acquired websites
through the investmant inits editonial
content,

The Barcroft acquisition has extended
Future’s capability to access the high
growth market of VOD and social channel
content distribution in addition to extending
the Group's capability ta develap videa
centent on owned websites.

The Group continues to develop its
partnerships with digital app stores
to maxirmise distribution of its digrtal
subscription conitent.

Governance oversight

The Chief Executive pravides the Board with
regular updates on market and competitor
activity. You ean also read morg about our
Business Model in the Strategic Report on
pages 6to 53,
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Strategic Report

Longer term viability statement

Assessing the Group's longer

term prospects and viability

The Directors have based their assessment of viability onthe Group's
current strategy, which is outlined in pages 12-33. The Group's
prospects are assessed primarily through its annual long-term
detailed planning process which considers profitability, the Group's
cash flows, committed facilities, liquidity and forecast funding
requirement over the next three years. This exercise is completed
annually and was signed off by the Board in September 2020. As part
of this the Board considers the appropriateness of key assumptions,
taking inte account the external environment and the Group's
strategy.

The assessment period

Athree-year period is used for the Group’s Viability Statement as this
aligns with the length of the Group's detailed plan, and this horizon
most appropriately reflects the dynamic and changing media
environment in which the Group operates.

Assessing the Group's viability

The viability of the Group has been assessed, taking into account the
Group's current financial position, including external funding in place
over the assessment period, and after modelling the impact of certain
scenarios arising from the principal risks, which have the greatest
potential impact on viahility in that period.

Anumber of scenarios have been modelled, considered severe but
plausible, that encompass these identified risks. Whilst each of the
risks on pages 40 to 42 has a potential impact and has been
considered as part of the assessment. only those that represent
severe but plausible scenarios were selected for modelling. None of
these scenarios individually threaten the viability of the Group. The
assessment undertaken includes the impact of the recommended
offer for GoCo Group plc.

The scenarios have been run both individually and with 2) and 3)
combined (as the combination of all downside scenarics occurring at

once is considered to be remote) as well as running the impact of
the recommended offer for GoCo Group plc (where the acquisiticn
does not deliver the results that are expected and alsc where the
acquisition does not complete as a result of it not obtaining
shareholder approval), both separately, and with the combined
downside scenario.

The scenarios have been modelled using the Group's existing
£135m RCF which runs to February 2023 and the £215m term loan
for the acquisition of GoCo Group plc which runs to November 2022
and amortises at £20m per quarter from 30 June 2021. The £30m
COVID-19 facility that was agreed in April 2020 has been cancelled
and so has not been included in the medeiling. As these facitities
expire within the three year time period we have assumed for the
purposes of this viability assessment that the Group will undertake
afurther refinancing exercise to both ‘right-size’ and lengthen the
tenor on the Group's facilities prior to their expiry.

The scenarios are hypothetical and purposefully severe with the
aim of creating outcomes that have the ability to threaten the
viability of the Group. The Group has multiple control measures in
place to prevent and mitigate the scenarios from taking place

Although each of the downside (and the combined) scenarios
result inincreased leverage they all result in headroom over the
existing bank facilities and covenants at al! testing points (even
where none of the variocus options available to the Group in order to
maintain liquidity, such as reducing any non-essential capital and
operating expenditure as well as not paying dividends, are utilised).

The results of the above stress testing showed that the Group
would be able to withstand the impact of these scenarios occurring
over the assessment period.

Viability statement

Based on these severe but plausible scenarios, the Directors have
areasonable expectation that the Company will continue in
operation and meet its habilities as they fall due over the three-year
pericd considered.

Scenario Associated Principal Risk(s)

Description

A serious data security or regulatory breach results in a significant

1) Data security

breach 1. Personal data

monetary penalty of €20m and a loss of reputation among customers
resulting in a significant reduction in Media revenues and additional IT

casts whilst the breach is rectified. Given the inherent uncertainty of total
guantum, this test is purposely severe as a stress test for the Group.

2} Significant Media
revenue reduction

2. Key person risk
5. Digital Advertising
6. Third party distribution platforms

9. Media market disruption and
changing consumer habits

This scenario assumes a significant reduction in eCommerce and
advertising revenues (net of direct cost reductions) compared to the
three year plan of 10% per annum. The scenario also assumes no bonus
payment in any of the next three years.

3) Significant
change in external
environment

4, Economic & geo-political
uncertainty

7. Third party service providers
8. Pandemic impact continues

This assumes a reduction in Events, Advertising and Magazine revenues
as well as a print margin decline and extended collection days and an
overseas third party distributor going bankrupt, resulting in bad debt
exposure and supply disruption.

The scenario also assumes no bonus payment in any of the next three years.
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Qur Investors

o 0O

Qur Suppliers

Qur Commercial
Partners

Cur Audience

How we engage
with our stakeholders

Our purpose is to change people's lives through sharing our knowledge
and expertise with others, making it easy and fun for them to do what they
want. Shared and enduring values are at the heart of any successful
organisation, and that's why our core values underlie everything we do. In
order to create these values, it is important to first identify who our
stakeholders are, understand what matters to them, and how our
operations impact on them and their communities.

The Board is responsibie for leading stakeholder
engagement, ensuring that we fulfil our obligations to
those impacted by the business. We believe that
considering our stakeholders in key business decisions is
not anly the right thing to do, but is fundamental to our
ability to drive value creation over the ionger term.

In this section we identify our five key stakehoider
groups and have provided an overview of their interests,
their concerns and the ways in which the Board acted
with regard to these groups when taking its key strategic
decisions throughout the year and what the Board has
learned from these interactions having regard (among
other matters) to the factors set out in Section 172(1){a)
to (f) of the Companies Act 2006. The Board will
sometimes engage directly with certain stakeholders on
particular issues, but the size and distribution of our
stakeholders and of Future means that stakehclder
engagement often takes place at an operational level,
within the context of the Board's agreed strategy. In this
section we show how the Board engaged with each of our
key stakeholder groups, summarise the specific actions
we took for stakeholder groups in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic and set out some case studies which
give more detail of how our stakeholders are considered
when making specific decisions.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of Future plc have always taken
decisions for the long term, and collectively and
individually our aim is always to uphold the highest
standards of conduct. A broad range of stakeholders
are important to the Group at local, regional and
functional levels.

Day-to-day engagement with our key stakeholders, and
ather local stakeholder groups, is conducted at the leve!
and in a format best suited to the context. This may be
locally, regicnally or functionally, by the Board or senior
management, depending on the stakehalder. Where the
Board does not engage directly with our stakeholders, it is
kept updated so Directors maintain an effective
understanding of what matters to our stakeholders and
can draw on these perspectives in Board decision-making
and strategy deveiopment. As the Board receives
presentations and makes decisicns, we ensure that the
impact on any of these groups is considered. We
pericdically review which are our key stakehoider
relationships and examine how we engage with them. We
also consider ways to ensure that we maintain open lines
of cammunication with those stakeholder groups and
whether there are ways that the Board's engagement can
be improved to help us operate more effectively.




Our pecople
Our talented

Q7.
‘ﬁﬁ[m}r and engaged
workforce are

committed to upholding
cur values, enabling us

to deliver on our
premises and we
recegnise that listening

to them and keeping
them engaged is
essentiai to that success
continuing.

You can read more
about how we invest and
reward our people on
page 50 and how the
Group engages,
including how we helped
them negotiate the
COVID-19 pandemic, on
page 50.

Imadge rermoved

How the Board engaged in 2020

Workforce engagement has always been a key priority for the Board. Claire MacLellan, the
Chief Operating Officer who is responsible for global HR, attends Board meetings once a year
to give updates and an HR dashbeard, showing key statistics, is reviewed at each Board
meeting. Our employee opinion survey formally captures their views and is a key part of how
we track engagement. During October 2019 the Board visited the New York office, and in
March the Bath cffice. In addition, in response to the challenges raised by the pandemic, we
held a number of live events via Google hangouts led by the executive team.

Feedback, suggestions and concerns from employees across the business are also
considered through channels such as town ha!l meetings and ELT listening sessions. The
Board receives regular updates on these topics,

The Board considered the impact of the T1 Media acquisition on the existing Future
people. and how the Tl Media people would integrate into the Future community, including
locking at the different approaches to furlough, best practice ways of working and the
impact on diversity.

What we learnt
Qur people are proud to work at Future and are proud of Future's response to COVID-19.
Managing the integration of new businesses into Future's culture is scmething that we do
well (but there is always room for improvement).
Inclusion and Diversity is very important to our people and the education and awareness
programmaes in this area are very much in demand. Mental well-being has been a key focus
area during the year, with many colleagues finding the loss of physical office space isclating.

What we are going to do in 2021

Listening, learning and respending to our pecple will continue to be a priority during the next
12 menths. We have, as part of this, formalised cur internal communications calendar to
ensure we have the opportunities to interact whilst the company works remotely.
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Our audience

We create fans of cur
| brands by giving them

a place where they
want to spend their time and
where they go to meet their
needs. They are central to our
business and without them we
would not exist.

You can read more about our
addience and ¢ hove
continued to delight them on
pages 14 to 192,

How the Board engaged in 2020

The Board receives regular audience insight reports throughoul the year andwe
looked at our audience needs at our Board strategy day. The impact of COVID-19 on
our abiiity to meet the needs of our audience and how this was addressed was
discussed as part of the broader COVID-19 response debate.

The Board considered how we can diversify our audience when discussing
acquisition opportunities. The demands and resource requirements to create
scalable platforms were aiso discussed.

Cyher security risk discussions included a focus around ensuring that any
threats to our audience were quickly identified and mitigated. We are working
towards embedding the overriding GDPR principle of 'data protection by design and
default” in our organisation.

What we learnt

Our content has been a source of help and advice for hundreds of millions of pecple
each month, and this need was met even more so during the early period of the
pandemic and global lockdowns. Meanwhile our magazine readers have been eager
1o access our content and have been turning to our subscriptions to ensure that
they can continue to access our content when the marketnlace was disrupted.

What we are going to do in 2021

Locking ahead, the challenge is to ensure that the platforms we evolve and the
technology we use continues to meet the demands of our audience.

Image removed
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Our commercial
partners
working on our behalf,
cur commercial partners
are a face for our
pusiness. Ensuring they are
motivated to deliver good guality
work helps us deliver the best
service to our audience.
You can read mare about our
commercial partners and how we
work with them on page 52.

Strategic Report

How the Board engaged in 2020
The Board receives reports on how we have worked with our commercial partners
throughout the year, with 2 focus on key commercial events, ie CES, E3 or new
product launches.

The Board considered how we can build and improve on our existing commercial
partnerships when discussing acquisition opportunities.

What we learnt

By working with our commercial partners we can diversify our content
monetisation, reaching a wider audience whilst staying relevant to them.

Our unigue relationship with many of our endemic advertisers meant that we were
able to host a number of virtual events with significant engagement in response to
the cancellation of the physical events.

What we are going to do in 2021
We will continue our engagement with our commercial partners, ensuring we are
adapting to their needs in this changing envirenment.

supplicrs
We believe it isimportant
E that cur suppliers are not
e only price competitive but
also have a strong compliance,
quality, service, sustainability and
innovation ethos.
You can read more about our
suppliers and how we work with
them on page 52.

How the Board engaged in 2020

Engagement with suppliers is key to our values, ranging from cur approach to
Modern Slavery (our statement can be found on our website), to the protection of our
other stakenolders' data, to name just a few. One of the key pillars supporting this
statement is our Supplier Code and we continue to engage with suppliers on this.

What we learnt

Compliance is key for our suppliers and visits to our key production suppliers and
pracesses ensure that we carry out the right due diligence to help them cormply
and ensure the highest standards which are vital to keep slavery and human
trafficking out of our supply chain.

What we are going to do in 2021
We will continue our engagement with our suppliers, providing support and
guidance to ensure adherence with cur Supplier Code.

Our investors

Shareholders are the

m owners of Future,
The Board places

great importance on having
positive relationships with all
shareholders and seeks to
ensure there is an appropriate
level of dialogue with them.

How the Board engaged in 2020
We conduct extensive engagement with our institutional investors throughout the
year. Our AGM and investor presentations gives the Board the opportunity to
engage with investors on the running of their company, and to receive feedback.
The Board receives regular updates on investor communication activity, changes
to the shareholder register, analysis of share price performance and particular
investment themes such as environmental, social and corporate governance. In
additicn, the feedback from shareholder / analyst interactions is shared with the
Board on a regular basis, via cur Corporate Brokers.

What we learnt
investors understand the strategy that underpins our future growth plans and are keen
to see the traction from these.

You can read more about the feedback we had from shareholders on the
implementation of our new remuneration policy for 2019/20 onpage 84.

What we are going to do in 2021

We will continue to engage with our shareholders throughout 2021. We look forward
to welcoming sharehclders, subject to there being no COVID-19 restrictions in place,
at our AGM in February where they will have an opportunity to meet the new Board
members, Rachel Addison and Mark Brooker, for the first time and vote on their
election and other resolutions.
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How we engage with our stakeholders

Stakeholder engagement case studies

COVID-19 response

The business impiications of the
COVID-19 pandemic have been fast
moving and, at times, uncertain. A
summary of the various actions taken by
the Group are shown on page 49, The
Board discussed the Group's response
and the impact on stakeholders, in
patticular our penple. gur audience and
our suppliers.

Acquisition of TI Media

During the Board's discussions on the
acqauisition of T Media the Board gave
extensive consideration to what the impact
of the proposed acquisition would be on
the various stakeholder groups. This
invelved an appraisa!l of the financial
effects of the acquisition, the operational
risks involved iri its integration, optimal
financing arrangemants and regulatory
risk relating to the Competition and
Markets Authority. In addition, the Beard
considered the impact of the acquisition
or the employees of both Future and Tl
Media, particularly during the consultation
process with employees. the audience and
suppliers, as well as the potential
coensequences for existing shareholders.

Workforce

We continue to be a responsible employer
inour approach to our people, ensuring
we communicate and engage with them
regularly in a variety of ways and that the
voice of the workforce is heard and taken
into account wheh making decisions,

The Board agreed a series of
engagement initiatives to supplement the
existing inttiatives including:

s aArranging an annual worklorce QRA

with the Board

» the Senior Independent Director to

continue to take the lead in
engagernent across the locations
including attendance at the staff
confarence.

fmage removed
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COVID-19
response

This section provides a
snapshot of how we have
approached the COVID-19 crisis
since mid-March 2020. It also
directs you to sections of the
Annual Report where you can
find more detail on each of
these matters.

Our governance structure
{detailed on page 64) provided
a stable foundation from which
we could respond to the
changing situation, led by our
Executive Leadership Team. A
summary of our COVID-19
response is set cut opposite.

image removed

OUR PEOPLE
Home working stipend ..Page 50
Refund of pay cuts

Hardship fund created ...
Accelerated online training ...
Facilitated NHS volunteeting ..
Increased staff communications ...
Mental health support ...

Page 51
..Page 50

OUR AUDIENCE

Created new COVID-relevant content
Created virtual events and webinars
Trialled new titles and media....
Accelerated processing of refunds

OUR SUPPLIERS

Evolving the magazine distribution model to support
our supply ¢hain and commercial partners

Extended credit where needed

OUR INVESTORS
Ceontinuing strong financial governance
Maintaining our dividend

OTHER
Repaid government suppert in fuil...
Board pay cut Page 80

Page 81
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Corporate Responsibility

We are part of the audience and the community and we take this responsibility
very seriously. This section highlights what we are doing to make a positive impact
through our sustainability and stakeholder engagement strategies. Day-to-day
engagement with our key stakeholders, and other iocal stakeholder groups, is
conducted at the level and in a format best suited to the context.

® Recycling and waste
management

® Gender pay gap reporting

& Payment practices
reporting
® Charity and outreach

Future

Our pcople

We are a people business first and foremost.
| I I Our six company values underpin everything
we do.

Qur colleagues are key stakeholdersinthe
success of cur business and thersfore their engagement has been 2
key priority in 2020. This year we have delivered a broad range of
people initiatives, from ensuring that we are promoting a safe,
healthy and inspiring warkplace to raising our game it creating a truly
diverse and inclusive culture for all our colleagues.

The measure of our success in this area is our colleague
engagement. This year we have introduced a structured approach to
gathering colleague feedback - our "What Matters” survey asks key
questions to help us understand how our colleagues are feeling and
putin place the relevant interventions. Engagement and
trust will continue 16 be prioritios for us and in 2021 we will be
building more frequent opportunities to listen and respond to our
colleague voice,

Wellbeing, health and safety

At Future, prioritising health and colieague wellbeing is a critical part
of our company culture. By supporting our colleagues physically,
mentaliy and emotionaily they can be fulfilied in their careet and give
their best performance.

* Quarterly Townhall “Ask

® Health & safety policy

& Employee engagement
review

me anything” sessions & Modern stavery statement
“Ask Zillah” SlackChat ® Whistleblowing policy
® ELT listening sessions ® Anti-bribery policy

8 inclusion and diversity

The health and safety of all employees is a key prionty for the
Group. Future is largely an office-based environment; all locations
across the Group comply with relevant legistation and we
communicate our health and safety palicy to altempioyees. in the
UK, during the year {o 30 September 2020, there were no fatalities
and one minor injury across all sites (2019: no fatalities and nine
minor injuries). There were no fataiities or injuries inthe US or
Australio during the year (2019: nil). Our response o COVID-19 was
swift and due to the strong technology infrastructures in place,
Future was able to quickly pivot to enable all of our colleagues to wark
remotely. We provided all colleagues with a stipend to support home
working set ups and have taken key steps to develep our office
spaces tobe COVID-secure.

Weilbeing at Future doesn’t stop with physical safety. in 2020 we
have taken a number of steps to ensure the mental and emetional
wellbeing of cur colleagues is supported.

This year we have recruited and trained over 50 Mental Health
First Aiders across our UK sites to previde our colleagues with
resources and confidentiai support focusing around mental heafth.
They run weekly drop in sessions and are available at any time viaa
dedicated ematl accourt. We have a Colleague Assistance
Programme in each of our geographies which provides colleagues
with access to free and confidential suppor! services such as a
qualified counsetlor, in the US, we arranged a wellbeing gift in
partnership with our healthcare provider te be delivered to our
colieagues’ doors during lockdown.

Staying connected is also critical to ensuring our colleagues’
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wellbeing. We communicate regularly and leverage technology
platforms such as instant messaging and chats, video calling and
weekly newsletters to keep our colleagues in the know and to
celebrate success. Qur Executive Leadership Team hold quarterly
town hall sessions for all employees and extended leadership team
meetings where we discuss key strategic initiatives and the
performance of the business. All of these cormmunication channels
have been particularly important during the lockdowns enforced by
the COVID-19 pandemic.

2021 GOAL:

We will prioritize Colleague Voice and put in place robust
feedback mechanisms and reporting to continue to drive
a culture of colleague engagement.

Inclusion and diversity

Creating atruly inclusive workplace starts with respect. By
appreciating and celebrating our differences we are creating a Future
that 1s a mere dynamic and inspiring place to be for our employees. We
are working hard to ensure that our workforce reflects the diverse
communities we serve, and that we create an inclusive culture where
each employee can truly be themselves at work, Threugh 2020 we
have really built momentum towards this goal of inclusion.

Throughout 2020 we have celebrated diversity in our organisation
through internal events, communications and training. This has
included monthly focuses on Women & Gender Equality, Pride and
Social Mobility. We are committed to educating our colleagues and
raising awareness of diversity challenges. During Inclusion Week in
2020 the theme was Each One, Reach One with a series of
opportunities to learn about inclusion in many contexts and to share
our own inclusion stories.

InJune 2020, we launched the Inclusion and Diversity Forum,
chaired by our Global CRQO, Mike Peralta. We now have 30
ambassadors from across the global business invoived in the forum,
empowered to champion inclusion at Future and drive the agenda for
change.

Embracing diversity underpins our commitment to providing equal
opportunities to our current and potential employees and applying fair
and equitable employment practices. We codify this through our
Equality and Diversity Policy, our 1&D Strategy and our vaiues.

Male Female
Board 5 63% 3 37%
Senicor managament 7 47% a 53%
Direct reports 45 69% 20 31%
All Colleagues 1032  50% 1,026 50%

2021 GOAL:

Gain accreditation as an Inclusive Employer through the
ongoing development of our Inclusion & Diversity strategy.

Strategic Report

Development

2020 has seen Future welcome over 1,000 new colleagues into the
business through acquisition and hiring. We have developed our
onboarding process which kicks in the moment someone says “"yes” to
working at Future, leveraging innovative technology, to ensure new
colleagues settle in quickly and can navigate our business successfully
from day cne.

We have launched a new online learning portal called “Future
University” which gives colleagues access to bitesize iearning
opportunifies and have supported over 40 colleagues inthe UK to
begin work-based professicnal qualifications which will support their
ongoing career at Future.

Development at Future is underpinned by a simpie yet robust
oerformance & potential model which ensures colleagues have regular
1-2-1 and development meetings with their managers to discuss their
objectives. career aspirations and ongoing development requirements.

Qur approach to development also extends to supporting outside of
Future. In 2020 we launched the Future Foundation which intends,
through investment of our time, expertise, resources and passion, to
provide the opportunity for disadvantaged children to reach their full
potential. This year we have launched two programmes under the
Foundation umbrelia to provide mentoring, coaching and internships to
disadvantaged students, inspiring thermn with the confidence and skills
to pursue acareer in media.

2021 GOAL:

Launch a global internship programme for disadvantaged
young people which brings a hew generation of skills and
talents into the Future business.

Policy on disability
The Group aims to ensure that when considering recruitment. training,
career development, promotion or any other aspect of employment, no
employee or job applicant is discriminated against, either directly or
indirectly, on the grounds of disability.

If an employee became disabled while in employment and as a result
was unable to perform their duties, we would make every effort to offer
suitable alternative employment and assistance with retraining.

Our audience

Our strategy is to ensure we oniy ever have
experts creating content for us, toensure
that we can meet our audiences’ needs. You
can read more on page 14 about how we
approached this during the year.

We actively seek to understand our audiences better than anyone,
leveraging this knowledge o help partners inform and optimise their
campaigns. We have developed a detailed understanding of our
readers using a wide range of tools including syndicated research,
web analytics and “The llluminate Panel”, our proprietary reader
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sur vey utitity. Thig Ardience Insight enables our partners to access
highly relevant and knowledgeable communities that will support the
success of their campaigns.

Itis mission critical to Future to represent our audiences fully and
s0 our Inclusion & Diversity ethos reaches into our approach to our
content. In 2020 we responded to the Biack Lives Matters movement
with 10 pledges to ensure we are equally representing BAME people
within our organisation and our content. This includes diversity
targets within our imagery and contributor population and donating
advertising space on our digita! platforms fo suppori awareness
carnpaigns. In August 2020 we donated $500k of digital advertising
space to the Racial Injustice Campaign.

2021 GOAL:
Implement regufar content audits to drive inclusive
content.

Our commercial
partners

We provide a premium, brand-safe
environment for our partners to access and
engage valuable consumers across multiple touchipaints including
websites. social media, video, print and events. Through creative
content-led campaigns and digital advertising solutions, we take our
commercial partners closer to the audiences that matter.

Future is a member of the Responsible Media Forum, a partnership
between 25 leading global media companies to identify and take
action on the social and environmental challenges facing the sector.
As part of the Forum we participate in identifying trends and areas for
prioritisation based on sound research and robust discussions,
engage with stakeholders, campaigners, policy makers, academics
and peers; and run collaborative projects and events on key issues.

2021 GOAL:
Ensure thought leadership as the advertising industry
wrestles with the issues of user privacy,

Our suppliers

We engage with our supbliers to address
challenges and drive positive change
through cur suppiier code of conduct and
processes. We are committed to doing
business ethically and have a zerg-talerance approach to modern
slavery. Future’s Modern Slavery Act statement for the current and
previous years is published on our corporate website:
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www.futureplc.com/modern-slavery-statement. You can read
vt e dbuul how we work with nur suippliers to ensure we operateina
way that is ethically responsible and environmentally sustainable on
page 105,

2021 GOAL:

To ensure that legacy suppliers from acquisitions are
fuily compliant with our Supplier Code.

Our investors

We aim to have an open relationship with our
shareholders, and shareholders can find
up-te-date information on Group activities on
the Company's website at www futureplc.
com. There is a specific Investor Relations section on that site which
includes finks to all of the Group’s public announcements made via
the Regulatory News Service of the London $tock Exchange,
including the Company's latest annual and interim results.

Alf Directors are available to meet shareholders at the AGM or on
request by contacting the Chairman or Company Secretary. The
Executive Directors hold a series of meetings presenting the interim
and arnua! results ta those shareholders who request & meeting in
order to update them on the progress of the business and gauge their
views following the analyst presentations of the results, and host an
annual capital markets day with various senior members of the
Group management team which has proven to be popular. The
Chairman offers to meet with key shareholders at least annually, and
during 2020 he met or spoke individually with the Company’s key
sharehalders. Hugo Drayton consuited with cur largest shareholders
as part of our process of finalising the Rermuneration Policy which
was approved by shareholders at the AGM in February 2020.

Inorder that all Directors are aware of the views of shareholders,
each Board pack includes a note of views expressed by shareholders
during meetings held with Directors or as reported to Directors
through the Company's brokers, together with copies of analysts’
notes, press articles and other retevant information.

2021 GOAL:

Ensure all investors are able to meet with management
or the Board at least twice in the year if they wish to.




image removed

Strategic Report

Non-financial information statement
The Company is required to comply with the new non-financial reporting regquirements set out in Sections 414CA

and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006. The table below sets out where in the Annual Report the relevant information
regarding the key non-financial matters can be found.

Reporting Requirement

Policies and standards
which govern our approach

Information

Environmental matters

Employees

Human Rights

Social Matters

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

Description of Principal Risks and
impact of business activity

Description of business model

CSR Policy

Future Playbook,
Diversity Policy,
Whistleblower Policy

Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy

C5R Policy

Anti-bribery and corruption policy,
Whistleblowing policy

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Future strategy wheel

Non-financial KPIs

Sources & Definitions

Corporate Responsibility Report pages 50 to 52
Directors' Report, page 104

Corporate Responsibility Report, page 51
Corporate Governance Report, page 71
and Directors' Report, page 104

Corporate Responsibility Report, page 52

Corporate Responsibility Report, page 50

Directors' Report, page 104

Risk section, pages 38 to 42 and
Directors’ Report, page 106

Strategic Report, page 21

Strategic Report, pages 6107,
Sources page 33

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 f 53



56 FINANCIAL REVIEW

54 J FUTURE PLC




>
0
[+4
=
G
c
a
£
[y

image removed

Financial
- Review

Rachel Addison

L Chief Financial Officer

Financial summary

The financial review is based primarily on a comparisen of results for
the year ended 30 September 2020 with those for the year ended

30 September 2019, Unless otherwise stated, change percentages
relate to a comparison of these two periods. Organic growth is
defined as the portialio at constant FX rates (i) excluding acquisitions
and disposals made during FY 2019 and FY 2020 and (i) including
the impact of closures and new launches.

FY202¢ FY2013

Em £rm
Revenue 339.6 2215
Adjusted operating profit’ 93.4% 522
Adjusted profit before tax’ 20.9 503
Operating profit 50.7 267
Profit befare tax 52.0 12.7
Basic earnings per share (p) 4H6.4 99
Diluted earnings per share (p) £5.4 9.3
Adjusted basic earnings per share (p) '76.3 503
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (p}' 74.7 47.5

1 Adjusted items are a noh-GAAP measure. For further details refer to the section on
Alternative Parformance Measutles on page 59.

The Directors believe that adjusied results provide additional useful
information on the core operational performance of the Group, and
review the results of the Group on an adjusted basis internally. See
page 59 for a reconciliation between adjusted and statutory results.

Group revenue increased 53% or £118.1m to £339.6m (P019:
£221.5m), achieved organically (increase of 6% at constant curretivy
and actual currency) and through acquisition, with FY2012 and
FY2020 acquisitions net of disposals contributing £105.6m to
revenue growth in the year.

UK revenue growth of §7% or £69.2m to £171.9m (2019: £102.7m)
inciuded £64.0m of revenue from the T) Media acquisition and
£11.1rn from the Barcroft acquisition. UK organic digital revenues
(which include digital display advertising ang eCommerce) grew
strongly by 33%. UK events and magazine divisions were materially
impacted by the pandemic and total UK organic revenues declined
by 7%6.

Performance has been strong i the US where growth of 41% or
£48.9m to £167.7m (2019: £118.8m) was boosted by underlying
organic growth of 19% and increased further by the inclusion of
£23 2mincremental year-on-year revenue from the SmartBrief
acquisition.

Media revenue increased by £82.4m or 53% and by 23%
organically despite the canceliation of in-person events due fo the
COVID-19 pandemic. Organic digital advertising on platform revenue
grew 16% and organic eCommerce revenue was 58% ahead of
the prior year. Strong digital advertising and eCommerce revenue
growth has been the product of the effective monetisation of Future's
online audience. In the year, Future saw its online audience increase
to 281.8m through the increased scale and diversification of the
Group, with organic audience growth of 48%.

Magazine division revenue increased by 54% to £102.3m (2019:

Revenue
FY2020 Fy2019
Segment £m Segment £m
uK us Total Uk us Total Organi
£m £m uiran £m £m DEraﬂ Yoy var YL%EC;?
Digital display advertising on platform 316 68.0 929.6 227 578 805 24% 16%
Digital display advertising off platform n.z 29.4 4£0.6 - 85 85 378% {191%
eCommerce 24.5 54.8 793 15.3 319 472 68% 589%
Events, digital licensing other ontine i25 53 17.8 124 6.3 18.7 (5)% (26]%
Total Media 79.8 157.5 237.3 50.4 104.5 1549 53% 23%
Print & digital content 70.2 35 73.7 387 4.1 42.8 72% {30)%
Print advertising, licensing,
publisher services and other print 219 6.7 286 136 102 238 20% {(27)%
Total Magazines 92.1 10.2 102.3 52.3 14.3 66.6 54% {29)%
Total revenue 171.9 167.7 339.6 102.7 1s.8 2215 53% 6%
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Financial Review

-l

“The Group has demonstrated significant
resilience by delivering an exceptional set of
results in challenging circumstances with the

L

£66.6m), following the acguisition of TI Media. Magazine organic
revenue performance declined by 29%, with the decline materially
impacted by store closures as a consequence of COVID-19.

Operating profit

Statutery operating profit increased by £24.0m to £50.7m {(2019:
£26.7m) and statutory operating margin increased to 15% {2019:
12%). Adjusted operating profitincreased by £41.2m to £93.4m
(2019: £52.2m) with adjusted operating margin increasing to 28%
(2019: 24%), reflecting the strong growth of the Media division and
the operating leverage provided by the increased scale of the Group.

Adjusted operating profit and margin
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Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases
The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases from 1 October 2019, resulting
in the recognition on the balance sheet of assets and liabilities relating
toleases previously accounted for as operating leases. On transition
the Group has applied the modified retrospective approach, with the
right-of-use asset measured as if IFRS 16 had always applied and the
difference between lease agsets and lease liabilities recognised within
retained earnings. Comparative periods have not been restated.
Adoption of the standard has resulted in an increase in reported
assets of £16.0m, which includes a deferred tax asset of £0.7m,
and anincrease in reported liabilities of £16.8m, with the balance of
£0.8m being recognised within retained earnings at 1 October 2019.
Cn acquisition of Tl Media, the Group recognised assets of £8.4m.
which includes a deferred tax asset of £0.1m, and net iiabilities of
£8.4m on the acquisition balance sheet,
Inthe income statement the operating lease rent expense has been

backdrop of the COVID-19 pandemic”

-1

replaced by depreciation of right-of-use assets (£3.7m in the year)
and net finance costs on lease liabilities (£0.7m). Operating profit

has increased by £0.5m as a result of applying IFRS 16 Leases from 1
October 2019 compared to what would have been reported under IAS
17. due to the charge being split between depreciation and interest,
with a decrease of £0.2m in total earnings. Prior periods have not
been restated.

Earnings per share FY 2020 Fv 2019
Basic earnings per share {p) 46.4 99
Adjusted basic earnings per share (p) 76.3 501
Diluted earnings per share (p} 45.4 23
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (p) 74.7 75

Basic earnings per share are calculated using the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 95.6m (2019:
82.2m). the increase reflecting the weighted impact of the issue
of 8.2m shares to fund the acquisition of TI Media, 1.8m to settle
the Mobile Nations deferred consideration, and 0.7m to fund the
acquisition of Barcroft Studios, as well as the issue of 3.8m shares to
settle vested share options.

Adjusted earnings per share is based on profit after taxation which
is then adjusted to exclude share-based payments (relating to equity-
settled share awards with vesting periods longer than 12 months) and
associated social security costs, fair value movements on contingent
consideration and unwinding of associated discount) and onthe
currency option, exceptiona! items, amertisation of intangible assets
arising on acquisitions and any related tax effects. Adjusted profit
after tax was £72.9m (2019: £41.2m).

Exceptional items

Excepticnal costs amounted to £17.1m (2019: £3.4m) and relate
largely to acquisition and restructuring related costs inrespect

of the TI Media acquisition (£3.8m and £9.1m respectively),
SmartBrief integration costs of £0.1m, onerous property costs

of £1.8m, impairment of the Tl Media legacy finance system of
£0.8m and £1.5m loss on disposals relating to the sale of Amateur
Photographer, WorldSoccer and Trustedreviews.com, as reguired by
the Competition and Markets Authiority, as well as UK Cycling Events
Limited and International Craft & Hobby Fair Limited, following the
acquisition of TI Media.
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Tt Media restructuring rnsts charged in the year are associated
will realised acouisition sypergy savings. Onerous property costs
relate to angoing operating costs and the impairment ot right-or-
use assets in respect of the Bromsgrove and Bournemouth offices
which were permanently closed following the onset of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Net finance costs and refinancing

The Group agreed a new £30m muiti-currency Revoiving Credit
Facility ("RCF"Yin Aprit 2020. The RCF, which stood alongside
Future’s existing debt facilities, was arranged in order to pravide the
Groun with additional working capital headroom to maintain the
underlying growth momentum of the combined business, whilst
navigating the Impact of COVID-19. This facility has not beet reyuired
(and has not been drawn) as at 30 September 2020 and has been
subsequently cancelled.

Net finance income of £2.8m was recognised in the year (2019:
net expense of £14.2m) which includes a £7.6m reduction in the fair
value of the contingent consideration payabte for the SmartBrief
acquisition offset by £1.1m arising on the unwinding of the associated
discount on the contingent consideration and a £1.2m loss on the
currency option obtained to hedge the Group’s currency exposure to
the Mobile Nations earnout (settled in February 2020).

Net adjusted finance costs increased to £2.5m (2019: £2 1nm)
which includes external interest payable of £1.8m reflecting the
drawdown of the core RCF to fund the T Media acquisition and
£0.4min respect of the amortisation of issue costs refating to both
the Group’s original £135m facility and the additional £30m facility
that was agread during the year. A further £0.8m of interest was
recognised in refation to lease fiabilities (offset by £0.1m of interest
income on sublet properties) recognised following the adoption
of IFRS 16. This is offset by £0.4m of finance income whictt was
generated whilst the Group was in a net cash position, {ollowing the
receipt of placing proceeds ahead of the completion of the Tl Media
acquisition in Aprit 2020 and the Group's strong cash generation.
Leverage at 30 September 2020 was 0.6x.

Taxation

The tax charge for the year amounted to £7.7m (2019; £4.6m),
comprising a current tax charge of £3.8m (2019: £7.0my and a
deferred tax credit of £2.1m (2019: £2.4m). The current tax charge
arises in the UK where the standard rate of corporation tax is 19%
and in the US where the Group pays a blended Federal and State tax
rate of 28%.

The Group's adjusted effective tax rate is 19.8% (2019: 18%). which
includes a credit of £1.5m arising on the part release of a provision
recognised for unceriain tax positions on the basis that certain tax
risks are now considered less likely to crystaitise. Further information
is provided in the accounting policies and note 8,

The Group's statutary effective tax rate is 15% (2019: 36%;), with
the difference between the statutory rate and adjusted effective rate
being the impact of certain exceptiona! items being deductible for
tax purposes and the fair value gain on the SmartBrief contingent
consideration being non-taxable. This is significantly lower than the
FY2019 statutory effective rate, which was increased by the fair value
foss on the contingent consideration recognised inrespect of the
Mobile Nations acquisition in the prior year,

Dividend

The: Board iz recommending a final dividend of 1.6p per share for the
year endog 30 Septemher 2020, payable on 16 February 2021 to all
shareholders on the register at close of business on 15 January 2321,

Cash flow and net debt
Net debt at 30 September 2020 was £62.1m (2019: £40.3m)
reflecting the additional drawdown of debt {o fund the T} Media
acquisition offset by strong cash generation.
During the year, there was a cash inflow from operations of £81.9m
(2019: £53.7rm) reflecting the Group's strong trading performance.
Excluding exceptional itemns, adjusted operating cash inflow was
£100.0m (2019: £57.7m). A recenciliation of cash generated from
operations o adjusted free cash fiow is included below,;

FY2020 FY2019

£m £m
Cash generated from operations 9.e 537
Cash flows related to exceptional items 8.0 40

Settlernent of soctal security costs ori share-hased payrments &0 -

| ease payrnents following adoption of 1IFRS 16 Leases (3.9)

Adjusted operating cash inflow 000 577
Cash flows related to capital expenditure %0} (4.0)
Adjusted free cash flow 96.0 537

Other significant movements in cash flows include £4.0m
(2019: £4.0m) of capital expenditure, repayment of bank ioans and
averdraft (net of drawdowns and arrangerment fees) ot £75.7m (201%:
net drawdown of £19.3m). payments of £75.8m (2019: £65.8m) to
fund acquisitions (including disposals), proceeds from the issue of
shares {net of costs of share issue) of £101.0m (2019: £nil), and the
acquisition of own shares of £8.5m (2013: £nil). The Group paida
dividend in the year of £1.0m {2019: £0.4m). Fareign exchange and
other moverments accounted for the balance of cash flows.

Adjusted free cash flow increased to £96.0m (2019: £53.7m),
representing 103% of adjusted operating profit (2019: 103%.
reflecting the ongoing efficient cash management by the Group
and including a cne-off operating cash benefit realised as a result of
completing the TI Media acquisition mid-month.

Adjusted free cash flow
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Going concern

As part of the year-end process and as required by |AS 1 Presentation
of Financiaf Staterments, the Directors have undertaken a going
concern review. This included reviewing the Group's forecasts and
projections, and assessing the headroom on the Group's combined
existing multicurrency Revolving Credit Fagility ("RCF™) of £135
million {following the subseguent cancellation of the £30m COVIL-19
facility). and banking covenants after applying several severe but
plausible downside scenarias to those projections as part of the
assessment made for the Viability Statement, prowided on page 43.
This assessment included various individual and combined scenarios
both including the impact of the recommended offer for GoCo Group
pic and in the unlikely event that this did not complete as planned. None
of these scenarios individually threaten the viability of the Group.

Even in the most extreme downside scenario modelied the Group
would be able to operate well within the level of its current available
debt facilities and covenants,

The Directors also note that at the year end the Group had net
current liabikties of £34.3m (2019: £65.6m). This was primarily driven
by the deferred income balance of £12.9m relating to events and
subscriptions, the FY2020 all staff profit pool which is accrued and
nct paid until December 2020 and the nature of the Tl Media business
acquired in the year where the profile of cash receipts from wholesalers
is often ahead of payment of certain magazine retated costs.

After due consideration, the Directors have concluded that thereis
areasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date
of this report. For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 September 2020.

Financial Review

Alternative performance measures
Alternative performance measures (APMs) are used by the Board
to assess the Group’s performance, providing additional useful
information for shareholders on the underfying performance of the
Group. These measures are not defined by IFRS and are not intended
to be a substitute for IFRS measures.

The Group presents adjusted operating profit and EPS, which
are calculated as the statutory reported measures stated before
charges relating to share-based payments (relating to equity-settied
share awards with vesting pericds longer than 12 months), and
associated social security costs, fair value moverments oncontingent
consideration (and unwinding of associated discount) and on currency
option, exceptional items, amortisation of intangible assets arising
on acquisitions, and any related tax effects. EPSisused asakey
performance indicator for the Performance Share Plan. The table
below reconciles the APMs to the statutory reported measures.

Conclusion

The Group has had another transformational year following the

completion of the Barcroft and Tl Media acquisitions and has

demonstrated significant resilience during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group is well placed to achieve its ambitions for 2021 and beyond.
The Strategic Report and the Financial Review are approved by the

Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

/QBAA——-M ety
Rachel Addison

Chief Financial Officer
10 December 2020

FY2020

Decrease In Fair value

Amortisation fair value of loss on

Shate-based Exceptional of acquired contingent uUnwinding currency
Statutory payments ems Intangibles i fon of di option Tax impact Adjusted
Revenue (£m) 3396 - - - - - - - 339.6
Operating profit {Em) 50.7 5.5 156 21.6 - - - - 93.4
Net finance {costs)/income (Em) 28 - - - (7-6) " 12 - (2.5}
Other expense (Em) n.5} - 15 - - - - - .
Profit before tax (Em) 52,0 5.5 171 216 (7.6) 11 12 - 90.9
Tax (£m) (7.7) - - - - : - (0.3} (18.0)
Profit after tax (£m) 443 5.5 173 216 (76} 11 12 (10.3) 72.9
Basic earnings per share [pence} 46.4p 5.Bp 17.9p 22.6p {8.0)}p 1.2p 13p {10.9)p 76.3p
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 45.4p 5.6p 17.5p 221p (7.8}p 13p 1.2p {10.4)p 74.7p
FY2019

Increase in Fair value

Amortisation fair value of galn on

Share-based Exceptional of acquired contingent Unwinding currency
Statutory payments items intanglbles consideration of discount option Tax impact Adjusted
Revenue (Fm) Z8.5 - - - - - - 2215
Operating profit (Em) 267 9.0 34 131 - - - - 522
Net finance {costslfincome {£rm) (14.2} - - n7 1.2 {0.8) - (2.0}
Gther income (Em) 02 - - - - - - N o2
Profit before tax (Em} 127 9.0 34 131 n7 12 (0.8) - 503
Tax (£m} 46} - - - - - - (4.5) (23}
Profit after tax {Em} 81 9.0 34 131 n7 1.2 (0.8} (4.5) 412
Basic earnings per share (pehce) 99p N.0p 4lp 1590 14.2p 15p 1.0)p (5.5)p 501p
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 930 104 39p 151p 13.5p 14p {09)p {5.2lp 475p
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Chairman’s
Introduction

Richard Huntingford
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Dear fellow shareholder.

| am pleased tc intreduce our Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 30 September 2020. This report
outlines how the Board has ensured that robust and
appropriate governance procedures are in pface {o ensure
effective, entrepreneurial and prudent management of the
Company that will deliver the long-term sustainable
success for the benefit of our shareholders and broader
stakeholders. You can read more about our approach to
this on pages 44 1o 48.

1 this report, we set out our approach to corpaorate
governance and provide detail on the role of the Board of
Directors, followed by a more detailed focus on the work of
each of the three key Board committees; the Audit and Risk
Committee, the Nomination Committes and the
Remuneration Commitiee. Together, these give a clear
insight into how we manage corporate governance
principles and processes within the Group.

Our approach to corporate governance
Corporate governance does nat mean ticking vanious
legislative and regulatory boxes, but a thoughtful and
considered approach from the Board down to the
Company's oporations tn identify and apply the principles
of correct corporate governance.

Corporate governance essentially involves balancing the
interests of a company's many stakeholders, such as
shareholders, senior management, staff, custemers,

Chairman

suppfiers, financiers, the Government, and the communities
of which we are part.

Strong governance helps to cultivate a company culture
of integrity and stakeholder alignment. alongside corporate
structures that improve leadership, accountabifity and
effectiveness. This brings a sharper focus to strategic
cbjectives and translates into better decision-making which,
inturn, drives competitive advantage and growth, resulting
in stronger corporate performance and a sustainable
business overall - something Future has fully embedded.

The Board has maintained a strong focus during the year
onthe Company’s short, medium and long-term strategic
goals, inciuding the integration of recent acquisitions with
the Board closely monitoring the berfarmance of acquired
businesses against the investment theses prepared at the
time of their acquisition. This ensures that the Company has
the right people in place to deliver on ils slrategy. During this
period of continued growth, it is vital to ensure that the
Company’s governance processes are robust in order to
ensure that the business is protected and that all
stakehiclders' interests are taker into account.

The emergence of the global COVID-19 pandemic
provided an unprecedented challenge 1o all companies, as
boards and senior management sought to understand the
implications of the pandemic for their comparies anid e
necessary steps to protect their businesses and their
stakeholders. The strong governance environment that
Future had in place as the COVID-19 crisis unfolded

“The strong governance environment that Future had
in placc as the COVID-19 erisis unfolded undoubtedly
led to high-quality decision-making which ensured that
we maintained the strong business momentum we had
prior to the pandemic, whilst at the same time — and
most importantly — looking after the interests of all
our stakeholders, particularly our employees”
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undoubtedly led to high-quality decision-making which
ensured that we maintained the strong business
momentum we had prior to the pandemic, whilst at the
same time — and most importantly — locking after the
interests of all our stakeholders, particularly our employees.
Further detail of how the Company responded to these
unprecedented times is set out throughout the report and is
summarised on page 49.

Culture and values and people

QOur effective governance has fostered a strong company
culture which is underpinned by a set of values of how we
behave that serve as guardrails to ensure that everyone
stays focused on delivering our strategy, whilst staying true
to who we are, The Board recognises the importance of the
Company's culture in achieving its goals (“results matter,
success feeis good”), and has a key focus on setting this
culture, and ensuring that the necessary resources arein
place to allow our people to do the best jobs they canin
delivering the Company’s strategy.

The Board is kept up-to-date on key issues regarding
employees by the inclusion in Board packs of an HR
Dashboard, with the Chief Operating Officer or HR Director
attending Board meetings to discuss matters relating to
people and culture. The two main focuses of the people and
culture team this year has been ensuring the overall welfare
of our employees throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, as
well as ensuring that those who have joined the Future
family as a result of recent acquisitions are fully aligned with
the culture of the Company. The Board is satisfied that the
approach toward engagement with the workforce described
in the Corporate Responsibility Report on pages 5010 53 s
robust. This will be kept under review. As described on page
102 in the Remuneration Report, the pension contribution
rates for the Chief Executive are not, at the date of this
report, fully aligned to that available to the workforce,
although future reductions have been confirmed.

The Board has anumber of opportunities to consider
cultural metrics, particularly in relation to its business as
usual reporting on peopie, our audience and during our
reviews of our key risks. Our culture is embedded in
everything we do at Future and when | visited sites
(pre-pandemic ) and engage with colleagues | am proud to
see how colleagues embrace and understand this. You can
read more about this on page 50 to 53.

Board changes during the year

Meredith Amdur was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on & February 2020 and has
in-depth knowledge and understanding of the US media
market and experience of digitally-led environments, along
with a strong network in North America.

Penny Ladkin-Brand stepped down from the position of
Chief Financial Officer, to assume the role of Chief Strategy
Officer on 1 June 2020 following completion of the TI Media
acquisition, at which time Rachel Addison joined the board
as Chief Financial Officer.

Corporate Governance

Board changes since the year-end

Mark Brooker was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on 1 October 2020. Mark has Board
level public listed company experience combined with
platform-based expertise, and a successful track record
across avariety of operational, strategic and financial roles.

Stakeholders

Consideration of the Group’s fullrange of stakehaolders,
including our people, investors. our audience, strategic
partners, and suppliers, continued to be an integral part of
the Board's discussions and decision-making. An overview
of the Board's engagement activities with each of our key
stakeholder groups can be found on pages 44 to 48 of

this report.

(e Bt

Richard Huntingford
Chairman of the Board

Compliance with the 2018 Code

The Company confirms that it has complied in full with the
provisions of the 2018 Code throughout the financial year.

BOARD LEADERSHIPS AND COMPANY PURPOSE

Promoting the long-term

sustainable success of the Company ..o . Pag@e 13
Generating value for shareholders

Contributing to wider society

Purpose values and strategy and
how these and our culture are aligned

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
Roles and responsibilities

COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION
Nomination Committee Report
Board evaluation

AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Audit and Risk Committee report......

REMUNERATION

Annual Statement by the
Remuneration Committee Chair

Remuneration at a glance and in context

Annual Repert on Remuneration
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Governance Framework

Stakeholders

The owners of the Company and the cther stakeholder groups to whom the Beard is responsible.

Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the Group and for ensuring leadership within a frarmework of
effective controls. The key roles of the Board are:

= setting the strategic direction of the Group;

» overseeing implermentation of the strategy by ensuring that the Group is suitably rescurced to achieve its strategic aspirations;

« providing entreprenecurial leadership within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk to be assessed and
managed;

» ensuring that the necessary financial and human resources are in place for the CGroup to meet its objectives;

» reviewing the Group's culture supported by its values; and

» other matters reserved for the Board can be found on the website at
https:Ainvestorfutureple.com/investors/schedule-of-matters/

Chairman

« Pricnarily responsible for overall

aperation, leadership and
governance of the Board.

+ Leads the Board, sets the agenda
and promotes a culture of open

Non-Executive Directors. Ensures
that there is a focus on Board
succession plans to maintain

continuity of skilled résource

« Provides advice and acts as a
sounding board.

debate between Executive and }

« Ensures effective communication
with our shareholders.

Non-Executive Directors

« Contribute to developing our strategy.

Chief Executive

» Responsible for executive
management of the Group
as a whole.

« Delivers strategic and commercial
objectives within the Board's stated
risk appetite.

« Builds positive relationships with all
the Croup's stakeholders,

Senior Independent
Director

+ Provides a sounding board ta the
Chairman.

« Leads the appraisal of the
Chairrman's perfermance with the
other Non-Executive Directors
annuaily.

= Acts as intermediery for other
Directors, if needed.

» Avallable w respund 1o sharehalder
cancerns if contact through the
normal channels is inapprogpriate.

» Scrutinise and constructively challenge the performance of management in the execution of our strategy.

« Bring their diverse expertise to the Board and Board Committees,

64 f FUTURE PLC



Corporate Governance

Board and Board Committees meeting and attendance

Nomination Audit and Risk Remuneration General

Board' Committee Committee Committee meetings?

Richard Huntingford 8{8) 3(3) - - 21(2)
Zillah Byng-Thorne 8 (8] - - - 2(2)
Rachei Addison?® 2(2) - - - 0(0)
Meredith Amdur® 5(5) m - - 0(0)
Hugo Drayton 8(8) 3(3) 3(3) 6 (6) 1{2)
Penny Ladkin-Brand® 6 {6) - - - 1{2)
Alan Newman 8 (8) 3(3) 3(3) 6 {6) 1{2)
Rob Hattrell 8 (8) 3{3) 3(3) 6 {6) 2(2)

1. In addltion to the eight Board meetings, four Board calls were held to discuss business matters that the Chairman and Group Chief

ive decided should be cor by the Board.,

2. All Directors recelved papers for all meetings. Where Diractors wera unable to attend a meeting they had the oppartunity te comment in advance and received a briefing on any decisions taken.
Hugo Drayton, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Alan Newman were unable to participate in the General Meeting held in November 2019 dug to prior business commitments.

3. Rachel Addlson was appointed to the Board on 1June 2020.

4. Meredith Arndur was appolnted ta the Board on 6 February 2020,
5. Penny Ladkin-Brand resighed from the Board on 1June 2020,

6. In additlon to the scheduled meetings, the Senlor Independent Director and the Non-Executlve Directors meet once a year without the Chairman present in order to appraise his performance.

Principal Board Committees

Audit and Risk Committee

+ Oversees and monitors the Company's
financial staternents, accounting
processes and audits {internal and
external).

» Ensures that risks are carefully identified
and assessed, and that sound systems
of risk management and internal cantrol
are in place.

» Reviews matters relating tofraud and
whistleblowing reports received.

Remuneration Committee

« Reviews and recommends the framewoark
and policy for the remuneration of the
Chairman, the Executive Directors, the
Company Sectetary and senior executives
in alignment with the Group's reward
principles.

« Considers the business strategy of the
Croup and how the remuneration policy
reflects and supports that.

« Reviews workforce remuneration and
related policies and alignment of
incentives and rewards with cuiture, to
help inform setting of Directors’
remuneration policy.

« Consults with shareholders on the
remuneration policy.

Nomination Committee

« Reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board and its
Committees.

« Identifies and nominates suitable
executive candidates to be appcinted to
the Board and reviews the talent pool

« Considers wider elements of succession
planning below Board level, including
diversity.

SEE PAGE 74 FOR MORE INFORMATION

SEE PAGE 80 FOR MORE INFORMATION

SEE PAGE 70 FOR MORE INFORMATION

Executive Leadership Team

Considers Group-wide initiatives and priorities. Reviews the implementation of operational plans. Reviews changes to pelicies and
procedures and facilitates the discussion of the development of new projects. Reviews and prioritises principal risks.

Board standing committee

Disclosure Cormmittee which oversees the Company's compliance with its disclosure obligations.
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Board of Directors
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Richard Huntingford

POSITION: Independent
Non-Executive Chairman

NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: December 2017 and

as Chairmian in February 2018

@

Zillah Byng-Thorne
POSITION:

Chief Executive

NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: November 2013 and
as Chief Executive in April 2014
A

Rachel Addison

POSITION:
Chief Financial Officer

NATIONALITY: British
APPOINTED: June 2020

Mceredith Amdur

POSITION:
Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: American

APPOINTED: February 2020
A B

Key skills and expetience:
« Provides strong leadership of
the Board in fulfilling its role of

overseeing the development and

delivery of Company strategy

» Ensures healthy debate and
appropriate support for, and
challenge of, executive
management in their delivery of
strategy by Non-Executive
Directors

» Provides leadership in
stakeholder relations

External appointments:
Non-Executive Director and
Chairman Designate of Unite

Group plc, Non-Executive Director

of JPMorgan Mid Cap nvestment
Trust plc and The Bankers
Investment Trust ple. Richard had
a 20-year career at Chrysalis ple
and was CEC from 2000 to 2007,
following which he was Chairman
of Virgin Radio until its sale in
2008. More recently, he has been
Non-Executive Chairman of

Crown Place VCT plc from 2012 to

2020 and of Wireless Group plc
(formedy UTV Media plc) from
2012 to 2016 and Non-Executive

Director and Chalrman of Creston

plc from 201110 2016,
Education: Richardis a

chartered accountant (FCA),
having qualified with KPMG.

Key skills and experience:

* Has a strong track record in
developing and delivering
against successful strategy

» Focus on driving operational
excellence

+ s 2 proven people manager.
identifying and developing
talent at senior fevel

External appointments:
Non-Executive Director of GoCo
Group ple, Flulter
Entertainment pic and THG
Holdings ple. She was Chief
Financial Qfficer of Trader Media
Group {fowner of Auto Trader)
from 2009 to 2012, and interim
Chief Executive Officer from
2012 to 2013. Before this, Zillah
was Commercial Directer and
Chief Financia) Officer at Fitness
First Limited and Chief Financial
Officer of the Thresher Group.

Education:

Zillah is a chartered
management accountant
(CIMA) and qualified treasurer
(ACT). She has an MAin
Management from Glasgow
University and an MScin
Behavioural Change from
Henley Business School.
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Key skills and experience:

« Strong financial and
commercial expertise

» Wealth of finance experience
inlarge listed multinationals

External appointments:
Rachel was previously Tl
Media’s Chief Finance Officer.
Before that she was managing
director of Trinity Mirror's
Regional Media division and
CFO/CO0Q and executive board

member of Local World Limited.

Education:

Rachelis a chartered
accountant and holds a BS¢in
Economics from Loughberough
University.

Key skills and experience:

« Editorial and publishing
content

» Digital

» Technology platforms

« Advertising and brands

External appointments:
Meredith is currently Chief
Executive Officer of Rhetorik, a
teading data supplierto
technology vendors. She was
previously President and CEQ of
Wanted Technologies, a
Canadian listed recruitment
data analytics provider, and has
held executive roles with
Microsoft, Deloitte and DirecTV.

Education:

Meredith holds a BA from the
University of North Carolina in
International Studies, an MSc
from the London School of
Economics in Politics and an
MBA in Business Administration
and Management from Cornelf
University.
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Mark Brooker ITugo Drayton Alan Newman Rob Ikattrell
POSITION: POSITION. Senior POSITION: POSITION:

Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: Octcber 2020
A O

Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: December 2014
A(®)m

independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: February 2018
A®

Independent Non-Executive
NATIONALITY: British

APPOINTED: October 2018
A S

Key skills and experience:

* Board roles, Executive and
Nen-Executive, in public
companies

» UK and International
consumer and B2B businesses

« Digital platforms

External appointments:
Currently Non-Executive
Director at AA plc, Equiniti
Group plc and William Hill pic.
Mark was previously Chief
Operating Officer of Trainline
(formerly thetrainline.com}
where he had responsibility for
the UK and International
consumer and B2B businesses,
including the Marketing and
Preduct functions. Mark joined
Trainline from Betfair where he
also held the role of COO.

Prior to this, Mark spent 17
years in investment banking
advising UK companies on
equity capital raising and M&A,
latterly as a Managing Director
at Morgan Stanley.

Education:

Mark holds a Master's degree in
Engineering, Economics and
Management from Oxford
University.

Key skills and experience:

* Advertising and marketing,
technology, customer
behaviour, media, executive
leadership, business
development.

External appointments:
Hugo is a trustee of the British
Skin Foundation and is a regular
contributer to trade press and
publishing conferences. He
served as CEO of the advertising
technology business Inskin
Media from 2009-15. Priorto
Inskin, he spent two years as
CEO of behavioural targeting
specialist, Phorm, following two
years as European Managing
Director of Advertising.com. He
spent 10 years at The Telegraph
Group, as Group Managing
Director, and previously as
Marketing & New Media
Director. He has also chaired the
British Internet Publishers’
Alliance.

Education:

Hugo holds a BAin Latin
American Studies & French
from University College of
London.

Key skills and experience:

* Corporate finance, accounting
and audit, executive
leadership, investor relations,
media, telecommunications
and technology, public
company leadership and
governance, strategy and
MEA.

External appointments:
Alan is Chief Financial and Chief
Operating Officer of Ebiquity plc
and Chairman of the Freud
Museumn London. He was Chief
Financial Officer of YouGov plc
from 2008 tc 2017 and before
that was a Partner at Ernst &
Young Business Advisory
Services and at KPMG
Consulting, where he worked
mainly with clients in the media.
telecommunications and
technology sectors. He
previously held corporate
management roles at Pearson
plcand MAI ple {(now United
Business Media).

Education:

Alanis achartered accountant
and has an MA in Modern
Languages (French and
Spanish) from Cambridge
University.

Key skills and experience:

» Digital platforms, eCommerce
and online sales, retail and
customer behaviour,
technology, business
development, executive
leadership.

External appointments:
Vice President, eBay UK, where
he leads one of eBay's strongest
markets wortdwide. Previously
at Tesco, Rob was most recently
responsible for the
supermarket's General
Merchandise business across
the UK and Central Europe. He
has also held the position of
Partner in the global retail
praclice at Accenture.

Education:

Rob graduated frorm Oxford
University with a degreein
Geography.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 [ 67



Board activities

@ Qur investors

effectiveness evaluation.
v Anproving updated Committees’ termns of reference.

« Continuing to keep key policies updated and moniter
ongoing compliance,

+ Recejving and considering fesdback from shareholder
engagernent,

» Reviewing and approving the Modern Slavery statement,

X
[
) |
E
£ Facus area Key stakehciders Activities Link to strategic priorities
o
i
o Strategy m Our people * Applying the Board's strategic Understanding of » Diversifying our
g and geopolitical and economic risks in international markets audience
E operations @ our audience 10 the Cornpany's challenges and opportunities.
b= {see Strategic . . . ) 7 « Scalable platform
g Report » Considering acqguisitions and divestrnents as identified
=} i Cur commercial and determine approptiate course. « Continue
o starting en d
artners i ificati
page 4] P » Monitaring the performance of the Company against diversification O,f .
. - N . content monetisation
@ { agreed strategic objectives, including progress against
Cur suppliers feiri
acguisition theses. « Ongoing investment
’ @ S investurs
Leadership, % Cur people « Receiving an update on employee views and » Ongoing investment
people and engagement.
culture 0 @ Cur investors « Ensuring the Company remains at the forefront of
(see page 50] developing and ernbedding best practice in responsible
business behaviour.
« Maintaining and enhancing Future's culture and values
and key policies and procedures and ensure these are
rofled out to existing and acquired businesses.
» Reviewing whistleblowing statistics, details of cases raised
through the Speak Up provision and related independent
investigations.
« Continuing to monitor senior executive talent
management and development plans to provide
succession for all key positions.
Finance @ Qur audience » Reviewing and approving the Group budget. + Scalable platform
{see Strategic « Reviewing financial Key Performance Indicators (KPis). .
Reporton Our cormmercial . « Cantinued
page 4 and parthers « Approving full year results, half year results, trading update diversification of
Financial and the Annual Report content monetisation
Review on Qur suppliers *» Reviewing the Group's dividend policy. ]
page 54} o ) ) + Ongoing investiment
» Reviewing the key risks to the Group and the controls in
. for their mitigation.
@ T investors place for their mitigati
» Considering and monitoring the Group's risk appetite and
principal risks and uncertainties.
» Approving the viability and going concern statements.
» Reviewing and approving the tax strategy.
Goverhance % Our people » Monitoring and reviewing the Company’'s approach to » Ongoing investment
{see page corporate governance, its key practices and its ongoing
60 of the @ o . compliance with the 2018 Code
ur suppliers A
Governance + Reviewing the results from the internal Board
Report)
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Board evaluation

The Directors completed a detailed Board performance evaluation
guestionnaire as part of the annual performance evaluation process.
Given the recent appointment of two additional Non-Executive
Directors and a new Chief Financial Officer, the Board considered that
an external evaluation would be more beneficial in 2021 once the
newly appointed Directors are more firmly established, and that the
2020 evaluation should therefore be carried out internally.

Each questionnaire was anajysed and a summary of theresults and
the Board's performance was presented to the Board for discussion.
The Board considers this exercise to be of significant value, and focus
is placed on reviewing the quality of information provided to the
Board at the Board's discussions, the effectiveness of the Board, the

Corporate Governance

Summary of performance evaluation

Following an internal performance evaluation carried cut in 2019. the
following main objectives were identified for 2020, together with
steps taken to address them.

In 2020, an internal performance evaluation was again carried out,
by way of questionnaire, identifying areas of strength and weakness.
The guestionnaire was structured to provide direct comparison with
the previous year, allowing the Board to identify improving or
declining trends and monitor the effectiveness of the steps taken to
address the previous year's findings. The 2020 performance
evaluation, which was discussed at the September 2020 Board
meeting, concluded that the Board is highly engaged with strong
shareholder focus and clear alignment to vision and strategy, making

composition of the Board, including the skillset of the various
Directors, highlighting whether there are any gaps in the breadth and
depth of the Board that should be addressed by the Nomination
Committee as part of its succession planning. and to ensure that the
Board is best placed to deliver on its strategic goals and ensure the
long term sustainable success of the Company.

The Board determined that. going forwards, a performance
evaluation should be carried cut by an external facilitator once every
three years, as reguired by the 2018 Code, with the first performance
evaluation to be conducted by an external facilitator no later than

2021.

2019 evaluation

Objectives for 2020

Steps taken during 2020

Further diversity

on Board would be
welcome [especially
US media and UK
PLC experience).

* Appointment of Meredith Amdur and
Mark Brooker.

Board to take

mare proactive

role in succession
planning and
talent development
at ELT level, and
formalise approach
to workforce
engagement.

« The approach to succession planning
was reviewed during the year.

* The Board asked the Nomination
Committee to review the talent
development plans for the ELT.

« The Board agreed its approach to
workforce engagement {see page 45
for more information).

Review the schedule
of Board and
Committee meetings
to allow for fuller
discussions.

+ The meeting schedule was reviewed
and revised.

Promote
opportunities for
formal/technical
training and ensure
that regutar updates
are provided on
technological

and business
developments.

» When a specific training need is
identified, where appropriate, such
training Is delivered by the topic being
included at a Board meeting so that
all Directors can benefit. Alternatively,
training is delivered by way of formal
presentations, individual meetings and
site visits in order to learn more about
a particular initiative or project.

* Routine paper on horizen scanning.

for constructive and challenging debate. There is a culture of open
communication, mutual trust and respect for each other's opinions
and industry knowledge. The Board also agreed on the following
actions for the forthcoming year:

2020 evaluation

Objectives for 2021

Steps to be taken during 2021

Utilising our skills
matrix as part of our
Board succession
planning,

» The Board's contribution is dependent
on its ability to add strategic relevance,
diversity of perspective and governance
expertise. The Board will continue to
evolve its skills and diversity mix.

Reorganisation
of our Board
Committees and
their remits.

= To make certain changes to
membership of aur Board Committees.
The airm of these changes is to make
the best use of Board talent.

Reviewing our
stakeholder
engagement
mechanisms in
relation to the 2G18
Code.

» The interests of cur stakeholders are
central to the way we operate as a
company. The Board will review the
ways in which we engage with them to
ansure that they facilitate dialogue and
that the interests of our stakeholders
are always considered in our decision
making.

Continuing to set
and monitor our
carporate culture,

¢ The Board will continue to ensure that
the policy, practices and behaviours
througheout the business are aligned
with the purpose, values and strategy of
Future.
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Nomination Committee

Members Since
Richard Huntingford.............2017
(Chair)
Meredith Amdur 2020
Mark Brooker....... . 2020 (From October 2020)

Zillah Byng-Thorne..
Huige Drayton......
Rob HATrel. o srecemsssrassrn 20

Alan NewMman ... 2018

The Company Secretary, or nominee, acts as secretary
to the Committee.

Details of individual Directors' attendance can be
found on page &5.

Key objective of the Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee supports the Board in
Executive and Non-Executive succession pianning.
Our key obiectives as a Nomination Committee are:

» To make sure the Board has individuals with the
necessary range of skills and knowledge and
diversity of experiences to lead the Company.

« To ensure that it is effective in discharging its
responsibilities and overseeing appropriately all
matters refating to corporate governance.

Key responsibilities

» [sure succsessinn plans are reviewed,

» improve diversity on the Board and in the pipeline
for senior management roles.

» Further strengthen the senior management team.

Key actions from 2019/20
« Board and Cammittee composition
« Board succession planning

Priorities for 2020/21

« Monitor Board composition for alignment of relevant
skills, experience and diversity to Company strategy.

« Apprave the Board Diversity Policy.

» Oversight of the ELT's development and succession
planning.

70 [ FUTURE PLC

Introduction from
Nomination Committee
Chairman:

During the year, the Nomination
Committee has continued its focus on
the skillset of, and succession
planning for, the Board. The
Committee’s first task was to
complete its search for an additional
MNon Executive Dirertar with refevant
US media experience which led to the appointment of Meredith
Amdur on & February 2020.

Irmage remaved

Skills matrix

Puring the year, the Nomination Committee again reviewed and
analysed the composition of the Board and the specific skilis and
attributes that each Director brings to the Board. A skills matrix,
aligned to the Company's strategy for long term sustainable success
has been developed, and each Director assessed against it.
Following this review, the Commitiee identified the need for an
additional Non-Executive Director with public company board
experience and knowledge and understanding of digital platform-
based businesses. Foliowing a search process, this led to Mark
Brooker being appointed to the Board on 1 October 2020.

Succession planning

The Committee, on behalf of the Board, regularly assesses the
balance of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, and the
compasition of the Board in terms of skills, experience, diversity and
capacity.

For the appointments of Meredith Amdur and Mark Brooker,
Heidrick & Struggles were appointed to lead the search for the new
Not-Exevutive Director. Heidrick & Struggles do not have any other
connection with any of the Directors, or the Company. Working with
the Committee, Heidrick & Struggles developed a candidate
specification and a drew up a shartlist of suitable candidates far the
additional Non-Executive Director role, each of which was subject to
a three stage process including interviews with all the Board
membears,

The Chief Executive and Executive Leadership Team (ELT)
succession planning is a particular focus of the Committee. Whilst
the Committee and Board hope very much that the current Chief
Executive, Zillah Byng-Tharne, will continue to lead the Cormpany for
the foreseeable future, the Committee felt it would be prudent to
engage an execUtive search firm, Russell Reynolds, to performa
desk-top review of the externai Chief Executive talent pool. in
addition, the Committee has continued to monitor the ELT and
senjor management {alent pool 1o ensure that succession planning
for business-critical roles is proactively reviewed. The Board
considered the implications of the new requirements relating to the
development of a diverse pipeling for succession for the Board and
the ELT coritained within the 2018 Code.




Director induction programme example

Corporate Governance

We have a detailed Director induction programme which all new Board members participate in.

Training on ethics
and other topics

Briefed on outcomes
of most recent
effectiveness

review

Meeting with
investors

Meeting with
colleagues during
site visits

Board diversity policy

Our objective of driving the benefits of a diverse Board, senior
management team and wider workforce is underpinned by our
strong culture of diversity and inclusion. The Board is developing a
Diversity Policy, which is intended to be approved during 2020/21
and will be available on our website. The Policy will ensure that it
remains an effective driver of diversity in its broadest sense, having
due regard to gender. ethnicity, social background, skiliset and
breadth of experience.

Diversity and inclusion have continued to be promoted across the
business with a number of initiatives, including education and
capacity building, resocurce groups, talent acceleration and
development and leveraging data and analytics to help achieve our
ambitions. You can read more about the work that has been done in
this area and the benefits they bring to the Group on page 51.

The Committee has focused on these areas for a number of years
and will continue to consider the various diversity factors setout in
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the 2018 Code) and the
Hampton-Alexander and Parker Reports appropriately. We have
37% female representation on the Board. You can see more
information on the gender split across the Board, senior
management team and the Group as a whole on page 51.

Committee performance and effectiveness

The Committee’s performance was evaluated as part of the internal
effectiveness survey, as described on page 69. The review was
completed by all Committee members and no issues arcse.

Meeting senior
executives

Site visits
(CoVvID-19
permitting)

Information
on the Group
budget and
strategy

Last Annual Report

Independence

During 2019/20. the Committee reviewed the balance of skills.
experience and independence of the Board. For Non-Executive
Directors independence in thought and judgement is vital to
facilitating constructive and challenging debate in the boardroom
and is essential to the operaticnal effectiveness of the Future
Board and its committees.

The Committee is satisfied that the external commitments of
the Beard's Chairman and members do not conflict with their
duties as Directors of the Company.

After the year-end, the Committee also considered the
Directors proposed for re-election by shareholders at the AGM.
Following discussion of the skills and contribution of each Director,
and in conjunction with the Board performance evaluation
conducted in September 2020, the Committee supports the
proposed re-election of all Directors standing for re-election (or
election) at the AGM in 2021. In line with best practice, each
Committee member was excluded from approving the proposal
for their re-election (or election}.

L bt

Richard Huntingford
Chairman
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Great executive
leadership, its
armbition and its
fundamental
platferm and
content assets.
Future is the
media company U'd always hoped would
ernerge -~ being truly technology and data
driven, without de-valuing editerial and
ecohomically shrewd by building strong,

fmage removed

non-cormmoditized vertical specialised niches.

What skilis do you bring to the
Board and why do you think they
are important?

A breadth of international, industry and
functional experience relevant 1o the unigue
mix of technology and editorial content for
both B2B and B2C audiences. My background
gives me a uniguely multi-disciplinary
exposure to the growth opportunities and
challenges Future faces as it continues to
evolve.

What surprised you from the
induction?

The unusually strong alignment among both
internal and external stakeholders, whom |
met as [ got to know the Company. Often
when you peer under the hood of a firm, you
find very different perceptions of what needs
to happen and by whom. The induction
revealed a very coherent and consistent set of
values and aspirations.

What do you think is the biggest
challenge?

Sustained success creates its own risk of
expectation - continuing to meet and exceed
the market's evar higher bar —but also of
unanticipated external market risks of what
you don’t see caming if you're only focused on
near term operations. That's why working well
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z What ahead 1o manage and in fact explait changes
attracted you like the end of cookies or the importance of
to Fututre? video is so critical. There is risk in getting toa

comfortakle and missing the next opportunity
10 create entirely new solutions and lead the
market. Innovation is &1 uver-used word, bur
'm a believer in remaining paranoid about
heing blind-sided by the next big thing.

How did COVID-19 impact your
induction programme?

My onboarding had just started as the
COVID-19 alarm bells started to ring so | was
guickly thrust into the real time decisions
required to be made by the Board and
executive in how to manage the health and
viability of the business, supporting
management as it navigated very unsettied
waters, whilst also clearing the acquisition of
T! Media. | picked up my induction after the
dust settied and several major earnings and
integration hurdles already had been cleared.
This staggering of the onboarding/induction
experience provided a much more "real-time”
pragmatic approach to the nature of the
questions | pesed and turned onboarding into
more practical support.

What do you think is the biggest
opportunity?

| see massive opportunities in the B2B media
and data services space where content and
intent data are so critical to the direct
marketing formuia. Future can continue to
diversify and build powerful two-sided
networks across the data-driven information
and advertising marketspaces. With a
rnanagement rigour unique among
publishing companies, Future is poised to be a
major information and economic media hub
in North America and globally, thanks to the
power of its two greatest and eminentiy
scalable strengths: tremendous first party
editorial content across a range of professional
and consumer interest areas, combined with a
‘digital and piatform first” organizing

principle.

72 J FUTURE PLC




Corporate Governance

Image removed




[
]
Lo
=
E
£
5]
3]
x
2
=7
T
c
1]
£
o
=
X

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Audit
and Risk Committee, |
am pleased to present its
report for the year ended
30 September 2020.
This report sets out how
the Commiittee has
discharged its duties in
accordarce with the UK
Corporate Governance
Code 2018 (the 2018 Code) and jts key activities and
findings during the year.

We have continued to discuss and challenge the
assumptions and judgements made by management in
the preparation of published financial information and to
oversee the internal controls, including oversight of the
external and internal audit processes.

The Committee has an annual work plan linked to the
Group's financial reporting cycle, which ensures that it
considers all matters delegated to it by the Board. In
addition to its annual work plan. it reviewed the risk
associated with the T1 Media acquisition and considered
the approach to how the internal audit should be
resourced.

This year the Board undertook an internally-facilitated
reviow of the effectiveness of the Board and Baard
Committees, including this Committee, in accordance
with the requirements under the 2018 Code and you can
read more about this on page 69.

image removed

Alan Newman
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee
10 December 2020

T . |
*The Audit and

Risk Committee's
primary objective
is to provide
effective financial

governance”

| - ol
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Members Since
Alan Newman (Chair)............2018
Meredith Amdur......en. 2020 (From October 2020)
Hugo Drayton. 2015
Rob Hattrell...... 2018

{retired from the Committee in September 2020)

Key objective of the Audit and Risk Committee

@ Tu i roriitor tho irtegrity of the Croup's finangial reporting processes.

» To ensure that risks are carefully identified and assessed, and that
sound systerns of risk managernent and internal control are in place.

Key responsibilities

« Overseeing the accounting principles, policies and practices
adopted by the Group.

« Overseeing the external financial reporting and associated
announcements.

« Overseeing the appointment, independence, effectiveness and
rernuneration of the Group's external auditor, including the
policy on the supply of non-audit services.

« Conducting a competitive tender process for the external audit
when reguired.

« Reviewing the resourcing, plans and effectiveness of internal
audit, which is independent from the Group's external auditor.

« Ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the internat
cantrol environment.

» Monitoring the Croup's risk managerment processes and performance.

« Ensuring the establishment and oversight of fraud prevention
arrangements and reports under the whistleblowing policy.

« Ensuring the Group's compliance with the 2018 UK Corporate
Covernance Code.

« Providing advice to the Board on whether the Annual Report and
Accounts, when taken as 4 wiiole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides all the necessary information for
shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business
model and strategy.

Key actions from 2019/20

« Reviewed and challenged the application of accounting principles,
policies and practices to the annual and half year resuits
announcements and the Annuat Report.

» Worked with PwC and Deloitte to plan the transition of
external auditor,

» Reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit and the Group's
underlying control environment.

s Terms of reference of Committee revised to ensure
compliance with the 2018 Code.

Priorities for 2020/21

« Continue to monitor legislative and regulatory changes that may
impact the work of the Committes.

» Consider the impact of proposed audit industry changes,

s Consider a wider range of topics for Committee training.




Membership and meetings

During the year, the Committee met three times and met privately with
the external auditor once. Details of individual Directors’ attendance
can be found cn page 65. In addition to the Committee members, the
Chief Financial Officer, the Group Finance Director, Greup Financial
Controller, and the external auditor attended parts of these meetings
by invitation. The Chairman of the Board and Chiet Executive may also
attend meetings. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the
Committee. The Chairman of the Committee holds regular meetings
with the external auditors who have an opportunity to discuss matters
with the Committee without management being present and alse with
the Chief Financial Officer {who has responsibility and custody of the
internal audit function).

Meetings of the Committee are scheduled close to the end of the half
and full year, as well as before the publication of the associated half and
full year financial reports, so as to ensure the Committee is informed
fuily, and ona timely basis, on areas of significant risks and judgement.

The Committee raceived sufficient, reliable and timely information
from management to enable it to fulfil its responsibilities.

The Beard has confirmed that it is satisfied that Committee
members possess an appropriate level of independence and depth of
financial and commercial, including sectoral, expertise. For the
financial year ended 30 Septemnber 2020, Alan Newman was the
member of the Committee determined by the Board as having recent
and relevant financial experience.

Going concern and viability statements

The Commitlee reviewed the updated wording of the Group’s
longer-term viabdity statement, set out on page 43. Te do this, the
Committee ensured that the model used was consistent with the
approved three-year plan and that scenario and sensitivity testing
aligned clearly with the principal risks of the Group. Committee
members challenged the underlying assumptions used and reviewed
the results of the detailed work performed. The Committee was
satisfied that the analysis supporting the viability staterment had been
prepared on an appropriate basis. The Committee also reviewed the
going concern statement, set out on page 59 and confirmed its
satisfaction with the methodology. including appropriateness of
sensitivity testing.

Fair, balanced and understandable
The Committee considered whether the Annual Report is *fair,
balanced and understandable’, in line with the requirements of the
2018 Code. The Committee members were consulted at various
stages during the drafting process and gave input to the planning
pracess, as well as having the opportunity to review the Annual Report
as awhole anddiscuss, prior to the November 2020 Committee
meeting. any areas requiring additional clarity or better balance in the
messaging.
In this respect the Committee focused on:
* aqualitative review of disclosures and a review of internal
consistency throughout the Annual Report and Accounts;
= areview by the Committee of all material matters, as reported
elsewhere in this Annual Repert and Accounts;
« arisk-comparison review, which assesses the consistency of the
presentation of risks, and significant judgements throughout the
main areas of risk disclosure in this Annual Report and Accounts,

Corporate Governance

« a review of the balance of good and bad news; and
» ensuring it correctly reflects:
» the Group's position and performance as described on pages 54
to 59;
« the Group's business medel, as described on page 21;
« the Group's strategy, as described on pages 4 to 37,

On the basis of this work together with the views expressed by the
external auditor, the Committee recommended, and in turn the Board
confirmed, that it could make the required statement that the Annual
Report is ‘fair. balanced and understandable’.

The Committee also received regular updates from the Chief
Financial Officer on provisicns made for litigation and the Committee
considered the appropriateness of the methodology applied.

Risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for determining the nature and
extent of its principal and emerging risks and the extent of the Group’s
risk appetite, and for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Group's systemns of risk management and internai control. Further
details of the risk management objectives and process are on pages 38
to 39.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are
addressed in the Strategic Report and in the table on pages 40 to 42.
The Board has delegated to the Committee the responsibility for
monitoring the effectiveness of the systems of risk management.

Internal control

The Board determines the objectives and broad pelicies of the Group
and meets regularly, when a set schedule of matters which are required
to be brought to it for decision is discussed. Overall management of the
Group's risk appetite, its tolerance torisk and discussion of key aspects
of execution of the Group's strategy remain the responsibility of the
Board. The Board has delegated to the Audit and Risk Committee the
responsibility for establishing a system of internal controls appropriate
to the business environments in which the Group operates.

Key elements of this system include:

- Aclearly defined organisation structure for manitoring the conduct
and operations of the business.

- Clear delegation of authority throughout the Group, starting with
the matters reserved for the Board.

- A formal process for ensuring that key risks affecting operations
across the Group are identified and assessed on a regular basis,
together with the controls in place to mitigate those risks, Risk
consideration is embedded in decision-making processes at all
levels and the most significant risks are periodically reviewed by the
Board. The risk process is reviewed by the Auclit and Risk
Committee.

- The preparation and review of comprehensive annual budgets.

- The monthly reporting of actual results and their review against
budget, forecasts and the previous year, with explanations obtained
for all significant variances.

- The Finance Manual which outlines key control procedures and
policies to apply throughout the Group. This includes clearly
defined policies and escalating authorisation levels for all
precurement activity including capital expenditure and investment.
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Significant financial reporting judgements

The Committes considered the following issues relating to the financial statemenls during the year.
These include the matters refating to risks disclosed in the extethal auditu s report:

Area of focus

Reporting issue

Acquisition
accounting

Aseutlined on page 2 inthe Strateglc Report, the Group has completed
a number of significant acquisitions during the yesr.

Carrying value
of goodwill
and long lived
assets

Role of the Committee

At the request of the Committee the Group engaged third party valuations
experts 10 assist in the preparation of the purchase price allocation exercises
for the most significant acquisitions The Committee has reviewed detailed
papers setting out the acquisition accounting undertaken, including
purchase price allocations and opening balance sheet fair value assessments,
(including valuation of contingent consideration where relevant} performed
for the Barcroft and Tl Media acquisitions, as well as the finalisation of the fair
values assigned to the SmantBrief acquisition.

Thn tirnu i s uoodill and other intangibles totalling £493.6m on
the balarce sheet at 30 Septermiber 2020. The lovel Of intanyitles
has increased significantly from the prior year due to the Tl Media
acquisition. 1AS 36 requires an impairment test ta be performed

for goodwill on an annual basis or where there is an indication of
impairment.

The
classification
of exceptional
tems

Due to the significant acquisition-related activity a number of iterns
[such as acquisition or related integration and restructuring costs)
tetalling £171m are considered exceptional in nature.

Management prepared a detailed impairment assessment, which set out the
Justitiratinn af ronlinding with the existing cash generating units (CGUs) of
UK and US in Tight of the T Media acquisition and the sighifitant sxpdanshun
of the Group {for further detalls In respect of this judgement see page 133)
This assessment concluded that no impairment was required for both the
identified CGUs of the UK and US businesses at 30 Septermber 2020

The Committee challenged the CGUSs identified and the detailed assessment
and the assumpticns rmade, which included:

- Long-term growth rate to perpetuity UK 3%, US: 3%

- EBITDA margins assumed UK 31.0% to 40.0%, US: 26%

- Discount rate [post-tax) 7.8% {both UK and US)

Refer to note 12 an page 144 for further infarmation in respect of the carrying
valua of goedwill and long lived assets.

The Committee reviewed and challenged information provided by
management explaining the nature and rationale for the inclusion of these
iterns as exceptional and discussed them with the auditors. Refer to note 5on
page 137 for further information in respect of exceptional items,

Tax A provision tor uncerLain tax positions totalling £5.6m was recognised The Committee discussed the net release of aspects of the provision for
in 2012, In the year £1.5m has been released to the income statement uncertain tax positions, foling developments in the Group's transfer pricing
as particular areas of uncertainty have been resclved ar reduced policies and tax authority engagerment in FY 2020 and the reduction inthe
An additional £0 4m has been recognised in respect of acquired petceived level of risk associated with aspects of the provision that had been
uncertain tax positions. The provision recoghised on the balance recognised previously
sheet is now £4.5mM. The main risks that continue to be provided far
are transfer pricing in both the US and the UK. The transter pricing The Cornmittee therefore agreed with the recommendation ta reduce the
risk arises because the group has raterial intra-group transactions fevel of pravision after applying the measuremment principles of IFRIC 23
relating to the cross border licensing of piatform technology and _ . .
9 L gofp il , The Committee also discussed Lhe recognition of a deferred tax asset in
krands. This risk represents £41m (FY 2019: £4.3m) of the Group's total X A
respect of T) Media and reviewed detailed papers prepared by management
provision of £4.5m (FY 2012 £5.6m). . .
as part of the work undertaken on acquisition accounting.
In the year an additional deferred tax asset of £14.2m has been . R
. N . Lo These papers set out relevant technical references andincluded forecasts
recognised as part of the TI Meadia acquisition accounting in respect of eflecting the profitability of TI Med| <andal busines:
5 . . reflecting the i la as astan .
historic UK tax losses and unused capital allowances As this was part 9 profi 4 alone business.
F’f the opening balance sheet taken on ffo_"? AL Med‘\a.t)_'were wasno The analysis concluded that despite a forecast continuad decfing in magazine
impact on the income statement of the Initial recognition of this asset revenues the Tt Media business was still expected to generate significant
5 . . taxable profit fon s i it of
The Group utilised £3.6m in the year of previously recognised US tax ) pro 5_(bE i anyu(.?sr © synergies arrsmg. asa resu tofthe
) ] T combined business are considered) and therefore it was highly probable that
losses for which there is a remaining deferred tax asset of £3.1man " ) i o o
L the TI Media 'streamed’ profits will be sufficient to utilise the level of asset
the balance sheet as we believe that it is highly probable that these . K . R
. ) recognised In the foreseeable future. Therefore the requirerments set out ih 1IAS
wilf be utilised in the foreseeable future ) L
12 incomme Taxes for the recognition of losses as an asset were satisfied.
Provision for The Marketforce business acquired with TI Media is a print distribution The Committee challenged the provision calculations prepared by
magazine business. Contracts with the newsstand wholesalers and international management based on the review of relevant historic and recent returns
returns distributors are on a sale of return basis. The claims window for which

returns are permittad can extend to as long as 12 months in respect
of the export market and therefore a provision is made for estimated
unsold copies where the date for submitting returns claims has not
yet passed,

AL 30 September 2020 the Group's total provision for returns was
£371m The provision is calculated based on the latest sales data
and, where not yet available, on latest sales forecasis and market
experience.

The returns provision is allocated against the receivable

ledger balance for each wholesaler / distributor, which is then
accounted for as appropriate in the balance sheet as sither anet
debtor or a net creditor.
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experience and data. This demonstrated that the level of provision
recognised was appropriate.

Refer to nate {d} of the section Critical judgements in applying the Group's
accounting policies on 133,




Conclusion / Action taken

The Committee agreed with the judgements made by management in respect
of the acquisition accounting Undertaken during the year and the presentation in
the Group's results for the year ended 30 September 2020,

Refer to note 28 on page 159 for further Information in respect of the acquisition
accounting undertaken in the year.

The Committee agreed that the CGuUs used in the assessment (being UK and

US) continue to be appropriate, particularly in light of the level and swiftness

of integration of Tl Media (and historic acquisitions) onte Future's systems and
platform and the interdependency of revenues across the Group, both between its
brands and the Media and Magazine divisions.

The Committee alsc agreed with management’s conclusion that no impairment
is required on the basis that there is significant headroom on both the UK and US
goodwill and intangibles, even when reasonably possible changes are made ta the
underlying assurnptions and inputs.

The Committee and management will continue ta closely monitor both the level
of headroom on goodwill and other indefinite llved intangibles and whether the
CGUs identified remain appropriate as the Group continues to evoive.

The Cormmittee agreed with the conclusion that these iterns should be separately
presented within exceptional itemns, given their nature and magnitude, and
excluding them assists the users of the financial statements to better understand
the results of the core operations of the Group.

The Committes agreed with the approach taken to release elements of

the provision for uncertain tax positions that was recognised in 2012 on the
basis that the risks associated with these elernents of the provision are now
considered to be less likely than not to crystallise.

The Committee agreed with the recognition of a deferred tax asset as part
of the Tl Media acquisition accounting relating to losses and unused capital
allowances,

The Committee and management will continue to monitar the appropriateness
of these judgements in FY2021 and beyond, considering the Group's activities
and the effect on its tax liabilitics, and developments in applicable tax legislation,
accounting standards and relevant guidance, including the newly adopted

IFRIC 23.

See page 127 for more information in respect of the Impact of IFRIC 23

The Committee agreed with the level of returns provision recognised by
management, noting that a balanced and prudent approach had been taken in
respect of the level of pravision recognised.

Corporate Governance

with larger capital projects, acquisitions and disposals requiring
Board approval. This framework is kept under periodic review.

- A formal controls framework that defines the key controls and the
specific risk that each of these key controls is designed to
mitigate.

- Appropriately qualified staff in cur finance. legal and human
resource functions with business continuity plans tc ensure that
all key roles have adequate cover.

- Aregular timetable of internal controls reviews that include the
testing of key controls and walk-throughs of processes, reparted
tothe Audit and Risk Committee.

- Regular formal meetings between the Chief Executive, the Chief
Financial Officer and senior management to discuss strategic,
operational and financial issues.

The framework of internal control has continued to operate

througheut the COVID-19 pandemic.

Internal audit

Internal control reviews are conducted by the Group's central
finance function which are presented te the Committee. The annual
internal control review plan is approved by the Committee at the
beginning of the financial year and any significant issues identified
within internal control review reports are considered in detail by the
Committee along with the remediation plans to resclve those issues.
Progress against the plan and actions from previous internal control
review papers are monitored by the Committee throughout the year.
The effectiveness of the internal audit function is assessed annually
by the Audit and Risk Committee.

There are a number of key financial processes that are reviewed
every year covering the controls over our bank accounts, payroll and
the debtors ledger. In addition to these standing reviews there were
specific reviews conducted at the request of the Commitiee in FY
2020 relating to the revenue recognition for online advertising
income and to the usage across the business of corporate credit/
debit cards.

Each of the internal control review reports presented to the
Committee in FY 2020 were assessed to have a moderate assurance
level indicating that there were no significant weaknesses or failings
in the control environment but that some improvements were
required to enhance the effectiveness of the existing controls. The
Committee and the Board are satisfied that these systems operate
effectively in all material respects and with material weaknesses
remediated in a timely fashion.

The Committee regularly considers the level of internal audit
resources tc ensure itis appropriate to provide the right level of
assurance over the principal risks and controls throughout the
Group. Following the acquisitions in FY 2020, which have further
diversified revenue streams and added considerable complexity and
scale to the business, the Committee has decided that the Group has
reached a scale where a dedicated internal audit function is
appropriate and will trial an outsourced provider to conduct internal
controls reviews in FY 2021. The basic framework of conducting
standing contrcls reviews over key financial process and specific
reviews at the request of the Committee will remain in place and the
outscurced internal audit provider will conduct these reviews
following their appointment and repert directly to the Chair of the
Audit and Risk Committee.
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Extoernal audit independence

Tho Committea is respensible for reviewing the independence ot the

Company's externai auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers [ LF (FwC),

agreeing the terms of engagement with them and the scope of their

auadit. PwC has a policy of pariner rotation. which cormnplies with
regulatory standards. and, in addition, PwC has a structure of peer
reviews for its engagements, which are aimed at ensuring that its
independence is maintained.

Maintaining an independent refationship with the Company’s
external auditor is a critical part of assessing the effectiveness of the
audit process. Eurapean Union legislation on permitted non-audit
services came into effect from 17 June 2016 which introduced a
permitted non-audit services fee cap for certain services of 70% of the
average audil fee aver a consecutive thrée-year per wd. This cup came
into effect for the Group in the financial year ended 30 Septernber
2020. The Committee has agreed the Group's policy onnon-audit fees,
and this was reviewed by the Comimittee during the year ended 30
September 2020. The Committee also regularly reviews the level of
audit and non-audit fees paid to PwC. The key principles of the policy on
non-audit services are:

» The Committee has approved a list of all permitted non-audit
services which are allowed under UK statutory legisiation and
compiies with the European tUnion Directive on audit and non-audit
services. Permitted services include audit-related services such as
reviews of interim financial information or any other review of
financial statements required by law to be audited.

* The Audit and Risk Committee updated its policy to ensure that
non-audit services listed in appendix B of the FRC's revised Ethical
Standard 2019 are not offered to the external auditor.

= Any service that is on the list, if in excess of £100,000, requires lhe
approval of the Committee.

Buring 2019/20, the external auditor provided services in refation to
the Group’s interim and year end results and Reporting Accountant
services inrespect of the prospectus that was prepared for the T
Media acquisition. The external auditor has aiso confirmed to the
Committee that they did not provide any ather non-audit and additional
scrvices ond that they have not undertaken any work that could lead to
their objectivity and independence being compromised.

The non-audit services supplied by the external auditor can be found
innote 4 of the financial staternents and the tota! fess incurred for
services which must be provided within the 709% fee cap totalled
£146,000. This was below the permitted fees of £150,000 (being 70%
of the average audit fee for the previous three financial years), and so in
compliance with the FRC’'s Revised Fthical Standard 2019. The
non-audit services primarily relate to Reporting Accountant
procedures inrespect of acquisitions where a prospectus was required
and in each instance the Commitiee considered and approved the use
of the external auditor for these services. In the case of each
engagement. it was considered appropriate to engage PwC for the
work because of their existing knowledge and experience from prior
Group engagements. The Committee discussed with, and received
confirmation from, the external auditor that the audit team have not
relied on any of the work performed in the Reporting Accountant roles
undertaken as part of the audit and their objectivity and independence
has been safeguarded.

The lead partner is rotated every five years. Katharine Finn was
appointed as the lead audit engagement partner in 2018,
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Assessment of audit process
The scope of the external andit is formally docurmented by the auditor.
They discuss the draft prapesal with management befare it is referred
to the Committes who reviews its adequacy and hoids further
discussions with management and the auditor before final approval.
inrespect of the financial year ended 30 September 2020, the
Committee assessed the performance and effectiveness of the
external auditor, as well as their incependence and objectivity, on the
basis of meetings and a questionnaire-based internal review which was
completed by the Committee members and regular attendees to the
Committee, The summary of the results of the questionnaire has been
reviewed by the Committee.

Audit tender and appointment

As announced last year, following 2 tender process, the Audit and Risk
Committee recommended, and the Board agreed to recommend to
shareholders, that Deloitte LLP he appointed to succeed PwC (who had
held office since 1999) as the Company's auditors. However, given the
high leve! of acquisition integration activities and the impending change
in Chief Financtal Officer in 2019720, the proposed change of auditor
was deferred until the year ending 30 September 2021. A resolution to
appoint Deloitte LLP as auditors for the year ending 30 September
2021 1s being proposed to sharehaolders at the Company's AGM to be
held on'Wednesday 10 Felrruary 2021, You can read more about this in
the Notice of AGM on page 164. The Company has complied with the
provisians of the Competition and Markets Authority's Order for FY
2020 Inrespect to audit tendering and the provision of non-audit
Services.

Assessment of the effectiveness of the
Committee

The Committee effectiveness in respect of the year ended 3G
September 2020 was evaluated as part of the internal review described
on page 69. The key issues that were identified in the previous year's
assessment were discussed by the Commiittee to ensure these were
adequately addressed and the Chairman provided an update where
appropriate.

Looking forward

As well as the regular cycle of matters that the Committee schedules

for consideration each year, we are ptanning over the next 12 months to:

« Centinue to monitor legislative and reguiatory changes that may
impact the work of the Committee.

» Censider the impact of proposed audit industry changes.

= Consider a wider range of topics for Committee training.

The Committee’s report was approved by a Committee of the Board of
Directors on 10 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Alan Newman
Chairman of the Audit Committee
10 Decermber 2020
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Directors’

Remuneration

Image removed
Hugo Drayton
L Chair of the Remuneration Committee
ﬁ Deaar Shareholder,
' Members On behalf of the Board, 1 am delighted to present the Directors’
Hugo Drayten (Chair ... Remuneration Repart for the financial year ended 30 Septermber 2020.
Mark Brooker.. ... 2020 (from Octaber 2020} As in previous years, this repaort is splitinto three sections: (@) this

Alan Newman..............2018 {retired from the
Committee in September 2020)

Rob Hattrell.. e 2018

Huntingford {Board Chairman), Meredith Amdur (Non-
Executive Director), Zillah Byng-Thorne [Chief Executive)
and Claire Maclellan {Chief Operating Officer) have been,
from time to time, invited to attend meetings of the
Committee. The Company Secretary, or namines, acts as
secretary to the Committee, No individuals are invoived in
decizions relating to their own remuneration.

Details of individual Directors’ attendance can be found
on page 65.

|
|
Other Directors and executives, including Richard (
|
1

Key objective of the Remuneration Committee

Our objective is to have a fair, eguitable and competitive
total reward package that supports our vision; and to
ensure rewards are performance-based and reinforce
long-term shareholder value creation.

Key responsibilities

» Designing the remuneration policy.

s Implementing the remuneration poficy.

» Ensuring the competitiveness of reward.

» Designing the incentive plans.,

« Setfing remuneration for the Executive Directors and
Board Chairman.

+ Overseeing all share awards across the Croup.

Key actions from 2019/20

» Engaged with shareholders around proposed
Remuneration policy changes

« Terms of reference of Committee revised to ensure
compliance with the 2018 Code

Key actions from 2020/21
« Ensure the Remuneration Policy is implemented to align
with business strategy and culture

» Continue to monitor rermuneration practice across the
Company as a whole, keeping abreast of market practice
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Annual Statement: (b} the Policy Report, setting out the Group's
Remuneration Policy ("Policy™) for Executive and Non-Executive
Directars: and () the Implementation Report, setting out details of
Directors’ remuneration for the financial years ended 30 Septermber
2020 and ending 30 September 2021

Performance and Reward in 2020

The COVID-18 pandemic has disrupted many people, businesses and
communities in recent months, and looks set {o remain a very real
challenge into 2021 and beyond. Faced with such uncer tainty, Hwould
like to start this letter by recognising our brilliarnt employees across the
globe, who have shown great agility in adapting to new ways of working,
while ensuring hat Muturc has continued to provide new routes fo
connect with our communities, and to reach new audiences in
Innovative ways. This resilience and hard work has ultimately delivered
another year of stellar financial and operatiohal performance, of which
we should all be proud.

At the onset of the pandemic, Future tock decisive action to ensure
the business was sustainable, including the creation of virtual events
and modifying the subscription distribution modei to allow audiences
to access conten! un all digitat platforms. To safeguard the health and
safety of our colleagues, all staff moved to work-from-haome in
mid-March, with increased communication and touchpoints
established — inciuding weekiy CEQ letters and virtual town halls, which
included an increased focus on mental wellbelng — o ensure a
continued strong team ethos. In response to feedback around the
increased costs of home-working, the Group established a work-from-
home stipend for all employees, while a hardship fund was put in place
for any employees facing financial difficulty due to the pandemic.

As part of the initial cost saving measures, the Senior Management
team and Board volunteered 20% reductions to their salaries and fees
over the period March to May. The reduction in pay was returned to the
Senior Management Team in H2 2020 white the Board agreed tg forgo
their loss of earnings. Ali Ti Madia employees also took tiered salary
reductions based on reduced hours for a limited period. These
reductions were paid back to all employees. A number of employees
were furloughed across Future and Tl and have since been offered the
opportunity to return to wark, and all tempoerary reductions in pay have
been topped up. A small armount of Government support was received
from the UK Ceoronavirus Job Retention Scheme and from the



equivalent US Government fund by Future {and by T Media pre-
transfer), and this has been fully repaid.

Highlights from our full-year results include strong adjusted diluted
EPS growth of 57% to 74.7 pence per share and an increase in adjusted
operating profit of 79%, to £93.4m. This performance continues to be
underpinned both by investment in our core businesses and our
strategic acquisitions, to drive further growth. Following CMA approval,
in April Future completed its largest acquisition to date — Tl Media —
with strong pregress made over the remainder of the year in welcoming
new colleagues, following the TUPE transfer in June, and leveraging
their strong portfolio of brands. The Board is excited by the long-term
prospects of the acquisition, and in particular by the potential for
introducing new revenue medels and further expanding the Group's
reach outside the UK.

Reflecting this continued strong financial and operational
perfarmance, the Committee approved maximum benus payments for
Zillah Byng-Thorne, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Rachel Addison, with the
bonuses for Penny and Rachel pro-rated to reflect their respective 8
months and 4 maonths on the Board in the role of Chief Financial Officer.
509% of the bonuses earned for FY 2020 will be paid in cash, and 50%
will be deferred in Future plc shares for 2 years. Further details are
included on page 96. A similar, full payout of the Group-wide profit pool
is planned in December 2G20, reflecting our strong belief that ail
employees should share in the outstanding performance to which they
have contributed.

Performance conditions attached to PSP awards, made to Executive
Directors in Novernber 2017, were tested to 3¢ September 2020. Over
the performance period, the Company’s share price and EPS (each
representing 50% of the award) significantly exceeded the targets set
atgrant. Accordingly, these shares vested in full in November 2020.
Further details, including the value of these awards, are included on
page 97

As outlined in last year's report, Executive Directors were granted
awards under the PSP on 25 November 2019 (for Rachel Addison 1
June 2020), representing 200% of salary for the CEO and 167% of
salary for the CFO. These awards will vest, subject to the achieverment
of stretching absolute TSR and EPS growth targets (each weighted

Corporate Governance

50%), and are subject to a two-year holding period that follows the
three-year vesting period. Further details are included on page 88.

The Committee is satisfied that overall pay outcomes in respect of
the year ended 30 September 2020 are appropriate and reflect
Future's continued exceptional financial and operational performance.
The annual bonus outcorme for the year reflects another strong year of
profit growth, while vesting of awards granted under the PSP in
November 2017 reflects strong longer-term financial, vaiue creation for
shareholders over the performance period. More broadly, the
Committee is satisfied with the Group's decisive response to the
COVID-19 pandemic and the impact this had on the experience of all
key Future stakeholders during the year — including shareholders,
employees and customers. The Committee has theretfore not
exercised any discretion in relation to the outcome of the variable pay
schermes, or to overall remuneration levels.

AGM outcome and actions arising

You will recall that following a detailed consultation with major
shareholders, we submitted cur Policy to shareholders at our last AGM.
receiving 83.20% of votes in favour. We were pleased that a significant
rmajority of shareholders supported the revised arrangements, which
aimed to reflect Future's extracrdinary growth and our admissiontoa
Prermium Listing and the FTSE250. The current remuneration
structure remains clear, simple, and appropriately aligned with the
Company's strategy, risk appetite and culture. This direction and clarity
will be further enhanced by a new, all-company Value Creation Plan,
which is fully aligned with shareholders’ interests, and benefits every
employee in the business.

The Committee is pleased to report that a majority of shareholders
voted in favour of the Implementation Report. Noting that overall
shareholder support was below 80%, the Committee looked into the
votes received and, as noted in a 19 June 2020 update, understands
that the main reasons for dissent were related to actual CEQ
remuneration and the proposed increase in CFO remuneration for
FY 2020. In respect of actual CEQ remuneration, the Committee notes
that these cutcomes were delivered as a result of Company
performance over the preceding three years, and in accordance with

CONTEXT OF THE Historical TSR performance
COMMITTEE'S Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over the 10 years to 30 September 2020
DECISIONS ., 1000
S
Group adjusted operating ; £900 "7
profit £93.4 million 4 800 - ’
2019 £52.2 millicn 2 pr00 ——o- /
@
. '
Adjusted free cash flow 2 es00 ——
sag= M
£96.0 million % £500 _ ll
2019 £53.7 million ks ’
@ £400 7
Adjusted diluted Z 4
£ e300 - —
EPS 74.7 pence g e
2019 47.5 pence L £200 T - _ -
o -
" o £100 =g _ ~
Global audience 2 "'-—--—-"--...-——--..."
393.6 million > £0 -
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== Future =« « FTSE250 Index {excl. investment trusts) == FTSE All-Share Media Index
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the prevailing rettiuneration policy, as approved by shareholders. In
respect af the CFO’s remuncration, these changes are consistent with
the approved Policy and reflect the need to focus and reward our
critical senior talent over the next phase of the Company's
development. In conclusion, the Committee consigers that the main
reasons for the dissenting vole against the implementation Report are
addressed by the Remuneration Policy, and that no further actions are
required at this time. We continue to welcome feedback from our
shareholders and. in accordance with our Terms of Reference, will
continue to keep all elerments of Executive Director rermuneration under
periodic review. Recognising the fast pace of change and cantinued
success that Future continues to deliver and strive for, we will submit a
revised Remuneration Policy for shareholder approval at the
farthcarming February 2021 AGM (the rationale and details are
explained befow).

Board changes

As announced in Ogtober 2019, Penny Ladkin-Brand served as Chief
Financial Officer through the completion of the acquisition of Tl Media
after which. on1 June 2020, she stepped down from the Board and
assumed the role of Chief Strategy Officer. As a continuing employee,
Penny retained all interests in outstanding share incentives. which will
remain subject to the original performance canditions and vesting
timeframes. These awards were pro-rated to reflect her new
responsibilities. Details of the adjustment are shown in the table on
page 101,

Rachel Addison tock on the role of Chief Financial Officer on1 June
202G, with her remuneration arrangements in line with the prevailing
Remiineration Policy and consistent with those of her predecessor,
namely,; asalary of £350,000: a pension contribution aligned wilh Uhe
majority of UK ermployees at 6% of salary: a maximum annual benus
opportunity of 150% of salary, which is pro-rated for time served inher
first year: and eiigibility for an annual award under the P5F. Rachef was
granted a pro-rated award of 17,222 shares under the PSP on 1 June
2020. which will vest based on the same three-year EPS and absolute
TSR targets set out inlast year's report.

Finally. during the year we were also pleased to weicore two new
Non-Executive Directors to the Future nic Board: Meredith Amdur, with
effect from 6 February 2020; and Mark Brooker, with effect from 1
October 2020, Mark joined the Remuneration Committee fromthe
date of his appointrment. Fees paid to Meredith and Mark are i fine with
the fees paid to the other Non-Executive Directors, as disclosed on
page 103, and in accordance with our Policy.

Looking ahead: remuneration in 2021

Future’s strategy is ta deliver exceptional results: on-going investment
in organic growth, to cement our market leadership positions and
develop lead generation revenues, has been successiully paired with
targeted, value-generating acquisitions, to diversify our content
offering, revenue streams and geographic reach. While the COVID-19
pandemic continues to disrupt, the Board rernains confident in Future's
ability to deliver further growth, through effective execution and agility
in our respohse to the evolving media landscape.

Future's senior management and staff drive the delivery of our
ambitious strategy, and therefore the Committee has considered, at
length, how best to incentivise, motivate and retain Future’s workforce,
for the benefit of all of our stakeholders. Qur aimis for colleagues to
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rernain focused on the execution of the Group's ambitious long-term
goals, and to be aligned in, and rewarded for, delivering further
1iarket lcading results far ow investor s, whilc retaining expertise
within the Group in the years ahead.

Reflecting the entreprensurial and ambitious culture on which
Future's recent success is based, our proposed soiution is the
implementation of a new Value Creation Plan (VCP), in which Fuiure's
empioyees - including Executive Directors - will participate and share
in the value created for shareholders (above a hurdie rate of return)
over the next three to five years. The value and focus of the proposed
VCP is instrumental in harnessing the very best taient, inarder to
achieve Future's collective long-term goals.

The Committee engaged with Future’s 15 largest shareholders as
partof its cansiltation on the proposed YCP arrangernents; | would like
to thank those who rmade tirme to provide the valiable input which
helped to shape the final design of the plan. We are confident that the
plan represents the best interests of all stakeholders and further
enhances our pay-performance linkage. In addition to the VCP, and
building on feedback received as part of the consuitation, we are
proposing a number of further best practice changes to the Policy.
These include: a material increase to in-post shareholding guidelines;
the introduction of post-employment shareholding guidelines aligned
with the Investment Association's Principles an Remuneration; and an
acceierated timeframe for aiigning the Chief Executive’s pension
contribution with the wider workforce. Full details of the propesed VCP
are set out on page 103, with other changes to the Policy set outin the
Policy Table on pages 86 1o 87,

Cther decisions ir relatior to 2021 remuneration

Effective 1 October 2020, the Chief Executive’s salary will be
increased by 21% t0 £575.000, the first review of her salary since 2018.
This increase reflects the Committee’s assessment of Zillah's
individual performance in role, her leadership in delivering exceptional
resufts for our shareholders, and more generalty the increase in size,
complexity and geographical spread of the Group in recent years.
Further details on the background to this change are inciuded on page
102 of this Report. The Committee observes first-hand the dedication
and tirme that Zillah gives to her role, and strongly believes that the
increase positions the resulting salary level appropriately against the
market. Reflecting {he level of increase, the Committee has agreed that
this salary level will remain fixed for at least the next two years,

Inline with our commitment in the Remuneration Policy approved by
shareholders in 2020, the Chief Executive’s pension benefit will he
reduced to match the berefit of the wider workforce in two stages from
15% to 6% by 2022 (to 10.5% of salary in January 2021 and to 6% of
salary in January 2022). The Chief Financia! Officer will receive an
inftationary pay rise of 1.5% in January 2021, inline with the wider
waorkforce, whilst her pension contribution wili remain at 6% of salary,
in line with that available to other Future employees.

The annual bonus will operate on the same basis as last year, with
maximum opportunities of 200% and 1509% of salary for the CEQ and
CFO respectively, and performance assessed against adjusted
operating profit. Subject to shareholder approval, the VCP will replace
participation in the PSP for the next three years, adding new clarity and
simplicity tothe long-term incentives for the Executive Directors (and,
indeed, our other employees).

Fuli details of our approach to executive remuneration in FY 2021 are
included on pages 94t 103.




Workforce pay considerations

The Committee takes an active role in monitoring pay and practices
across the wider workforce, and considers this information when
determining the remuneration of Executive Directors. This included the
US Employee Share Plan programme which is being launched in 2021.

You will see more information about this in the AGM notice on page 164,

as the nules are being put to shareholders for approval. Reflecting her
role in the Group's People and Culture agenda, the Chief Cperating
Officer, Claire MacLellan, is invited to attend Committee meetingson a
regular basis to provide updates on workforce initiatives and to offer an
employee perspective cn the Committee's decision-making process.

This year, for the first time under the revised reporting regulations,
we have disclosedratios of CEQ pay to the wider population, shown on
page 99. We will monitor the headline ratios — as well as ratios of salary
and pay, excluding long-term incentives — as part of our overall
deliberations on future executive remuneration, and provide further
commentary on this area in subsequent reports.

Finally, the Committee continues to consider and embrace equality
and diversity in the workforce. Details of our gender diversity across
the Group are provided on page 51, with the Committee noting a
headline reduction in the median gender pay gap for 2019/20. We
remain cenfident in the Greup's long-term commitmenit to building 2
diverse, inclusive and gender-balanced workforce, through on-going
nitiatives such as the formation of a colleague Inclusion & Diversity
forum, develepment of internship programmes for under-represented

Remuneration at a glance
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groups, and a partnership with Inclusive Employers. to support the
delivery of a programme of training and education across the Group.
We are pleased with the continued progress made in this area during
the year and look forward to further development over the coming
years.

Conclusion

Itis a huge privilege to collaborate with the talented Executive and
Non-Executive team at Future. Future's restless ambition for
responsible growth continues te create an exciting corporate
environment. This year's acquisition of TI Media delivers further
opportunities for diversification and new success, on behalf of Future's
shareholders, and all its stakeholders.

Iwould like to thank Future's shareholders, many of whom | have
engaged with this year: above all | would like to pay tribute to the whele
Future workforce, for the positive, caring and creative way they have
faced the muitiple chalienges of this unprecedented year. The scene is
set for further growth and success.

e

Hugo Drayton
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
10 December 2020

This table sets out a summary of how the remuneration policy will apply during FY 2021:

Remuneration element

Application of the remuneration policy

The Chief Executive's salary will increase by 21% on 1 Octaber 2020, fixed for a period of two
years. The Chief Financial Officer will receive an inflationary pay rise of 1.5%, in line with the

Base salary
See page 102 for more details

wider workfarce, in January 2021.
« Chief Executive £575,000

» Chief Financial Officer £355,250
Future annual inflationary pay rises for Executive Directors are in line with the wider workforce.

In line with our commitment in the Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders at the AGM
in 2020, the Chief Executive's pension benefit will be reduced to match the benefit of the wider

Pensions and benefits
See page 102 for more details

workforce. The current (15% of salary) benefit will reduce to 6% in twe stages by January 2022,
There is no change to the Chief Financial Officer’s pension or benefits.

« Chief Exacutive 15% of salary, reducing t© 10.5% in January 2021
« Chief Financial Officer 6% of salary {in line with the wider workforce)

No changes to maximum award levels of:
o Chief Executive - 200% of salary

Annual bonus
See page 103 for more details

» Chief Financial Officer - 150% of salary
Bonus to be paid: 50% in cash in November 2023, and 50% in Future shares, deferred for two years.

The performance measures for FY 2021 are based solely on adjusted operating profit, adjusting
for any material acquisitions, as required.

New Plan, replacing the PSP, subject to shareholder approval:
One-off award of units rewarding employees with a percentage of any shareholder value

Value Creation Plan
See page 103 for more details

created over the next three to five years, above a hurdle rate of return of 10% per annum.
Units vest based on value created in terms of £ Total Shareholder Return (TSR) and are
converted to Future shares.

For Executive Directors, vested shares shall be required to be held until the fifth anniversary of

the date of grant.

Performance Share Plan
See page 103 for more details

Subject 1o approval of the VCP, no further awards will be made to existing Executive Directors
under the PSP over the life of this Policy.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS Fy 2020 [ 83



P
2
[+
a
=
]
‘d
T
i
o
=
=
£
7]
24
n
£y
]
=
o
Q
=
[

L]
2020 outcomes

Performance Threshold?® Target? Maximum? % of maximum
Measure £m £m £m Actual % weighting achieved
Annual Bonus

EBITDA 659 676 76.0 1012 100% 100%
Qverall 100%
PSP

Adjusted EPS 23.0p - 260p 7470 50% 100%
Share price 400p - 450p 1,505p2 S0O% 100%
QOverall 100%

1Representing 100% of LTIF awards granted n November 2017, vesting of which was dependent onadjusted EPS and shate price parfornance to 30 September 2020. Sew page 57 for turttier dgtaits

2 Based on the average share price 1or any 90 day paniod trom the date of the grant of the award up to and including the last day of FY 2020,

3 Awards vest on a straight-ine basig between threshold, target and maximum performance. For threshold performance, 25% of the maximum award vests for the annual bonus and PSP respectively.
Adjustments are made to targets for material acquisitions, being those that contribute EBITDA of more than 15% of the total Group's EBITDA for the relevant financial year Acquisitions in the year did not
meet this threshold, therefore no adustment to targets was made (however. If an adjustment had been made then the bonus would still have paid out i full, due to the fevel of performance in the year).

This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regufations 2008 (as
amended). It also meets the requirements of the UK Listing Authority's
Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules.

In accordance with the Regulations, the following sections of the
Remuneration Report are subject to audit: the single total figure of
rermuneration for Directors and accompanying notes (page 95);
Scheme interests awarded during the financial year (page 97),

Payments to past directors (page 100); Payments for loss of office
{page 100); and the staternent of directors’ shareholdings and share
interests (page 100). The remaining sections of the report are not
subject to audit.

The Committee is seeking sharenolder approval for a new
remuneration policy at the 2021 AGM. The principal changes compared
to the previously approved policy are identified in the relevant sections
below and reiate primarily to the introduction of a new Value Creation
Plan (VCP) as well as a number of best practice features.

Directors’ Remuncration Policy

The Group aims to balance the need to atiract. retain and motivate
Executive Directors and aother senjor executives of an appropriate
calibre with the need to be cost effective, while at the same time
rewarding exceptional performance. The Committee has desighied 4
remuneration policy that balances those factors, taking account of
prevailing best practice, investor expectations and the level of
remuneration and pay awards made generally to employees of the
Group.

Indetermining the leve! and make-up of Executive Directors’
remuneration, the Committee carefully considers the following
principles:

= Remuneration packages offerad to Executive Directors should be
competitive with these available for comparable roles in high-growth
companiaes and companies operating in similar markets, on a similar
scale and with a similar culture 1o Future. They should be sufficiently
competitive to attract, retain and motivate high calibre Directors to
perform at the highest levels, while at the same time ensuring that
recruitment and remuneration expenditure is not excessive and that
remuneration does not encourage excessive risk-taking.

+ The interests of Executive Directors should be aligned with those of
shareholders by ensuring that a significant proportion of
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remuneration is linked to Group performance.

» Remuneration packages and empioyment conditions of Executive
Dircctars shauld he eonsidered in conjunction with both those of key
senior managers (keeping suceession planning in mind) and all
employees in the Group, In order to achieve a consistent
remurneration policy acrass the Group.

« The Committee should retain overarching discretion to adjust
performance-related elements of remuneration, to ensure alignment
of pay with performance, and that there is no reward for failure -
whether financial or operational.

« Executive Director remuneration should support the strategy, values
and culture of the Group. Pay should be simple and easy to
understand, with all aspects clear and openly communicated to
stakeholders and in alignment with pay philosophies across the
Group.

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code sets out principles against
which the Committee should determine the Policy for executives, A
surmmary of the principles and how the revised Remuneration Policy
reflects these is sef out below,
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Principle

Approach

Clarity

Remuneration arrangements should
be transparent and promote effective
engagement with shareholders and
the workforce.

The Committee operates a consistent remuneration approach that
is well-understood internally and externally. Major shareholders were
consulted on proposed revisions to the Policy.

Simplicity

Remuneration structures should avoid
complexity, and their rationale and
operation should be easy to understand.

Although the VCP is not common market practice, the Committee
beiieves that the structure of the scheme is simple, providing
participants with a share of value created above an absolute TSR
hurdle. Other elements of remuneration are market-standard.

Risk

Remuneration arrangements should ensure
reputational and other risks from excessive
rewards, and behavioural risks that can arise
from target-based incentive plans, are
identified and mitigated.

Each year, incentive targets will be set which the Committee believes
are stretching and achievable within the risk-appetite set by the
Board. The Committee retains discretion to override formulaic
incentive outcomes in the event that this would produce a result
inconsistent with the Company's remuneration principles,

All variable incentives incorporate malus and clawback. These
provisions allow the Committee to reduce the outcomes, potentially
down to zero, in cases of material financial misstaterment, calcutation
error, fraud or gross misconduct. The Committee believes that these
triggers are appropriately wide-ranging and has worked to ensure
they are enforceable.

Predictability

The range of possible values of rewards to
individual Directors and any other limits or
discretions should be identified and
explained at the time of approving the policy.

The Cornmittee maintains clear caps on incentive cpportunities and
will use its available discretion if necessary. The proposed VCP includes
an aggregate cap for all participants for each tranche.

Proportionality

The link between individual awards, the
delivery of strategy and the long-term
performance of the Company should be
clear. Outcomes should net reward poor
performance,

The Committee ensures performance metrics are clearly aligned with
the Group's strategy each year, maintaining an appropriate balance
between base pay, short and long-term incentive opportunities.
Targets are set to be stretching but achievable, within the Board's risk
appetite.

Alignment to culture

Incentive schemes should drive behaviours
consistent with Company purpose, values
and strategy,

Incentive schemes are periodically reviewed by the Committee to
ensure they remain consistent with the Group's purpose, values and
strategy.

The proposed VCP is an all-employee scheme, which reflects the
entrepreneurial and ambitious culture cf the Group, and provides
Future's employesas with the cpportunity tc share in the value created
for shareholders over the next three te five years.
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This section of the report sets out the policy for Executive Directors,

which the Company is asking sharehclders {o approve at the
February 2021 AGM. It is intended that the revised policy will come
into effect from {hat date. for a period of no more than three years.

Element

Notes to the Policy table

Qperation

Basic annual
salary

For the avomdance o1 doubt, mapproving this Directors' Remuneration Policy, autharity is
given to the Company to honour any commitments entered into with current or former
Directars under a previous Policy (such as the vesting or exercise of past share awards)

Objective & link to
strateqy

Basic annual salary is paid in 12 equal monthly instalments during the year and is reviewed annually.
When assessing the level of basic annual salary, the Commitfee takes info account performance, market
conditions, remuneration of equivalent roles within cornparable companies. the size and scale of the
business and pay in the Group as a whole.

Current benefits available to Executive Directors are car alfowance, permanent health insurance,

Benefits heaithcare and life assurance. Additional benefits may be offered if deemed appropriate.
Pension The Company shall make a conttibution up to a maximum percentage of basic annual salary.

The Company operates a Shate incentive Pian (*SiP"} in the UK which qualifies for tax henefits.
All-employee

share plans

The Committee retains discretion Lo allow Executive Directors ta participate inthe SIP on the same terms
as other employees.

Performance-
related bonus

Tao recruit, retain and
motivate individuals of
high calibre, and reflect
the skilis, experience
and contribution of the
reievant Director.

To ensure broad
competitiveness with
market practice.

Ta ensure alignment
with the wider
workforce and broad
competitiveness
withmarket practice.

Targets are set annually by the Committee, based on:
{1 financial performance against budget and, at the Committee’s discretion,
(i) individual subjective performance targets which are determined for each Executive Director.

The Committee retains discretion to set the financial targets based on the performance during the
previous financial year and the budget for the forthcoming year, and performance of the individual
against their specific subjective performance targets.

50% of any performance-related bonus earned will be delivered by way of a deferred share award,
which wil} vest two years after the award date.

A payment equal to the value of dividends, which woutd have accrued on deferred awards, may be
rade following the release of awards to participants, efther in the form of cash or as additionat shares.
Payments and awards in retation to the performance-related banus are subject to malus and clawback
provisions, further details of which are included as a nete to the policy table.

Toencourage share
ownership by employees
and align their interests with
those of the sharehalders.

Designed to reward
delivery of shareholder
value and
implementation of the
Group’s sirategy.

Cne-off award of units rewarding Future employess (including Executive Directors) with a percentage of
additianat shareholder value created over the next three tofive years, above a hurdle.

Units vest based on value created interms of £ Total Sharcholder Return (TSR) and are converted to
Future shares.

The VCP comprises three equal tranches, based on performance measured over three periods, from
1Q0ctober 2020 to: 20 September 2023; 30 September 2024; and 30 Septermnber 2025. For Executive
Directors, any shares that vest will be required to be held until the fifth anniversary of grant at the earliest.

Awards under the VCP are subject to malus and clawback provisions, further details of which are included

Designed toalign

the interests of Future
employees and
shareholders. by
incentivising the
delivery of exceptional
shareholder returns
over the long-term.

Subject to shareholder apnroval of the VCP, no further awards will be granted under the long-term share-based incentive (PSP) to
current Executive Directors during the life of this Policy. Details of the PSP, under which there are a number of awards outstanding, are
included below, for the purpose of transparency. In the event that a new Executive Director is appointed joins when the performance
period(s) of the VCP is materially completed, the Committee reserves the right to make an award under the PSP on the terms set out

in the Policy table, instead of under the VCP - see approach to recruitment remuneration section on page 91.

Value
Creation
Plan (VCP) as a note tathe palicy table.
Annual awards of conditional shares or nil-cost options to Executive Divectors.
Thie scheme rutes allow the Committee discretion to change the performance targets and the
Committee shall be entitied to exercise its discretion to change performance criteria Yo the extent that
Long-term it reflects market practice and/or the Cormittee considers alternative performance targets to be more
share-based appropriate to the business.
incentive .
(PSP) A payment equal to the value of dividends, which would have accrued on vested awards, may be made
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foltowing the refease of awards to participants, eithet in the form of cash or as additional shares.

Awards under the PSP are subject to malus and clawback provisions, further details of which are included
as a note to the policy table.

Designed to reward defivery
of shareholder vatue in the
medium-to-long term.
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Policy changes

Max. potential value Performance measures for FY 2021
Salary increases shall generaily reflect market conditions, performance of
the individual, new challenges or anew strategic direction for the business.
There may be occasions when the Cormimittee needs to recognise
_circumstances incIuFling. butnot Iimﬁi;ed to:an individual"s development Not applicabie. None
in the role, a change in the responsibility and/or complexity of the role. In
these circumstances, the Committee may award a higher annual increase
than the average for the workforce, the rationale for which will be explained
to sharehoiders in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
The Company shall continue to provide benefits to Executive Directors
at similar levels; where insurance cover is provided by the Company, that ) N
. o . o
cover shall be maintained at a simitar level and the Company shall pay the Not applicable ne
prevailing market rates for such cover.
Total cost annually shall not exceed 15% of basic annual salary.
Pension contributions for the Chief Executive will be aligned with the broader
workforcerate by 1 January 2022, Not applicable. None
For Directors appointed from 1 October 2019, the maximum contribution
will be aligned to that offered to the majority of employees in the relevant
jurisdiction at the time of appointment (currently 6% in the UK).
Thg maximum partlr:lpatlc_)n Ie_vels for all-employee share plans will be the Not applicable. None
limits set outin UK tax legislation.
The performance measures' relative weightings and
For both the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer the targets are set annually by the Committee. Details of
Committee retains discretion to vary the potential total maximum the measures and their relative weightings are disclosed
bonus, the weighting of the variable elements and the stretch of the annually in the Directors’ remuneration report with
targets in order to incentivise or recruit Executive Directors, provided the targets disclosed, provided they are not deemed
that the total maximum potential bonus for any one year shall not to be commercially sensitive. The Committee retains
exceed 200% of basic annual salary and that the maximum bonus discretion to adjust the targets if events ocour which None
shali only be payable for cutperformance of stretching targets. lead it to conclude that they are no longer appropriate.
Target performance will typically deliver up to 50% of maximum The Committee also retains discretion to adjust
bonus, with threshold performance typically paying up to 25% of the outcome of the performance-related benus for
maximum bonus. any performance measure if it considers that to be
appropriate.
Units vest based on value created interms of £ TSR, being
the growth in Future's market capitalisation plus net
equity cashflows to shareholders (i.e. dividends plus share
buybacks, less share issues), over and above a hurdle rate
of return of L0% per annum. New Plan and
To the extent that performance exceeds the hurdle ona measurement . ' e licy elernent
s Future's starting market capitalisation is based on the spot PoHCy el
date, par‘tmlparjts share 3.339% of the shareholder value created above closing price of a share on 30 Septernber 2020. which will
the hurdile, subject to an overall cap of £95m per tranche. ) replace the PSP
Value created at each measurement date will be calculated for current
Total units awarded will be 980,000 per tranche of which the with reference to the average closing return index over the Executiv
CEQ's allocation is 140,000 per tranche and the CFQ's allocationis three months ending on that date. xecutive
; e i . Directors,
63,000 per tranche. The remaining units will be allocated to Future's .
; . Ny To the extent that performance dees not exceed the hurdle subject to
employees, with a small pool reserved for future hires and promotions. . .
on a measurement date, the relevant tranche wiltlapse in shareholder
full, immediately, There will be nore-testing allowed. approval.
The ultimate release of any shares will be subject to the
Committee satisfying itself that the recorded outcome isa
fair reflection of the underlying business performance over
the period.
Performance targets are set annually by the Committeeand  No change.
disclosed annually in the Directors' remuneration report, However, subject
Awards expressed as a fixed number of shares, worth up to 200% of salary (or provided they are not deemed to be commercially sensitive. to shareholder

such lower level as determined by the Committee) for the first cycle. and fixed
at that number for the following two cycles.

Atthe end of the three-year performance period, the
Committee will assess performance against the targets set
and determine, in its absolute discretion, the overall level of

approval for the
VCP, no further
awards will be

Whilst the intention is t9 review the number of shares awarded only every vesting of the award. granted under the

three years, the Committee would nevertheless reduce the number of shares i PSP to current

granted if the implied % of salary due to be awarded would exceed 2x the initial ~ Under each measure. threshold performance will generally  pyo0tive

grant values. The overall cap is therefore 400% of salary. resultin up to 25% of maximum vesting for that element. Directors during
Awards are subject to a mandatory two-year holding period the life of
following the end of a three-year vesting pericd. this Policy.
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Performance measure selection and approach
to target setting

Measures used under the performance-trelated bonus are selected
annuaily to reflect the Group's main short-term objectives and can

reflect both financial and non-financial pricrities, as appropriate.

The Committee considers that adjusted operating profit
(previously EBITDAY is an important and recognised measure of the
Company's performance that reinforces the strategic objective of
profitable growth. The use of £ TSR in the new VCP is directly aligned
with the interests of shareholders. and ensures that Executive
Directors are rewarded only if they deliver material shareholder
returns over the longer-term. More generally, the focus on absolute
perfarmance measures reflects the Company's unique business
structure and lack of direct competitors, which would make
comparisons {and therefore target setting) difficult.

Targets applying to the performance-relatad bonus are reviewed
annually, based on a number of internal and external reference points.
Performance targets are set to be stretching but achievable, with
regard to the particular strategic priorities and the economic
environment in a given year. Targets are typically not disclosed in
advance due to commercial sensitivity but will typically be
retrospectively disclosed in full, following the year-end, to the extent
that such commercial sensitivity concerns no longer apply.

Targets applying to the VCP are disclosed prospectively in the table
above. The hurdle rate of 10% per annurm is considered to be between
median and upper guartile, compared to the historical returns of
FTSE250 constituents, with capping of the scheme requiring
performance significantly above upper decile performance.

Remuneration for other employees

All employees of the Group receive a basic annual salary, benefits,
pension and annual bonus (subject to financial performance). The
maximum value of remuneration packages is based on the seniority
and responsibilities of the relevant role. A key feature of the new VCP
is that a much broader group of employees (in comparison to the
PSP) will be awarded units under the plan to enable them to share in
the value creater for shareholders above a stretching hurdie,
supporting alignment not only with the interests of shareholders, but
also alignment of interests across the employee population.

88 f FUTURE PLC

Shareholding guidelines

1 he Committee strongly belicves in aligning the interests of Executive
Directors and shareholders. Shareholding guidelines were formalised
in 2018, which require Exacutive Directors 1o acquire and maintain a
holding of Future shares (excluding shares that remain subject to
performance conditions), within five years of appointment. Reflecting
feedback received from shareholders as part of the most recent
consultation. the shareholding guideline will be increased with effect
frorm 2021 to 400% of salary in respect of the Chief Executive and to
300% of salary in respect of the Chief Financial Officer (previously
200% of salary for both Executive Directors). Details of the Executive
Directors’ current shareholdings are provided in the Implementation
Report on page 100,

Also building on feadback received as part of our shareholder
consultation programme, the Committee has reconsidered the:
introduction of post-employment guidelines. It is our intention that
from 2021, Executive Directors will normally be expected to maintain
aholding of Future shares for a period after their employment with the
Company. This shareholding guideline will be equal to the lower of an
Executive Directors’ actual shareholding at the time of their departure
and the shareholding requirement in effect at the date of their
departure, with such shares to be held for a period of at least two
years from the date of ceasing to be an Executive Director. The
specific application of this shareholding guideline will be at the
Committee's discretion.

Malus and clawback

Payments and awards under the performance-related bonus. PSP
and VCP are subject to malus and clawback provisions, which can be
apphied to both vaested and ninvested awards. Malus and clawback
provisions will apply for a period of at least two years after payment or
vesting. Circumstances in which malus and clawback may be applied
include a material misstatement of the Company's financial accounts,
fraud or gross misconduct on the part of the award-nolder or an error
in calculating the award vesting outcome.

Participanis in the performance-related bonus, PSP and VCP are
required to acknowledge their understanding and acceptance of the
malus at il Llawback provisions as a pre-eandition o participating in
these plans. The Comimittee is satisfied that the malus and clawback
provisions are appropriate and enforceable.




Pay for performance scenarios

The charts below provide an illustration of the potential future reward
opportunities for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer. and
the potential split between the different elements of remuneration
under three different performance scenarios: ‘“Minimum’, ‘Target’,
‘Maximum.

Potential reward opportunities are based on Future's remuneration
policy, applied to the base salary effective 1 October 2020. The
performance-related bonus is based on the maximum opportunities
set out under the remuneration policy for normal circumstances. Note
that VCP awards will vestin tranches after three. four and five years
(and are thereafter subject to a holding period, bringing the total time
to release to five years from grant). As the VCP is intended to replace
the PSP for at least the next three years, the values shown reflect the
aggregate value of the VCP amortised over three years.

The 'Minimurn’ scenario reflects base salary, pension and benefits
(i.e. fixed remuneration) which are the only elements of the Executive's
remuneration packages not linked te performance.

Corporate Governance

The Target’ scenario reflects fixed remuneration as above, plus
performance-related bonus payout of 50% of maximum. No VCP
value is shown for this scenario, reflecting the stretching £ TSR hurdle
rate of 10% per annum - which is higher than the threshold absolute
TSR target applying to previous PSP awards (and achievement of
which weuld resultin £nil payout under the VCP).

The 'Maximum’ scenario includes fixed remuneration and full payout
of the performance-related bonus. The value of the VCP shown is
based on an accounting fair value assessment as at 1 October 2020,
with the resulting value amortised over three years.

The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 require
a fourth scenario, showing the value at maximum assuming share
price growth of 50% fer the purpose of long-term incentive awards.

We have chosen not te illustrate this scenario above since the value of
the VCP is dependent on share price growth above a hurdle of 10% per
annum. 50% share price growth over the maximum five-year
nerformance period eguates to ¢.8.4% per annum growth and would
generate no value to participants under this scheme.

Zillah Byng-Thorne Rachel Addison
4000 2000
£3,297
3000 15G0
g g
42.4%
E’J 45]% @
c c
2 2
7 2000 B 000
@ @
= =
3 =1
s g £640
£1,234
= 34.9% = 35.3%
1000 500
£383
£659
o] o]
Minimum Oon-target Maximum Minirmum On-target Maximum
M rixed rermuneration  [] Performance-related bonus & & VP B Fixed remuneration  [] Performance-related bonus |} VCP
FY 2021 remuneration assumptions
Maximum
performance- Amortised fair
Executive Director Salary Pension Benefits related bonus value VCP valuation
Zillah Byng-Thorne £575,000 1.6%' £17,000 200% £1,487971
Rachel Addison £350,0600 6.0% £12,000 150% £669,587

1 Zillah Byng-Thorne's pension s based on15% of salary far 3 menths and 10.5% of salary for @ menths of the financial year.
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Policy table for Non-Executive Directors
Non-F xecutive Directors are not eligible to participate in any performance-related bonus, share incerlive scliemes or pension

arrangements. Details of the policy on fees paid to Non-Executive Directors arg set oulin Ui Labile below:

Element

Fees

Operation

Objective &
link to strategy

Non-Executive Directors' fees are
reviewed annually and paid in 12
monthly instalments.

In addition to the base fee,
additional fees are payable for acting
as Senior independent Director ahd as
Chair of any of the Board's
Committees. In the event that the
Board requires the formation of an
additional Board Cornmittee, fees for
the Chair {and where relevant,
membership} of such Committee will
pe determined by the Board at the
time,

The fees pald to the Chairman are
determined by the Committee, whilst
the fees of the Non-Executive

Directors are determined by the Board.

Expenses incurred by the Chairman
and the Non-Executive Directors in the
performance of their duties (including
taxable travel and accommodation
benefits) may be reimbursed or paid
for directly by the Company, as
appropriate.

To attract and
retain high calibre
Non-Executive
Directors with
broad commercial
and other
expcericnce relevant
to the Company,
and reflect the
time commitment
and responsibilities
of these roles.

Max. potential
value

Non-Executive
Director fee increases
are applied inline
with the outcome of
the annual fee review
and would normally
be aligned with the
increase awarded to
the workfarce.

Fees for the year
under review and for
the following year are
set out inthe
Implementation
Report on page 103,

Aggregate fees
paid to Non-Executive
Directors are subject
to the limits set out in
the Articles of
Assocfation.

Policy
Performance changes
measures for FY21
Not applicable. None,
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Corporate Governance

Approach to recruitment remuneration
External Executive Director appointment
in line with our principles on remuneration, the Cemmittee’s objective at the time of an appointment to a new role is to weight Executive
Directors’ remuneration packages towards performance-related pay that is linked to targets set for the financial performance of the Group
against budget, and the Group’'s performance against its business objectives and stated strategy.
Any new Executive Director’s remuneration package would include the same elements as those of the existing Executive Directors, as

shown below:

Element of
remuneration

Approach

Maximum %
of salary

Salary

The base salaries of new appointees will be determined by reference to
relevant market data, experience and skills of the individual, internal
relativities and their current basic salary.

The Committee may approve a higher basic annual salary for a
newly appeinted Cirector than the outgoing Director received where it
considers it necessary in order to recruit an individual of sufficient
calibre for the role. Alternatively, where new appointees have initial
basic salaries set below market-level, any shortfall may be rmanaged
with phased increases over a period of up to three years subject to the
individual's development in the role.

nfa

Benefits

New appointees will be eligible to receive benefits which may include
(but are not limited to) the provision of a car allowance, permanent
health insurance, healthcare and life assurance.

If the Director is required to relocate then the policy is to provide
reasonable, time-limited relocation, travel and subsistence payments
at the discretion of the Committee.

New appointees will also be eligible to participate in all-employee
share schemes, where relevant.

n/a

Pension

New appointees will receive company pension contributions or an
equivalent cash supplement aligned to that offered to the majeority of
employees in the relevant jurisdiction at the time of appointment.

n/a

Performance-
related bonus

The structure described in the Policy table will apply to new
appointees with the relevant maximum being pro-rated to reflect the
proportion of ermployment over the year. If used, individual targets will
be tailored to the executive.

200%

Share incentive
schemes

The VCPR is intended to be the primary long-term incentive
arrangement under the new Policy. New appointees will typically
recelve awards on the same terms as other executives, as described in
the Policy table, taking into account the proportion of the performance
period remaining and the level of shareholder value already created
under the scheme.

Inthe event that a new appeintee joins when the performance
period(s) of the VCP is materially completed, the Cormmittee reserves
the right instead to make an award under the PSP on the terms set out
in the Policy table.

VCP: Individual limit of 140,000 units
per tranche, subject to aggregate
plan limit of 980,000 units per
tranche

PSP Fixed number of shares, with a
face value of up to 400% of salary
{where used)

In determining an appropriate remuneration package, the
Remuneration Committee will take into consideration all relevant
factors (including quantum, nature of remuneration and the
Jurisdiction frem which the candidate was recruited) to ensure that
arrangements are in the best interests of both the Company and its

shareholders.

The Committee may make an award in respect of a new
appeintment to buy out incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a
previous employer on a like-for-like basis, which may be awarded in

addition to the remuneration structure outiined in the table above. In
doing 50, the Committee will consider relevant factors including time
remaining until vesting, any performance conditions attached to
these awards and the likelihood of such conditions being met. Any
such buy-out awards would typically be made under the existing

performance-related bonus and PSP schemes, although in

exceptional circumstances the Committee may use the exemption
permitted within the Listing Rules. Any buy-out awards would have a
fair value no higher than that of the awards forfeited.
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Internal Executive Director appointment

In cases of appointing a new Executive Director by way of internal
promaotion, the Remuneration Committee and Board will be
consistent with the policy for external appointees detailed above.

Where an individual has contractual commitments made prior to their

promoticn to Executive Director level, the Company wilf continue to
honour these arrangements.

Non-Executive Directors
Inrecruiting 2 new Non-Executive Director. the Remuneration
Committee will use the policy as set out in the table on page 90.

Service contracts and loss of office payments

Copics of Directors’ service agreements and letters of appointmetit are

available for inspection on request at the Company's registered office.

Executive Directors
In summary, the contractual provisions for current Executive
Directars are as follows:

Contract
provision

Notice
periods

Policy

Director or Cormpany
shall be entitled to
serve 6 months' notice
(in Rachel Addison's
case) or 12 months'
rotice (in Ziliah
Byng-Thorne's case).

Compensation
for loss of
office

Change of
control

Director shall be entitled
to receive up to & months'
salary (in Rachel
Addisen's case) or 12
months’ salary (in Zillah
Byng-Thorite's case) and
benefits during any
unexpired notice period.

Inthe event of a change
of control, a Director's
appointment may be
terminated within three
maonths of the change of
control by the Cormpany,
or on one month’s notice
by the Director (to expire
rnolater than three
manths from the date of
the change of contral).

Details

A Director may be
required to work
during their notice
period or be put
ongarden leave.

While service
agreements allow for
monthfy payments
during the notice
period which are
subject ta mitigatian,
the Commttee
retains discretion to
make paymentsin
such manner asis
deemed appropriate.
particulariy by
referenceiothe
circurnstances of the
loss of office.

Inthe event of
termination by
either the Director
or the Company, the
Director will be
entitled to receive &
months’ saiary.

92 / FUTURE PLC

In a leaver event, the following payments may also be made to
departing Executive Directors:

1. Any share-based entitlements granted to an Executive Director
under Company share plans will be determined based on the
refevant pfan rules. In certain prescribed circumstances. such as
death, ili-heaith, injury, disability, redundancy, retirement or other
circumstances at the discretion of the Commitiee, ‘good leaver’
status may be applied. Under the PSP and VCP. for good leavers,
awards will normally be reduced pro-rata to reflect the proportion
of the vesting period actually served and tested for performance at
the end of the original performance period. Vested PSP and VCP
awards which are subject to an additional holding period will
typically be 1etained and releoted at the end of the holding period,
with Committee discretion to accelerate he release of such awards
in certain good leaver or change of control circumstances. Deferred
bonus shares will normally be retained by the Executive Director
and refeased in full foliowing completion of the applicable deferral
period. with Committee discretion to accelerate the vesting of
awards in certain good leaver or change of control circumstances;

2. Abonus may be payable for the period of active service in certain
prescribed good leaver circumstances and in other circumstances
at the discretion of the Committee and subject to the achievermnent
of the relevant performance targets;

3. At the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, a contribution to
reasonable outplacement costs in the event of termination of
employment due to redundancy. The Committee also retains the
ability to retmburse reasonable legal costs incurred in connection
with a termination of employrment; and

4. Any payment for statutory entitiements or to settle or compromise
claims in connection with a termination of any existing or future
Executive Director as necessary.

. |

Non-Executive Directors

Contract

provision Policy Details

Notice Three months’ Appointed for a three-
periods notice from either year term, subject to

Company or
Director.

annual re-election by
shareholders at the
Company's AGM,




External appointments

Executive Directors are encouraged to hold a Non-Executive role in
addition to their full-time position in order to broaden their
experience, and may retain any fees received in respect of such roles.
All appointments must first be agreed by the Committee and must
not represent a conflict to their current role. In the case of Zillah
Byng-Thorne, it was agreed at the time of her appointment that she
could hold three Non-Executive roles in addition to her position as
Chief Executive. Zitlah Byng-Thorne has agreed not to replace any of
her Non-Executive positions as they time mature. In the case of
Rachel Addiscn, the Committee has agreed that she may hold up to
two Non-Executive roles in arder to gain further experience to
support her first PLC Board rele.

In respect of positions at listed companies, during the financial year
ended 30 September 2020, Zillah Byng-Thorne served as a Non-
Executive Director at Flutter Entertainment plc, GoCo Group plc and
THG Holdings plc for which she retained total fees of £206,830
{(compared to £177,000 in 2019). Penny Ladkin-Brand is a
non-executive director of Next 15 Communications Group plc for
which, during the period from 1 October 2019 to 1 June 2020, she
retained fees of £29,.800. Rachel Addison does not currently hold any
outside directorships.

Consideration of conditions elsewhere in the
Company

The Committee takes intc consideration the pay and conditions of
employees across the Group when determining remuneration for
Executive Directors, although currently does not formally consult
with employees on the executive remuneration policy and framework.
The Committee and the full Board is made aware of, and censulted
on, the Company's Human Resources strategy and takes seriously its
obligation to have a greater degree of oversight on the operation of
fair pay pelicies elsewhere in the Group.

Allemployees receive 2 basic annual salary, benefits and an
entitlement to receive a bonus, subject to financial performance,
under the Group's prefit pool bonus scheme. Discreticnary share
incentive awards are granted to certain key employees and 'rising
stars’ under the PSP and DABS schemes, and the Group operates a
Share Incentive Plan in order to encourage active employee share
ownership.

Subject to shareholder approval, the Value Creation Plan will offer
employees of the Group the opportunity to benefit from the value
created by therr effortsin delivering Future's ambiticus strategy over
the next three to five years. Under the scherme, employees will receive
a number of units based on seniority, with a small pool reserved for
future joiners, and for significant prometions during the performance
period.

Corporate Governance

Consideration of shareholder views

The Remuneration Committee considers shareholder feedback
received as part of any discussions with shareholders and consults
with shareholders on specific matters as and when appropriate.

As part of its work during 2020, the Remuneration Committee
consulted with Future’'s 15 largest shareholders to seek their views on
the proposed changes to the Remuneration Policy, as well as
remuneration at Future more broadly. The Committee is grateful for
those investors who actively participated in the consultation and we
welcome the feedback received, which has been used to finalise the
VCP proposals and to inform other best-practice changes to the
Policy. We are confident that the Policy continues to reflect good
practice while also supporting Future in attracting, retaining and
motivating the Executive Directors and dedicated employees who are
integral to the delivery of our long-term strategy. The Committee will
continue to monitor trends and developments in cerporate
governance and market practice to ensure the structure of the
executive remuneration remains appropriate.
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Annual Report

On Remuneration

The following report provides details of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy was
applied for the year ended 30 September 2020 and how the Commiittee intends to
apply the Policy in the year ending 30 September 2021

Governance
The Committea is responsibie for determining tfie overat ren e ativn
policy of the Group, and in particutar for:

» Determining the appropriate basic annual salaries, incentive
arrangements and terms of employment of Executive Directors.

« Monitoring and reviewing the level and make-up of the
remunearation packages of senior managers, including bonus
schemes and share-based incentives, and ensuring that
remuneration policies and practices do not encourage excessive
risk-taking.

« Setting the Chairman’s remuneration.

« Approving the terms of any new share-based incentive scheme for
any employees of the Group, subiect, where appropriate, to
shareholder approval.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Commitiee, reviewed

annually, are available on the Company’s website (www.futureplc.comy.

Advisers

The Committee is informed of key developments and best practice in
the field of remuneration and cbtains advice from independent external
conhsultants, when required, on individual remuneration packages and
executive remuneration practices in general. The Committee retained
Mercer as its independent consultants during the year. Fees paid to
Mercer for services provided to the Committee during the financial year
waero £27.900 (2019 £45.890) on the basis of time and materials.
Foilowing their appeintment as remuneration consultants during 2013,
services provided to the Committee by Mercer have included
supporting the review of the Remuneration Policy, regulatory guidance,
advice on shareholder trends and consultation support.

Mercer does not provide any other services to the Group or any of the
Directors and the Committee is satisfied that Mercer rermains
independent. Mercer is a signatory 1o, and founding member of, the
Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct (www.
rermunerationconsultantsgroup.com) which requires that its advice be
objective and impartial.

Shareholder voting
The luilowing table showe the results of the binding vote on the FY
2019 Palicy Repar L and the advisory vote ot the FY 2019
Implementation Report at the 2020 Annual General Meeting:

For {inciuding
discretionary)

Against
Total votes cast
{excluding

withhelid votes)

Votes withheld

Remuneration

Remuneration

Report Fy 2019 Policy FY 2019
58,254,355 64,571,026
75.09% B83.20%

18,324 119 13,039,300
24.91% 16.80%
77578474 77,610,326
5,149,500 5117648

The Company published a staterment on its website on 19 June
2020 noting its understanding that the main reasons for the vating
outcomein relation to the FY 2019 Remuneration Report were
related to the CEQ's remuneration, and the percentage increase in
CFQ remuneration. The Board acknawledges these views, noting
that these outcomes were delivered as a result of Company
performance over the pteceding tiree yecars, and in accordance
with the prevailing Remuneration Policy, as approved by

shareholders.

The Committee continues to monitor evolving best practice on
remuneration matters, and welcomes dialogue with shareholders

on an ongoing basis.

Context to remuneration decisions

The Committee’s decision-making this year has taken into account
arange of internal and external facters, including the Group's
response to COVID-19 and the experience of our stakeholders

during this period.

As outiined in the Annual Statement, Future took decisive action
early on during the pandemic to ensure the business was
sustainable and set up for success. The business has acted in line
with the 5172 governance guidelines while continuing to defliver
exceptional results for sharehaiders. In particutar, the Committae
has alsc been mindfu! that:

« Although a small amount of Government support was received

from the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme by Future (and by
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Corporate Governance

TI Media before it was acquired by Future) and from the equivalent » Staff will be paid full profit pool bonus for the year, and annual pay
US Government fund this has been repaid in full. rises for all employees are being budgeted as normal.
= No staff had pay cuts (they were all refunded) with only the Chief » We provided extended credit to suppliers when requested.
Executive & Non-Executive Directors having a year-on-year pay « While we removed ¢.200 roles as a result of the TIMedia
reduction in thereporting period. integration, this was not COVID-19 related but as adirect result of
« Shareholder guidance was maintained throughout the period, and the acquisition. Around 50 roles were removed due to the impact
two upgrades provided. of the change to our business model because of COVID-19,
= Dividends were maintained. however we expect to have net increased headcount due to online
» Leverage decreased during the period. editorial mvestments.

Single figure of remuneration for Directors {(audited)
The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received for the last two financial years by each Executive and Non-Executive
Director who served in the year ended 30 September 2020:

Year (A} Basic (B) {c} (E) Total {A+B+E) (C+D}
ended 30 salary Taxable Annual (D) Pension single Total Total
£000 September or fees® benefits’ bonus?* PSP+ benefit? figure fixed variable
Executive Directors
Zillah Byng-Thorne 2020 455 17 950 2,195 €8 3,685 540 3,145
2019 475 17 713 4,402 71 5,678 563 5015
Penny Ladkin-Brand® 2020 249 10 350 1,509 33 2,151 292 1,859
2019 325 15 344 3144 4] 3,869 381 3,488
Rachel Addison® 2020 n7z % 175 - 9 305 130 175
2019 - - - - - - - -
Non-Executive Directors
Richard Huntingford 2020 142 - - - - 142 142 -
2019 120 - - - - 120 120 -
Meredith Amdur? 2020 36 - - - - 36 36 -
2018 - - - - - - - -
Hugo Crayton 2020 63 - - - - 63 63 -
2019 53 - - - - 53 53 -
Rob Hattrel 2020 46 - - - - 46 46 -
2019 45 - - - - 45 45 -
Alan Newman 2020 53 - - - - 53 53 -
2019 50 - - - - 50 50 -
Total 2020 1,161 3 1,475 3,704 o 6,481 1,302 5,179
2019 1,068 32 1,057 7546 nz 9,815 1,232 8,603

Notes.

—

. Benefits for Executive Directors comphise pringipally car allowance. private health insurance and life assurance. There were no taxable expenses pawd to any Director in the year.

N

. Zitah Byng-Thorne, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Rachel Addison receved cash supplerments in hieu of pension contributions. These additional cash payments are not included in determining their
entitlement ta any bonus, share-based incentive cr pension entitfament.

=]

Relates to payment for performance during the year and includes the grant date value of any amount paid in shares under the Deferred Annual Bonus Scheme. Details relating to the Annual Bonus are
set out on page 96.

. The PSP figures are consistent with the approach taken in previous reports. 1 & awards are captured inthe year that performance periods have ended (sce page 97 for further details). 2020 figure:
relates to 100% of the PSP awards granted on 25 November 2017 which vested on 25 Novernber 2020 following the achievement of the share price target and adjusted EPS target for the three-year
period ended 30 September 2020 The value of these awards has been calculated using the spot closing price on vest date of 16 34p. Further details relating to the PSP are set cut on page 97. 2019

B

figure relates to 25% of the PSP awards granted on 23 November 2016 and 2 February 2017 which vested on 23 November 2018, foliowing the achievement of the share price target for the period
ended 30 September 2019. The value of these awards has been calculatedusing the share price at date of vest on 23 Novemnber 2019 of 14145,
. PennyLadkin-Brand stepped down from the Board an 1 June 2020. Penny's rernuneration for 2019 and 2020 was higher than her annualised package. In 2019 Penny was on maternity leave for two

o

and a half months of the year, and the 2019 figure above includes accrued holiday pay (paid to her on her return in 2019) as well as a maternity leave/return to work paymentin 2019 and 2020 n line
with the Group’s maternity policy

o

. Rachel Addison was appointed to the Board as Chief Financiat Gfficer on 1June 2020. Her remuneration arrangemants are Inling with the prevailing Remuneration Policy and consistent with those of
her predecessor, namely: a salary of £350.000C; a pensien contribution aiigned with the majonty of UK empleyees at 6% of salary; a maximum annual bonus opportunity of 150% of salary. which is
pro-rated for time served on the Board in her first year, and eligibility for an annua! award under the PSP. Rachel was granted a pro-rated award of 17.222 shares under the PSP on 1 June 2020.

. Meredith Amdur was appointed to the Board on 6 February 2020 and is US-based. Duning FY 2020 Meredith rece ved US$48 000 as remuneration {Sterling equivalent shown inthe table above).

. The CEQ, CFOand Non-Executive Director salaries and fees were reduced by 20% in March (half of month). Apnt and May 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The amgunts waived were 25 tollows:
Zillah Byng-Thorne £20.218; Penny Ladkin-Brand £14,897, Richard Huntingford £5,108; Meredith Amdur $2.000; Hugo Draytan £1,915; RobHattrell £1.915, and Alan Newman £1,915,

0~
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Incentive cutcomes for the year ended 30 September 2020

Performance-related bonus

{Annual Bonus Scheme)

During 2020, the Company operated a profit pool bonus for all
employees across the Group, including the Executive Directors. This
profit peo! comprised 100% of the Executive Director bonus
opportunity for FY 2020, and was subject to outperformance of the
EBITDA budget set. EBITDA refers to adjusted earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.

Maxirmum opportunities were 200% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 150% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer. The profit
pooi pays out a tixed amount of Casti fur Hreynajority of employees
based on delivering EBITDA performance above Budget. In addition to
the profit poo! component, which accounts for 25% of the Chief
Executive’s honus opportunity (worth 50% of salary), a further

opporiunity to earn an additional 150% of salary as a bonusis
possible. The same profit poo! scheme applies to the Chief Financial
Officer, with an additional 100% of salary payable as a bonus for
outperformance above this level.

Actual adjusted EBITDA performance for the year of £101.9m
significantly exceeded the stretch target of £76.0m (which was 39%
growth on the prior year), resulting in a formulaic outcome of 134% of
maxirnumm for this element. Adjustiments can be made ta targets for
material acquisitions, defined as these that contribute EBITDA of more
than 15% of the total Group's EBITDA for the relevant financial year.
Acquisitions in the year did not meet this threshold, theretore no
adjustmcnt to targets was made. The Committee would note, however,
that if an adjustment had been made then the bonus would still have
paid cut in full due to the level of over-performance in the year.

Performance Thresheld Target Maximum Actual % % of maximum
measure £m £m £m £m weighting achieved
Annual bonus

EBITDA 659 67.6 76.0 1019 100% 100%

Overall 100%

Accordingly, all Executive Directors earned 100% of their respactive
opportunities under the annual bonus for the year. The annual bonus
payrments for Panny Ladkin-Brand as outgoing Chief Findricial Officer,
and for Rachel Addison as incoming Chief Financial Officer, were
pro-rated to reflect their respective periods in role (8 months and 4
menths). In confirming this outcome, the Committee took into
account the broader financial and operational performance of the

Group during the year, the exceptional shareholder returns
generated, and {he strong and effective leadership demonstrated by
the Executive Directors.

In accordance with the Remuneration Policy, 50% of these bonus
amounts have been paid in cash, with the remaining 50% to be
converted to Future shares and deferred for 2 years.

Maximurm Perforrmance Pro-rating

opportunity outcome (% (% of year Bonus -..of which ..of which
Executive Base Salary {% salary) of maximum) served) outcome £ cash £ shares
Zillah Byng-Thorne £475,000 200% 100% 100% £950,0600 £475,000 £475,000
Penny Ladkin-Brand £350,000 150% 100% 66.7% £350,000 £175,000 £175,000
Rachel Addison £350,000 150% 100% 333% £175,000 £87,500 £87,500
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Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Awards vesting on performance to

30 September 2020

Vesting of awards made on 24 November 2017 was dependent on two
equally-weighted performance conditions — adjusted diluted EPS and
share price — assessed over the performance period, as follows:

Measure Targets OCutcome  Vesting
0% vesting
below 23p
EPS for year 25% vesting
ended
for 23p
30 September 247 100%
2020 100% vesting P
for 26p
Straight-line vesting
between these points
Share Price 0% vesting
(average below 400D
share price .
performance ?5% vesting
R or 400p
for any fgo day 1505p 100%
period Trom 100% vesting
the date of for 450p
grant to 30
September Straight-line vesting
2020) between these points

As with the annual bonus, in confirming this outcome the Committee
took inte account the broader financial and operational performance
of the Group cver the three-year performance pericd, the exceptional
returns generated for shareholders and the strong and effective
leadership demonstrated by the Executive Directors. Notwithstanding
that Future's actual performance significantly exceeded the level
required for maximum vesting, the Committee is satisfied that the
targets criginally set were appropriately stretching, with 450p
representing ¢.170% growth on the trailing 30-day average share price
to1Qcteber 2017, and adjusted EPS maximum target of 26.0p
representing a 12% increase on 30 September 2017 EPS of 23.2p.

Share price
on vesting
Performance (spot
Shares outcome closing
subject (% of price on PSP
Executive to award maximum} vest date) outcome
Zillah 134,345  100% 1,634 £2195197
Byng-Thorne ' © ' P e
Penny 92363  100% 1,634p £1,509,21

Ladkin-Brand

The value attributable to share price appreciation above the share
price at the date of grant (325p) was c.£1.8m and ¢.£1.2m for Zillah
Byng-Thorne and Penny Ladkin-Brand respectively (c.80% of the
total value reported). The Committee has not exercised any
discretion in respect of this share price appreciation.

Corporate Governance

Awards granted during the year to
30 September 2020

During FY 2020, the following awards under the PSP were granted to

the Executive Directors:

fFace value
Executive Date of % of Number Vesting
Director award salary) of shares' date
Zillah 25 Nov 200% 67185 25 Nov
Byng-Thorne 2019 of salary ’ 2022
Penny 25 Nov 167% 413372 25 Nov
Ladkin-Brand 2019 of salary ' 2022
Rachel 1Jun 167% 17222 31 May
Addison 2020 of salary ' 2023

1 Awards converted into shares using the share price preceding the relovant grant date

(£14.14 for awards mada to Zillah Byng-Thorne, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Rachel

Addizon with Rachel's award pro-rated for her time as CFO).

2 The award made to Penny Ladkln-Brand was subsequently pro-rated for her time as
CFO and reduced to 27,654 shares.

The three-year period over which performance will be measured
began on 1 October 2019 and will end on 30 September 2022. Any
awards vesting for performance will be subject to an additional
two-year holding pericd, during which malus and clawback provisions

will apply.

Vesting of these awards is dependent on two equally-weighted
measures over the three-year performance period: adjusted diluted
earnings per share (EPS) and absolute TSR, There is no retest
provision. Details of the vesting schedules are provided below:

Measure weighting %  Targets
0% vesting below 56p
25% vesting for 56p (7% CAGR)
EPS for year )
ending 50% vesting for 62p (10% CAGR)
C,
30 September S0% 0% vesting for 71p
2022

or above {16% CAGR)

Straight-line vesting
between these points

Absolute TSR

(% growth
between the
average of the
three months to
30 September
2012 and average
of the three
rmonths to 30
September 2022)

0% vesting below
6% per annum

25% vesting for

6% per annum
50% .

100% vesting for

15% perannum

Straight-line vesting
bhetween these points

The performance targets were set reflecting the increase in
maximum opportunity under the PSP to 200% and 167% of salary
for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer respectively, and
consistent with our commitment that full vesting will require
continued exceptional performance over the next three years.

Awards granted under the DABS during the year were disclosed in

last year's report.
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Pension entitlements (audited)

The anly element of remuneration that is pensionable is basic annual
salary. During the year ended 30 September 2020, employer’s
pension contributions were payable to the Executive Directors asa
salary supplernent, at a rate of 15% of salary for the Chief Executive
and Penny Ladkin-Brand and 6% of salary for Rachel Addison
(aligned with the majority of UK empioyees. as set out in the FY 202G
Remuneration Policy). This additionai cash payment is not included in
determining their entittement to any performance-related bonus,
share-based incentive or pension. The Company had no liability in
respect of the Executive Directors’ pensions as at 30 September
2020. Normal retirement age under the scheme rulesis 75.

Review of past performance
Alignment of reward and Total Shareholder Return: Rebased to
Future plc as of 1 Orrober 2010

This graph shows a comparison of Future’s total shareholder return
(share price growth plus dividends) with that of the FTSE All-Share
Media index and the FTSE250 Index {excluding investment trusts).
The FTSE Ali-Share Media index was selected as it provides a
comparison of Future's performance relative to the other companies
inits sectar, whilst the FTSE250 Index is shown to reflect the Group
having moved up to a Premium Listing and its inclusion in the
FTSE250 index during 2019.

Historical TSR performance
Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over the 10 years to 30 September 2020
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The table below shows the Chief Executive’s single figure of remuneration and variable pay outcornes over the sarne period as the graph above,

Stevie Spring Mark Wood Zillah Byng-Thorne
Year 20M 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
CEO single figure of F546 £430 £331 | £30864 £471 £347 £542% £10887 £5678  £3685
remuneration £000 ' ' ' '
Annua! Bonus as % 0% 50% 0% 20% 16% 0%s 88%°  100%  100%  )00%
of Maximum
PSP Vesting 100% 0% 0% 0%° 0%? a%’  100%  100%  100%  100%
{% of maximum)

Notes:

1, This reprasents the second tranche of a deferrad bonus share award, which was not subject te performance erlteria. The PSP award granted in December 2007 lapsed in December 2010.
2. The first awards grantad to Mark Wood under the PSP ware grantad in Jangary 2012 and ispsed an 18 January Z415, since the celevant perfarmance criteria were ot mat,

2, The first awards granted to Zillah Byng-Thorne under the PSP were granted in December 2013 and lapsed on 16 December 2016, as the relevant performance critaria were not met.
4, The single figure for Zillah Byng-Thorne for 2014 includes five months of her Chisf FInancial Officar salary and six months of her salary as Chlef Executive,

5. Zillah Byng-Thorne walved her performance-related bonhus for 2016,
&. Zillak Byng-Thorne received & transaction bonus of £352,000 following the

banus was walved in 2016 as a result of this transaction bonus being paid. The 88% in the table reflects the ion of this tr

P of the In Qctokber 2016. The right to a performance-related

bonus, the profit pool bonus which was

awarded as a result of EBITDA performance achieved for 2017 and the further bonus of 50% of current salary (to be satistied in shares that must be held for at least one year} for the

achigvernent of 2017 target EBITDA.

7. Figures restated to reflect the share price at date of vest for PSP awards granted in November 2016 and February 2077

28 | FUTURE PLC




Basic Taxable
Director' salaryffee? benefits Bonus®
Executive Directors
Zillah Byng-Thorne (4)% 5% 33%
Rachel Addison nfa n/a n/a
Non-Executive Directors
Richard Huntingford 18% n/a __n/a
Meredith Amdur n/a nfa n/a
Hugo Drayton %4 n/a n/a
Rob Hattrell 3% n/a n/a
Alan Newman 6% nfa n/a
Former Directors
Penny Ladkin-Brand [annualised)® 17% 0% 53%
All employees® 1% 3% 0%

Notes:

1Changes in Directors and roles during the 2019/20 financial year were as follows:
« Penny Ladkin-Brand stepped down from the Board on 1 June 2020
+ Rachel Addison was appointed to the Board as Chief Financial Officer on1June 2020.
« Meredith Amdur was appointed to the Board on 6 February 2020

2 Salary/feas for FY 2020 reflect the voluntary temporary reductlons of 20% in March (half
of month}, April and May 2020

3 The figures shown are reflective of any bonus earned during the respective financial
year. Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate In the bonus scheme.

4 The Increase Tor Huga Drayton reflects the increased base fee (from £45,000 to £55,000,

Corporate Governance

Percentage change in remuneration
of Directors and employees
The Committee has previously monitered year-on-year
changes between the movement in salary. benefits and
annual bonus for the CEQ between the current and previous
financial year compared with that of employees. As required
under the revised reporting regulations, this analysis has now
been expanded to cover each Executive Director and
Non-Executive Director and wili be built up over time to display
a five-year history.

The analysis is based on the average earnings per employae
in order to avoid distortions to the Group's totai wage bill
because of the movements in the number of employees. The
comparator group used is all Future employees.
the increased fee for serving as the Senlor Independent Director {from £7,500 to
£16,000) and the increased fee for sarving as the Chair of the Remuneraticn Committes
{from £5,000 to £10,000) as disclosed in the Directors’ Report on Remunaeration for the
year ended 30 Septermbear 2013,

5 Penny Ladkin-Brand‘s salary, taxabla benefits and bonus have been annualised, to
refiect the remunsration sha would have received if she had remained as Chief Financial
Officer until 30 September 2020, to ald comparability with prior year,

6 The d in all-employse remt is due to a change in gecgraphic mix of the

employee population along with differing contractual terms within TI Media, along with
a higher proportion of emplayees now being based in the UK rather than the Us.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The relative importance of spend on pay for the business is shown in the table below.

Distributions to
shareholders:
£1.6m (+57%)

o Group pay: Group cperating costs

o P pay: excluding Group pay & Capital expenditure:

N exceptional costs: £4.0m (nil2)) EBT share
£169.3m (+4 3% purchase:

£8.5m

& Capital expenditure:

(=) Group pay: Group Ppe'atmg costs £4.0m Distributions to

~ £72.7m excluding Group pay & harehold

: exceptional costs: £118.7m shareholders
£1.0m
Q.0 50.0 100.0 150.0 200.0 N 2500 ) 3000

The table above shows the actual expenditure of the Group, and change between the current and previous years, on remuneration paid to all

ermployees compared to the total operating costs for the Group excluding exceptional costs and remuneration, investment in capital expenditure,
EBT share purchase, and distributions to shareholders. These are considered to be the areas of material outgoings for the Group relating to core
performance, Note that the Group expects cost synergies on the acquisition of Tl Media of £20m per annum (see page 10 for further details).

Figures are derived from the Group's consolidated financhal statements, Distribution to shareholders figures in the table relate to the dividends
paid {or payable) for the FY 2019 and FY 2020 financial years being, respectively, (i} the 1.0p final dividend for the FY 2019 financial year paid in
February 2020; and {ii} the 16p final dividend proposed for the FY 2020 financial year, payable in February 2021. The dividend figure of £1.6m in the
chart above is based on the issued share capital of 98.0m at 30 September 2020,

benefits. pension contributions (for CEQ figure), and the value received
from incentive plans. On average the Future plc Group employed 1,196
UK employees during the financial year ended 30 September 2020.

The Committee has opted to use data already available from the
gender pay reporting as the basis for identifying employees at P25, P50
and P75 ("Option B™). This excludes pension. We believe this provides a
reasonable estimate for employees' pay at these levels within the
organisation.

Individuals positioned at each guartile were identified using the most

CEO pay ratio

UK reporting regulations require companies with 250 employees or
mere to publish information on the pay ratio of the Group CEC to UK
employees. In line with this requirement, the table below shows the ratio
of CEQ total pay to that of three employees indicative of lower quartile
(P25). median (P50} and upper quartile {(P75) pay received during the
financial year ended 30 September 2020 and includes basic salary,

Lower Upper recent gender pay gap data from 5 April 2020. Total full-time equivalent
Calculation quartile Median quartile ; imdivi
Financial year methodology  (P25) (P50) P75) remunera.tjon for each of these |nld|wduals was then calculated on the
same hasis as used in the single figure table for the Chief Executive. All
2020 Option B 1071 841 661

figures are total amounts paid to full-time employees covering the whole
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2020 financial year. Tntal compensation figures have been checked
ta ensure the employees identified are representative of pay at these
levels in the organisation. The data points are reflective of our
Company structure and types of roles across the organisation and
accordingly the Committee believes the median pay ratio for 2020 is
consistent with the pay. reward and progression policies for the
Company's UK employees taken as a whole.

A summary of the salaries and total single figures of remuneration
for the relevant individuals is included in the table below:

Lower Upper
Chief quartile Median quartile
Pay level Executive (P25) {P50} (P75)
Salary £455032 £25,000 £31919 £40,765
Singlefigure of - oy cpc 445 £34457  F43992  £56165

remuneration

Payments to past Directors (audited)

Formeér Chilef Finianicial Officer - Ponny Lartkin-Brand

Peiny stepped down as CFO and from the Board of Directorson 1
June 2020. Penny remains an employee of Future, in her new role as
Chief Strategy Officer (CSO). As Group CSO, Penny's remuneration is
determined in line with the policy that applies 1o other Executive
Committee members, Penny retains an interest in the PSP awards
granted to her in connection with her former role as CFO (albeit the
award levels were reduced with her agreement to reflect her new
role). See pages 102 for details of the DABS award in the year and
page 97 for details of the PSP awarded and pro-rated during the vear.

Payments for loss of office {audited)
During the financial year to 30 September 2020 no payments were
made to Directors in respect of loss of office.

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)

The Company has a policy on share ownership by Executive Directors
which requires that any such Director should accumulate a holding in
shares over a five-year period from appointment where the vaiue of
those shares represents at least two times salary. Zillah Byng-Thorne
currently meets this requirement, as did Penny Ladkin-Brand prior to
stepping down from the Board on 1 June 2020. Rachel Addison, who
was appointed to the Board on 1 June 2020, dees not yet meet this
requirement. Subject to the approval of the new Remunearation Policy,
this shareholding requirement will increase from 200% to 400% of
salary in respect of the Chief Executive and from 200% to 300% ot
salary in respect of the Chief Financial Officer with effect from the
2021 AGM.

In respect of Zillah Byng-Thorne, the relevant five-year period
commenced on 1 November 2013 and ended on 31 October 2018, As

Directors' shareholdings (audited)

at 30 September 2020, Zillah Byng-Thorne had a holding of 269,569
stiares which, at the share price on the same date, were worth
£5,235,030 (1,102% of salary).

in respect of Penny Ladkin-Brand, the period commencedon 3
August 2015 and would have ended on 2 August 2020. As at I June
2020, the date upon which she stepped down from the Board, Penny
Ladkin-Brand had a holding of 188,262 shares which, at the share
price on the same date, were worth £2,454,936 (701% of salary).

In respect of Rachel Addisen, the period commenced on 1 June
2020, e date upon which she jnined the Board. As at 30 September
2020, Rachel Addison held no shares in the Company. Following the
year end Rachel Addison purchased 2.798 shares on 2 December
2020 atashare price of £1774.

Balance as at Purchases Share scheme Sales Balance as at
Directors in office at 30 September auring exercises during during 30 September
30 September 2020 2019* the year the year the year 20200
Executive?
Zillah Byng-Thorne? 747,205 72,364 1045344 (1,045,344} 269,569
Rachel Addison* - - ~ -
Non-Executive
Richard Huntingford 24,500 - - - 24,500
Alan Newman 8,750 - - - 8750
Hugo Drayton® - - -
Rob Hattrell - -
Meredith Arndur® - - - - -
Total 280,455 22,364 1,045,344 (1,045,344) 302,819

Nates:

1. All hoidings are beneficial.

2. Detalls af the shara options and awards for Executive Directors are set out on page 107, No such options of awards are grarnted to Nan-Executive Directors,

3.0n 26 November 2019, following the full vesting of the PSP award granted on 23 Nevemnber 2016 and 2 Febsruary 2017, Zillah Byng-Thorne received 1,045,344 Ordinary shares. Zijlah Byng-Therne sold
1,045,344 Ordinary shares on 26 November 2019 at a price of £14.00 per Ordinary share, and purchased 11,962 Ordinary shares at a price of £12.54 per share on 3 December 2013 and 4 further 8,387
Ordinary shares at a price of £11.84 per Ordihary share oh 7 February 2020, Max Thorne (husband of Ziffah Byng-Thornej purchased 1,250 Ordinary shares at a price of £15.1435 per Ordinary share on 26
Novemnber 2019, and a further 765 Ordinary shares at a price of £1.73 per Ordinary share on 7 February 2020,
Following the year end Zillah Byng-Thorne purchased 4,835 shares on 30 Novernber 2020 at a share price of £16.80, and Max Thorne purchased 1,180 shares on the same date at a share price of £16.84.

4. Rache! Addison was appointed to the Board on1June 2020. Following the year end Rachel Addison purchased 2,798 shares on 2 December 2020 at a price of £17.74.

5. Metedith AMmdur was appeinted to the Board on 6 February 2020. Following the ysar ehd Meredith Amdur purchased 385 shares on 2 December 2020 at a price of £18,07.

6. Following the year end Hugo Drayton purchased 2,376 shares on 30 November 2020 at a share price of £1675.

7. Mark Brooker, who was appointed to the Board after the year end, purchased 1,500 shares on 1 December 2020 at a share price of £17.46.
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Executive Director shareholdings

0% 200% 400% 600% 800% 1000% 1200%

FAIE
Byng-Thorne

Required holding

Actual holding [1,102% of salary}

Required holdin
Rachel 9 9

Addison

Directors’ interests in share schemes (audited)
Details of options and other share incentives held by Executive Directors and movements during the year are set out in the tables below.

PSP

Vested and Balance

Earliest Exercise Balance Granted Lapsed exercised at 30

Date of exercise Expiry price per at during during during the Sept
Director grant date date share {p}] 10c¢t2019" the year® the year year® 2020
gj:g-Thorne 23 Nov 16 23 Nov 12 23 Nov 26 Nil 622,672 - - (622,672)° -

02 Feb 17 23 Nov g 02 Feb 27 Nil 622,672 - - [422,672)° 200,000

24 Nov 17 24 Nov 207 24 Nov 27 Nil 134,345 - - - 134,345

23 Nov 18 22 Nov 212 23 Nov 28 Nil 196,687 - - - 196,687

25 Nov 19 24 Nov 222 25 Nov 29 Nil - 67,185 - - 67185
Total 1,576,376 67,185 - (1,045,344) 598,217
Penny 23Nov16 23 Nav19 23Nov26  Nil 444765 - - [444,765)5 -
Ladkin-Brand

02 Feb 17 23 Nov 19 C2 Feb 27 Nil 444,765 - - (380,235)° 64,530

24 Nov 17 24 Nov 207 24 Nov 27 Nil 92,363 - - - 92,363

23 Nov 18 22 Nov 212 23 Nov 28 Nii 95,083 - {18,739)% - 76,344

25 Nov 19 24 Nov 222 25 Nov 29 Nil - 41,337 {13,683)° - 27654
Total 1,076,976 41,337 (32,422) (825,000) 260,891
f\zg?:;n O1Jun20 3 May2%®  OlJun30  Nil . 17,222 - - 17,222
Total - 17,222 - - 17,222
Notes:

1. Following the completion of the rights issue on 21 August 2018 the Committee elected to 'make good' all share award holders by increasing their number of options. All share incentives
awarded to Zillah Byng-Thorne and Penny Ladkin-Brand prior to that date were tharefore increased accordingly, as detailed in the Company's 2018 Annual Report.

2. Awards granted since November 2018 are subject to a mandatory 2-year holding period fellowing vesting.

3. Details of awards granted In the year are set out on page 97.

4, Details of awards vesting during the year were set out in last year's report.

5. Awards were converted to nil-cost options as at 3 July 2019, Awards vested in full following the FY 2019 year end on 23 November 2018. On 26 Novernber 2018 Zlllah Byng-Thorne
exercised a total of 1,045,344 and Penny Ladkin-Brand exercised a total of 550,000. Cn 31 July 2020 Penny Ladkin-Brand exercised an additional 275,000. The award granted on 23
N ber 2016 |s fully for both Zillah and Penny. For the award granted on 2 February 2017, Zillah Byng-Thorne has an unexercised amount of 200,000 shares and Penny
Ladkin-Brand has an unexercised amount of 64,530 shares. The award granted on 2 February 2017 is fully vested for both Zillah and Penny.

6. Penny's Navember 2018 and November 2019 awards were pro-rated to 1June 2020 to reflect her time as Chief Financial Officer.

7. There have been no changes in these interests since the year-end. During the year the Committee extended the vesting period of certain awards from 24 Nevember 2020 to 25
November 2020 to ensure that they did not vest during a closed period, All cutstanding awards were converted ta nil-cost options as at 20 November 2020,
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DABS
End of Balance at Granted Released Balance at
Director Date of grant deferral peried 10t 2019 during the year during the year 30 Sept 2020
. 25 Nov 24 Nov
Zillah Byng-Thorne 2019 2071 - 25184 - 25194
Total - 25194 - 25194
. 25 Nov 24 Nov
Penny Ladkin-Brand 2019 2021 - 12,155 - 12155
Total - 12155 - 12,155
Dilution or reissue of treasury shares under a plan, when aggregated with

Awards under Future plc incentive plans may be satisfied by
treasury shares or the issue of new shares or the purchase of shares
in the market.

Under Investment Association guidelines, the issue of new shares

awards under all of a company’s other schemes, must not exceed
10% of the issued ordinary share capitai (adjusted for share
issuance and cancefiation) in any roiling ten-year period. As at 30
September 2020 this limit had nat been exceeded (6.7%).

Implementation of remuneration policy
in the year to 30 September 2021

As outlined earlier in this report, the Remuneration Committee is
proposing changes to the Remuneration Policy principally related to
the introduction of a new Value Crealian Flan far Tuturc employees
Subject to sharehclder approval at the Company’s AGM on 10
February 2021, the Committee intends to implement the policy as
follows during the year to 30 September 2021,

Basic salary

When reviewing salary levels, the Committee takes into account a
number of internal and external factors, including the performance of
Future during the year, external market data, Hislyic v wases made
to the individual and, to ensure a consistent approach, the salary
review principles applied to the rest of the organisation.

The Chief Executive’'s salary was lasi reviewed in 2018. We
committed to a pay freeze in 2019, and announced that we would
review the salary in 2020, as part of our published Remuneration
Policy. As part of this review, we took independent advice, and studied
equivalent market roles. Zillah Bynhg-Thorne was awarded an increase
of 21% with effect from 1 October 2020. This increase reflects the
Committee's assessment of Zillah's individual performance in role,
her leadership in delivering exceptional results for our shareholders,

and the significant increases in size, complexity and geographical
spread of the Group in recent years. Since the previous review:
adjusted operating profit has grown from £19m to £93m; Future’s
global audience has doubled, from 193m to almost 400m; and luladl
Group ernployees have also doubled, from 1,000 to over 2,000 staff.
Furthermore, during the interim, Future plc has entered the FTSE250.,
and is now a premium listed company. 1n recognition of the increase,
the Committee has agreed that this salary leve! will remain fixed for
the next two years, and will be reviewed again no earlier than 2022.

There will be an annual inflationary pay rise in line with the wider
workinree 0f 1.5%, awarded to Rachel Addison with effect from 1
January 2021,

Pension and benefits

Zillah Byng-Thorhe's pension benefit will be reduced to match the
benefit of the wider worldorce over the nexttwo years. The current15%
of salary rate will be reduced to 6% of salary. in two stages (to 10.5% of
salary in January 2021, and to 6% of salary in January 2022). Rache!
Addison will cantinue to receive a pension cantribution of up to 6% of
safary (in line with that avaiiable o the wider workforce) o an equivatent
cash alfowance. No changes are proposed to the benefits provided.

Base salary from

Base salary from

Base salary from

1J3anuary 2021 Pearcentage increase

Director 1 Octaber 2019 1Qctober 2020
Ziliah Byng-Thorne £475,000 £575,000
Rachel Addison’ £350,000 -

- 21.0%

£355,250 1.5%

1. fram appointment as Chief Financial Officer on1June 2020
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Annual bonus

For FY 2021, the Company will continue to aperate a profit pool
bonus for ait employees across the Group, including the Executive
Directors on a similar basis to that operated for FY 2020. The
maximum opportunity will remain at 200% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 150% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer, with
payouts linked to delivering adjusted operating profit performance
above Budget. Specific performance targets for the Annual Bonus
are not disclosed due to their commercial sensitivity, however it is
the Committee's intention that these will be disclosed
retrospectively in next year's report. In accordance with the Policy,
50% of any bonus earned will be deferred in Future shares for 2
years under the DABS.

Long-term incentive
Subject to shareholder approval of the new Remuneration Policy.

Executive Directors and other employees will be granted units under

the new Value Creation Plan, replacing participation in the PSP until
2023. Operation of the VCP is outlined in the Policy Table on page
86, with the key features as follows:

« One-off award of units providing Future's employees with a
percentage of additional shareholder value created
(denominated in Future plc shares) over the next 3-5 years,
above a hurdle

« Units will vest based on value created in terms of £ Total
Shareholder Return (TSR), being the growth in Future's market
capitalisation plus net equity cashflows to shareholders (i.e.
dividends plus share buybacks, less share issues), over and
above a hurdle rate of return of 10% per annum

« Future's starting market capitalisation (£1,303m) is based on

the spot closing price of a share on 30 September 2020 (£19.42)

« The VCP comprises three equal tranches, based on
performance measured over three periods, from 1 October
2020 to: 30 September 202 3; 30 September 2024; and 30
September 2025

« Value created at each measurement date will be calculated with
reference to the average closing return index over the three
months ending on that date

« To the extent that performance exceeds the hurdle on a
measurement date, participants will share 3.33% of the
additional shareholder value created above the hurdle

« Participants will be allocated an individual share of this amount,
reflecting the number of units they hold. These amounts wili be
converted inte a number of Future plc shares, based on the
share price at the relevant vesting date

» The aggregate additional shareholder vajue created and
allocated to participants is capped at £95m per tranche

» To the extent that performance does not exceed the hurdle on a
measurement date, the relevant tranche will lapse in full,
immediately. There will be no re-testing allowed

Additionally, for Executive Directors:

« Any shares awarded in respect of the first tranche
(measurement date 30 September 2023) will be subjectto a
mandatory two-year holding period

Corporate Governance

« Any shares awarded in respect of the second tranche
(measurement date 30 September 2024) will be subjecttoa
mandatory one-year holding period

« Any shares awarded in respect of the final tranche (measurement
date 30 September 2025) will vest on the fifth anniversary of grant

s The uitimate release of any shares will be subject to the Committee
satisfying itself that the recorded cutcome is a fair reflection of the
underlying business performance over the period

Under the proposed scheme, a total of 980.000 units will be
allocated to employees or reserved in case of future hires and/or
significant promations. Subject to shareholder approval of the VCP,
Zillah Byng-Thorne will receive an award of 140,000 units in each
tranche and Rachel Addison will receive an award of 63,000 units in
each tranche.

Fees for Non-Executive Directors and the
Chairman
Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any of the Company’s
share incentive arrangements. nor do they receive any benefits. Fees
are reviewed annually, with the Board Chair’s fees set by the
Committee, and those for the Non-Executive Directors set by the
Board as a whole.

The rates for the Chairman’s and Non-Executive Directors’ fees,
which are unchanged at 1 October 2020 are:

Fees effective Fees effective
from from
1 October 2012 1Octobet 2020

Base fees

Board Chair £200,000 £200000
B;’rg'cféﬁ‘:““"e £55,000 £55.000
Additional fees

g?rr;g O'Pdepe”de”t £10,000 £10,000
steois oo oo
Remuneration £10,000 £10,000

Committee Chair

t. Meredith Amdur is paid in US$ and for FY 2021 this will be subject to a fixed exchange rate
of £1 = US$1.30,

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

A ——

Hugo Drayton
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
10 December 2020
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Annual General Meeting

The Company’'s twenty second Annual
General Meeting will be held at 10:30am on
Wednesday 10 February 2021 at Future's
London office at 1-10 Praed Mews, London,
W2 1QY. I'he resolutions and explanatory
notes are set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting on pages 164-171.

Corporate Governance
staterment

The Corporate Governance statement,
prepared in accordance with rule 7.2 of the
Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules,
comprises of the following sections of the
Annual Report: the Strategic Renbort; the
Corporate Governance Report; the Audit
and Risk Committee Report; the
Nomination Committee Report; the
Rernuneration Committee Report; together
with this Directors’ Report. As permitted by
legistation, sorme of the matters required to
beincluded in the Directors’ Report have
been included in the Strategic Report by
cross reference including details of the
Group's financial risk management
mhiprtives and policies, business review,
future prospects and environmental policy.

Directors

The narnes and biographical details of the
current Directors are shown on pages 66 to
67 of this Annual Report. Particulars of
their emoluments and keneficial and
non-beneficial interests in shares are given
in the Directors' Remuneraticn Reporton
page 94 and 102.

The appointment and removal of
Directors is governed by the Company’s
Articles of Association, the 2018 Code and
the Companies Act 2006. The Directors
may. from time to time, appoint one or
mote Directors. In the interests of good
governance and in accordance with the
provisions of the 2018 Code, all Directors
will retire and submii themselves for
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election or re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

Directors Powers
The Board manages the business of the
Company under the powers set out in the
Company's Articles of Association. The
Company's Articles of Association can only
be amended, or new Articles adopted, by a
resolution passed by shareholdersina
general meeting by at least three quarters
of the votes cast.

Further discussion of the Board's
activities. powers and responsibilities
appears within the Corporate Governance
Report on page 68 of this Annual Report.
Information on compensation for loss of
office is contained in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 92 of this
Annual Report.

Directors’ conflicts of
interests

The Company has pracedures in place for
managing conflicts of interest. Should a
Director become aware that they, or any of
their connected parties, have an interest in
an existing or proposad U disection with
the Company, they should notify the Board
inwriting or at the next Board meeting.
Internal controls are in place to ensure that
any related party transactions involving
Directors, or their connected parties, are
conducted on an arm’s length basis.
Directors have a continuing duty to update
any changes to these conflicts.

Directors' indemnities

The Company had Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance cover in place
throughout the year.

Share capital
Details of the Company’s issued share
canital, together with details of the

movements in the Company's issued share
capital during the year, are shown in note 22
to the financial staterments. The Company
has one class of ordinary shares with a
nominal value of 15 pence each (Ordinary
Shares), which does not carry the right to
receive a fixed ncome. Each share carries
the right to one vote at general meetings of
the Company. There are no restrictions or
agreements known to the Company that
may result in restrictions on share transfers
or voting rights in the Company. There are
no specific restrictions an the size of a
holding, on the transfer of shares, or on
voting rights, all of which are governed by
the provisions of the Articles of Asscciation
and prevailing legislation.

Shareholder authority for the Company
to afiot Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £735,107 was granted at
the 2019 AGM. The 13sued share capital of
the Company at 30 September 2020 was
approximately £14,702,243.25 divided into
98,014,955 Ordinary Shares.

Since 30 September 2020, 145 new
shares have been issued as aresult of the
exercise of share options by the Company's
share oplion scheme participants and the
fotal issued share capital at 10 December
20202 9% 015 100 Ordinary Shares. The
Company's Ordinary Shares are listed on
the London Stock Exchange. The register of
shareholders is held in the UK.

Political donations
No contributions were made to political
parties during the year (2019: ENi).

Whistleblowing procedure

Whistleblowing and
anti-bribery policies

Itis Future's policy to conduct all of our
business in an honest and ethical manner,
and we take a zero-tolerance approach to
bribery and corruption. We are committed
to acting professionally, fairly and with



Substantial interests

Corporate Governance

Information provided to the Company pursuant to the Financial Conduct Authority's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
{DTRs) is published on a Regulatory Information Service and on the Company's website. The following information has been
received, in accordance with DTR 5, from holders of notifiable interests in the Cempany's issued share capital.

Asat As at
Shareholder 30 September 2020 10 December 2020 MNature of holding
Aberforth Partners LLP 10.88% 10.88% Indirect
Standard Life Aberdeen plc 10.77% Below 10% Indirect
BlackRock Inc 6.56% Below 5% Indirect
JPMorgan Asset Managerment Holdings Inc. 6.11% 611% Indirect
Old Mutual Global Investors (UK) Ltd 5.68% 5.68% Indirect
Jupiter Fund Management Plc 5.55% 5.55% Indirect
Ameriprise Financial, Inc. and its group 5.007% 5.007% Direct and indirect
Invesco Ltd 4.87% 4.87% Indirect
AXA Investment Managers 3.81% 3.81% 'ndirect
Oberwels Asset Management, Inc. 3. 7% 3.71% lndirect

* % holding based on total number of shares in issue at the time of respective notification.

The Companry has not been notified of any other substantial interests in its securities. The Company's substantial shareholders do
not have different voting rights. The Group, so far as is known by the Company, is not directly or indirectly owned or controlled by

another corporation or by any government.

integrity in all our business dealings and
relaticnships wherever we operate, and we
are implementing and enforcing effective
systems to counter bribery and cerruption.

We have whistleblowing, anti-bribery and
corruptien policies which are updated
regularly and published on our intranet. The
whistleblowing policy is designed to
encourage employees to report, in good
faith, any genuine suspicions of fraud,
bribery, malpractice, modern slavery and
human trafficking. Concerns may be raised
according to a stated escalation process
from anindividual’s line manager, via their
head of department, Head of People
Operations, to the Head of Legal and then to
the Board of Directors, including the Senior
Independent Director. Concerns may also
be raised completely anonymously by post.
The whistle-biowing policy is also designed
to ensure that any employee who raises a
genuine concern is protected. During the
year, ng issues of concern were raised via
any of the whistieblowing channels.

In addition, to ensure Future is adopting
best practice with anti-corruption
legislation, and to precmote transparency. a
Review Kit, Trips and Gifts Log isin place to
track the whereabouts of products sent to
us for review and the acceptance of gifts
and trips by our employees. We alsc have in
place an Editorial Ethics Committee which
monitors the approach to gifts and reviews
trips to ensure not only are we legally
compliant, but that we also comply with our
own ethical and editorial standards.

Reducing waste

Sourcing paper

Paper is the largest raw material we Use as a
Group. We work hard to make sure that
whatever we consume, we do it in a way that
is ethically responsible and envircnmentally
sustainable. Our paper is scurced and
produced from sustainable, managed
forests, conforming to strict environmental

and socio-economic standards. Our paper
mills and paper merchants all held full FSC
(Forest Stewardship Council) certification
and accreditation, showing our
commitrment to sourcing paper supplies
from sustainable sources.

Recycling of unsold

magazines and gifts

The Group is strongly incentivised to
minimise the number of unseld magazines
and we employ sophisticated techniques to
help achieve this. In the UK, Future’s unsold
magazines are either used in recycled paper
manufacture or in other recycling
operations, or they are handed to local
schools and hospitals. We also support the
Professicnal Publishers Association’s
initiative encouraging readers to recycle
their magazines after use, and are now full
members of the OPRL (On-Pack-Recycling-
Label) Scheme which provides fuli access
to and use of correct recycling labelling.
instructing consumers how to responsibly
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recycle nr dispose of our magazines and
packaging, Gifts on our unsold copies are
incinerated to create further energy, and
any magazine gifts containing electronic
components are removed and responsibly
dispesed of in accordance with WEEE
{Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
Directive) reguiations.

Packaging

We comply with our obligations under the
Producer Responsibility Obligations
{Packaging Waste) Regulations, and carry
out an annual packaging waste audit where
we declare our packaging waste volumes to
the Environment Agency and offset our
waste by purchase of Packaging Waste
Recovery Notes.

We use LDPE4 (number 4-coded
low-density polyethylene) to wrap cur
subscriptions and newstrade copies, which
is fully recyclable. Recycling logos were
updated in fate October 2019 to show the
latest information availabie on recyclability
of the wrappers, directing customers to
recycle the bags at local supermarkets. In
addition, the UK subscription mailing copies
of our Home Interest titles were wrapped in
naper rather than plastic from January
2020 onwards.

Recycling and waste
management in the office

We play an active part in recycling across ail
of our locations. We have clearly defined
comimunal waste and recycling areas in all
affices arrnss the UK and US. Last year we
introduced a new food waste recycling
facility in our Bath office in the UK and had
planned to roll it out to other offices. We
worked with our waste provider to complete
guarterly reporting to trace waste usage
muore efficiently and moniter progress on
reducing our waste that is sert to landfiil.
Before the offices were closed we were
recycling 50% of waste.

Streamlined Energy & Carbon
Report (SECR) Summary

In accordance with the Companies Act
2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’
Report) Regulations 2G13 ('the 2013
Regulations”) and the Companies
(Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report)
Regulations 2018 ('the 2018 Regulations?)
we have reported our Streamlined Energy
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Ulobal luunes COe

emissions from 2018 2019 2020
UK 97 96 106
The cornbustion of fuel: Us 5
gas for heating and fuel for . )
. Australia - - ]
vehicles (Scope 1)
TOTAL 97 96 102
The purchase of electticity: UK 331 298 235
heat, steam or cooling by the us 3 205 34
Group for its own use (Scope 2) Australia -
Location Based TOTAL 334 503 269
The purchase of electricity: heat, UK - - Exts
stearm or cooling by the Group us 34
for its own use {Scope 2} Australia - -
Market Based TOTAL - - 3N
Tot: issi C
otal EI-'I'\ISSIOI'\S {tcO.ej 43 599 578
- Lacation Based
Total Emissions (tCO_e)
. - 480
- Market Based
Total Revenue (£m) £130.0m £221.5m £339.6m
it tio {tCO. v £1
Inten5|'y Ratio {1 L€ pel m) 33 29 1
- Location Based
Underlying giobal kwh
energy use from 2020
Total {kWh)
UK Q4
The combustion of fuel: 549.346
R Us 8854
gas for heating and fue! .
. Australia Sl44
for vehicles (Scope 1)
TOTAL 563,944
. UK 1,008,372
The purchase of electricity:
. us 83,247
heat, steam or cocling by the .
. Australia -
Group for its own use (Scope 2)
TOTAL 1,091,619
Total Energy {(kWh) 1,655,563
Total Revenue (£my} £339.6m
Intensity Ratio (kWh per £1mn) 4,875.04
Notes:
 hrvpeit publishing. service.gov.uich . ¥ Juploads/attachment_d 207
Env-reporting-guidance_inc_SEC%_31March.pdf
2 https://ghgprotocol.org/
I httpsy) gov.uks nment/publi s/greer -gas-repotti factors-2020

“Saurce:; IEA [2019) Emission Factors thttps/iwww.lea.org/t cftermsandconditions/)



and Carbon Report disclosure for 2020,
covering the period 1 October 2019 to 30
September 2020,

Methodology

We have used the Environmental
Reporting Guidelines: Including
streamlined energy and carbon reporting
guidance and Greenhouse Gas Pratocol
methodology for compiling this GHG data
and have included all required emissions
sources. GHG emissions factors have been
sourced and applied from BEIS conversion
factors for Greenhouse Gas emissions, the
equivalent reports on non-UK properties
used the CO.e factors provided by the
International Energy Agency ("IEA™) for
emissions associated with electricity
consumption. As a Group with onty
office-based activities and no
manufacturing activities, under the GHG
Protocol Corporate Standard, emissions
fall under Scope 1 (combustion of fuel) and
Scope 2 (purchase of electricity).

Energy Efficiency Action Taken
In the period covered by the report the
Company has compieted installation of
LED lighting in its Bath & London offices
and it is anticipated this will reduce energy
usage by approximately 20%. The
company has also made alterations te
optimise BMS settings to reduce energy
usage across sites. During the next
financial year the company will be
completing TM44 surveys at ali sites and
will act on the results accordingly.

intensity Ratio

We are using 'Tonnes per £1million
revenue’. Our GHG emissions CO,e
intensity has decreased from 2.7 tonnes
CO,eperimin2019to 1.1tonnes COe per
£m 2020, which is a decrease of 59%.

Office closures due to COVID-19
COVID-19 has had a large impact on our
kWh usage as offices have been shut for
periods of time due to government
lockdowns.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group are shown on
page 120 and movements in reserves are
set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Corporate Governance

The Board's policy is that dividends
should be covered at least four times by
adjusted earnings per share and free
cashflow. The Company’s Employee
Benefit Trust (EBT) waives its entitlement
to any dividends. The Beoard is
recommending a final dividend for the year
of 1.6p per share (2019: 1.0p per
share) to shareholders recorded on the
register at the close of business on 15
January 2021. The Ordinary Shares will
become ex-dividend on 14 January 2021.

Significant agreements

The provisions of the European Directive
on Takeover Bids (as implemented in the
LK in the Companies Act 2006) require
the Company to disclose any significant
agreements which take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of contrel of the
Company. In common with many other
companies, the Group's bank facility is
terminable upcn change of control of the
Company. In common with market
practice, awards under certain of the
Group’s leng-term incentive plans (details
of which are set out in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 94 to 103)
will vest or potentially be exchangeable
into awards over a2 purchaser’s share
capital upon change of control of the
Company. There is also a change of control
provision in the service agreements of the
two Executive Directors, exercisable within
three months of & change of control by
the Company or on one month’s notice

by the Executive to expire no later than
three months from the date of the

change of contreol.

Disclosure of information to
the auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of
approval of this Directors’ Reportconfirm
that, so far as they are aware, thereis no
relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware, and each
Director has taken all reasonable steps to
ascertain any relevant audit information
and to ensure that the Company’s auditor
is aware of that information.

Other information
Other information relevant to this

Directors’ Report, and which is

incorporated by reference, including
information required in accordance with
the UK Companies Act 2006 and Listing
Rule 9.8.4R, can be located as follows:

This Directors’ Report was approved by

order of the Board.
On behalf of the Board

/QBAM el

Rachel Addison
Company Secretary
10 December 2020

Subject matter Page
Important events since
: . 163

the financial year-end

Likely future developments .
inthe business

Research and development 13
informaticn on

‘ o 58
financial instruments

Internal control and risk
management systems in

relation to the process for 75
preparing consolidated
accounts

Employment of 51
disabled persons

Employee involverent 50
Stakeholder engagement 44
Information on branches 162
Diversity policy 51
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Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and Company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs})
as adopted by the European Union. In preparing the group financial
staterments, the Directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs,
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB).

Under company iaw, Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit
or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing the financial
staterments, the Directors are required to:

« sefect suitabie accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and IFRSs issued by 1ASB have been followed, subject to
any material departures disciosed and explained in the financial
statements;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and

» prepare {he financial statemenits on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection ot traud and olhien negularitios.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial pesition of the Group and Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financia! statements, Article 4 of the |AS
Regulation.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Campany’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken
as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's and

Company's position and performance, business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the
Corporate Governance report confirm that, 1o the hest of their
knowledge:

« the Group and Cornpany financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with 1FRSs as adopted by the European
Union and IFR3s issued by IASB, give a true and {air view of the
assets. hahilities, financial position and profit of the Group and
loss of the Company; and

« the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the Group
and Company, together with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties that it faces.

In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors' Report
is approved:

« so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Group’s and Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

» they have taken all the steps that they oughit to have takenas
Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to estabiish that the Group's and Company's
auditors are aware of that information.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 10 December 2020 and is signed on its behalf by:

N

./

Zillah Byng-Thorne
Chief Executive
10 December 2020
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Future plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Future ple’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements™):

» give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 30 September 2020 and of the
group’s profit and the group’s and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

»  have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the company’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

s  have been prepared in accordance with the reguiremcnts of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have avdited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Consolidated and
Company balance sheets as at 30 September 2020; the Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated Statement of
comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Company cash flow statements, the notes to the Consolidated and Company
cash flow statements and the Consolidated and Company staterments of changes in equity for the year then ended; the
Accounting policies; and the notes to the financial statements.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)™) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilitics for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were
not provided to the group or the company.

Other than these disclesed in the Directors’ Report, we have provided ne non-audit services to the group or the company in
the period from 1 Octeber 2019 to 30 September 2¢20.

QOur audit approach
Querview
e  Overall group materiality: £2,605,000 (2019: £1,363,000), based on 5% of profit before
tax.

«  Overall company materiality: £4,334,000 (2019: £2,408,000), based on 1% of total
Materiality assets.

»  The scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures performed
were determined by our risk assessment, the financial significance of components and
other qualitative factors (including history of misstatement through fraud or error),

e We performed audit procedures over three compoenents we considered either financially
significant or higher risk in the context of the Group (full scope audit) and over three
components specific audit procedures were performed on certain account balances and

Key audit transactions.

matters *  We also performed other procedures including Group and component level analytical
review procedures to mitigate the risk of material misstatement in the insignificant
components.

Audit scope

»  Procedures were also performed at the Group level over the consolidation process.
+ The accounting for acquisitions (Group)
«  The classification of exceptional items (Group)
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+  The valuation of good\;\;il] and other intangii')'iég .ta.rloup)
*  Accounting for uncertain tax provisions (Group)

e The valuation of newstrade returns provision (Group)

» Impact of COVID-1

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to financial reporting and related company legislation and taxation legislation, and we considered
the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws
and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006.
We evaluated management’s incentives and eppertunities for frandulent manipulation of the financial statements
(including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate
journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, and management bias in accounting estimates, The group
engagement team shared this risk assessment with the component auditors so that they could include apprepriate audit
procedures in response to such risks in their work. Audit procedures performed by the group engagement team and/or
component auditors included:

» Discussions with the Board of directors, management and the Group's and Company's legal function, including
consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

s  Reviewing relevant meeting minutes including those of the Board of directors and its key sub-committees
{including the Audit Committee);

»  Evaluation of management’s controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities, in particular the whistleblowing
policy and employee code of conduct;

«  Assessment of matters reported on the Group's whistleblowing helpline and the results of management’s
investigation of such matters;

» Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant accounting estimates, in
particular in relation to the valuation of goodwill, newstrade return provision, the valuation of assets and liabilities
acquired through business combinations and uncertain tax positions (see related key audit matters below); and

» Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws
and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become
aware of it. Also, the risk of not detccting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This
is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
The aceounting for the acquisition of Barcroft Studios and  Our work over the accounting for the aequisitions was

TI Media. Refer to note 28 for further information. supported by our in-house valuation experts and included
During the year, the Group completed its acquisition of the following procedures:

BHI’CI‘O&_ Studios and TI Media We focussed on the . We agreed the cash and equity consideration pald to
accounting for these transactions because they are material supporting documentation.

to the consolidated financial statements of the Group and
because there is a degree of judgement in the identification
and valuation of the assets and liabilities acquired.

s  Based on our understanding of the acquired businesses,
assessed whether all assets and liabilities had been
appropriately identified. We also considered any
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The classification of exceptional items (L17.1 million (2019:
£3.4 million)) Refer to note 5 for further information

The Group’s accounting policy is to report items of income
and expense as exceptional items where they relate to an
event which falls outside the ordinary activities of the
business and where individually or in aggregate, they have a
material impact on the financial statements.

Exceptional items primarily consist of acquisition related
costs, restructuring costs and onerous property costs, We
focussed on this area because exceptional items are material
to the consolidated financial statements and because there is
a degree of judgement in their classification.

The valuation of goodwill and other intangibles £493.6m
(2019; £329.0 million)). Refer to note 12 for further
information.

Goodwill is an intangible asset that arises on the acquisition
of a business and refiects the portion of the consideration
paid which cannot be allocated to separately identifiable
acquired assets. Goodwill is not amortised but tested for
impairment at least once a year, or more frequently where
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

We focused on this area because goodwill is material to the
consolidated financial statements and the assumptions used
in the impairment assessment are inherently subjective. In
particular, the assessment is highly sensitive to changes in
forecast earnings hefore interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment (EBITDA) margins.

Other intangibles have arisen from the acquisition of
businesses where the acquired assets have been separately
identified using the purchase price model. Other intangibles
assets acquired as part of a business combination are initially
stated at fair value. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of these intangibles
aver their estimated useful lives (between one and fifteen
years).

We focused on this area as there is a risk that brands,

required alignment of accounting policies and valuation
methodologies.

s We used our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the methodology used to value
intangible assets and the reasonableness of certain, key
assumptions, particularly the discount rates, the royalty
rates and the attrition rates,

‘We re-performed the caleulation of goudwill.

We assessed the adequacy of disclosures relating to the
acquisitions, taking into account the requirements of
relevant financial reporting standards and tested the
completeness and accuracy of those disclosures.

Based on the work performed we found that the fair value of
the aequired assets and liabilities was supported by the
evidence obtained and that the accounting for the acyuisitions
was appropriate.

We tested the classification of exceptional items by
examining supporting information such as invoices,
payslips, announcements or correspondence in respect of the
restructuring and relevant provision calculations. For each
item tested we considered the nature of the item and the
appropriateness of the classification as exceptional.

From the evidence obtained, we concurred with
management’s assessment to classify and disclose these
costs as separatcely reported exceptional items, in line with
the disclosed accounting policy.

Our work to address the valuation of goodwill was supported
by our in-house valuation experts and included the following
procedures:

e  We obtained management’s value in use cash flows
underpinning their goodwill impairment assessment
and tested the mathematical accuracy and reviewed
the key assumptions such as discount rates, long term
growth rates and EBITDA margins.

®  We assessed whether the forecast EBITDA margins
were reasonable by comparing them to historical
trends and by considering the accuracy of
management’s forecasting in the past. We considered
whether there had been any changes to the business or
to the market environmient, which could increase the
level of uncertainty in the forecast.

&  We performed sensitivities to confirm that the forecast
EBITDA margins continued to remain the key
assumption to which the impairment assessment was
most sensitive. We also considered to what level the
EBITDA margins would need to deteriorate in order to
indicate impairment.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

websites or other amortised assets are no longer used
following initial acquisition.

These balances remain material and it is possible that
material amortised intangibles may no longer be generating
cash flows, resulting in an impairment to their valuation. The
impact of COVID-19 on the business may also have led to an
impairment trigger.

Accounting for uncertain tax provisions

The Group is subject to tax laws in a number of jurisdictions,
primarily the US and UK and subject to periodic challenges
by local tax authorities on a range of tax matters during the
normal coursc of business, ineluding transfer pricing, dircet
and indirect taxes and transaction related tax

matters. Where the amount of tax payable is uncertain, the
Group establishes provisions based on management’s
judgement of the likelihood of settlement being required.

In particular, the Group has material intra-group
transactions relating to the cross-border licensing of
platform technology and brands which give rise to transfer
pricing risk, These have needed to keep pace with the rapid
increase in profits over the past 3 years. The net result is that
the group has recognised a material centrally held provision
against uncertain tax positions, the valuation of which is a
highly judgemental area, Where tax positions are not settled
with the tax authorities, the Directors take into account
precedent and the advice of external experts.

We focused on the judgements made by management in
assessing the likelihood of potentially material exposures and
the estimatces used to determine such provisions where
required, which could materially impact the amounts
recorded in the Group financial statements.

¢  We used our in-house valuation experts to compare
the discount rate to our own estimate of the Group’s
cost of capital, adjusted for the effects of tax.

We also assessed the reasonableness of the assumed
long-term growth rate in light of external forecasts for
the UK and US economies.

In respect of the other intangibles

e«  Wereviewed management’s assessment of whether
there were impairment triggers {such as closure of
magazine titles, or the impact of COVID-19 on the
events business) and considered whether their views
were supported by the evidence in the business.

We seclected a sample of other intangible assets and
performed testing to ensure they are still used in the
business and whether assets are generating sufficient
cashflows to support the carrying value.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures
with regards to goodwill and intangible assets.

Based on the work performed, we found that the methods
used in the impairment assessment of goodwill and other
intangibles were appropriate and that the conclusions
rcached were supported by the evidence obtained.

Our work to address the value of Lthis provision included the
following procedures:

*  Weengaged our in-house tax specialists Lo review
the tax provisions as a whole, including the
uncertain tax provision.

We challenged management’s choice of assumptions
and scenarios in which they anticipated risks would
arise, to confirm the existence of each risk.

We assessed cach component of management'’s
provision against external evidence, where available,
to confirm their estimate of the amount of tax at
stake from each identified risk.

s We reviewed the external advice received by
management and compared this with management’s
judgement of the likelihood of risk and our own
experience to assess the probabilities assigned by
management in their weighted average estimate of
the provision as a whole.

For the transfer pricing risks, we consulted with our
in-house transfer pricing specialists to gain an
understanding of the current status of tax
assessments and investigations and to monitor
legislative development.

We modelled alternative scenarios to gauge the
sensitivity of the provision as a whole to changing
assumptions.

We challenged management regarding the
possibility of a ‘competent authority assct’ in respect
of the transfer pricing risk and challenged their
judgement regarding whether or not they would be
likely to pursue such an asset in their different
scenarios.

Based on the work performed we concluded that the
provision falls within a reasonable range of estimates.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The valuation of nemnstrade returns provisions

Magazine newsstand revenue is recognised at the date that
the related publication goes on sale where the Group is the
publisher. The amount of revenue recognised is based on the
number of issues printed and an estimate of the number of
returns.

Where the Group is the wholesaler (Marketforce), while
revenue is based on the margin earned rather than the gross
price of the magazine, the estimate of the number of returns
is still a significant judgement.

‘We focused on this area because of the inherent subjectivity
in estimating the number of returns and because of the
significance of Magazine revenue to the Group’s reported
result, particularly in light of the acquisition of TI Media and
the Marketforce business. Changes to the estimated number
of returns could have a material impact on Magazine revenue.

Impact of COVID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic is considered to have a potential
impact on certain aspects of the financial statements. The
areas which might be expected to be impacted by COVID-19
are as set cut below:

s Recoverability of accounts receivable

s Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles

s Going concern and viability

s Disclosure of the impact on the business

We have also incorporated the guidance for auditors
issued by the FRC regarding COVID-19 and applied this
where appropriate.

Our work to address the valuation of the provision included
the following procedures:

*  We assessed whether the estimated number of

returns was reasonable by comparing the estimate to
historieal trends and by censidering the accuracy of
management’s forecasting in the past.

We considered whether there had been any change
to the types of magarzines sold or changes to the
market environment, which could increase the level
of uncertainty in the estimate, particularly the
impact of COVID-19.

We also examined the number of returns processed
after the year-end where available and compared
that data to the level of returns forecast by
management.

Based on the work performed, we found that the methods
and assumptions used to estimate the number of returns
were appropriate and that the provision was supported by
the evidence cbtained.

We have considered the impact of COVID-19 on various
areas of the Annual Report and performed procedures tc
address the risk around the impact of COVID-1g.

We have set out our responses to the risk in respective areas
of the financial statements as below:

*  Recoverability of accounts receivable:

We have considered the adequacy of provisions for
impairment of accounts receivable, considering post
year end cash receipts, testing IFRS g provisions, and
considering the history of collections of accounts
receivable since the start of pandemic
restrictions. We considered the evidence supported
management’s deeision to increase the provision.
Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles:

We have reviewed and challenged management's
impairment trigger assessment in respect of orher
intangibles.

We have considered the impact of COVID-19 on future

cash flows supporting the carrying value of goodwill as
set out above.

[a]

*  Going concern and viability:

We have considered the impact on cash flows
supporting the going concern assertion, including the
impact on bank covenants and forecast covenant
compliance.

(o]

e Disclosure of impact in the financial statements:

We have audited the disclesures provided in the
financial statements and assessed the reasonableness
of such disclosures. As a result of the procedures
performed, we consider that the disclosures are
reasonable and appropriate.

Overall, we consider management’s assessment of the impact
of COVID-14 en the financial statements 1o be reasonable.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whale, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which they operate.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materizlity. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of cur audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements
Overall materiality £2.605,000 (2019: £1,363,000). £4,334,000 (2019; £2,408,000).
How we determined it 5% of profit before tax. 1% of total assets.
Rationale for Profit before tax is a generally accepted As a holding company, the entity is not
benchmark applied benchmark for determining materialityina  considered to be profit-oriented. In such
profit oriented business and this year we circumstances, total assets is a generally
concluded that this was the most appropriate accepted benchmark. Company materiality
benchmark to use. In the prior year, we has been capped at £1,500,000 to reflect its
concluded that adjusted EBITDA was the allocation of materiality for the purpose of

most appropriate benchmark to determine the Group audit.
materiality, considering the scale of the

business and the impact of the Group’s

ongoing acquisition and integration activitics

on profit before tax. As acquired businesses

arc integrated and profits grow to

“normalised” levels, we re-evaluated our

benchmark in the current year.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components was between £1,100,000 and £2,605,000.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
£130,000 {Group audit) (2019: £68,000) and £130,000 (Company audit) (2019: £68,000) as well as misstatements below
those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going concern

In accordance with ISAs (UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation Outcome

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or draw We have nothing material to add or to draw
attention to in respect of the directors’ statement in the financial attention to.

statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate o However, because not all future events or
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial conditions can be predicted, this statement is
statements and the directors’ identification of any material not a guarantee as to the group’s and

uncertainties to the group’s and the company’s ability to continue as a company’s ability to continue as a going
going concern over a period of at least twelve months from the date of coneern.
approval of the financial statements.

We are required to report if the directors’ statement relating to Going We have nothing to report.
Concern in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially
inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsibte for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtaimed
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in the audit, or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement. we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement ot the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the eourse of the audit, the Companies Act 2006
(CA06), TSAs (UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Autherity (FCA) require us also to report certain opinions
and matters as described below (required by [SAs (UK) unless otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the informaticn given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 September 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CAo6)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environinent obtained in the course of
the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report. (CA06)

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the group and of the principal risks that would threaten
the solvency or liquidity of the group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

¢ The directors’ confirmation on page 38-42 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks facing the group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance,
solvency or liquidity.

e The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or
mitigated.

» The directors’ explanation on page 43 of the Annual Report as ta how they have assessed the prospects of the
group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures
drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We have nothing to report liaviug performed a review of the directors’ staternent that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the group and statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the group. Our
review was substantially less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors’
process supporting their statements; checking that the statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code {the “Code”); and considering whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and
understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit. (Listing Rufes}

Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when;

s The statement given by the directors, on page 108, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whele to be
fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the group’s
and company’s position and performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our
knowledge of the group and company obtained in the course of performing our audit.

« The section of the Annual Report on page 76-77 describing the work of the Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee.

s The directors’ statement relating to the company’s compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a
departure from a relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directors’ Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006. {CA06)}

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 108, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of




Financial Statements

accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further deseription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this repert is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not heen kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» the company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the members on 11 May 1999 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1999 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement is 22 years, covering the vears ended 31 December 1999 to 30 September 2020.

Katharine Finn (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

10 December 2020
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 Septemiber 2020
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2020 2019
Non -CAAP Non -CAAP

Adj d djusti o' ) d Adjusting Statutory

results items resulis results iterms results

Note £m £m £m Em £m £m
Revenue 1,2 339.6 - 339.6 2215 - 2215
Net operating expenses 3 {246.2) (42.7) (288.9) {169.3) {25.5) {194.8)
Operating profit 1 93.4 {42.7) 50.7 52.2 {25.5) 267
Finance income 7 0.5 7.6 8.1 B 08 08
Finance costs 7 (3.0} (2.3) {5.3) (2.0} {12.9) (15.0)
Net fimance income/{costs) {2.5) B3 28 A (12,1} {14.2)
Other (expense)/income - (1.5) {1.5) 02 - 0.2
Profit before tax 1 90.9 (38.9) 52.0 503 (37.6) 127
Tax charge 8 18.0) 10.3 7.7 EX)] 45 (4.6)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 72.9 (28.6) 44.3 41.2 [33.]) a1

See page 128 and note 10 for a reconciliation b dj d and st v rosults.
Earnings per 15p Ordinary share

2020 2019

Note pence Pence

Basic earnings per share 10 46.4 99

Diluted earnings per share 10 45.4 2.3

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
far the year ended 30 September 2020
2020 2012
£m £m
Profit for the year ] 81
Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated income statement

Currency translation differences {8.3) 8.3
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year {8.3) 83
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent 36.0 16.4

ltems in the statement above are disclosed net of tax.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 September 2020

Share

Retained

Issued share premiurn Merger Treasury earnings/ Total
capital account reserve reserve {losses) equity
Grﬂup Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 October 2018 2.2 97.2 124.9 (0.3) (61.4) 1726
Profit for the year - - - - 81 81
Currency translation differences - - - - 8.3 83
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 83 83
Tetal comprehensive income for the year - - - - 164 16.4
Share capital issued during the year 22,24 03 - 155 - - 158
Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services 6 - - - - 3.4 3.4
- Deferred tax on options 14 - - - - 5.6 56
Dividends paid to shareholders 9 - - - - (0.4) {0.4)
Balance at 30 September 2019 12.5 972 140.4 (0.3) {36.4] 213.4
Retained earnings impact of adopting IFRS 16 - - - - (0.8) (0.8)
Restated balance at 1 October 2019 12.5 97.2 140.4 (0-3) (37.2) 212.6
Profit for the year - - - - 44,3 44.3
Currency translation differences - - - - (8.3) (8.3)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (8.3) 8.3
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 36.0 36.0
Share capital issued during the year 22,24 Z22 29.8 305 - - 1325
Acquisition of own shares 24 - - - {8.5} {0.6) 83
Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services 6 - - - - 56 56
- Current tax cn options - - - - B.4 B4
- Deferred tax on options 14 - - - - (3.7) (3.7)
Dividends paid to shareholders 9 - - - - 1.9 {1.0)
Balance at 30 September 2020 14.7 197.0 170.9 (8.8) 7.5 381.3
Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 September 2020
Share
Issued share premium Merger Retained ToFaI
Compa ny Note capiEt:-‘I acco:rr:: reseg: eamir;j: qu::‘:l
Balance at 1 October 2018 12.2 972 159 552 180.5
Loss for the year - - - (1.6) {1.6)
Tetal comprehensive loss for the year - - - 1.6) (1.6)
Share capital issued during the year 22,24 C3 - 155 - 15.8
Share schemes
- Value of employees' services - - - 3.4 3.4
- Deferred tax on options - - - 23 23
Dividends paid to shareholders 2 - - - {C.4) {0.4)
Balance at 320 September 2019 12.5 97.2 3.4 58.2 200.0
Loss for the year - - - (6.5) 65)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - {6.5) {6.5)
Share capital issued during the year 22,24 22 998 30.5 - 132.5
Acquisition of own shares - - - {Q.6) (0.6}
Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services - - - 56 56
- Deferred tax on options - - - (3.9) (3.9}
Dividends paid to shareholders 9 - - - (1.0} (1.0}
Balance at 30 September 2020 14.7 197.0 61.9 52.5 326.1
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 September 2020
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2020 209
Note Em £m

Assets
Nonh-current assets
Property, plant and equipment T 20.9 25
intangible assets - goodwill 12 309.7 8.7
Intangible assets - other 2 183.9 no3
fnvestments - Q.2
Deferred tax 14 1.0 37
Total non-current assets 5155 3354
Current assets
Inventories 0.7 -
Corporation tax recoverable 17 11
Trade and other receivables 15 72.4 419
Cash and cash equivalents 16 193 6.6
Financial asset - derivative 21 - 14
Finance lease receivable 21 1.6 -
Tetal current assets 95.7 5.0
Total assets 1 611.2 386.4
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Issued share capital 22 14.7 2.8
Share premium account 24 197.0 97.2
Merger reserve 24 170.9 1404
Treasury reserve 24 {8.8) (0.3)
Retained earnings/(losses) 7.5 (36.4)
Total equity 381.3 2134
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings 18 73.6 426
Lease liability due in mare than one year 18.7 -
Ceferred tax 14 2.5 0.4
Provisions 9 51 21
Other non current liabilities 20 - 0.4
Contingent consideration il - 108
Total non-~current liabilities 99,9 58.4
current liabilities
Financial liabilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings iz} 7.8 4.3
Trade and other payables 17 6.2 624
Corporation tax payable - 6.0
Lease liability due within one year 6.0 -
Deferred consideration 2 - 43.9
Total current fiabilities 130.0 116.6
Total liabilities 1 229.9 173.0
Total equity and liabilities 6112 3864

The financial statements on pages 120 to 163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 Decermber 2020 and sighed on its
behalf by:

R gt P torsy,

Richard Huntingford Rachel Addison
Chalrrman Chief Financial Officer
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Company balance sheet
as at 30 September 2020

2020 2019

Note £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment in Group undertakings 13 356.3 1422
Deferred tax 14 1.2 4.5
Total non-current assets 357.5 146.7
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 72.6 947
Cash and cash equivalents 1<) 0.1 -
Financial asset - derivative 21 - 1.4
Total current assets 72.7 961
Total assets 430.2 2428
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Issued share capital 22 14.7 12,5
Share premium account 24 197.0 97.2
Merger reserve 24 61.9 34
Retained earnings 52.5 589
Total equity 326.1 200.0
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings 8 736 426
Total non-current liabilities 73.6 42.6
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings 18 4.3 -
Trade and other payables 17 26.2 02
Corporation tax payable - -
Total current liabilities 30.5 0.2
Total liabilities 104.1 428
Total equity and liabilities 430.2 242.8

As permitted by the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 noc Company income staternent or statement of
comprehensive income is presented. The Company’s loss for the year was £6.5m (2019: £1.6m).

The financial statements on pages 120 to 163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 December 2020 and signed on its
behalf by:

N 4“"‘“{") /QBA;L———— “"“-Y

Richard Huntingford Rachel Addison
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
Future plc
03757874
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Consolidated and Company cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 September 2020

Group Company Group Company
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2020 2020 2019 2019
£m £m £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 2919 {4.0) 537 {2.3)
Interest paid (L.4) (1.6) n.s) 1.4)
Interest paid on lease liabilities {0.7) - - -
Tax paid {8.4) - {3.0) -
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities a4 {5.7} 49 (3.7)

Cagh flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, piant and equiprnent {0.9) - (1.4) -
Purchase of computer software and website development 31 - (2.6} -
Purchase of magazine titles and websites (o - {1.6) -
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings, net of debt and cash acquired (73.5) - {64.6) -
Disposal of subsidiaries, magazine titles and websites (2.2) - 0.4 -
Net movement in amounts owed to/by subsidiaries - {130.3) - (10.5)
Net cash used in investing activities {79.8) (130.3) (69.8) {10.5)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Ordinary share capital 104.4 104.4 - -
Casts of share issue {3.4) {3.4) - -
Acquisition of own shares (8.5) - - -
Crawdown of bank loans 1421 1421 84.2 84.2
Repayment of bank [eans {220.7) {109.9) (68.4) (68.4)
Drawdown of overdraft 35 43 43 -
Bank arrangernent fees (0.6) (0.6} {0.8) (©.8)
Repayment of principal element of lease liabilities (3.9) - - -
Settlement/(purchase) of derivative 0.2 0.2 [&7) ©.7)
Dividends paid .0} (1.0} {0.4) (0.4)
Net cash generated from financing activities 121 1361 182 139
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13.7 01 [2.5) (©3)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6.6 - 6.4 03
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents N.0) - 2.7 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19.3 0.1 6.6 -
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Notes to the Consolidated and Company cash flow statements

for the year ended 30 September 2020

A. Cash generated from/{used in) operations

The reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year to cash generated from/{used in) operations is set cut below:

Group Company Group Company
2020 2020 2019 2009
£m £m £m £Em
Profit/(loss) for the year 443 {6.5) 81 (1.6}
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and impairment charge 6.9 - 09 -
Arnortisation of intangible assets and impairment charge 251 - 14.5 -
Share schemes
- Value of employees’ services 5.6 - 3.4 -
Reversal of impairment - {0.1) - -
Net finance (incomej/costs {2.8) 3.0 142 {0.3)
Tax chargef(cradit) 7.7 {0.6) 46 (0.4
Loss/{gain) on the sale of operations 1.5 - (0.2) -
i wworking sapital and provisiang - Pefere changes 883 “2) 455 (20
Movement in provisions - - (0.7) -
Decrease in inventories 0.5 - - -
Decrease in trade and other receivables 2.6 - 35 -
Increasef{decrease) in trade and other payables 0.5 0.1 54 (0.3)
Cash generated from/{used in} operations 91.9 (4.1} 537 (2.3)
B. Analysis of net debt
10ctober Other nan-cash Exchange 30 September

Grou p 2:‘:: cash ﬂoiwr: on a:qu\sltl;:: h ges 5':.: zcézr:
Cash and cash equivalents 66 (15.5) 29.2 - Lo) 9.3
Debt due within one year 14.3) (3.5) - - - (7.8)
Debt due after more than one year {42.6) 78.7 {N1.0) 0.2 11 (73.6)
Net debt (40.3) 59.7 {81.8) 0.2 01 {62.1)

1October Other non-cash Exchange 30 Septermnber
GrOUp 22:: Cash noEv:: chan%tra: movemegrt“s 22:3
Cash and cash equivatents 6.4 (2.5) - 2.7 6.6
Debt due within one year (8.5) 42 - - (4.3)
Debt due after more than one year (15.7) {23.5) {0.5) (2.9) 42.6)
Net debt (17.8) (21.8) {0.5) (0.2) {40.3)

10ctober Othar non-cash Exchange 30 september
Company o cashflowe nange em hrea
Cash and cash equivalents - [oA] - - 0.1
Debt due within one year - (4.3) - - (4.3)
Debt due after more than one year (42.6) (32.3) 02 11 (73.6)
Net debt {42.6) {36.5) 0.2 11 {77.8)
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1 October Other nen-cash Exchange 20 September
2018 Cash flows changes movernants 2019
Company £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivaients 03 O3] - - -
Debt due within one year {8.5) B.S - - -
Debt due after more than one year {157} (23.5) Q.5 {2.9) {42.6)
Net debt (239) 15.3) {0.5) {2.9) (42.6)
C. Reconciliation of movement in net debt
Sroup Company Group Company
2620 2020 2019 2019
£m £m £m £m
Net debt at start of year {40.3) (62.6) 17.8) 23.9)
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 13.7 0.} {2.5) {03)
increase in borrowinygs (35.8) {36.6} (12.3) {15.0}
Other non-cash changes 0.2 0.2 (0.5} {0.5)
Exchange movements [N ] 11 (0.2) (2.9)
Net debt at end of year (62.1) (77.8) (40.3) {42.6)
D. Changes in financial assets and financial liabilities
Changas in
faie va:a:; Adaption other
1 Octobar Financing unwinding of IFRS 16 Exchange noncash 30 september
Group 22‘:: cash ﬂo:vr: Share isssur; A=quisniu£r:: of discmérr\‘: Lou;e!: mov-mn::: mov-mcg:: 1n£2m0
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables (netj 36.0 (6.2} - 292 - - (0.3) - 58.7
Cash and cash equivalents 6.6 (15.5) - 292 - - (1.0} - 193
Finance lease receivabie - (0) - - - 1.8 - {0q) 1.6
Financial asset - derivative 1.4 (0.2) - - (1.2} - - - -
Total financial assets 44.0 (22.0) - 58.4 L2} 1.8 (.3) {o0) 79.6
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {53.8} {0.5) - {49.8) - 0.4 ny - {104.8)
Cutrent botrrowings {43} {3.5) - - - - - - {7.8)
Non-current borrowings (42.6) 78.7 - (1M.0} - - 11 Q.2 (73.6}
Deferred consideration (439) 214 218 - (0.3} - 1.0 - -
Contihgent consideration {10.9} 36 - - 6.8 - 0.5 - -
Total financial liabilities (155.5) 99.7 21.8 (160.8) 6.5 0.4 1.5 0.2 (186.2)
Net financial assets and liabilities (M.5) 77.7 21.8 (102.4) 53 2.2 0.2 01 (106.6)
Changes in fair vaiues
1 Oetober Financing and unwinding of Exchange 20 Septermber
Group 22}: Cash fIDEv:: Acqulslt\zrrl‘: disco;nmt mDVEmegrt: 22:2
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables {net) 3.8 (3.4) 82 - (0.6) 36.0
Cash and cash equivalents 6.4 [2.5) - - 27 6.6
Financial asset - derivative - 0.6 - 0.8 - 14
Total financial assets 382 {53) 8.2 08 21 440
Financial fiabilities
Trade and other payables (38.8) [(5A)] {7.2) - n7) (53.8)
Current borrowings (8.5) 42 - - - {4.3)
Non-current borrowings (15.7) (24.0) - - (2.9} (42.6)
Deferred consideration - - {29.3) (12.9) nn (43.9)
Conhtingent cansideration - - (10.8) - - (10.9)
Total financial liabilities {63.0) (25.9} (47.4) [12.9) (6.3) {155.5)
Net financial assets and liabilities {24 .8} {31.2) {39.2) 2. {4.2) (11.5)
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Financial Statements

Accounting policies

Compliance statement and basis of preparation

Future plc (the Company) is incorporated and registered in the United Kingdom and is a public company limited by shares. The address of the
Company’s registered office and its registered number are given on pages 123 and 174, The financial statements consolidate those of Future plc

and its subsidiaries (the Group).

The financial statements of the Group and the individual financial statements of the parent company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and the IFRS Interpretations
Committee’'s (IFRS IC) interpretations as adopted by the European Union, applicable as at 30 September 2020, and those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements published in this 2020 Annual Report
are set out on pages 127 to 133. These policies have been applied consistently to all years presented, unless otherwise stated below. These
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments, and contingent and
deferred consideration, which are measured at fair value.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing these financial staternents as stated by the Directors on page 108.

New or revised accounting standards
and interpretations adopted in the
year

The following standards and amendments

became effective in the year:

~-IFRS 16 Leases:

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatrents;

-amendment to IFRS 9 Prepayment features
with negative compensation and
modifications of financial liabilities; and

- amendments as aresult of Annual
Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle.

There has been no materialimpact from
the adoption of new standards, amendments
to standards or interpretations which are
relevant to the Group, other than as set out
below.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
from 1 October 2019, resulting in the
recognition on balance sheet of assets and
liabilities relating to leases previcusly
accounted for as operating leases. On
transition the Group has applied the
modified retrospective approach, with the
right-of-use asset measured as if IFRS 16 had
always applied and the difference between
lease assets and lease liabilities recognised
within retained earnings. Comparative
periods have not been restated.

Adoption of the standard has resuited in
an increase in reported assets of £16.0m,
which inciudes a deferred tax asset of £0.7m,
and an increase in reported liabilities of

£16.8m, with the balance of £0.8m being
recognised within retained earnings at
1 October 2019.

In the income statement the operating
lease rent expense has been replaced by
depreciation of right-cf-use assets and
finance costs on lease liabilities.

The Group has taken advantage of the
following practical expedients on transition
to:

» rely on our assessment of where leases
exist under current reporting standards
IAS 17 Leases and IFRIC 4 Determining
Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease;

= exclude low-value leases:

» exclude short-term leases, being those
with a term of 12 months or less from 1
October 2019;

* rely on our assessment of onerous
leases under 1AS 37 Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent
assets applied immediately before the
date of initial application as an alternative
to performing an impairment, review;

« use hindsight when determining the
lease term where the centract includes
options to extend or terminate; and

+ exclude initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use asset.

Although there is no change to actual cash
cutflows, under IFRS 16 repayments relating
to the principal portion of the lease liability
are presented within cash flows from
financing activities and the portion relating

to the repayment of interest presented
within cash flows from operating activities.
Payments relating to short-term and
low-value leases will continue to be included
in cash flows from operating activities.

The Group's accounting policy for leases
under IFRS 16 is as follows:

Property leases are recognised on the
balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and
corresponding lease liability at the date the
leased asset is available for use. Lease
liabilities are measured at the present value
of payments less lease incentives receivable.
Right-of-use assets are measured equal to
the value of the lease liability plus restoration
costs.

Lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease (for leases
existing on transition the incremental
borrowing rate).

Short-term and low-value leases (as
defined by IFRS 16) are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the
income statement.

Finance costs are charged to the income
statement over the lease term, at a constant
periodic rate of interest. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated over the leasetermona
straight-line basis. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance
cost.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatments provides guidance and clarifies
how to apply the recognition and
measurement requirements in I1AS 12
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Income tfaxes where there is uncertainty over

New accounting standards,
amendments and interpretations
that are issued but not yet applied by
the Group

Certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have
been published that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning orn or after

1 October 2020 and which the Group has
chosen not to adopt early. These include the
following standards which are relevant to the
Group:

23

- Exceptional itemns - the Group considers

iterns of income and expense as

exceplional and excludes them from the
adjusted results where the nature of the

item, or its size. is material and not

related to the core underlying trading of

the Graup 50 as to assist the user of the
financial statements to better
understand the results of the core
aperations of the Group. Details of
exceptional items are shown innote 5.

w payment expanses (relating to equity- using the standard rate of corporation tax in

5 income tax treatments, IFRIC 23 has been settled share awards wilh vesling periods the relovant jurisdictinn

£ applied in the measurement of the provision langer than 12 ronilhis), lugethar with Arernnciliation of adiusted operating

% recognised. The adoption of the standard associated social security costs, are profit to profit before tax is shown below:

b has not had a material impact on the excluded from the adjusted results of the

B financial statements. For more detail about Group as the Directors believe they resuit

‘g the provision for uncertain tax positions, see in a level of charge that would distort the 0

.E the ‘critical judgements’ section on page 133. user’s view of the core trading Adjusted operating profit 93.4 522

o performance of the Group. Details of Adjusted finance costs 25 2
- share-based payrnents are shown in note Other income . 02

Adjusted profit before tax
Adjusting items:

209 503

Share-based payments
fincluding social {55) [(Q0)
security costs)

Exceptional items (note 5) {171) (3.4

Amortisation of acquired

intangibles {note 12) {218} 037

Decrease/{increase] in
fair value of contingent 76 {117}
consideration

) ) Urnwinding of discount 1.1 N.2)

-amendment to /FRS 3 Clarifying the - Amortisation of acquired intangible Fair value (lossi/gai
definition of a business; assets ~ the amortisation charge for Ci'rrr;f] g}eo(;?;i_‘gaan on (1.2) Q.8
-amendment to lAS 1 Definition of Material those intangible assets recognised on —_—_——
Profit before tax 52.0 127

and Classification of liabilities;
-1AS 8 Definition of Material;
-1AS 37 Costs to include when assessing
whether a contract is material,
-amendmentto IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and
IFRS 16 Amendments regarding
pre-replacement issues in the confext of

business combinations is excluded from

the adjusted results of the Group since
they are non-cash charges arising from
non-trading investment activities. As
such, they are nol considered to be
reflective of the core trading
performance of the Group.

Areconciliation of cash generated from
operations to adjusted free cash flowis
shown below:

the IBOR reform; and - Change in the fair value of contingent -
- Annual Tmprovements to IFRS Standards consideration - the Group exciudes the Cash generated from —

2018-2020 Cycie. remeasurement of these acquisition- operations : ’
The Group daes not expect that the related liabilities from its adjusted results Cash flows related to 8.0 40

standards and amendments issued but not
yet effective will have a material impact on
results or net assets.

as the impact of remeasurement can
vary significantiy depending on the
underlying acquisition’s performance.
The unwinding of the discounton

exceptional items

Settlement of social
security costs on share 4.0 -
based payments

Lease payments following

, I - - contingent consideration is also excluded adoption of IFRS 16 Leases =9 -
Presentation of non-statutory from the Group’s adjusted results on the Adjusted operating cash o
rmeasures basis that it is non-cash and the baiance inflow . :

The Directors believe that adjusted results is driven by the Group’s assessment of Cash flows related to (@0} (40)

and adjusted earnings per share provide
additional useful information on the core
operational performance of the Group to
shareholders, and review the results of the
Group on an adjusted basis internally. The
term "adjusted’ is not a defined term under
IFRS and may not therefore be comparable
with similarty titled profit measurements

the relevant discount rate tc apply.
Excluding these items ensures
comparability with prior years.

- Changes in the fair value of currency

opiion - the Group has excluded this from

its adjusted results as the option was

acquired in order to hedge USD exposure

to acquisition-related contingent

capital expenditure
Adjusted free cash flow 96.0 537

Areconciliation between adjusted and
statutory earnings per share measures is
shown in note 10.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of
Future plc (the Company) and its subsidiary
undertakings. Subsidiaries are all entities

cansideration and does not relate to the
core underlying trading performance of
the Group,
Thetax related to adjusting items is the
tax effect of the items above, calculated

reported by other companies. It is not
intended to be a substitute for. or superior to,
IFRS measurements of profit.

Adjustments are made inrespect of:

- Share-based payments ~ share-based
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controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group is either exposed to or has the
rights to variable returns fram its
invalvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsoclidated from the date that contro!
ceases. The purchase method of accounting
is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments 1ssted and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, and
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resuiting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
are considered an impairment indicator of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

The Group is organised and arranged
primarily by geographical segment. The
Group also uses a sub-segment split of
Media and Magazines for further analysis.
QOperating segmenis arereported ina
manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Makers who are considered to be
the Executive Directors of Future ple.

Revenue recoghnition

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised in the income statement inline
with the five-step model in IFRS 15, to reflect
the pattern of transfer of goods and services
to the customer. Revenue is recognisedin
the income statement when control passes
to the customer. If the customer

Financial Statements

simultaneously receves and consumes the
benefits of the contract, revenue is
recognised over time. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point

intime.

Revenue comprises the transaction price
of the contract, being consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax. estimated returns, rebates
and discounts, which includes retail
promotion costs and advertising rebates.
and after eliminating sales within the Group,

Fer print and digital magazine newstrade
and subscription revenue, and digital
advertising revenues and expenses, revenue
is recognised as the amount paid by the end
consumer, rather than the amount remitted
by the agent.

Related commissions paid to agents are
recognised as an expense within cost of
sales.

The following recognition criteria also
apply:

-eCommerce revenue isrecognised at the

time of the related product sale.

- Magazine newsstand circulation, print
subscription and advertising revenue is
recognised according to the date that the
related publication goces on sale.

- Online advertising revenue is recognised
over the period during which the adverts
are served.

- Revenue from the sale of digital
magazine subscriptions is recognised
uniformly over the term of the
subscription.

- Event incorme is recognised when the
event has taken place.

- Licensing revenue is recognised on the
supply of the licensed centent.

- Publisher services revenue is recognised
when the issues are distributed to
wholesalers.

- Revenue from broadcaster productions
is recognised over the period of
development in line with expenditure
incurred.

- Other revenue is recognised at the time
of sale or provision of service.

The right of returnis considered tobe
variable consideration. The probable amount
of expected returns is estimated using the
most-likely amount method and accounted
for as a reduction in revenue.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation
currency

ltems included inthe financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in
sterling. which is the Group’s presentation
Currency.

{b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at
balance sheet exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement, with exchange differences arising
on trading transactions being reported in
operating profit and with those arising on
financing transactions reported in net
finance costs unless, as a result of cash flow
hedging, they are reported in other
comprehensive income.

{c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional
currency different frorm the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:
{i) Assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet.
(i) Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates.
(iiiy All resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign cperations. and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part
of the gain or l1oss on sale.
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Employee benefils

{a) Pension obligations

The Group has a number of defined
contribution plans. For defined contribution
plans the Group pays contributions into a
privately administered pensionplanon a
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. Contributions
are charged to the income statement as they
are incurred.

(b) Share-based compensation
The Group operates a number of share-
based compensation plans.

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
awards is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the
appropriate service period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the awards. The
calculation of fair value includes
assumptions regarding the number of
cancellations and excludes the impact of any
non-rmarket vesting conditions (for example,
earnings per share). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of awards that are
expected to vest. At each balance sheet date,
the Group revises its estimates of the
number of awards that are expected to vesti.
it recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the income
statermnent, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity for equiity-settled awards and
liabilities for cash-settled awards.

The grant by the Company of share
awards to the empioyees of subsidiary
undertakings is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of ermployee
services received, measured by reference to
the grant date fair value, is recognised over
the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
acorresponding credil to equity in the
Company's financial statements.

Shares in the Company are held in trust to
satisfy the exercise of awards under certain
of the Group's share-based compensation
plans and exceptional awards. The trust is
consolidated within the Group financial
statements. These sharas are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet as a
deduction from equity at the market value on
the date of acquisition.
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{c} Bonus plans

The Group recognises a lability and an
expense for bonuses taking hto
consideration the profit attributabie to the
Comparny's sharehoiders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Leases

Property leases are recognised on the
balance sheel us a vight-of usc asset and
corresponding lease liability at the date the
leased asset is available for use. Lease
liabilities are measured at the present value
of payments less lease incentives receivable.
Right-of-use assets are measured equal to
the value of the lease liability plus restoration
costs.

Lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease (for ieases
existing on transition the incremental
barrowing rate).

Short-term and low-value leases (@s
defined by IFRS 16} are recognised cna
straight-line basis as an expense inthe
incorne statement.

Finance casts are chen ged to the income
statement over the fease term, at a constant
periodic rate of interest. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated over the leasetermona
straight-iine basis. Each lease payment is
aliocated between the liability and finance
cost.

Where the Grounis alessor, where the
lease transters substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessea itis
classified as a finance lease. All others are
accounted for as operating leases, Where
the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease.
Amounis due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the
amount of the net investment in the leases.
Finance lease incoime reflects a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
from 1 Qctober 2019. Comparative periods
have not been restated and for the year

ended 30 September 2019 the foliowing
accounting policy under 1AS 17 Leases was
applied:

Leases in which the Group assumes
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets were
classified as finance leases. All other leases
were classed as operating leases. Assets
held under finance leases were included
either as property, plantand equipment or
intangible asseis at the lower of their fair
value at inception or the present value of the
minimum lease payments and were
depreciated over their estimated economic
lives, or the finance lease period, whichever
was the shorter. The corresponding liability
was recorded within borrowings. The interest
element of the rental costs was charged
against profits over the period of the lease
using the actuarial method. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Tax

Tax on the profit or loss for the year
comprises current tax ang deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement
except to the extent that it reiates to items
recognised directly in eauity in which case it
is recognised in equity.

Current tax is payable based on taxable
profits for the year, using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, along with any
adjustment relating to tax payable in
previous years. Management pericdically
evaiuates items detailed i tax returns where
the tax treatment is subject to interpretation.
Taxable profit differs from net profit in the
income statement in that income or expense
items that are taxable or deductible in other
years are excluded - as are items that are
never taxable or deductible. Current tax
assels relate to payments onaccount not
offset against current tax liabilities.

Deferred tax is provided for in full, using
the liability method. on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transactian other than a business




combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred tax asset
is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled inthe appropriate territory.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the
termporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is provided ontemporary
differences arising cn investmentsin
subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is
contrelled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset against each other where they
relate to the same jurisdiction and thereis a
legally enforceable right to offset.

Uncertain tax positions are provided for
under |AS 12, with due consideration for the
interpretive guidance in IFRIC 23. Each
uncertain tax treatment is considered either
separately or together with other uncertain
positions in the same jurisdiction. depending
onwhich approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The effect of
the uncertainty is measured with reference
tothe expected value, i.e. the sum of the
probability-weighted amounts in arange of
possible cutcomes. The expected value
better predicts the resoiution of the
uncertainty where there is a range of
possible cutcomes.

Deferred tax in business
combinations

In business combinations, deferred tax is
calculated at the date of acquisition. Where
the fair value (and therefore the acquisition
accounting value) of assets acquired is
different from its tax base, a deferred tax
asset or liahility is recognised enthe
temporary difference. The tax base is
dependent on the expected tax deductions
availabie in the appiicable jurisdiction over
the life of the asset.

Dividends
All dividend distributions to the Company's
sharehelders are recognised as a liability in
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the financial statements in the peried in
which they are approved.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at
cost (or deemed cost) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
property. plant and equipment less residual
value over estimated useful lives, as follows:

« Land and buildings — 50 years or pericd

of the lease if shorter.

« Plant and machinery — between cne and

five years.

« Equipment, fixtures and fittings

— between one and five years.

* Right-of-use assets - iease term.

The assets' residual values and useful lives
arereviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date, An asset’s carrying
amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amounts. These are included in the
income statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between
the cost of the acquisition and the fair value
of net identifiable assets acquired.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any
accurmnulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to appropriate cash generating
units (those expected to benefit from the
husiness combination) and it is not subject to
amortisation but is tested annually for
impairment.

(b) Titles, trademarks, customer lists,
brands, subscriber databases, creative
services relationships, publishing
rights, customer relationships,
advertising relationships, non-
compete agreements, content,

eCommerce technology and other
‘magazine and website related’
intangibles
Magazine and website related intangible
assets have a finite useful life and are stated
at costless accumulated amortisation.
Assets acquired as part of 2 business
combination are initially stated at fair value.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
these intangibles over their estimated useful
lives (typically between cne and fifteen
years).

Expenditure incurred on the launch of new
magazine titles is recognised as an expense
in the income statement as incurred.

(c) Computer software and website
development

Non-integral computer software purchases
are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Costs incurred in the
development of new websites are capitalised
only where the cost can be directly attributed
to developing the website to operate in the
manner intended by management and oniy
to the extent of the future economic benefits
expected fromits use. These costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives (between one and
three years). Costs associated with
maintaining computer software or websites
arerecognised as an expense as incurred.

Impairment tests and
Cash-Generating Units {CGUs)

A CGU is defined as the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from cther assets or groups of
assets.

Goodwill is not amortised but tested for
impairment at least once a year or more
frequently when there is an indication that it
may be impaired. Therefore, the evolution of
general economic and financial trends as well
as actual economic performance compared
to market expectations represent external
indicators that are analysed by the Group,
together with internal performance
indicators, in order to assess whether an
impairment test should be performed more
than once a year.,

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets requires
these tests to be performed at the level of
each CGU or group of CGUs likely to benefit
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from acepiisition-related synergies, within an
nperating segment.

Any impairment of goodwill is recorded in
the income staternent as a deduction from
operating profit and is never reversed
subsequently.

Other intangible assets with a finite life are
amortised and are tested for impairment
only where there is an indication that an
impairment may have occurred.

Recoverable amount

Tu dletermmine whether an impairment 1038
should be recognised, the carrying value of
the assets and liabilities of the CGUs ot
groups of CGUs is compared to their
recoverable amount.

Carrying values of CGUs and groups of
CGUs tested include goodwill and assets
with finite useful lives (property. plant and
equipment, intangible assets and net
working capital).

The recoverable amount of a CGU s the
higher of its fair vaiue less costs to selt and
its value in Use. Fair value less costs to sell is
the best estimate of the amount obtainable
from the sale of anassetin anarm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, less the costs of disposal. This
estimate is determined, on 20 September.
on the basis of the discounted present value
of expected future cash flows plus a terminal
value and reflects general market sentiment
and conditions.

Value in use is the present value of the
firtiire cash flows expected to be derived
from the CGUs or group of CGUs. Cash flow
projections are based on economic
assurmptions and forecast trading conditions
drawn up by the Group's management, as
follows.

~ cash flow projections are based on

three-year business plans:

+ cash flow projections beyond that

time frame are extrapolated by
applying a country-specific growth
rate to perpetuity for both the US and
the UK; and

- the cash flows gbtained are discounted

using appropriate rates for the business
and the territories concerned.

If goodwill has been allocated to a CGU
and an operation within that CGU js disposed
of, the goodwill associated with that
operation is included in the carrying amount
of the operation in determining the profit or
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loss on disposal. The goodwill allocated to
the disposal is measuied on the bagis of the
relative prulilability of the operatinn
disposed and the operations retained.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. For raw materials,
costis taken to be the purchase priceona
firstin, first out basis. For finished goods.
costis calculated as the direct cost of
production. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
reatisable value is the estimater selling price
in the ordinar y course ot busthess, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest methed, less aloss
allowance. The Group applies the [FRS 9
simplifiect approach to measuring expected
creditlosses, which uses alifetime expected
foss allowance for ali trade receivables,
Expected loss rates, calculated based on
historical credit losses, are applied to trade
receivables grouped based ondays past due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held on call with banks.
Bark overdratts are shown withir
borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheel.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
measlired at amortised cost.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subseguently stated at
amortised cost with any difference between
the proceeds (net of fransaction costs) and
the redemption value recognised in the
income staternent over the period of the
barrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current

liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the
balance sheet date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or censtructive obligation
as aresutt of past events, and it is more likely
than not that an cutflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the Directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the ubligation at the balance shee!
date, and are discounted to present vaiue
where the effect is material.

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging activities

The Group uses derivative financial
nstruments to reduce expasure to foreign
exchange and interest rate risks anad
recognises these at fair value in its halance
shaet. For instruments for which hedge
accounting is applied, gains and iosses are
{aken to equity. Any changes to the fair value
of derivatives not hedge accounted for are
recognised in the income statement. Any
new instruments entered into by the Group
will be reviewed on a ‘case by case’ basis at
inception to determine whether they should
qualify as hedges and be accounted for
accordingly under IFRS 9. In accordance with
its treasury policy. the Group does not hotd
or issue any derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes.

Where hedge accounting is not applied,
changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments are recognised within profit or
loss.

Investments

The Company's investments in subsidiary
undertakings are stated at the fair value of
consideration payable, including related
acquisition costs, less any provisions for
impairment.

Exceptional items

The Group considers items of income and
expense as exceptional and excludes themn
from the adjusted results where the nature of
the ttetn, or its size, is material and not
related fo the core underlying trading of the




Group so as to assist the user of the financial
statements to better understand the results
of the core operations of the Group. Details
of exceptional items are shown in note 5.

Critical accounting assumptions,
Jjudgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements
under IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting assumptions and requires
management to exercise its judgement and
to make estimates in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies.

Critical judgements in applying the
Group's accounting policies

The areas where the Board has made critical
judgements in applying the Group's
accounting policies (apart from those
involving estimations which are dealt with
separately below) are:

(a) Acceunting for acquisitions
Management applies judgement in
accounting for acquisitions, including
identifying assets arising from the
application of IFRS 3 Business combinations,
undertaking Purchase Price Allocation
exercises to allocate value between assets
acquired, including the allocation between
intangible assets and geodwill, and valuing
contingent consideration. See note 28 for
further detail.

(b) Exceptionai items

Due to the significant acquisition-related
activity, there are a number of items which
require judgement to be appliedin
determining whether they are exceptional in
nature. Inthe current year these relate
largely to acquisition and restructuring
related costs in respect of the Tl Media
acquisition (£3.8m and £5.1m respectively),
SmartBrief integration costs cf £0.1m,
onerous property costs of £1.8m,
impairment of the Tl Media legacy finance
system of £0.8m and £1.5m loss on
disposals relating to the sale of Amateur
Photographer, WorldSoccer and
Trustedreviews.com. as reguired by the
Competition and Markets Authority, as well
as UK Cycling Events Limited and
Internaticnal Craft & Hobby Fair Limited,
following the acquisition of TI Media. see
notes 5 and 28 for further detail,

Financial Statements

(¢} Identification of cash generating
units for goodwill impairment testing
Judgement is applied in the identification of
cash-generating units (“"CGUs"). Given the
speed of integration of acquisitions and the
interdependency of revenues across the
Group, both between its brands, the Media
anc Magazine sub-segments and globally the
Directors remain comfortable with
identification of the UK and the US as the
primary CGUs used in imparment testing.

Key sources of estimation
uncertainty

The following are areas of key sources of
estimation uncertainty that may have a
significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial
year:

{a) Taxation

Where tax exposures can be guantified, a
provision is made based on bestestimates
and the judgement of the Direclors. Detatls of
the provision for uncertain tax postions in
relation to material tax exposures are
discussed below. As the ultimate resolution
of tax exposures usually occurs at a pointin
time, and given the inherent uncertainties in
assessing the outcomes of these exposures,
there could., in future periods, be
adjustments to these provisions that have a
material positive or negative effectonour
results in any particular period. Provisions for
tax contingencies require the Directors to
make estimates and judgements with
respect to the ultimate outcome of a tax
audit, and actual results could vary from
these estimates.

Inthe current year, the uncertain tax
positions of the Group have been reviewed,
and uncertain tax positions have been
released as the uncertainty has been
resolved or the risk reduced. The year end
provision is £4.5m (2019: £5.6m), of which
£4.1m (2019; £4.3m) relates to transfer
pricing risks, and £0.4m (2019: £0.5m)
relates to uncertain tax positions in acquired
businesses. The Group's transfer pricing
uncertainties arise because the Group has
material intra-group transactions relating to
the cross-border licensing of platform
technology and brands, which have
increased year on year to keep pace with the
rapid increase in Group profits. The Group's
estimate of the transfer pricing exposure has

been calculated by modelling different
scenarios of adjustments to transfer pricing
charges by the UK and US tax authorities and
assigning probabilities to those scenarios. By
their nature. the models are subjective
assessments and judgement is required in
assessing the scenarios and probabilities te
apply. Although the Directors continue to
believe that Future's transfer pricing is
robust, its position as a digital media
business and the increasing attentionon
transfer pricing as it relates to cross border
taxation of the digital economy creates
uncertainty.

(b} Valuation of acquired intangible
assets

Acquisitions may result in the recognition of
intangible assets, such as titles, trademarks,
customer lists, subscriber databases,
creative services relationships, content,
advertising relationships, customer
relationships, publishing rights. non-compute
agreements and eCommerce technology.
These assets are valued using a discounted
cash flow model, Multi-period Excess
Earnings Method {"MEEM™), or a relief from
royalty method. In applying these valuation
methods, a number of key assumptions are
made in respect of discount rates, growth
rates. royalty rates and the estimated life of
intangibles. During the year, such estimates
have been made regarding the Barcroft
Studios and Tl Media acguisitions. See notes
12 and 28 for further details.

{c) Carrying value of goodwill

The Group uses forecast cash flow
information and estimates of future growth
to assess whether goodwill is impaired. Key
assumptionsinclude the EBITDA margin
aliocated to each CGU. the growth rate to
perpetuity and the discount rate. if the
results of an operation in future years are
adverse to the estimates used for
impairment testing, impairment may be
triggered at that point. Further details,
including sensitivity testing, are included
within note 12.

(d) Provision for returns

Where there is aright of return, the Group
provides for estimated unscld copies of
magazines sold via newsstand wholesalers
and distributors. Provisions require the use of
estimates and judgements, and actuz!

results could vary from these estimates.
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Notes to the financial statements
1. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Croup is organised and arranged primarily by reportable segment. The Executive Directars cansider the performance of the
business from a geographical perspective, namely the UK and the US. The Australian business is considered to be part of the UK
segment and is not reported separately due to its size. The Group also uses a sub-segment split of Media {websites and events) and
Magazines far further analysis. The Group considers that the assets within each geographical segment are expased to the same risks.
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{a} Reportable segment
{i} Segment revenue

Sub-segment 2020 Sub-segment 2018
Mediz Magazines Total Media Magazines Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Segment:
UK 79.8 921 171.9 50.4 52.3 1027
us 157.5 10.2 167.7 104.5 14.3 118.8
Total 2373 102.3 339.6 154.9 66.6 2215

Transactions between segments are carried out at arm’s length.

(iij Segment adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating profit is used by the Executive Directors to assess the performance of each segment. Operating profit for the
Media and Magazines sub-segments is not reported internally, as overheads are not fully allocated on this basis. The table below
shows the impact of intra-group adjustments on the adjusted operating profit for the UK and US segments:

2020 2019
Underlying adjusted Intra-group o} u: ying anj Intra-group Adjusted
operating profit ad]ustments operating prefit operating profit adjustments operating prufit
£m £m £m £m Em £m

Segment:
UK 10.6 48.5 59.1 0.7 8.4 291
us 82.8 (48.5) 343 415 18.4) 23]
Total 93.4 - 93.4 52.2 - 522

intra-group adiustments relate to the net impact of charges from the UK to the US in respect of management fees {for back office
revenue functions such as finance, HR and i { Whi¢h aty based i the Ui and ficenca faes far the use of inteilectual property. The
increase in the year is driven by the growth in media revenue in the US.

A reconciliation of total segment adjusted operating profit to profit before tax is provided as foliows:

2020 2019

£m £

Total segment adjusted operating profit 93.4 52.2
Share-based payments {including social security costs) {5.5) [9.0)
Amortisation of acguired intangibies {21.6) 13.1)
Exceptional iterns (note 5) {15.6) {3.4)
Net finance incomef{costs) 2.8 (14.2)
Other (expense)fincome (.5} 02
Profit before tax 52.0 12.7
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(iii) Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets Segment liabilities Segment net assets
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2018
£m £m £m £m £ £m

Segment:
UK 269.7 1233 (192.5) (97.3) 77.2 26.0
us 3415 2631 (37.4) (75.7) 304.1 187.4
Total 611.2 3864  (229.9) {173.0} 381.3 2134

{iv) Other segment informaticn

Additions to Depreciation Exceptional
Non-current assets non-current assets and armartisation items
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2012 2020 2me
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Segment:
UK 293.1 28.5 216.7 4.1 144 7.2 12.0 1.4
us 221.4 233.2 7.7 130.7 16.0 8.2 0.1 2.0
Total 514.5 331.7 224.4 134.8 30.1 15.4 171 3.4

The non-current assets in the table above exclude deferred tax.

Other than the itemns disclosed above and a share-based payments charge (excluding social security costs) of £5.9m (2019: £3.9m)
there were no other significant non-cash expenses during the year.

(b) Business segment

(i) Gross profit by business segment

Sub-segment 2020 Sub-segment 2009

Add bacik Add back

distribution distribution
Medla Magazines Other expenses Total Media Magazines Other expenses Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m

Segment:

UK 65.0 56.4 (59.5) n.s 73.4 42,5 32.8 {35.2) 45 446
us 138.9 6.4 (43.8) 1.7 103.2 84.7 8.6 (33.9) 25 61.9
Total 203.9 62.8 {103.3) 13.2 176.6 1272 41.4 {69.3) 7.0 106.5

Revenue of £43.4m arose from sales to the Group's largest single customer which operates as an intermediary for digital advertising
custormers {2019: £38.2m). Ne end customer, or cther single customer or group of customers under common centrol contributed 10%
er more to the Group's revenue in either the current or prior year. The above analysis excludes the impact of intra-group adjustments.

2. REVENUE

The Group applies IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers. See note 1 for disaggregation of revenue by sub-segment.

Timing of satisfaction of performance obligations

Revenue is recognised in the income statement when control passes to the customer. If the customer simultanecusly receives and
consumes the henefits of the contract, revenue is recognised over time. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time. The table
overleaf provides detail for each revenue stream:
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Revenue Nature, timing and satisfaction of
stream performance obligations Revenue recognhition
sa ber ebsites with advertisin . X \
Future opera_te num Of.W Ites e 9 Revenue is recognised at the point the advert
space on their webpages which are sold via first party and i X
. N is presented to the customear or over the period

programmatic/third party routes. Customers can purchase . i .
online by tirme and number of impressions during which the advertiserments are served.
advertising . ) o Principal vs agent considerations mean
revenue For impressions, the performance obligation is the - . ’

; . revenue under certain contracts is recognised
presentation of the advert to the customer. For time-based )
A . on a gross basis.

adverts, the performance obligation is the provision of an

advert over a period of time to be seen by the customer.

The Group earns commission when purchases are made Revenues related to these commissions are
eCommerce directly from third parties by consumers clicking through recognised at the time of the related product
revenue to these products through links on the Group's websites. sale, less an estimate to reflect the likelihood of

The facilitation of each product sale reflects a separate product returns to the retailer based on historic

performance obligation. returm rates.

i . . . For digital rmnagazines cash cted In advance

Subscriptions of magazines are sold online, with . g -g CO”e. din ".“\ ne

. e . . . is deferred, with revenue recognised uniformly

subscribers sent a digital or print version of the magazine T

A . S : \ over the term of the subscription.

every month (or multiple versions in a ‘double issue month’).

i . : . . Far print magazine sh ¢ ted in advan
p."r.'t and Cash is received in advance [either annually o P ag s ca ollec sdin a o
digital - ) is deferred, with revenue recognised at a point

. or monthiy via direct debit]. - L h
magazine in time when the relevant publication being

subscriptions

For print subscriptions each magazine delivered represents
a distinct performance obligation, whereas for digital
magazines providing access to the digital content
represents a distinct performance obiigation.

subscribed to goes on sale.

Principal vs agent considerations mean
revenue under certain contracts is recognised
on a gross basis.

Magazine
newsstand
circulation
and
advertising
revenue

single issues of magazines are sold in stores and online.

The provision of each issue is a separate performance
obligation, which is satisfied when the issue goes on sale.

Revenue is recognised at a boint in time on the
date that the related publication goes on sale
based on the estimate of sales net of returns.

Principal vs agent considerations mean
ravenue under certain contracts is recognised
©on a gross basis.

Eventincome

Future holds a humber of events throughout the year,
inctuding shows and awards events, held physicaily and
virtually. Revenue arises from the following:

- stand/table space;

- sponsarship;

- ticket sales; and

- marketing packages.

Cash is collectad in advance of the event.

Each event is a separate performance obligation, being
satisfied when the event has taken place.

Cash collected in advarnice is deferred, with
revenue recognised at a point in time when the
event takes piace.

Licence fees are charged for the use of Future’s
brands and content.

Licensing . . Revenue is recognised on the supply of the
revenue Performance obligations are satisfied over time licensed content, based on usage.

{for example magazine content provided each month)

and at a point in time (historic content is provided up-front}.

The Martketforce business is a distributor for magazines, and )
Publisher was acquired as part of the acquisition of Tl Media in April 2020, Revenue is recognised at a point intime on the
services ) date that the related publication goes on sale
revenue Performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, when based on the estimate of sales net of returns.

the issues go on sale.

Television programming content is developed and produced
Broadcaster for public broadcast. Revenue is recognised over time, with the input
productions method used to reflect the transfer of contro! to

Performance obligations are satisfied over the period of the
development in line with expenditure incurred.

the customer,
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The table below disaggregates revenue according to the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations:

Financial Statements

2020

2018

Ovaer time Point in time Total revenue Over time Paintintime Total revenue
£m £m £m £m £m
Total revenue 12.3 32732 339.6 6.4 2151 2215
3. NET OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating profit is stated after charging:
2020 2019
Adjusted Adjusting Statutory Adjusted Adjusting Statutery
rasuits items results results items results
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of sales (163.0) - (163.0) {N5.0) - (5.0}
Distribution expenses {13.2) - {13.2) (7.0) - (7.0}
Share-based payments {including
social security costs) z-2) (5.5) 8.7 (12) 00) (10.2)
Exceptional iterns (note 5) - {15.6) {15.6) - (3.4} {3.4)
Depreciation (5.8) - {5.8) (0.9) - (0.9)
Amertisation 2.7) {21.6) (24.3) (1.4) (133} (14.5)
Other administration expenses {58.3) - (58.3) (43.8) - (43.8)
{2486.2) (42.7) {288.9) (169.3) {25.5) {194.8)
4. FEES PAID TO AUDITORS
2020 2019
£m £m
Audit fees in respect of the audit of the financial statements of the 0.43 028
Company and the consolidated financial statements ’ X
Audit related assurance services 0.04 .02
0.47 0.30
Other assurance services' 0.29 0.54
Total fees 0.76 0.84

1 Other assurance services in the current year relate to fees in relation to the Tl Media acquisition, and in the prior year to the return to a Premium Listing and advisory services for the Mobile

Nations acqulsition and T) Medla acquisition.

5. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

2020

2019

£m Em
Acquisition and integration related costs 3.9 25
Restructuring and redundancy costs 21 -
Vacant property provision movements 1.8 01
Impairment of assets 0.8 -
Premium listing costs - 0.8
Total operating charge 15.6 3.4
Disposals 1.5 -
Total charge 17.1 3.4

The acquisiticn and integration related costs represent expenses incurred in respect of the acquisition of TI Media (£3.8m}, and the
finalisation of the integration of SmartBrief (EC.1m), which was acquired in July 2019, Restructuring and redundancy costs relate to
the integration of the TI Media acquisition. An impairment of £0.8m relates to the Tl Media legacy finance system which is no longer
required following the integration, and the £1.5m loss on disposals relates to the sale of Amateur Photographer, worldSoccer, and
Trustedreviews.com, as required by the Competition and Markets Authority, as well as UK Cycling Events Limited and International
Craft & Hobby Fair Limited, following the acquisition of TI Media. Vacant property costs of £1.8m relate to ongoing operating costs
and the impairment of right-of-use assets in respect of the Bromsgrove and Bournemouth offices which were permanently closed
following the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Further details of the acquisitions are shown in note 28.
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6. EMPLOYEE COSTS

|
c
7]
£
2 Group Company Graup Company
m 2020 2020 2019 2019
a £m £m £m £m
B Wages and salaries 90.6 15 60.0 12
g Social security costs 8.2 - 52 -
':u Other pension costs 2.4 - 13 -
U Share schermes
- value of employees’ services' 5.9 - 39 -
- Employer’s social security costs on share options 2.8 - 6.2 -
Total employee costs 109.9 1.5 76.6 1.2

11n the current yaar, £5.8m (2019: £3.4m) relates to equity-settled and £0.3m [2019: £0.5m) to cash-settiad share based payments.

Group Company Group Company

- . . 2020 2020 2019 2019

Average monthly numbet of people {including Directors} No. No. No. Na.
Production 1,303 - 770 -
Administration 333 7 219 6
Total 1,636 7 989 6

At 30 Septermber 2020, the actual number of people emploved by the Group was 2,037 [2019:1,225). In respect of our reportable
segrments 1,639 (2019: 750) ware employed in the UK and 398 (2019: 475) were employed in the US.

Key management personnel compensation

Graup Company Group Company

2020 2020 w1 2019

£m £m £m £m

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 2.6 1.5 19 1.2

Post employment benefits 04 - 0.1 -
Share schemes

- Value of employees’ services 1.0 - 0.5 -

- Employer's social security costs on share options 1.0 - 31 -

Tota) 4.7 1.5 5.6 1.2

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the Board of Future ple. If is this Board which has responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

Zillah Byng-Thorne, Penny Ladkin-Brand and Rachel Addison were paid by Future Publishing Lirnited, a subsidiary company, for their
services. In 2020 £0.7m (2019: £0.6m) was recharged to Future plc by Future Publishing Limited in respect of Zillah Byng-Thorne,
£0.3m (2019: £0.3m) was recharged in respect of Penny Ladkin-Brand, and £0.2m {(2019: £nil) was recharged in respect of Rachel
Addison. These recharges are included in the salaries line for the Company in the table above.

Further details on the Directors’ remuneration and interests are given in the Directors’ rermuneration report on pages 8010 103. The
highest paid Director during the year was Zillah Byng-Thorne {2019: Zillah Byng-Thorne] and details of her remuneration are shown on
page 95.
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7. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

2020 2018

£m £m

Interest receivable on interest-bearing loans and borrowings 0.4 -
Interest receivable on lease Jiabilities 0.1 -
Adjusted finance income 0.5 -
Decrease in fair value of contingent consideration 7.6 -
Fair value gain on currency option - 0.8
Total reported finance income 8.1 o8
interest payable on interest-bearing loans and borrowings (1.8) {1.5)
Amortisation of bank loan arrangernent fees (0.4} {0.8)
interest payable on lease liabilities (0.8) -
Adjusted finance costs (3.0) {243)
Increase in fair value of contingent consideration - .7
Fair value loss on currency option (1.2) -
Unwinding of discount on contingent consideration a4 {1.2)
Total reported finance costs (5.3) (15.0)
Net finance income/{costs) 2.8 {14.2)

The Group agreed a new £30 million multi-currency Revolving Credit Facility ("RCF") in April 2020, The RCF, which stands alongside
Future's existing debt facilities, was arranged in order to provide the Group with additional working capital headroom to maintain
the underlying growth mementum of the combined business, whilst navigating the impact of COVID-19. This facility has not been
required (and has not been drawn) as at 3¢ September 2020 and has been subsequently cancelled.

The £7.6m decrease (2019: £11.7m increase) in fair value of contingent consideration arose in respect of the SmartBrief, Inc. acquisition
(2019: MoNa Mobile Nations, LLC acquisition). During the year the fair value of the contingent consideration was finalised at £3.6m
($4.6m) and was paid in September 2020. Simllarly, £10m (2019: £1.2m) arose from unwinding of the discount on the contingent
consideration in the year, of which £0.8m relates to the acquisition of SmartBrief and £0.3m to Mobile Nations. See note 21for further
details.

8. TAX ON PROFIT

The tax charged in the consalidated income statement is analysed below:

2020 2019

£m £m
Corporation tax
Current tax on the profit for the year 9.7 75
Adjustments in respect of previous years Q. (0.5)
Current tax charge 9.8 70
Deferred tax origination and reversal of temporary differences
Current year charge/(credit) 0.4 (3.2)
Adjustments in respect of previous years (2.5) o8
Deferred tax credit (2.1) {2.4)
Total tax charge 7.7 4.6

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 f 139



The tax assessed in each year differs from the standard rate of carporation tax in the UK for the relevant year. The differences are

.E explained below:

o

£

% 2020 2019

-t £m £m

-t—l: Profit before tax 52.0 2.7

g profit before 1ax at the standard UK tax rate of 19% (2019: 19%) X ] 2.4

g Losses not previously recognised - 6.6)

[ Provision for uncertain tax positions .s) 52
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.9 35
Share-based payments 0.1 o)
Non-taxable gain on deferred consideration .2 -
Effect of different rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 2.7 (0.2
Diffarenee in 1A rates ((h)] al
Adjustrents In respect of previous years {2.4) 03
Total tax charge 7.7 &by

The Directors have assessed the Group's uncertain tax positions and have released £1.5m in the year on the basis that certain tax

risks are now considered less likely to cystallisa. Following this release {and the recognition of an additional pravision of £0.4m frorm
acquired businesses which has not impacted the consolidated income statement) the Group has an overali provision for uncertain tax
positions of £4.5m.

9. DIVIDENDS

Equity dividends 2020 2019
Number of shares in issue at end of year {million) 98.0 836
Dividends paid in yea {bence per share) 1.0 Q.5
Dividends paid in year (£m) (1.0Y [(SFA]

Interim dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised in the period in which they
are approved. The dividend in respect of the year ended 30 September 2019 was paid on 14 February 2020. On 24 November 2020 the
Board proposed a dividend of 1.6p per share in respect of the year ended 30 September 2020, which subject to shareholder consent at
the AGM, will be paid on 16 February 2021 to shareholders on the register at close of business on 15 January 2021.
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Financial Statements

2020 2019

Adjusted r:::l:: Adjusllng;':nr:: Statutory r;::l:: Adjusted r:::lcti Adjusting;t:r::: Statutory r:::l::

Basic earnings/{loss) per share 76.3 {29.9) 46.4 50.1 {40.2) 9.9
Diluted earnings/{loss) per share 74.7 (29.3) 45.4 475 (38.2) 9.3

Basic earnings per share are calculated using the weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue during the year. Diluted
earnings per share have been calculated by taking into account the dilutive effect of shares that would be issued on conversion into
Ordinary shares of awards held under employee share schemes, and in the prior year contingent consideration.

Adjusted earnings per share is based on profit after taxation which is then adjusted to exclude share-based payments (relating to
equity-settled share awards with vesting periods longer than 12 months) and related social security costs, interest, tax, amaortisation
of acquired intangible assets, fair value movements on contingent consideration (and unwinding of associated discount) and on

currency option, and exceptional items and any related tax effects.

Total Group

2020

2012

Adjustments to profit after tax:

Profit after tax {(Em) 443 a1
Share-based payments (including social security costs} (Em) 5.5 920
Exceptional items (Em} 171 34
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisitions (Em) 21.6 131
{Decreasej/increase in fair value of contingent censideration (£m) {(7.6) n7
Unwinding of discount (£m) 11 12
Fair value loss/{gain) on currency option (£m) 1.2 {0.8)
Tax effect of the above adjustments (£m) {10.3} (+.5]
Adjusted profit after tax (Em) 72.9 41.2
Weighted average numnber of shares in issue during the year:

- Basic 95,553,034 82,190,827
- Dilutive effect of share options 2,026,649 4,536,480
- Diluted 97,579,683 86,727,307
Basic earnings per share {in pence) 46.4 99
Adjusted basic earnings per share (in pence) 76.3 501
Dituted earnings per share {in pence) 45.4 93
Adjusted diluted earnings per share {in pence) 74.7 47.5
The adjustments to profit after tax have the following effect:

Basic earnings per share (pence) 46.4 9.9
Share-based payments (including social security costs) (pence) 5.8 1.0
Exceptional items {pence) 17.9 4]
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisitions (pence) 22.6 159
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of contingent consideration (pence) {8.0) 14.2
Unwinding of discount (pence) 12 15
Fair value loss/{gain) on currency option (pence) 1.3 1.0)
Tax effect of the above adjustments (pence) (10.9) (55)
Adjusted basic earnings per share {pence) 76.3 501
Diluted earnings per share (pence} 45.4 9.3
Share-based payments (including social security costs) (pence) 5.6 10.4
Exceptional items (pence) 17.5 39
Arnortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisitions (pence) 221 15.1
(Decrease)fincrease in fair value of contingent consideration {pence) (7.8} 135
Unwinding of discount {pence) 11 14
Fair value lossf{gain) on currency option {pence) 1.2 (0.9)
Tax effect of the above adjustments (pence) {10.4) (52}
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (pence) 74.7 47.5
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11, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2

o

@

E Equipment,

3 Land and Plant and Tixtures and Right-of-use

m builldings machinery fittings lease assets Total

:;" Group £m £m £m £m £m

K] Cost

2 At1October 2018 10 45 o7 - 62

P On acquisition 04 05 02 . 1

[ Additions 0.2 1 - . 13
AL 30 September 2019 1.6 6.1 0.9 - 8.6
On acquisition 19 0.5 0.5 8.3 nz
Additions 0.3 (s X3 - - 0.9
Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases - - - 3.5 135
Exchange adjustments - - - {0.3) {0.3)
At 30 Septerber 2020 3.8 7.2 1.4 215 339
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 October 2018 (O4) (3.7} &4} - 4.5}
On acquisition {0.2) (0.3} {0.2} - (0.7}
Charge for the year {ad) (.71 {G1) - (031
At 30 September 2019 (0.7) (4.7} (0.7) - (6.1)
Charge for the year (0.3) (1.2) (0.2) @.3) (5.8)
Impairment - - - (L)) {1.1)
At 30 September 2020 (1.0) (5.9) (0.9) {5.2) {13.0)
Net book value at 30 September 2020 2.8 13 0.5 16.3 20.9
Net book value at 30 Septermber 2019 09 1.4 0.2 - 25
Net book value at 1 October 2018 08 0.8 03 - 1.7

Right-of-use assets relate to property leases. The impairment in the year of £11m, and an accelerated charge within the depreciation
hine of LtO.4mn, 1elate to properties which became vacant during the year.

Depreciation is included within administration expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Adoption of IFRS 16 Ledses

The Croup has adopted IFRS 16 Leases from 1 October 2019, resulting in the recognition on balance sheet of assets and liabilities
relating to property leases previously accounted for as operating leases, On transition the Group has applied the modified
retraspective approach, with the right-of-use asset measured as if IFRS 16 had always applied and the difference between lease assets
and lease liabilities recognised within retainad edt ninys. Cornparativa parinds have not been restated.

The balance sheet impact at transition on 1 October 2019 is included in the table below:

10ctober 2019

£m

Right-of-use assets 135
Finance lease receivables (net investment in subleases) 1.8
Deferred tax asset Q7
Total assets 16.0
Lease liabilities due within one year (4.6)
Lease liabilities due in more than one year (13.0}
Net release of provisions for vacant praperty and dilapidations 0.4
Derecognition of lease incentive 0.4
Total liabilities (16.8}
Retained earnings reducticn on transition {o.8}
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Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate
on 1 0ctober 2012 on a lease-by-lease basis.

Although there is no change to actual cash outfiows, under IFRS 16 repayments relating to the principal portion of the lease liability
are presented within cash flows from financing activities and the portion relating to the repayment of interest presented within cash
flows from operating activities. Payments relating to short-term and low-value leases will continue to be included in cash flows from
operating activities.

Acquisition of TI Media — IFRS 16 impact

IFRS 16 was applied to the leases acquired with TI Media. The following assets and liabilities were recognised on the balance sheet
acquired:

20 April 2020
£m

Right-of-use assets 83
Deferred tax asset 01
Total assets 8.4
Lease liabilities due within one year (2.4)
Lease liabilities due in more than one year (9.5)
Net release of provisions for vacant property and dilapidations 19
Derecognition of lease incentive 16
Total liabilities (8.4)

Retained earnings reduction on transition

Post-transition impact of IFRS 16

Following the adoption of IFRS 16 [ eases, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") reviews adjusted operating profit as a key
financial metric, rather than adjusted EBITDA, to include depreciation on right-of-use assets, There has been an increase in operating
profit in the peried of £0.5m as a result of applying the standard, due to the charge being split between depreciation and interest,
with a decrease of £0.2m in total earnings. The income statement impact for the year to 30 September 2020 is included in the table
below:

Year to 30 September 2020

Applying Applying previous accounting

IFRS 16 standard IAS 17

£m £m

Rent expense - 4.2
Depreciation 37 -
Interest payable 0.8 -
Interest receivable {0.) -
Total 4.4 4.2
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

g

& -

E Acoquired

3 Goodwill intangibles Other Tota)

5 Group £m £m £m £m

w Cost

g At1 October 2018 3640 1218 200 5056

g Additions through business combinations 781 516 0l 129.8

£ Other additions - - 28 26
Adjustments to fair value on prior year acguisitions 392 (37.8) - 1.4
Disposal {0.2) - - {0.2)
Exchange adjustments 3.6 5]1 0.5 9.2
At 30 September 2019 484.7 140.5 23.2 648.4
Additions through husiness combinations 97.2 94.3 4.2 195.7
Other additions - - 31 33
Exchange adiustments (7.6} (4.3} {0.5} (12.4)
At 30 September 20620 574.3 230.5 30.0 §34.8
Accumulated amartisation and impairment
At 1 October 2018 [264.2) {20.1) 17.9) (3022}
Charge for the year - (13.7} {14) (14.5}
Exchange adjustments (1.8} {Q.4} (0.5) (2.7}
At 30 September 2019 (266.0) (33.6) (19.8) (319.4)
Charge for the year - (21.6) {2.7) (24.3)
Impairment - - (0.8) (0.8)
Exchange adjustments 1.4 1.5 0,4 33
At 30 September 2020 (264.6) (53.7) {22.9) (341.2)
Net book value at 30 September 2020 309.7 176.8 71 493.6
Net book value at 30 September 2019 2187 1069 3.4 3290
Net book value at 1 October 2018 99.8 101.5 21 2034

Acquired intangibles relate mainly to brands, subscriber databases, trademarks, advertising relationships, creative services
relationships, customer relationships, publishihg rights, content, non-compete agreements and customer lists. These assets are
amortised over their estimated economic lives, typically ranging between one and fifteen years. See accounting policy on page 137 for
further details.

Any residual amount arising as a result of the purchase consideration being in excess of the value of acquired assets is recorded

as goodwill. Goodwill is not amortised under IFRS, but is subject to impairment testing at least annually or more frequently on the
occurrence of sorme triggering event. Goodwill is recorded and tested for impairment on a territory by territory basis.

Further details regarding the intangible assets acquired during the year through business combinations (and adjustments to fair
value in respect of these intangibles} are set aut in note 28.

Other intangibles relate to capitalised software costs and website development costs which are internally generated.
The impairment in the year of £0.8m relates to the Tl Media legacy finance system.

Amortisation is included within administration expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment assessments for goodwill

The het book value of goodwill at 30 September 2020 consists of £170.9m (2019: £73.9m) relating to the UK and £138.8m {2019
£144.8m) relating to the US. The basis for calculating recoverable amounts is described in the accounting policies on page 132,

Trends in the economic and financial environment, competition and regulatory authorities’ decisions, or changes in competitor
behaviour in response ta the economic environment may affect the estimate of recoverable amounts, as wili unforeseen changes in

the poiitical, economic or legal systems of some countries.

As detailed in the accounting policies on pages13), 132 and 133 the UK and US segments are considered to be the smallest group of
cash generating units {'CGU') which independently generate cashflows so impairment testing has been performed at this level.

Other assumptions that influence estimated recoverable amounts are set out overleaf:
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At 30 September 2020
UK us
Basis of recoverable amount Value in use Value in use
Source used Three-year plans Three-year plans
Discounted cash flow Discounted cash flow
Growth rate to perpetuity 3.0% 3.0%
EBITDA margins assumed* 31.0% to 40.0% 26.0%
Post-tax discount rate 7.8% 7.8%
Pre-tax discount rate 8.3% 9.6%
* Note that EBITDA margins are after intra-group for man fees and i chargaes.
AL 30 September 2019
UK us
Basis of recoverable amount Value in use Value in use
Source used Three-year plans Three-year plans
Discounted cash flow Discounted cash flow
Growth rate to perpetuity nil% 3.0%
EBITDA margins assumed* 24.0% to 33.0% 19.0% to 21.0%
Post-tax discount rate B8.2% 8.2%
Pre-tax discount rate 10.6% 10.6%

* Note that EBITDA margins are atter intra-group adJustments for management fees and licence charges.

Managemnent has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:

Assumption

Approach used to determining values

Growth rate into perpetuity

This is the growth rate used to extrapcliate cash flows beyond the period of the three-year plan,
The rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry reports.

EBITDA margins assumed

EBITDA margin is based on budgeted and forecast margins from the Group’s three-year plan
(based on past performance and management's expectations for the future), adjusted to include
intra-group management and licence charges.

Post-tax discount rate

The pre-tax discount rate adjusted for the impact of tax.

Pre-tax discount rate

Reflects risks relevant to each CGU and the country in which they operate.

Sensitivity of recoverable amounts

At 30 September 2020 the analysis of the recoverable amounts gave rise to the following assessments of sensitivity:

The value in use of the UK business and the value in use of the US business exceeded their carrying values by £1,525.4m and £383.8m
respectively. A change of plus 50 basis points in the post-tax discount rate would decrease the recoverable amount of the UK business
by £175.9m and the US business by £56.6m. A change of minus 50 basis points in the post-tax discount rate would increase the
recoverable amount of the UK business by £216.9m and the US business by £69.8m.

The Group has conducted sensitivity analysis of the impairment testing and has concluded that any reasonably possible change would
not resuit in an impairment of goodwill for either CGU.

Goodwill is not considered to be impaired at 30 September 2020
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13. INVESTMENTS iN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

gy

[=

g

g 2020 2009
g Company €m £m
b Shares in Group undertakings

® At October 1422 1236
2 Additions 2141 126
1]

£ At 30 September 356.3 1422
[y

Additions of £214.1m include a £173.9m increased investment in Future Holdings 2002 Limited arising as a result of the capitalisation
of amounts owed to the Company by other Group companies as a result of the approach to funding the TI Media acquisition and
£21.8m as a result of the approach to funding the Mobile Nations acquisition.

The remaining additions of £5.6m represents the fair value of share-based compensation awards granted to employees of subsidiary
urdertaiangs of Fitiire Hoidings 2002 Limited, treated as a capitai contribution to that company, and capitaiisation of a further
£12.8m of amounts owed to the Company by uther Gréuts comparies.

The Directors believe that the carrying valuas of the investments are supported by their underlying assets.

14. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group, and the rmovements thereon, during the current
and prior years.

Provision for

Intangible Share-based Temporary Depreciation vs uncertain tax

assets payments diffarences tax alfowances Tax losses positions Total

£m £m £m £m £m £ £m

At 1 October 2018 (4.9) 2.4 a.z a6 19 - Q.2
Acquisitions (4.8) - - - - - (4.8)
Credited to income statement (¢3¢ 02 [¢X} o0 &7 (1.8) 2.4
Credited to equity - 56 - - - - 56
Exchange adjustrment (0.2) - - - 01 - B(e3)]
At 30 September 2019 {10.6) 82 0.3 o.5 8.7 (1.8} 33
impact of adopting IFRS 16 Leases - - 0.7 - - - a.7
Restated at 30 September 2012 (10.6) 82 1.0 0.5 6.7 (1.8) 4.0
Acquisitions (18.0) - 2.0 6.0 6.1 - 3.9)
Credited to income staternent 2.8 0.6 12 0.2 (3.9) 12 2.1
Charged to equity - 3.7 - - - - 3.7
At 30 September 2020 {25.8) 5.1 4.2 6.7 8.9 {0.6} {1.5)

Certain deferred tax assets and labilities will reverse within 12 maonths of the year end. The following sets out the expected reversal profile:

Provision for

tangibie Share-based Temporary  Depreciation vs ungertain tax
assets payments differences tax allowances Tax losses positions Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Within ane year (3.0) - 35 18 4.5 - 6.8
More than one year (22.8) 51 07 4.9 44 {0.6) {8.3}
At 30 September 2020 (25.8) 51 4.2 67 89 (0.5) {1.5)

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset against each other where they relate to the same jurisdiction. The following
is the analysis of deferred tax balances after offset for balance sheet purposes:

2028 2019

£m £m

Deferred tax assets 1.0 37
Deferred tax liabilities (2.5) {C.4)
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset (1.5) 33

As at 30 Septembzer 2020 the Group has unrecognised capital losses totalling £4.9m {2019: £4.9m) and £0.7m of tax losses (2012: £nil).
These all arise in the UK.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences where it is probable that these
assets will be recovered.
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No deferred tax is recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries as any remitted earnings would not give rise to a tax
liability in the foreseeable future. See note 8 for the impact of any changes in tax rates compared to the previous accounting period
which have been substantively enacted and have impacted the measurement of deferred tax balances.

The deferred tax asset of £1.2rm {2019: £4.5m) recognised on the Company's balance sheet is in respect of share-based payments. The
company has no unprovided deferred tax assets or liabilities at 30 September 202G {2019: £nil).

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company Group Company
2020 2020 2019 2618
£m £m £m £m

Current assets:
Trade receivables 59.5 - 38.6 -
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables (6.6} - (3.2} -
Trade receivables net 52.9 - 35.4 -
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - 72.6 - 947
Other receivables 5.8 - 06 -
Prepayments and accrued income 13.7 - 5.9 -
Total 72.4 72.6 419 947

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair vatue.

The Group applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime credit losses for trade receivables. A breakdown of the ageing is set
out below:

Group Group

2020 2019

Past due £m £m
0-30 days 4.7 EX
31-60 days 2.2 14
61-90 days 1.8 13
91+ days 23 20
Total 1.0 8.3

As at 30 September 2020, trade receivables of £6.6m {2012: £3.2m) were impaired and provided for. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to non-UK wholesalers in the newsstand distribution business and advertising customers.

The movernent in the Group aliewance for impairment of trade recelivables during the year is as follows:

Group Group
Provision o i
At1October 3.2 33
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables:
On acquisition 1.3 Q5
Provided for in the year 2.5 0.8
Receivables written off during the year (0-4) {1.4)
At 30 September 6.6 3.2

Trade receivables are written off to administration expenses where there is not a reasonable expectation of recovery. The primary
indicator that there is not reasonable expectation of recovery would be a customer's liquidation but there are also instances where
legal proceedings and/or debt racovery have not succeeded. Receivables written off during the year included amounts provided for in
full on prior acquisitions.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses trade receivables are grouped by trading subsidiaries. The expected
losses are based on historical credit losses for the 24 months in the period to 30 Septernber 2020. The calculation for the current yeat
has been amended to reflect an increased reserve due to macroeconomic uncertainties prevalent at this moment with the global
pandemic and specific reserving for acquired entities where the historical records for credit losses are not available.

The expected loss rate and the related allowance for impairment of trade receivables is split by ageing category as follows:

2020 Current 0-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90+ days Total
Gross carrying amount of trade receivables (£m) 43.0 5.4 27 25 59 595
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables (Em) 11 c.7 05 07 36 6.6
Expected loss rate 2.6% 13.0% 18.5% 28.0% 61.0%

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 [ 147



3
=
a
=
@
2
o3
b
n
B
g
<
1]
£
o

2019 Current 0-30 days 51-60 days §1-90 days 99+ days Totai

Gruss carrying amonnt of trade receivables (L) 270 Al 17 1.7 32 386
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables (£ 1) 0.8 [ 0.3 0.4 12 32
Expected loss rate 2.8% 9.9% 20.5% 29.6% 17.0%

Credit risk

Credit checks are required for both new and existing accounts where trading exceeds a risk based de minimis threshold. Default
credit terms are 30 days but can be extended for commercial reasons. Final decisions on both the custorner credit limit and the
extension of credit terms are made by a senior manager in the finance function who will take consideration of the following factors;
trading history to date, credit status of the customer, deal profitability and any other relevant commercial factors.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reparting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The
Group does not hold any callateral as security for trade recelvables.

All the Company's receivables are with Group undertakings and no additiona! disclosure in relation to credit risk is required. Interest
on £7.2m (2019: £38.6m) of the amounts owed by Group undertakings has been charged at one-month USK LIBOR plus 2%. The
balance of amounts owed by Group undertakings is interest-free without any terrms for repayment.

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the cash flow statements:

Group Company Groyup Company

2628 2020 2019 2012

£m £m £ £m

Cash and cash equivalents 19.3 0.1 6.6 -

The Group has & number of authorised counterparties with whom cash balances are held in the countries in which the Group
operates. Credit risk is minimised by considering the credit standing of all potential counterparties before selecting them by the use
of external credit ratings. 29.8% of the Group's cash and cash equivalent balance was held with counterparties with a minimum S&P
credit rating of A-. The remaining 0.2% related to cash and small short term balances held with PayPal (BBB+). The Group maonitors the
exposure, credit rating and outlook of all financial counterparties on a regular basis.

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company Group Company

2020 2020 2019 2013

£m £m £m £m

Trade payables 25.4 . 3.4 -
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - 259 - -
Other taxation and social security 63 - 82 -
Other payables 8.6 04 23 -
Accruals and deferred income 759 0.2 485 02
Total 6.2 26.2 624 0.2

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise armounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The Group has
financial risk managesment policies in place to ensure all payables are paid within the agreed credit terms.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payabies approximates to their fair value.

The amounts owed to Group undertakings are interest-free without any terms for repayment.

18. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES — INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Non-current liabilities

fnterest rate at interest fate at. Group Company Group Company

30 pter 2020 2020 2019 2019

2020 2019 £m £m £m £m

Sterling revolving loan 1.8% 25% 66.6 66.6 143 143
US dollar revolving loan 1.9% 3.8% 7.0 7.0 28.3 283
Total 73.6 73.6 426 42.6
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Current liabilities

Interest rate at Intarest rate at Group Company Group Company

30 September 30 September 2020 2020 2019 2019

2020 2019 £m £m £m £fm

Multi-currency overdraft 2.01% 2.59% 7.8 4.3 4.3 -
Total 7.8 4.3 4.3 -

The interest-bearing lecans are repayable as follows:

Group Company Group Company

2020 z020 2019 2019

£m £m £m £m

Within one year 7.8 4.3 43 -
Between two and five years 73.6 73.6 426 426
Total 8.4 77.9 462 426

During the period the Group agreed a new £30m multi-currency Revolving Credit Facility ("RCF"), which stands alongside Future's
existing debt facilities {of £135m which mature in February 2023). This facility was arranged in order to provide the Group with additional
working capital headroom to maintain the underlying growth momentum of the combined business, whilst navigating the impact of
COVID-19. This facility has not been required {and has not been drawn) as at 30 September 2020 and has been subsequently cancelled.

All material companies in the Group are guarantors to the facilities and the availability of the facilities is subject to certain covenants.

Totai fees relating to the new facility amounted to £0.2m and these are being amortised over the term of the facility. The bank
borrowings and interest are guaranteed by Future plc.

Interest payable under the facilities for sterling denominated loans is caiculated as the cost of one-month LIBOR {currently
approximately 0.04%) plus an interest margin of between 1.75% and 3.0%, dependent on the level of Leverage.

Interest payable under the facilities for the US dollar denominated loan is calculated as the cost of one-month USD LIBGR (currently
approximately 0.14%) plus an interest margin of between 1.75% and 3.0%, dependent on the level of Leverage.

As the term of facilities spans the proposed LIBOR end date of 2021, it is the intention of the Group to agree an alternative reference rate
with the Lenders ahead of the LIBOR end date.

The key covenants are set out in the following table where net debt is exclusive of non-current tax and other payables. Bank EBITDA is
calculated on a consistent GAAP basis with reported EBITDA adjusted for the impact of IFRS 16 Leases.

Net debt/Bank EBITCA Leverage in respect of any Relevant Period shall not exceed 3.0:1
Bank EBITDA/Interest interest Cover in respect of any Relevant Period shall not be less than 4.0:1

The covenants are tested quarterly on the basis of rolling figures for the preceding 12 months and the covenant position at
30 September 2020 is set out in the foliowing table:

30 Septembear 2020 30 September 2019 Covenant 2020 Covenant 2019
Net debt/Bank EB!TDA 0.6 times 1.0 times! < 3.0 times <30 times
Bank EBITDA/Interest 38.8 times 24.1times > 4.0 times > 4.0 times

1This is higher than leverage of 0.74 on page 7 due to MoNa Mobkile Nations deferred consideration being included as debt in the bank
covenant calculations.

The Group had drawn down £7.8m on its interest-bearing overdraft at 30 September 2020 {30 September 2012: £4.3m). Any draw
down forms part of the Group cash pooling account and can be offset against cash balances in other Group companies. Net of
peooiing the Group had a net cash position of £8.6m and tota! cash balance, including non-pool accounts of £11.5m.

19. PROVISIONS

Property Property
Group 22-7;2 22‘:
At Octeber 2.1 2.8
Adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (0.4) -
On acquisition 38 -
Charged in the year 0.8 o7
Utilised in the year (1.2) (C.7)
Released in the year - (0.7)
At 30 September 5.1 2.1

The provision for property relates to dilapidations and obligations under short leasehold agreements on vacant property. The majority of
the vacant property provision is expected to be utilised over the next five years.

Provisions for the Company were £nil (2019: £nil).
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20. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Group Group

2020 2018

Group £m Ete
Other payables - 0.4

Other payables consisted mainly of a property lease incentive which was derecognised on transition to IFRS 16 Leases (see note 1] for
further details).

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, For the Group's financial assets, the following table shows the measurement
caragories under IFRS 9:

Financial asset IFRS 9 classification

Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost

Trade and other receivables Armortised cost

Derivative - purchased option Fair value through profit or loss

There has not been a significant impact on the carrying amounts of assets held, All financial assets and liabilities are classed as level 1.
Deferred and contingent consideration

At 30 September 2012 deferred consideration of £43.9m related to the acquisition of MoNa Mobile Nations, LLC (*MoNa"). The MoNa
deferred consideration was settled in the period with around 50% being issued in shares (1,792,534 shares in Future plc issuedin
October 2019}, and around 50% (£21.4m) in cash {which was paid on 28 February ZQ20j.

AL 30 Septermber 2019 contingent consideration of £10.9m related to the acquisition of SmartBrief, LLC ("SmartBrief”). Following the
completion of the earnout period on 31 July 2020 the fair value of the contingent consideration was finalised at £3.6m ($4.6m) and
paid in Septemper 2020, This resulted in a fair value gain of £7.6m in the year {after discounting of £0.8m) being recognised in the
income statemeant,

Financial asset - derivative

In the comparative period, a derivative foreign currency option to buy $30m in June 2020 was acquired in order to hedge the currency
exposure arising on the MoNa contingent consideration. Fallowing the acceleration of settlement of contingent consideration for
MoNa, the currency option was closed out early, resulting in a fair value lass of £1.2rm being charged to the income staterment in the
year. There were no transfers between levels in the current or prior period,

Financial instruments by category

The designation of financial assets and liabilities under IFRS @ has been taken at the datc of injtial application, therefore the prior year
classifications have not been amended. The Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are set out below:

20

Amortised Total carrying Tetal fair
Group Note n::: valE‘:; ‘mé‘::
Finance lease receivable 1.6 1.6 1.6
Trade receivables net 15 52.9 52.9 52,9
Other receivables 15 5.8 5.8 5.8
Cash and cash equivalents 133 19.3 19.3 19.3
Total financial assets 79.6 79.6 79.6
Trade payables 17 {25.4) (25.4) (25.4)
Cther iiabilities {79.4) {79.4) (79.4)
Current borrowings 18 (7.8} (7.8) {7.8)
Non-current borrowings 18 {73.6) {73.6} {73.6)
Total financial liabilities {186.2) {186.2) {186.2)
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2019

Farr value

Amortsed through profit Total carrying Total far
Group Note Egorsr: * ‘gi: Va‘gl:: va‘\;ﬁ
Financial asset - derivative - 1.4 1.4 1.4
Trade receivables net 15 354 - 354 354
Other receivables 15 0.6 - 06 06
Cash and cash equivalents 6 5.6 - 6.6 6.6
Total financial assets 426 1.4 44.0 44.0
Trade payables 17 [3.4) - {3.4) (3.4)
Gther liabilities (50.4) - {50.4) (50.4)
Current borrowings 18 (4.3) - (4.3) (.3)
Deferred consideration - {43.9) (43.9) (43.9)
Contingent consideration - (10.9) {10.9) {10.9)
Non-current borrowings 18 {42.6) - [42.6) {42.6)
Total financial liabilities (100.7) (54.8) {155.5) {155.5)
The Company's financial assets and liabilities are set out below:
2020
Amortised Total carrying Totat fair
Company Note "EZ‘. va|£u': vale‘::
Other receivables 15 726 72.6 72.6
Cash and cash equivalents 16 0.1 Q.1 0.1
Total financial assets 72.7 72.7 72.7
Other liabilities 17 {26.2) (26.2) {26.2)
Current borrowings 18 (4.3) (4.3) (4.3)
Nan-current borrowings 18 {73.6) {73.6) {73.6)
Total financial liabilities (104.1) (104.1) (104.1)
2019
Amortised Fair value through Total carrying Total rair
Company Note s B Vag: vt
Financial asset - derivative - L4 14 1.4
Other receivables 15 94.7 - 24.7 947
Total financial assets 947 1.4 96.1 961
Other liabilities 17 (0.2} - (0.2) {0.2)
Non-current borrowings 18 [42.6) - (42.6) {426
Total financial liabilities {42.8) - {42.8) {42.8)

In both the Greup and Company tables total financial ilabilities are shown net of unamortised costs which ameunted to £0.9m [2019: £0.7m).

The fair value is the amount for which a financial instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties. If an active
market exists, the market price is applied. If an active market does not exist a discounted cash flow or generally accepted estimation and
valuation technique based on market conditions at the balance sheet date is used to calculate an estimated value.

The market value of financial instruments is determined by the use of valuation technigues including estimated discounted cash flows.

Treasury overview

The Group uses financial instruments where appropriate to raise funding for its operaticns and to manage the financial risks arising

from those operations, The agreements governing the principal instruments entered into were approved by the Board.

The Croup's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to cantinue as a going concern, provide returns

and benefits for shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 f 151



The principal financing and treasury exposures faced by the Group arise from foreign currencies, working capital management, the

g financing of capital expenditure and acquisitions, the management of interest rates on the Group's debt, the investment of surplus
a4 rash and the management of the Group's dabt facilities. The Group manages al! of these expasures will an abjective of remaining
£ within covenant ratios agreed with the Group's banks, and the Group Lias bean in complianee with its rovenants during the year.
z g
P These ratios are disclosed in note 18.
i
"
-g Currency and interest rate profile
=
E The currency and interest rate profile of the Group’s financial assets and liatilities is shown below:
T
Financial agsets Financial Habilities
Non- Non- Net financial
interest Floating interest {liabilities)/
bearing Total rate bearing Total assets
£imn £m Em Em £m Em
At 30 September 2020
Currency:
Sterling 10.6 10.6 (74.4) {95.0) (169.4) (158.8)
us Dollar 57.9 57.9 {7.0) (8.0) {15.0) 42.9
EuUro 4.3 4.3 - {0.5) (0.5) 3.8
AU Dollar 3.7 3.7 - (1.0) 1.0} 2.7
Other 3.1 31 - (0.3) (0.3) 2.8
Total 79.6 79.6 [81.4) [104.8) {186.2) {106.6)
AL 30 Septermnber 2019
Currency:
Sterling 10.8 10.8 (18.6) (35.6) (54.2) [43.4)
us Doillar 311 31 (28.3) (71.8) (100.0) {69.0)
Euro [oX2) 0.6 - {0.4) {0.4) 02
AU Dollar 11 11 - ©7) (07) 0.4
Other Q4 0.4 - {00) (01) 03
Total 440 44.0 [46.9) (108.6) (155.5) {11.5)

The orofit after tax impact reflects the foreign exchange differences that could arise following the retranslation of balances denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate, The retained earnings impact reflects the currency
translation differences that would arise directly in equity Uupon retranslation of the Group's US subsidiaries on consolidation. The method
of estimation involves assessing the transiation impact of the Us Dollar.

Interest rate risk
Details of the interest rates on borrowings as at 30 Septernber 2020 are set out in note 18,

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at floating interest rates
through its bank facilities. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, The Group evaluates

its risk appetite towards interest rate risks regularly and may undertake hedging activities, including interest rate swap contracts,

to manage interest rate risk in relation to its revolving credit facility if deemed necessary. The Group did not enter into any hedging
transactions during the current or prior years and as at 30 Septernber 2020 the only floating rate to which the Group was exposed is
LIBOR. The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities is detailed in the liguidity risk section of this note.

For 2020, if interest rates on net borrowings had been on average 0.5% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, the post-tax
profit for the year would have decreased/increased by £0.3m (2019: £0.2m).

There would be ne impact on equity excluding retained earnings.
Fareign exchange risk

Some of the Group's activities are carried out in countries ocutside the United Kingdom where transactions are carried out in that
country's own functional currency. Movements in exchange rates can therefore have a significant impact on the Group's totai cash flows,
whilst the trans(ation of the resuits, assets and liabilities of foreign operations into Sterling can have a significant effect on the Group’s
reported profits and balance sheet. The main exposure is to maovements in the US Dollar against Sterling.

The Group's policy for managing exchange rate risk is summarised as follows:

Transaction exposure - the Group manages this by ensuring that transactions are denominated in the local functional currency of the
aperating units wherever possible. Where this is not possible the use of forward contracts to hedge exposure is considered, however the
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Group seeks to ensure that its balance sheet positions are naturally hedged wherever possible. The use of forward contracts {or any other

derivative financial instrument) is subject to authorisation by the Board.

A derivative foreign currency option to buy $30m in June 2020 was acquired in order to hedge the currency exposure arising on

contingent consideration relating to the MoNa Mobile Nations, LLC acquisition. Following the acceleration of settlement of contingent
consideration for MoNa, the currency option was closed out early, resulting in a fair value loss of £1.2m being charged to the income

staternent In the year.

It is estimated that, with all other variables held equal (in particular other exchange rates), a general change of 10 percent in the value of
the US Doilar against Sterling would have had the following impact on the Group's current year profit after tax and on retained earnings:

2020 currency risks expressed in
Currency 1/Currency 2

£m GBP/USD
Reasonable shift 10%
Impact on profit after tax if Currency 1strengthens against Currency 2 1.4
Impact on profit after tax if Currency 1 weakens against Currency 2 1.4)
Impact on shareholders' funds if Currency 1 strengthens against Currency 2 191
Impact on shareholders’ funds if Currency 1 weakens against Currency 2 {19.1)
2019 currency risks expressed in

Currency 1/Currency 2

£m GBP/USD
Reasonable shift 10%
Impact on profit after tax if Currency 1 strengthens against Currency 2 0.2
Impact on prefit after tax if Currency 1 weakens against Currency 2 (0.2)
Impact on shareholders' funds if Currency 1 strengthens against Currency 2 137
Impact on shareholders' funds if Currency 1 weakens against Currency 2 (13.7)

The profit after tax Impact reflects the foreign exchange differences that could arise following the retranslation of balances
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. The retained earnings impact

reflects the currency translation differences that would arise directly in equity upon retranslation of the Group's US subsidiaries on
consolidation. The method of estimation involves assessing the translation impact of the US dollar.

Liquidity risk

The Group funds the business largely from cash flows generated from operations and long-term debt. Details of the Group's
barrowings are disclosed in note 18.

The Group menitors and manages the cash for the Group and has maintained committed banking facilities as noted above to mitigate
any liquidity risk it may face. If necessary, inter-company loans within the Group meet short-term cash needs. The following table shows
the Group's remaining contractual maturity for financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments. The table has been drawn up

based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group is obliged to pay:

Less than Between one Between two Overfive
30 September 2020 e ey and five Y Y T‘::tr?-:
Trade payables (25.4} - - - (25.4)
Other liabilities (79.4) - - - (79.4}
Borrowings {7.8) - {73.6) - (81.4)
Total financial liabilities {12.6) - {73.6) - (186.2)
Less than Between one Between two Over five

30 September 2019 i snd e Y Em iy Yeem T

Trade payables {3.4) - - - (3.4}
Other liabilities (50.4) - - - {5C.4)
Borrowings {4.3) - (42.6) - {46.9)
Deferred consideration {43.9) - - - (43.9)
Contingent consideration - {10.9) - - {10.9)
Total financial liabilities (102.0) {10.9) 42.6) - {155.5)
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22, ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2019
Number of Number of

shares £m shares £m
Allotted, issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of 15p each
At beginning of year 83,595,421 12,5 81,518,591 12.2
Share placing to fund acquisition 8,184,906 12 - -
Issued as consideration for acquisition 2,479,031 0.4 1642658 Q.2
Share scheme exercises 3,754,818 0.6 433580 Ql
Share Incentive Plan matching shares 772 - 592 -
At end of year 98,014,955 14.7 83,595,421 12.5

©n 15 October 2019, the Company issued 1,792,534 Ordinary shares with a value of £21.8rn (share price of £12.18) as consideration for
the deferred consideration due on the acquisition of MoNa Mobhile Nations, LLC.

On 5 November 2019, the Company issued 8,184,906 Ordinary shares with a value of £104.4m (share price of £12.75) issued as a placing
in order to fund the acquisition of TI Media.

©n 29 Novermber 2019, the Company issued 686,497 Ordinary shares with a value of £9.1m (share price of £13.22) as consideration for
the acquisition of Barcroft Studios,

Further detaifs of acquisitions are shown in note 28,

During the year 3,754,818 Ordinary shares with a nominal value of £563,223 were issued by the Company pursuant to share scheme
exercises and a further 779 Ordinary shares were issued under the Share Incentive Plan for a combined total cash commitment of £nil,
as detailed in note 23.

23. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The income statement charge for the year for share-based payrnents {and related social security costs) was £8.7m (2019 £101m),
of which £5.5m {2012: £9.0m) is included in ‘adjusting items’ in the income staterment (see page 128 for a reconciliation of adjusting
iterns). This charge has been included within administration expenses.

These charges arise when employees are granted awards under the Group's share option schemes, perfarmance share plan (PSP),
deferrad annuai bonus scheme (DABS) or Share Incentive Plan (SIP] and when employees are granted awards by the trustaes of The
Future plc Emplayee Benefit Trust (EBT). The charge @quates to the fair value of the award and has been calculated using the Monte
Carlo and Black-Scholes models, using the most appropriate medel for cach scheme. Assumptinns have been made in these models
for expected volatility, risk-free rates and dividend yieids.

A reconciliation of movements in share options and other share incentive schemes is shown below:

2020 2020 2019 2019
Number of ‘Weighted average Nurnber of Weighted average

fs ise price i f: ds ise price

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 5,227,036 £0.000 4,970,723 £0.000
Granted 705,849 £0.000 1124899 £0.000
Share awards exercised (3,682,585) £0.000 {433,580) £0.000
Cancelled {193,493) £0.000 [435,006) £0.000
Qutstanding at 30 September 2,056,807 £0,000 5,227,036 £0.000
Exercisable at 30 September 274,193 £0.000 2,663 £0.000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options and other share incentive awards during the year was
£13.829 {2019: £5.916).
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Far options and other share incentive schemes outstanding at 30 September the weighted average exercise prices and remaining

contractual lives are as follows:

Weighted average remaining

Number of options/awards contractual life In years

2020 2019 2020 2019
PSP
Novermber 2016 - 1,749,634 - -
February 2017 271,530 2,005,120 - -
Novermber 2017 504,521 504,521 - 1
February 2018 26,122 64,611 - 1
November 2018 668,491 691,759 1 2
March 2019 - 13,393 2 2
May 2019 77,322 161,179 2 3
June 2012 16,992 16,992 2 3
August 2019 - 17,094 2 3
November 2019 307,095 - 2 -
February 2020 50,000 - 2
June 2020 17,222 - 3 -
July 2020 75,000 - 3 -
September 2020 2,500 - 2 -
DABS
November 2015 2,663 2,663 - -
Novermber 2019 37,349 - 1 -
Total outstanding at 30 September 2,056,807 5227036 2 1

The weighted average exercise price for share options outstanding at 30 September 2020 is £nil {2012: £nil).

The fair value per share for grants made during the year and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows:

2020

psp psp PSP PSP pspP

Grant date 25 Nov 2019 5 Feb 2020 1Jun 2020 083Jul 2020 21 Sep 2020
Share price at grant date £14.8000 £11.8800 £13.0400 £12.2600 £18.3200
Exercise price - - - - -
Vesting period (years) 3 3 3 3 2
Expected volatility’ 4T% 47% 58% 58% 60%
Option life [years) 3 3 3 3 2
Expected life (years) 3 3 3 3 2
Risk-free rate 0.47% 0.43% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Dividend yield 0.08% 0.08% 0.08% 0.08% 0.08%
Fair value? £12.4000 £9.2219 £10.5863 £9.7798 £16.1972
Fair value - TSR elerment? £10.0000 £6.5638 £8.1326 £7.2995 £14.0742
Fair value — EPS element® £14.8000 £11.8800 £13.0400 £12.2600 £18.3200
2009

PSP PSP PSP PSP PSP

Grant date 23 Nov 2318 14 Mar 2019 17 May 2012 10 Jun 2012 12 Aug 2019
Share price at grant date £5.1400 £7.3600 £8.4500 £1.7700 £10.1400
Exercise price - - - - -
Vesting period (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Expected volatility’ 45% 45% 46% 46% 47%
Opticn life (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Expected life (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Risk-free rate 0.79% 0.79% 0.69% 051% 0.33%
Dividend yield - _ - _ -
Fair value? £3.3010 £5.6070 £6.4290 £9.8648 £8.1741
Fair value ~ share price element? £2.6619 £3.8540 £4.4081 E£7.9595 £6.2082
Fair value - EPS element* £5.1400 £7.360 £8.45C0 £11.7700 £10.1400

Notes:

1. The expected volatility is based on Future's historical volatility, averaged over a period equal to the expected life, whare possible.

2. The Group has used tha Black-Scholes model to value instr

d performance criterla such as earnings per share. For instruments with market-based

performance critaria, notably TSR and share price performance, the Group has used a Monte Garlo model to determine the fair value,
3. 50% of PSP grants which have market-based performance criterla have been valued using a Model Carle model.
4. 50% of PSP grants which have non-market based performance criterfa have been valued using a Black-Scholes model.
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performance Share Plan (PSP}

The RSP is a share-based incentive schema open to the Fxecutive Directors and certain other key employees arid rising stars, usually
basad on a percentage of the participant's salary. Awards under this suhieine are subject to stretohing performance criteria nmeasured
against a combination of earnings per share ("EPS"}, and Total Shareholder Return {"TSR"] (in prior years, share price} performance,
depending on the date of grant. Unless the Remuneration Committee decides otherwise at the date of grant, awards will vest three
years after the date of grant subject to the participant's continued employment within the Group and achievernent of the following
performance criteria.

Performance criteria in respect of awards granted during the year ended 30 September 2018:
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Performance rmetrics are weighted 50% on the Group's adjusied EPS and 50% on the Company’s share price. The threshold entry
point of 25% vesting for the EPS element requires a 5% cormpound annual growth rate (CAGR), with 100% vesting at 10% CAGR. The
threshold entry peint of 25% vesting for the share price element requires a 5% CAGR, with 100% vesting at 9% CAGR, Vesting will be
on a straight line basis between the threshold and maximum for both elernents. Following the completion of the rights issue in the
year ended 30 September 2018 the Remuneration Committee rebased the share price targets to adjust for the impact of the Purch
acquisition and associated rights issue.

Performance critera in respect of awards granted during the yvear ended 30 September 2019:

Performance metrics are weighted 50% an the Group's adjusted EPS and 50% on the Company's share price, The threshold entry
point of 19% vesting for the EPS elerment requires a 5% CAGR, with 100% vesting at 20% CAGR. The threstiold entry point of 19% vesting
for the share price element requires 8% CAGR, with 100% vesting at 20% CAGR. Vesting will be on a straight line basis between the
threshold and maximum for both elements.

Performance criteria in respect of awards granted during the year ended 30 September 2020:

Performance metrics are weighted 50% on the Group's adjusted EPS and 50% on the Company’s TSR. The threshold entry point of
25% vesting for the EPS element requires a 7% CAGR, with 100% vesting at 16% CAGR. The thresheld entry point of 25% vesting for the
TSR element requires 6% CAGR, with 100% vesting at 15% CAGR. Vesting will be on a straight line basis between the threshold and
maximum for both elements.

Grants were made under the PSP in November 2018, March 2019, May 2018, June 20189, August 2019, November 2019, February 2020,
June 2020, July 2020 and September 2020.

Deferred Annual Bonhus Scheme {DABS)

The DABS is a share-based incentive scheme open to the Executive Directors and certain managers across the Group. The maximum
value of any shares granted under the DABS to any one participant will be an amount which is equal to a fixed percentage of that

eligible participant's annual bonus for the previous financial year. The number of shares over which an award is to be granted to each
participant will usually be calculated by reference to the market value of an Ordinary share in the Company on the date of the award.

For Executive Directors, anhual bonuses for the year ending 30 September 2020 are to be paid 50% in cash in November 2020 and
50% in Cuture shares, deferred far rwo vears. See page 96 of the Directors' Remuneration Report for further detail.

The last grant made under the DABS was (n November 2019,

Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

The SiP is ppen to all UK ermnployees including the Executive Directors. It s a tax efficient incentive plan pursuant to which employeas
are eligible to acquire up to £150 lor 10% of salary, if less) worth of Ordinary shares in the Company per month or £1,800 per annum.
Under the SIP, employees are invited te subscribe for Partnership shares via salary deductions. If an employee agrees to buy
Partnership shares the Company currently matches the number of Partnership shares bought with an award of Matching shares

on the basis of one Matching share for every four Partnership shares. Matching share awards to date have been met by the issue of
Crdinary shares to Yorkshire Building Society as Trustee of the SiP.

156 / FUTURE PLC




Financial Statements

24. RESERVES

Share premium account

Share premium represents the excess of proceeds received over the nominal value of new shares issued.

2020 2019
Group and Company £m £m
At 1 October 97.2 972
Premium arising on issue of equity shares 103.2 -
Costs of share issue (3.4) -
At 30 September 197.0 97.2

During the year 8,184,906 shares were issued at a premium of £103.2m, less share issue costs of £3.4m, to fund the acquisition of Tl
Media. See note 28 for further details.

Merger reserve

Group Company Group Compahy

2020 2020 2019 2019

£m £m £m £m

At 1 Qctober 140.4 3.4 1249 159
Premium arising cn equity shares issued as consideration 305 30.5 155 15.5
At 30 September 170.9 61.9 1404 314

An amount of £102.0rmn in the merger reserve arose in previous years following the 1992 Group recrganisation and is non-distributable.
The movement in the current year of £30.5m relates to the premium on shares issued as consideration for the settlement of deferred
consideration on the acquisition of MoNa Mobile Nations in Cctober 2019 of £21.5m, and for the acquisition of Barcroft Studios in
November Z019 of £2.0m (2019: acquisition of MoNa Mobile Nations, in March 2019 and Smartgrief, in July 2019},

Treasury reserve

The treasury reserve represents the cost of shares in Future plc purchased in the market and held by the EBT to satisfy awards made
by the trustees.

Group Sroup

2020 2019

£m £m

At 1 October (0.3) {0.3)
Acquisition of own shares (8.5) -
At 30 September {8.8) {0.3)

During the year the Company purchased §31,477 of its own shares te fund the future vesting of share options, at a total value of £8.5m.

The 814,065 (2019: 110,439) shares held by the EBT represent 0.8% (2012: 0.1%) of the Company's issued share capital. The treasury
reserve is non-distributable.

25. PENSIONS

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme for employees resident in the United Kingdom.

in the US, the Group operates a section 401(K) profit sharing defined contribution plan in respect of pensions, which covers
substantially all Future US employees. The section 401(K) plan allows employees to invest in 22 registered mutual funds at Charles
Schwab Trust Bank, the plan’s custodian, The employees, not the employer, have compiete control over which funds they invest in,

although they have no control over the stocks owned by the funds.

During the year, £2.4m {2019: £1.3my} contributions were made to these plans and at 30 September 2020 the cutstanding balance due
to be paid over to the plans was £0.3m (2019: £0.2m).
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26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
{a) Operating lease commitments

Following the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases, future minimum sub-lease receipts expected under non-cancellable operating subleases at
30 September 2020 total £1.1m {(2019; £2.2m).

During the year, £0.8m was recognised in the income statement in respect of operating lease rental payments for short-term and
low-value leases {2012: £3.4m was recognised in respect of total operating leases before the adoption of IFRS 16 Legses), and £C1m
{2012: £0.2m) was recognised in respect of sub-lease recelpts.

The Group also leases equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.

{b) Contingent liabilities

There were nn material contingent liabilities as at 30 September 2020. in the comparative period, a contingent liability of £43.9m was
recognised lor vartiable deterred consideralion on the acquisition of MoNa Mobile Naliuns, LLC (*“MoMa”) and £10.9Mm was racognised
for variable deferred contingent consideration on the acquisition of SmartBrief, Inc. The MoNa deferred consideration was settled in
the period with around 50% being issued i shares (1,792,534 shares in Future plc issued in Cctober 2019}, and around 5G% (£21.4m) in

cash {which was paid on 28 February 2020). The variable deferred contingent consideration for SmartBrief, LLC was settled at £3.6m
($4.6m) in September 202C.

{c) Capital commitments

Thera were no material capital commitments as at 30 September 2020 {2019 £nil).

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had no materiaf transactions with related partias in 2020 or 2019 which might reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by users of these financial statements.

During the year, the Company had management tees and recharges payable of £3.2m (2019 £1.4m) to suhsidiary undertakings, The
outstanding balance owed at 30 September 2020 was £3.2m (2019: £1.4m). See note 21 for details.

No individuals other than the Directors meet the definition of key management personnel. Details of key management personnel
compensation are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Repart on page 25.
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Acquisition of Barcroft Studios

Financial Statements

On 30 November 2019, Future Holdings 2002 Limited {a wholly owned direct subsidiary of Future plc) acquired 100% of the equity
in Barcroft Studios Limited {*Barcroft”), a small independent studic that creates original content, which is published on a variety of
owned and operated social sites and distributed across mass media channels. Total consideration was £23.4m, of which 40% was

satisfied by the issue of 686,497 shares, with the remaining £14.3m paid in cash.

The impact of the acquisition on the consolidated balance sheet was:

Fair value
£m
Tangible assets 05

Intangible assets
- Brands 4.5
- Customer relationships 27
- Content 31
- Nonh-compete 06
Cash and cash equivalents 20
Trade and other receivables 3.0
Trade and other payables {3.3)
Financial liakilities - interest-bearing lcans and borrowings (0.2)
Deferred tax (2.1)
Net assets acquired 108
Goodwill 12.6
23.4

Consideration:

Cash 14.3
Equity shares a1
Total consideration 23.4

The acquisition has further diversified the Group's revenues with the addition of video production expertise, and goodwill is
attributable to the opportunities that exist to further monetise the Group's existing brands through video. The intangibles recognised,

including goodwill, are not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Included within the Group's results for the period are revenues of £111m and a profit before tax of £2.1m from Barcroft (excluding deal
fees, associated integration costs, acquired intangible amortisation and depreciation which is not separately identifiable for acquired

fixed assets].

If the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial year, it would have contributed £14.0m of revenue and a profit
before tax of £2.7m (excluding deal fees, associated integration costs, acquired intangible amortisation and depreciation which is not

separately identifiable for acquired fixed assets) during the period.

Gross trade receivables were £2.1m, of which £2.0m on acquisition were expected to be recovered.
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Acquisition of Tl Media

Q1 30 October 2019 the Group announced the proposed acaulsition of Tl Media for a total consideration of £140 million in cash, Tl
Media is a UK-based, print-led ¢onsurniel inayucine and digital puhhsher with deety industry heritage and a pertfolin that incorporates
41 brands including Decanter, Country Life, Wallpaper*and Wwoman & Home.

On 16 March 2020, it was announced that the CMA had found that the purchase of TI Media did not raise competition concerns,
subject to the sale of three closely competing products: WorldSoccer; Amateur Photographer; and the technology website
Trustedreviews.com, The Sroup subsequently agreed the sales of WorldSoccer and Amateur Photographer to Kelsey Meadia, and
Trusted Reviews to Incisive Media, which completed in May 2020.
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The acquisition was completed on 20 April 2020, The acquisition was part funded by raising proceeds of £104.4m, net of costs of
£3.4m, through a placing of 8,184,906 new ordinary shares in Movember 2019, with the balance being settled through exercise and
subsequent drawdown on the Group's £45m accordion option on the RCF.

The impact of the acquisition on the consolidated balance sheet was:

Fair value
fm
Tangible assets
- IFR$ 16 right-of-use assets 83
- Other tangible assets 28
Intangible assets
- Publishing rights 75.0
- Subscriber database 34
-~ Customer relationships 33
~ Content 16
- Software 4.2
Cash and cash equivatents 272
tnventories 11
Trade and other receivables 36.8
Trade and other payables (51.3)
Non-currant liabilities
- Long term lability mo.s)
- IFRS 16 lease liability Mo
- Other non-current liabilities (8.5)
Deferred tax (2.3)
Net liabilities acquired {21.1)
Goeodwill 84 4
63.3
Consideration®
Cash 63.3
Total consideration 63.3

The consideration in the table above excludes debt acquired of £110.8m and is aiso gross of cash acquired of £27.2m which in total
amounts to £146,9m, This calculates higher than the £140m price disclosed due to the timing of the acquisition being mid-month
when the cash and cash equivalents are iower than at a month end close, this however also results in a one-off operating cash benefit.

T Media brings to Future a presence in the Wine, Golf, Equestrian, Country Living, TV Listings and Gardening verticals and deepens
and extends Future's strength and position in Home, Cycling, Consumer Technology and Country Sports. Goodwill is attributable to
the synergies of the combined Group and the opportunities that exist to further monetise T Media’s existing brands. The intangibles
recognised, including goodwill, are not expected fo be deductible for tax purposes.

Included within the Group's results for the period are revenues of £64.0m and an adjusted operating profit of £11.1m from T1 Media
{excluding deal fees, assaciated integration costs, acquired intangible amaortisation and depraciation which is not separately
identifiable for acquired fixed assets).

If the acquisition had been cornpleted on the first day of the financial year, it would have contributed £153.2m of revenue and an
adjusted operating profit of £23.8m (excluding closed and divested titles and subsidiaries, deal fees, associated integration costs,
acquired intangible amortisation and depreciation which is not separately identifiable for acquired fixed assets) during the peried.

Gross trade receivables were £16.3m, of which £15.1m on acquisition were expected to be recovered.
The deferred tax liability in the table above of £2.3m includes a deferred tax asset onh acquisition of £14.2m (in respect of histeric

TI Media tax losses, corporate interest restriction losses and capital allowances), net of a deferred tax liability arising on acquired
intangible assets of £16.5m.
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Financial Statements

Acquisition of SmartBrief, LLC - update to fair values and settlement of contingent consideration

In the prior year on 29 July 2012 Future plc acquired SmartBrief, Inc. {following the acquisition, the legal form of the entity was changed
from an Incorporation to an LLC). An update to the fair value of the assets has been performed, with no change to the values previously
disciosed other than an increase of £0.3m in the deferred tax liability. Fair values are detailed below and are now considered to be final:

Fair value
£m
Tangible assets 0.4

Intangible assets
- Subscriber base 10.6
- Brand 28
- Software 26
- Other intangible assets 25
Cash 23
Trade and other receivables 57
Trade and other payables {6.6)
Financial liabilities - interest-bearing loans and borrowings (3.8)
Deferred tax {4.6)
Net assets acquired 1.9
Goodwill 3.7
43.6

Consideration:

Equity shares ne
Cash 21.2
Consideration 328
Contingent consideration 10.8
Total consideration 4£3.6

Following the end of the earnout period an 30 July the contingent consideration was settled at a final value of £3.6m {$4.6m). See

note 21 for further detail.

MoNa Mobile Nations, LLC - settlement of deferred consideration

On 11 October 2019 the Group announced the acceleration of the payment of the contingent consideration in respect of MoNa Mobile
Nations, LLC, which the Group acquired on 1 March 2019. Total contingent consideration of $55m was settled in the period with around
50% being issued in shares (1,792,534 shares in Future plc issued in October 2019, and around 50% (£21.4m) in cash {which was paid

on 28 February 2020). See notes 21, 22 and 24 for further detail.
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29. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Latalls of Uhwe Cornpany's subsidiaries at 30 September 2020 are set out below. All subsidiarics are included in the cutsulidation.
Shares of those companies marked with an * are indirectly owned by Future pic throughi dri intermediate holding company.

Company name and registered number

Ascent Publishing Limited*
02561341

Barcroft Media Limited*
Q4826405

Barcroft Productions Limited®
07661595

Barcraft Studios Limited*
09432842

Eurcpean Magazines Limited*
02197708

EX TRL Limited*
04835255

Future Holdings 2002 Limited
04387886

Future Publishing Limited*
02008885

Future Publishing (Qverseas) Limited*

06202940

Future Publishing Holdings Limited

03430449

Mareve Limited*
05901325

Marketforce (UK. Limited*
0049N50

Mousebreaker Limited*
04750365

New Musical Express Lirnited*
01576443

Sapphire Bidco Limited*
ms73ce

Sapphire Holdco Limited*
ms7282

Sapphire Midco Limited*
1157151

Sapphire Toepco Limited®
ME7141

Sarracenia Limited
0458285)

The Essentiais Publishing
Company Lirmited*
01493149

Tl Media Limited*
00053626

Time Inc, {UK) Property
Investrments Limited*
09759756

Next Commerce Pty Limited*
115146 786

MoNa Media Canada Limited*
BCH98396

Future Publishing s.r.o.*
0939395]

Purch Technologies Sarl*
84138050400016
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Country of incorporation
and registered office

England and Wales'
England and Wales'

England and wWales'

Fngiandg and Wales!

England and wales'
England and wWales'
England and Wales!
England and Wales
England and wales'
England and Waleg'
England and Wales?
Frgland and Wales'
England and Wales?
England and Wales?
Engiand and Wales!
England and Wales'
England and Wales'
England and wales'

England and Wales'

England and Wales?

England and Wales'

England and Wales'

Australia’
Canada®
Czech Republic®

France®

Nature of business
Non-trading

Video cantent
production

Video content
production

Hoiding company

Magazine and
online publishing

Dormant

Holding company
Publishing
Publishing
Holding company
Dormant™
Dorrmant
Dormant™
Dormant™
Non-trading
Nen-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading

Dormant

Dormant™

Holding company

Dormant

Comparison shopping

Digital media
publishing

Non-trading

Non-trading

Hoiding %

Class of shares.

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

87.5

100

100

100

100

100

Hole]

100

100

100

00

100

100

100

100

100

100

£1 Ordinary shares

£3 Ordinary shares

10 pence A Ordinary shares
10 pence B Crdinary shares

£0.001 A Ordinary shares
£0.001 B Crdinary shares
£0.001 C Ordinary shares
£0.001 D Lrdinary shares

£1 A Ordinary shares
£1 B Ordinary shares

£1 Ordinary shares

£1 Ordinary shares

10 pence Crdinary shares
£1 COrdinary shares

1 pence Ordinary shares
£1 Ordinary shares

£1 Crdinary shares

£1 Crdinary shares

£1 Ordinary shares

£1 Crdinary shares
£1Ordinary shares

£1 Ordinary shares

£1 Ordinary shares

£1Ordinary shares

£1 Ordinary shares

£1 Ordinary shares

£10rdinary shares

$1 Ordinary shares
Not applicable
CZK10rdinary shares

Not applicable




Financial Statcments

Country of incorporation
Company name and registered numbet and registered office Nature of business Holding % Class of shares

Future verlag GrmbH*

7 - i 875 €1 Ordinary shares
HRBI2567 Germany Non-trading Y
Pricepanda Group GmbH* s ;
€1 Ordinary shares
HRBIZBATIE Germany’ Dormant 100 ¥
Wwindsor Support Services Private
Limited* India® Cormant 100 Rand 10 equity shares
U74999DL20MFTC217920
Next Commerce Philippines Inc* g .
ry sh
CS201517763 Philippines Dormant 100 £ Ordinary shares
MoNa Mobile Nations, LLC* . Digital media .
' L Not |
T277455 USA publishing 100 ot applicable
Future US, Inc* 12 o .
' |
1513070 USA Publishing 100 Not applicable
Newbay Media LLC* 12 . .
4208889 USA Non-trading 100 Not applicable
Purch Group LLC* 2 . .
4560993 USA Trading 100 Not applicable
SmartBrief, LLC* . L o -
3072249 UsA Digital publishing 100 Not applicable
1 Registered office: Quay House, The Ambury, Bath, BA11UA, England B Registered office: CharlottenstraBe 4, 10969 Beriin, Germany
2 Registered office: 3rd Floor, 161 Marsh Wall, London, E14 9AP, England 9 Registered office: Dpt 610, Prime Towers F 79-80, Okhla Industrial Area,
3 Registered office: Suite I, Level 10,100 Walker Street, North Sydney, Phase 1 New Delhi New Delhi DLTIO020 India
NSW 2060, Australia 10 Registered office: 2/F GC Corporate Plaza, 150 Legaspi Street, Legaspi Village,
4 Registered office: 1800-355 St Burrard, Vancouver Colombie Makati, Manila, Philippines
Britannigue V6C2G8, Canada T Registered office: 360 Central Ave, Suite 800, 5t Petersburg, FL 33701, USA
5 Registered office: Holedkova 100/9, Srnichov, 150 00 Praha 5, Czech Republic 12 Registered office: 11 West 42nd Street, New York, NY 10036, USA
& Registered office: 195 Avenue Charles de Gaulle 92200 Neuilly-sur-Seine, France 13 Registered office: 55511th Street, Suite 600, Washington, DC 20004, USA
7 Registered office: c/o Poruba GBR, Clemensstrafie 32, 80803 Munich, Germany 14 Company was voluntarily struck off on 13 October 2020

Ascent Publishing Limited, Future Holdings 2002 Limited, Future Publishing Limited, Tl Media Limited, Sapphire Bidco Limited, Sapphire
Midco Limited, Sapphire Holdco Limited, Sapphire Topco Limited, Barcreft Studios Limited, Barcraft Productions Limited, Barcroft Media
Limited, European Magazines Limited, Time Inc. {UK) Property Investments Limited and EX TRL Limited are exempt from the requirement
to file audited financial staternents by virtue of Section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006, Sarracenia Limited and Marketforce (U.K)) Limited
are exempt from the requirement to file audited financial statements by virtue of Section 480 of the Companies Act 2006.

30. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Acquisition of CinemaBlend

On 2 October 2020, Future US, Inc. acquired CinemaBlend, a premium digital entertainment publisher based in the US. CinemaBlend is 2
high-growth digital brand focused on the TV, film and entertainment market. Through its website, podcast series, social media channels
and newsletters, CinemaBlend provides a platform for enthusiasts and casual fans to discover, explore and discuss films and TV shows,
both on streaming services such as Netflix and linear TV such as HBO.

Total consideration paid was $12.75m {$132.5m net of a working capital adjustrment of $0.75m, 7.5x multiple of expected FY 2020 contribution).

As the acquisition completed shortly after the reporting date, the fair values of the intangible assets acquired are in the process of being
determined,

Recommended offer for GoCo Group plc

On 25 Navember 2020, the Group announced a recommended offer for GaCo Group plc {*GoCo”) for total consideration of around £594m
comprising around £450m in equity (via the issue of 22.9r Future plc shares), and £144m in cash, funded by increasing the Group's debt
facilities through a £215m twe year term loan. In addition the Group’s £30m short dated COVID-19 facility has been cancelled. On
completion the Group will have total facilities of £350m.

The recommended offer will significantly strengthen the Group's proposition of seeking to address the growing consumer demand for
informed and value driven purchasing decisions enabled by intent driven content, and provides a unigue cpportunity to capitalise on the
combination of the Group's deep audience insight with GoCo's expertise in price comparison and the proprietary technology of both the
Future Group and the GoCo Group.
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Notice is given that the Annual General Meeting of Future plc wiil be held at
1-10 Praed Mews, London, W2 1QY on Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 3:30pm
to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions:

Ordinary Resolutions (1-18}

10.

1.

12.

13.

Toreceive and adopt the Annual Report
including the audited financial staternents
for the year ended 30 Sentember 2020,

To declare a final dividend for the year
ended 30 Septermber 2020 of 1.6p per
ordinary share payable on 16 February
2021 to shareholders onthe register al the
close of business on 15 Janwary 2021.

To approve the amendments to the
Remuneration Policy for the three year
neriod commencing on 1 October 2020 as
set outin pages 84 to 93 of the Annual
Report of the Company

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Report set out on pages 80 to 84 and
pages 9410103 (inclusive} in the
Annual Report.

To re-elect Richard Huntingfordlas a
Director of the Company.

Tore-elect Zllah Byng-Thorne as a
Director of the Company.

To elect Rachel Addison as Director of the
Company

To elect Meredith Amdur as a Director of
the Company.

To elect Mark Brooker as a Director of the
Company.

Tare-elect Hugo Drayfon as a Director of
the Company.

To re~elect Rob Hattrell as a Director of the
Company.

Tore-elact Alan Newrnan as a Director of
the Company.

To appoint Deloitte LLF as Auditor of the
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4.

15.

Company to hold office until the
conclusion of the next general meeting at
which accounts are to be laid before the
Company.

To authorise the Audit and Risk
Comumittes to decide the remuneration of
the Auditar,

That: a. the Directors be authorised, for
the purposes of section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’), to allot
shares in the Company or grantrights to
subscribe for, or convert any security into,
shares in the Company: (i} in accordance
with article 3 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, up to a maximum nominal
amount of £4,851,747.45 (such amount to
be reduced by the nomina! amount of any
equity securities (as defined in section
560 of the Acl) alliotted under paragraph
(if) below in excess of £5,703,494.90); and
(il) comprising equity securities ( as
defined in section 560 of the Act), up to a
maximum nominal amount of
£9703,494.90 (such amountto be
reduced by any shares allotted or rights
granted under paragraph {i) above) in
connection with an uffer by way of a rights
issue; b. this authority shall expire at the
conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company after the passing
of this resolution, or, if earlier, at the close
of business on 10 May 2022 and ¢. all
previous unutilised authorities under
section 55] of the Act shall cease to have
effact (save to the extent that the same
are exercisable pursuant to section 551(7)
of the Act by reason of any offer or
agreement made prior to the date of this
resoiution which would or might require
shares ta be allotted or rights tabe
granted onor after that date).

16. To authorise the Company, and all

companies that are its subsidiaries, atany
time curing the period for which this
resolution has effect for the purposes of

17.

18.

section 366 of the Companies Act 2006

o

2) make political donations to political
parties and/or independent election
candidates not exceeding £50,000 in
total:

)  make political donations to
politicat organisations other than
political parties not exceeding
£50,000in total; and

©) incur political expenditure not
exceeding £50,000 intotal,
during the period beginning with
the date of the passing of this
resolution and ending following
the conclusion of the Company's
next Annual General Meeting or, if
earlier, on 10 May 2022.

That the rules of the Future plc Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the 'US Plan?)
referred to in the Explanatory Notes to
this resoiution and produced in draft to
this meeting and, fot the purpose of
identification, initialled by a Director., be
approved and that the Directors of the
Company be authorised to make any
changes they consider necessary or
desirable to the rules of the US Plan to
take account of the reguirements of
section 423 of the US Internal Revenue
Code, as amended, and 1o address any
applicable US securities laws
requirements.

That

a) the rules of the Future plc Value
Creation Plan (the "VCP") in the form
produced to the meeting and initialled
by the Chair of the meeting for the
purposes of identification, the principat
terms of which are summarised an
page 103, be and are hereby approved
and the Directors be and are generally
authorised to adopt the VCP and to do
all acts and things that they consider
necessary or expedient to give effect
1o the VCP; and




by the Directors be and are hereby

authorised to adopt further sub-plans
based on the VCP but modified to take
account of local tax, exchange control
or securities laws in overseas
territories, provided that any cash or
shares made available under such
further sub-plans are treated as
counting against any limits on
participation in the VCP.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS (19-22)
Special Resolutions 19
19, That

a)

b)

the Directors be given power,

pursuant to section 570 of the

Companies Act 2006, (the ‘Act™):

i) subjecttothe passing of
resolution 15 to allot equity
securities (as defined in section
560(1) of the Act) for cash
pursuant to the authority
conferred onthem by that
resolution; and

iy tosellequity securities (as defined
in section 560(1) of the Act) held
by the Company as treasury
shares (as defined in section
724(5) of the Act) for cash,

in either case as if section 561 of the

Act did not apply to the allotment or

sale.

the power under paragraph (a) above

shall be limited to:

(i) theallotment of equity securities
inconnection with arights issue,
open offer or other pre-emptive
offer {but in the case ¢f the
authorization granted under
resolution 15.a.ii, such powers
shall be imited to arights issue
only) in favour of holders of
erdinary shares in proportion (as
nearly as practicable) to the
respective numbers of ordinary
shares held by therm on the record
date for such allotment, but
subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the
Directors may deem fit to deal
with fractional entitlements, legal
or practical difficulties which may
arise under the laws of any
overseas territory. the
requirements of any regulatory
body or stock exchange or by
virtue of shares being represented

(@

Notice of Annual General Meeting

by depository receipts or by virtue
of any other matter whatsoever.
(iiy otherwise than pursuant to
sub-paragraph (i} above, the
allotment or sale of equity
securities having a nominal
amount not exceeding in
aggregate £735,113.25; and
this authority shall expire at the
conclusion of the next Annual Generai
Meeting of the Company after the
passing of this resolution or, if earlier,
at the close cfbusiness on 10 May
2022.
the Company may. before this power
expires, make an offer or enter into an
agreement which would or might
require equity securities to be allotted
after it expires and the Directors may
allot equity securities in pursuance of
such offer or agreement as if this
pewer had not expired.

Special Resolution 20
20, That:

a)

inaddition to any autherity granted

under resolution 19, the Directors be

given power:

i} subjecttothe passing of
resolution 15, to allot equity
securities (as defined in section
5601} of the Companies Act
2006 (the "Act’)) for cash
pursuant to the authority
conferred on themby that
resolition under section 551 of
the Act: and

i) tosell equity securities (as
defined in section 560(1) of the
Act) held by the Company as
freasury shares (as defined in
section 724(5) of the Act) for
cash, in either case as if section
561 of the Act did not apply to the
allotment or sale. but this power
shall be:

A_limited to the allotment of
equity securitiesup toa
maximum nominal amount of
£735,113.25; and

B. used only for the purposes of
financing (or refinancing, if the
autherity is to be used within
sixmonths after the original
transaction) a transaction
which the Board of the
Company determines tobe an

acquisition or other capital
investment of akind
contempiated by the
Statement of Principles on
Disapplying Pre-Emption
Rights most recently published
by the Pre-Emption Groug prior
to the date of this notice:

b) this power shall expire at the
conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company
after the passing of this resolution
or. if earlier, at the close of business
on 10 May 2022; and

c) the Company may, before this
power expires. make an offer or
enter into an agreement which
would or might require equity
securities to be allotted after it
expires and the Directors may allot
equity securities in pursuance of
such offer or agreement as if this
power had not expired.

Special Resoiution 21

21. That, in accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association, ageneralmeeting
(other than an Annual General Meeting)
may be called on not less than 14 clear
days' notice.

Special Resolution 22

22. That the Articles of Association produced
to the meeting and initialled by the
Chairman of the meeting for the purpose
of identification be adopted as the new
Articles of Association of the Company in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of,
the existing Articles of Association.

EXPLANATION
OF RESOLUTIONS

Ordinary resolutions

For each of the following resolutions to be
passed. more than half of the votes cast must
be in favour of the resolution.

Resolution 1:

RECEIPT OF ANNUAL REPORT
The Directors present to shareholders at the
AGM the Reports of the Directors and Auditor
and the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 30 September 202C.
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Resolution 2:

This resolution seeks shareholder approval to
pay a final dividend of 1.6p per ordinary share
for the year ended 30 September 2020, The
dividend, if approved, will be payable on 16
February 2021 1o shareholders on the register
at the close of business on 15 January 2021

Resolution 3:

APPROVAL OF THE

DIRECTORS' POLICY

Resolution 3 seeks shareholder approval for
the amendments to the Directors’
Rermuneratioti Holicy for b Unee year period
comimencing 1 October 2020 which is
proposed within the Directors’ Remuneration
Report set out on pages 84 to 93 of the Annual
Report.

Resolution 4:

APPROVAL OF THE DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION REPORT
Resolution 4 seeks shareholder approval for
the Directors' Remuneration Report on pages
80 to 84 and nages 94 {o 103 of the Annual
Report. The FY 2020 annual report on
remuneration gives details of the
implementation of the Company’s
Remuneration Policy, approved by
shareholders at the AGM in February 2020, in
terms of the payments and share awards
made to the Directors in connection with their
performance and that of the Company during
the year ended 30 Sgptember 2020.

It also gives details of how the Company
intends to apply the Reruneration Policy in
practice for FY 2021. This vote is advisory and
the Directors’ entitlerment to remuneration is
not conditional on it,

The Company's Auditor during the vear,
PricewaterhouseCooper LLP, has audited
those parts of the Directors' Remuneration
Report that are required to be audited and
their report may be found on pages 112 to 119
of the Annual Report.

Resolutions 5-12:
ELECTION AND RE-ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS
Abiography of each Director. including a
description of the skills and experience they
contribute to the Board, appears on pages 66
to 67 of the Annual Report and is also available
on the Company's website at www futureplc.
com/who-we-are/.

Having been appointed directors since the
AGM in 2020, Rachel Addison, Meredith
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Ambur and Mark Brooker are standing for
etection for the first tirme at this AGM.

In accordance with the recommendations
of the UK Corporate Governance Code, every
Director is required toretire from office at
every AGM. Any Director eligible, in
accordance with the Company's articles of
association (the ‘Articles’), may stand for
re-eiection.

The Company’s Chairman confirms that,
following the evaluation process, as described
on page 69, the performance of each Director
standing for re-election and election continues
10 be effertive and that they have each
demonstrated a strong commitment to their
role.

Resolutions 13-14:
APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR
AND AUDITOR'S
REMUNERATION

Anindependent auditor is required to be
appointed at each general meeting at which
accounts are presented to shareholders.
Under Resolution 13 the Directors propose to
appoint Deloitte LLP as the Company's
independent auditor. More information about
the decision to appoint Deloitte LLP can be
found in the Audit and Risk Committee report
onpage78.

Resolution 14 seeks shareholder
authorisation for the Audit and Risk
Committee to decide the Auditor's fee, which
is standard practice.

Resolution 15:

AUTHORITY TO ALLOT SHARES
At the AGM last year, the Directors were given
the authority to allot shares without the pricr
consent of shareholders for a period expiring
at the conclusion of the 2021 AGM or, if earlier,
on 4 May 2021 ltis proposed to renew this
authority and to authorise the Directors under
section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 to
allot ordinary shares or grant rights to
subscribe for or convert any security into
sharas in the Company for a period expiring at
the conclusion of the 2022 AGM or, if earlier,
close of business on 10 May 2022,

This resolution, which follows the guidelines
issued by the Investment Association, will
allow the Directors to:

a. aliot ordinary shares up to a maximum
nominal amount of £4,851,747.45
representing approximately one third
(33.33 percent)ofthe Company's
existing issued share capital and

calcuiated as at 10 December 2020;
and

b, allotordinary shares on a presmpfive
basis by way of a rights issue to
ordinary shareholdersup toa
maximum nominal amount (including
any shares allotted under the
paragraph above) of £9,703.494.90
representing approximately two thirds
(66.67 per cent) of the Company's
existing issued share capital and
calculated as at 10 December 2020,

The Directors have no present intention of
allotting shares under this resolution, but
believe that the Nlexibility alowea py this
resolution may assist them in taking
advantage of business opportunities as they
arise.

If they do exercise this authority, the
Directors intend to follow best practice as
recommended by the Investment Association.
As at 10 December 2020 the Company does
not have any shares in treasury.

Resolution 16

It remains the policy of the Company not to
make political donations or to incur political
expenditure, as those expressions are
normally understood, However, following
broader definitions introduced by the Act, the
Directors continue to propose a resolution
designed to avoid inadvertent infringement of
these definitions.

The Act requires companies to obtain
shareholders' authority for donations to
registered political parties and other political
organisations totaling more than £5,000 in
any 12-month period, and for any political
expenditure, subject to limited exceptions.,

The definition of donation in this context is
very wide and extends to bodies such as those
concerned with policy review, law reform and
the representation of the business
community. It could also include special
interest groups. such as those involved with
the environment, which the Company and its
subsidiaries might wish to support, even
though these activities are not designed to
support or to influence support for any
particular political party.

Resolution 17

US STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company's Board of Directors (the
‘Board) has approved the Future pic Employee
Stock Purchase Plan intended to be made
available to employees who are employed and




resident inthe US (the 'US Plan’). The US Plan
is intended to be qualified under section 423 of
the US Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended {the 'US Code"), that provides a tax
favourable regime for participants in the US
Plan, One of the requirements for this
favourable tax treatment is shareholder
approval of the US Plan. It is the Board's
understanding that the US Plan will benefit our
shareholders as a resuit of cur employees’
increased interestin the Company's success.
No purchase rights willbe granted under the
US Plan, and no shares will be issued under
the US Plan, unless and until the US Plan is
approved by our shareholders. The Board
recommends that shareholders vete 'FOR' the
proposal to approve the US Plan.

The following is 2 summary of the provisions
of the US Plan assuming the shareholders
approve this proposal. A copy of the US Plan
rules will be available for inspection during
normal business hours (Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays excepted) at the registered
office of the Company up until the close of the
AGM. A copy can be requested from the
Company Secretary.

Overall Plan limits

The US Plan may cperate over new issue
shares, treasury shares or shares purchased
inthe market. In any ten calendar year period,
the Company may not issue (or grant rights to
issue) more than 10 per cent of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company under
the US Plan and any other employee share
plan adopted by the Company. Treasury
shares wilicount as new issue shares for the
purposes of these limits solong as this is
required under institutional shareholder
guidelines.

Administration of the US Plan

The Board has designated its Remuneraticon
Committee to act as the administrator of the
LS Plan, Notwithstanding the immediately
preceding sentence, the Board may at any
time vest inthe Board any authority or duties
for administration of the US Plan.

Amendment or Termination

of the US Plan

The Board may at any time and for any reason
terminate or amend the US Plan but no
amendmentor termination of the US Plan will
affect options previously granted, although
the Board can terminate a Savings Period (the
period during which participants in the Plan
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set aside a portion of their compensation for
purchases of shares under the US Plan} if it
determines that the termination of the Saving
Period or of the US Plan in its entirety is in the
bestinterests of the Company and its
shareholders. In addition, to the extent
necessary to comply with section 423 of the
US Code (or any successor rule or provision or
any other applicable 'aw, regulation or stock
exchange rule), the Company will seek to
obtain shareholder approval for modifications
made to the US Plan.

Eligibility
Without limitation, the US Plan may be used
for employees employed and resident in the

US whe have completed three months service.

Offerings

Ordinary shares in Future plc will be offered
under the US Plan to participating employees
during Savings Periods (which will generaily
consist of two six month Savings Periods
during each calendar year).

The Remuneration Committee may, inits
discretion, modify the terms of future offering
periods.

Employees whe participate in the US Plan
can elect to save between 1% and 10% of
salary, to be used for purchases of shares. No
participant under the US Plan may purchase
more than $25,000 of shares in any calendar
year (based upon the fair market value of the
shares on the Grant Date, which is generally
the first business day of the Savings Period).
The Remuneration Committee may seta
lower limit in relation to any particular Savings
Period and has currently set a limit on funds
that participating employees can use for
purchases of shares under the US Plan to
US$7.000 per year.

Purchase Price of Shares

Under the US Plan, at the end of each six
month Savings Pericd shares are bought
automatically for participants at a discount
price which is the lesser of:

(A) 85% of the average closing price
derived from the Daily Official List of
the London Stock Exchange onthe
first business day of the Savings
Period; and

(B) 85% of the average closing price
derived from the Daily Cfficial List of
the London Stock Exchange on the
last business day of the Savings
Period.

If the purchase of shares relates only to new
issue shares, then the price per share payable
on exercise must also not be less than the
nominal vaiue of a share. [f a participating
employee in the US Plan ceases employment
prior to the end of the Savings Period, then
savings will be returned and no share
purchase will take place.

Summary of US Federal Income Tax
Consequences to Participating
Employees

The following is a summary of the federal
income tax consequences of fransactions
under the LS Plan. The summary is general in
nature and is not intended to cover al! the
ihceme tax consequences thatmay apply toa
particular participating employee. The
provisions of the US Code and regulations
thereunder relating to these matters are
complicated, may change. and theirimpact in
any one case may depend upon the particular
circumstances. Further, this summary does
not discuss the income tax censequences of
the death of a participating employee, net
investment income, or the provisions of any
income tax laws of any municipality or state in
which a participant may reside.

The description is based on current US
federal income tax laws, rules and regulatons.
which are subject to change. and does not
purport to be acomplete description of the
federal income tax aspects of the US Plan.

The US Planis intended te qualiify as an
‘employee stock purchase plan' within the
meaning of section 423 of the US Code. Under
this type of plan, no taxable income will be
reportable by an employee participating in the
US Plan as aresulf of the purchase of shares at
adiscount. A participating employee member
will, however, recognise taxable income in the
year in which the shares purchased under the
US Plan are sold or otherwise disposed of. A
sale or other disposition of shares purchased
underthe US Plan will generally be a
‘Disqualifying Disposition’ if it s made within
two years after the first day of the Savings
Period pursuant to which the shares were
bought. H the participating employee makes a
Disqualifying Disposition of shares purchased
underthe US Pian, the excess of the fair
market value of the purchased shares on the
date of purchase over the purchase price
actually paid by the Participating employee on
the purchase date will be treated as ordinary
income of the participating employee at the
time of such Disgualifying Disposition. Any
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additional gain (or loss) on the Disqualifying
Nisposition will be a capital gain (or loss) tothe
employee (either long or short-Term
depending on how long the shares have been
held). If the participating employee disposes
of shares purchased under the US Plan after
satistying the two-year holding period outlined
above (a 'Qualifying Disposition'), thenthe
participating employee will realise ordinary
income in the year of the Qualifying
Disposition equal to the lesser of (i) the
amount by which the fair market value of the
shares on the date of disposition exceeds the
purchase price actually paicl for such sharcs or
(ii) 15% of the fair market vaiue of the shares
on the first business day of the Savings Period
pursuant to which the shares were purchased.
This amount of ordinary income will be added
to the basis in the shares and any gain (or (0ss})
recognised upon a disposition of such shares
will be a long-term capital gain {or loss).

The preceding is based on current federal
tax laws and reguiations, which are subject to
change, and does not purperttobea
complete description of the federal mcome tax
aspects of the US Plan. A participant may alsc
be subject to state and local taxes.

Plan Benefits. Future benefits available
under the US Plan are subject to the
parficipation level of our empluyees and to our
share price at the time of any purchases and
therefore are not determinable at this time.

Resolution 18:

VALUE CREATION PLAN

The Company's Board of Directors (the
'Board) has approved the Future pic Value
Creation Plan (' VCP") intended to be made
available to employees of the Group. ltis the
Board's understandmng that the YCP will
benefit our shareholders as a result of our
employees' increased interest in the
Company's success. The Board recommends
that shareholders vote 'FOR' the propesal to
approve the VCP.

The following is a summary of the provisions
of the VCP assuming the shareholders
approve this proposal. A copy of the VCP rules
will be available for inspection during normal
business hours (Saturdays, Sundays and
public holidays excepted) at the registered
office of the Company up until the close of the
AGM. A copy can be requested from the
Company Secretary.

Operation
The YCP will be administered by the Board,
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which includes a duly authorised committee of
the Buandh.

Eligibility

Any employee of the Group (including an
executive director) is eligible to participate at
the Board's discretion.

Form of Awards

Awards under the VCP willbe in the formofa
conditionai right to receive ordinary shares in
the capital of the Company (“Shares") at no
costtc the participant ("Award ™), calculated
by reference to the value of units. Units will
have a vaiuc depeétiding on e VOP value at
the relevant measurement date (see below).

Grant of Awards

Awards may only be granted withirn the 42 day:
period following the approval of the VCP by the
Company’s shareholders (the "Shareholders™),
the announcement of the Company’s results
for any period, any day on which a restriction
on the grant of Awards is lifted, or on any day
onwhich the Board determines that
exceptional circumsiances exist which justify
the grant of Awards. No Awards may be
granted more than five years after the approval
of the VCP by the Shareholders.

Vesting

Awards may vest in three tranches shortly
after 30 September 2023, 30 September
2024 and 30 September 2025 (the
“Measurement Dates”) if the Board
determines that the VCP value on those
Measurement Dates is greater than nil. If the
VCP value is nilon any of those dates the
relevant tfranche will lapse immediately.

The VCP will have a value on each
Measurement Date equaito 3.33% of the
growth in the market capitalisation of the
Company on that date. For these purposes the
market capitalisation will be calculated based
on the additional shareholder value created
above a hurdle rate of return of 10% per
annum over the plan period.

The Board may amend or substitute the
VCP value calculation if one or more events
oceur which cause the Board to consider that
anamended or substituted VCP value
calculation would be more appropriate and
would not be materially less difficult to satisfy.

The Board may adjust the vesting level
calculated as a result of the VCP vaiue on any
Measurement Date, if it considers that it does
not reflect the underlying financial or

non-financial performance of the Group over
the vesting period, or that it is not appropriate
in the context of unexpected nrinfareseen
circumstances, or there is any other reason
the Beoard considers relevant, in each case
taking into ageount factors the Board
considers relevant.

Individual Limits

The maximum number of units which canbe
awarded under the VCP to any one participant
inrespact of any tranche cannct exceed
140,000 units.

Overall Limits

The rules of the VCP provide that the total
number of Shares which may be issued under
the VCP may not exceed five per cent of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company
on any Measurement Date.

The Board must not grant an Award that
would cause the number of Shares which may
be issued under the VCP and under any other
employees’ share VCP adopted by the
Company to exceed 10% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company from
time to time.

Settlement

The Board may, inits discretion, decide to
satisfy an Award with a cash payment equal to
the market value of some or alf of the Shares
that the participant would have received had
the Award been satisfied with Shares.

Dividend Equivalents

Participants will not, in relation to the Shares in
respect of which an Award Vests, receive any
additional Shares or cash payments in lieu of
any dividends that would have been paid on
those Shares over the period between the
grant of the Award and the relevant
Measurement Date

Malus and Clawback

ltisintended that reduction and recovery
provisions will apply to Awards granted to the
Executive Directors and other selected senior
executives. In certain circumstances the
Board may: reduce an Award (to zeroif
appropriate) or impose additional conditions
oi1 those Awards to the extent that Shares
and/or cash have not yet been delivered in
satisfaction of the Award; or if Shares and/ar
cash have been delivered in satisfaction of
those Awards, requlire that the participant
either return some or all of the Shares



acquired pursuant tothe Award or make a
cash payment to the Company in respect of
the Shares or cash delivered.

The Board will retain the discretion to
calculate the amount of Shares or cash,
including whether or not to claw back such
amount, gross or net of any tax or social
security contributions applicable to the
Award.

The Board may operate these recovery
provisions where, during the period ending on
the third anniversary of the Measurement
Date, there has been: a material misstatement
of the financial results of the Company or of
any Group Member; an error in assessing the
VCP value applicable to the Award or inthe
information or assumpticns on which the
Award was granted or vests; a material failure
of risk management. fraud or material
financial irregularity in any Group Member or a
relevant business unit for which participant
was responsible; serious reputational damage
to any Group Member or a relevant business
unit caused by the participant; serious
misconduct or material error on the part of the
participant; amaterial corporate failure cra
material safety failure in any Group Member or
arelevant business unit inwhich the
participant has participated; and (until the
vesting date of Awards only) a material
downturn in the financial performance of any
member of the Group or relevant business
unit; or any other circumstances which the
Board in its discretion considers to be similar
in their nature or effect.

Cessation of Employment
Unvested Awards:
If a Participant ceases to hold office or
employment with the Group ("Group
Employment”} prior to the vesting date of an
Award due to a good leaver reason {e.g. death,
disability. il-health, injury, redundancy.
retirement or any other reason the Board
determines}, the outstanding units under the
Award will, unless the Board in its absolute
discretion determines otherwise, be reduced
cnatime pro-rata basis. Ceasing Group
Employment for any other reason will resultin
unvested awards fapsing.

The units resulting from lapsed Awards will
be available for the grant of new Awards.

Vested Awards:

If a participant ceases Group Employment
after an Award has vested, but before it has
been satisfied, their Award will (other than
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cessation for reasons of gross misconduct, in
which case that Award will lapse immediately),
continue and be satisfied in accordance with
the rules of the VCP.

Corporate Events

In the event of a change of Control of the
Company, Awards will vest early. The extent to
which any unvested Awards vest willbe
determined by the Board, taking into account
the relevant VCP value and any adjustment
they consider appropriate as referred to
above.

Alternatively, the Beard may permit Awards
to be exchanged for equivalent awards of
shares in a dfferent company (including the
acquiring company). If the change of control is
an internal reorganisation of the Group (or if
the Board so decides), participants may be
reguired to exchange their Awards.

If other corporate events occur suchas a
winding-up of the Company, demerger.
delisting, special dividend or other event
which, in the Board's opinicn, may materially
affect the current or future value of Shares,
the Board may determine that Awards will vest
on the same basis as for a change of control.

Variation of Capital

if there is a variation of the share capital of the
Company or in the event of a demerger.
delisting, special dividend or cther event which
in the Board's opinion may materially affect
the current or future vaiue of Shares, the
Board may make such adjustments to the
VCP Value or the number of units or Shares
subject to Awards, as it considers appropriate.

Rights Attaching to Shares

Shares issued and/or transferred under the
VCP will not confer rights on any participant
until that participant has received the
underlying Shares. Any Shares allotted will
rank equally with Shares then inissue (except
for rights arising by reference to arecord date
prior to their issue).

Amendment
The Board may. at any time, amend the
provisicns of the VCP in any respect except
that no amendment to the material
disadvantage of existing rights of participants
will be made without the amendment having
been approved by the majority of affected
participants.

The prior approval of the Shareholders ata
general meeting of the Company must be

obtained in the case of any amendment which
is made to the advantage of eligible employees
and/or participants and relates to the
provisions relating to efigibity, individual or
overall limits, the basis for determining the
entitlement to, and the terms of, awards, the
adjustments that may be made in the event of
any variation to the share capital of the
Company and/or the rule relating to such prior
approval.

There are, however, exceptions to this
requirerment to obtain Shareholder approval
for any minor amendments to benefit the
administration of the VCP, to take account of
the provisions of any legislation, or to obtain or
maintain favourable tax, exchange control or
regulatory treatment for any participant or
member of the Group.

Non-transferability

Awards are not transferable other than to the
participant’s personal representatives in the
event of his or her death.

Benefits not Pensicnable
Benefits received under the VCP are not
pensicnable.

Overseas Plans

The Board may, at any time, establish further
plans based on the VCP for overseas
tertitories. Any such plans will be similar to the
VCP but may be modified to take account of
local tax, exchange control or securities laws.
Any Shares made available under such further
overseas VCPs must be treated as counting
against the limits on individual and overalt
participation under the VCF.

Termination

No Awards may be granted more than five
years after approval of the VCP by the
Shareholders.

Special Resolutions

For each of the following resolutions to be
passed, at least /5 per cent of the votes cast
must be infavour of the resolution.

Resolution 19:

DIRECTORS' GENERAL
POWERS TO DISAPPLY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

At last year's meeting, a special resolution was
passed, under sections 570 and 573 of the
Companies Act 2006, empowering the
Directors to ailot equity securities for cash
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without a prior offer to existing shareholders.
It is praposed that this authority also be
renewed. If approved, the resolution will
authorise the Board to allot equity securities
(as defined in the Companies Act 2006) for
cash and/or to sellordinary shares held by the
Company as treasury shares for cash as if
section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 did
not apply. The authority is limited to:
a. allotments for rightsissues and
other pre-emptive issues; and
b.  allotrments of equity securities or sale
of treasury shares (ctherwise than
under paragraph (@) above) up toa
nominal amount of £735,113 25,
which represents approximately S per
centof the issued share capital of the
Company as at 10 December 2020.
The Directors do notintend to issue more
than 7.5 per cent of the issued share capital of
the Company for cash on a non preemptive
basis in any rolling three-year period (other
than in connection with an acquisition or
specified capital investment, as described in
the Pre-emption Group's Statement of
Principles) without pricr consultation with
shareholders and the Investment Committees
of the investment Associaticn and the
Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association.
Resclution 19 will be proposed as a special
resolution to renew this authority until the
cotclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting or, if earlier, the close of business on
10 May 2022. Prior to its expiry, the Company
may make offers, and enter into agreements,
which wauld or might require equity securities
to be allotted (and treasury shares to be sold)
after the authority expires and the Board may
allot equity securities (and sell treasury
shares) under any such offer or agreement as
it the authority had not expired.

Resolution 20

DIRECTORS' POWERS TO
DISAPPLY AN ADDITIONAL
FIVE PER CENT PRE-EMPTION
RIGHTS

n line with the advice published by the
Pre-Emption Group and in addition to any
authority granted under Resolution 19, this
resolution, to be proposed as a special
resolution, will, if passed, authorise the
Directors to allot equity securities and/or sell
ordinary shares held by the Company as
treasury shares for cash, as if section 561 of
the Companies Act 2006 did not apply to any
such allotrment or sale. This authority will be:
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a. limited to the allotment of equity
sacurilies o sate uf heazury shares
up loa onnal anount of
£735,113.25 which represents
approximately five per centofthe
issued share capital of the Company
as at 10 December 2C020: and

b. usedonly for the purposes of
financing (or refinancing, ifthe
authority Is 1o be used within six
months after the oniginal transaction)
a transaction which the Board
determines to be an acquisition or
other capital investment of a kind
contemplated Ly the Statement of
Principles on Disapplying Pre-
Cmiption Rights published by the
Pre-Emption Group and whichis
announced at the same time as the
aliotment, or has taken place in the
preceding six month period and is
disclosed in the announcement of the
allotment.

Resolution 20 seeks to renew this authority
until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting or. if earlier, the close of
business on 10 May 2022. Prior to its expiry
the Company may make offers, and enter into
agreements, which would or might, require
equity secutilies to be allotted {and treasury
shares to be sold) after the authority expires
and the Board may allot equity securities (and
sell treasury shares) under any such offer or
agreement as if the authority had not expired.
The maximum nominal value of equity
securities which could be allotted if the
authorities granted in resolutions 19 and 20
were hoth used would by £1,470,220.50,
which represents approximately 10 per cent of
the issued share capital of the Company as at
10 Decernber 2020.

Resolution 21:

NOTICE OF GENERAL
MEETINGS

The notice period for generai meetings, as
gaverned by the Companies Act 2006, is 21
days. The notice can be less if the
shareholders approve a shorter notice period,
however it cannot be shorter than 14 clear
days, AGMs cannot be held at shorter notice
and must always be held on atleast 21 clear
days' notice.

At last year's AGM, sharehoiders
authorised the caling of general meetings
other than an AGM on not less than 14 clear
days' notice and it is proposed that this

authority be renewed. The authority granted
by this resnhition which willbe propesedasa
sperial resnlition. if passed, will be effective
untilthe Company's next Annual General
Meeting, when it is intended that a simifar
resolution will be proposed.

Note, that if a general meeting is called on less
than 21 clear days' notice, the Company will
arrange for electronic voting facifities to be
available to all shareholders. The flexibility
offered by this resolution will be used where,
taking into account the circumstances, and
nating the recommendations of the UK
Corperate Governance Code, the Directors
consider this appropriate in relation to the
business of the meeting and in the interasts of
the Company and shareholders as a whole.

Resolution 22:
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
This resolution seeks shareholder approval to
adopt the New Articles reflecting
developments in market practice since the
Company’s Articies were iast amended in
2017. Due to the nature of the changes, the
Company is proposing the adoption of the
New Articles rather than amendments to the
current Articles. The principal changes being
proposed inthe New Articles are summarised
halow

A copy of the current Articles and the New
Articles, marked to show all changes
proposed. will be available for inspection
during normal business nours (Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays excepted) at the
registered office of the Company up until the
close of the AGM. A copy cah be requested
from the Company Serretary.

General meetings

The New Articles provicde that the Company
may hold hybrid’ general meetings (including
anrual general meetings) to allow members to
attend and participate in the business of the
meeting by attending a physical location or by
attending remotely by means of an electronic
facility. Voting at hybrid meetings will, by
default, be decided on a poll. Hybrid meetings
may be adjourned inthe eventof a
technological failure.

The New Articles allow the Company, where
apprapriate, to postpone general meetings
and/or change the electranic facilities after
notice of the meeting has been issued if it
considers that holding the meeting would be
impractical or unreasonablein the
circumatances.




These changes were introduced to provide
the Board greater flexibility to align with
technelogical advances, changes in investor
sentiment and evolving best practice,
particularly inlight of the outbreak of COVID-19.
In line with the views expressed by the
Investment Assaciation and Institutional
Shareholder Services, the changes willnct
permit meetings to be held solely by electronic
means, so a physical meeting will stili be
required. (If Government guidance or health
regulations make any form of physical general
meeting inadvisable or not allowed. the
Company can still use overriding temporary
changes to the law to allow virtual only
meetings.) In deciding whether to hold a hybrid
general meeting in future, the Company will
have regard to the views of shareholders and
institutional governance hodies at the relevant
time.

Various other conseguential amendments
have been made to the New Articles.

Untraced shareholders

The New Articles amend the positicn of
untraced shareholders. Rather than reguiring
the Company to take out two newspaper
advertisernents, the New Articles require the
Company to use reasonable efforts te trace the
shareholder. These changes reflect best
practice and provide the Company with
appropriate flexibility when trying to locate
untraced shareholders.

Reappointment of Directors

The New Articles also contain updated
provisions relating te the appointment of
Directors so that these are in line with the
requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Ceode, which recommends that all Directors
retire (and should they wish to remain in office,
seek re-election) at each annual general
meeting.

Vacation of office of directors

The New Articlesinclude further circumstances
in which a Director's office may be vacated so
that these are in line with market practice.

FURTHER INFORMATION
ABOUT THE AGM

1. Information regarding the meeting.
including the information required by section
311A of the Act. is available from

www futureple.com/invest-in-future
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ATTENDANCE AT THE AGM

2. TheCompany is closely monitoring
developments relating to the current cutbreak
of COVID-19, including the related public health
guidance and legislation issued by the
Government. The health of our shareholders,
employees and other stakeholders remains
extremely important to us and, accordingly.
the Future Board may need to take further
steps to comply with COVID-19 regulations
and guidance, including any future
compulsory "Stay At Home' measures which
may beintroduced by the UK Government.
Should such measures bein place at the time
of the General Meeting, or if similar restrictions
arein place to protect the safety of the people
attending the General Meeting or any of the
Company's stakeholders, then shareholders,
agvisers and other guests may not be allowed
to attend the General Meeting in person and
anyone seeking to attend the meeting will be
refused entry. No guests will be permitted and
there will be no refreshments served atthe
AGM.

If you are attending the meeting in person,
please bring the attendance card attached to
vour form of proxy and arrive at Future's
London office, 110 Praed Mews, Londen, W2
1QY. in sufficient time for registration.

We will keep you updated should the plans
for our AGM change in light of future
developments. Any change to the location,
time or date of our AGM will be communicated
to shareholders in accordance with our
Articles of Association and by Stock Exchange
Anpouncement.

Appointment of a proxy does not preclude a
member from attending the meeting and
vating in person. If a member has appointed a
proxy and atterds the meeting in person, the
proxy appointment will autematically be
terminated.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

3. Any member entitled to attend and vote at
the meeting may appoint one or more proxies
to attend, speak and vote in their place. A
member may appoint more than one proxy
provided that each proxy is appoeinted to
exercise the rights attached to a different
share or shares held by that shareholder. If you
appoint multiple prexies for a number of
shares in excess of your holding, the proxy
appointments may be treated as invalid. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company.
A proxy card is enclosed. To be effective, proxy
cards should be completed in accordance with

these notes and the notes to the proxy form,
signed and returned so as to be received by
the Company's Registrars:

Computershare Investor Services PLC,

The Pavilions,

Bridgwater Road,

Bristol

BS9S6ZY
not later than 3:30pm on 8 February 2021
being two business days before the time
appointed for the holding of the meeting. If you
submit more than one valid proxy
appointment, the appointment received last
hefore the latest time for the receipt of proxies
will take precedence.

ELECTRONIC

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

4. As analternative to completing the
printed proxy form, you may appoint a proxy
electronically by visiting the following website:
www.investcrcentre.co.uk/eproxy.

You will be asked to enter the Control
Number, the Shareholder Reference Number
(SRN}Yand PIN as printed on your proxy form
and to agree to certain terms and conditions.
To be effective, electronic appeointments must
have been received by the Company's
Registrars not later than 3:30pmeon 8
February 2021.

NUMBER OF SHARES IN ISSUE
5. Asatthecloseofbusinesson 10
December 2020 (being the last business day
prior to the publication of this notice) the
Company's issued share capital consisted of
58,015,038 Ordinary shares of 15 pence each.
Each Ordinary share carries one vote. There
are no shares held in treasury. The total
number of voting rights in the Company is
therefore 58,015,100.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE

FOR INSPECTION

6. Printed copies of the service contracts of
the Company's Directors, the letters of
appointment for the Non-Executive
Directors. and the proposed Articles, will be
available for inspection during usuai business
hours on any weekday {Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays excluded) at the
Company's London office at 1-10 Praed Mews,
London. W2 1QY and at the Company's
registered office at Quay House, The Ambury,
Bath, BALIUA including on the day of the
meeting from 10:15am until its completion.
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ELIGIBLE SHAREHOLDERS

7. The Campany, pursuant to Regulatior: 41
of The Uncertificated Securities Regulations
2001, specifies that only those members on
the register of the Compariy as at6pmon 8
February 2021 or, if this meeting is adjourned,
in the register of members 48 hours before
the time of any adjourned meeting, are
entitied to attend and vote at the meeting in
respect of the number of shares registered in
their name at that time. Changes to entries on
the Register after 6pm on 8 February 2021 or,
if this meeting is adjourned. in the register of
members 48 hours before the ime of any
adjourned meeting, will be disregarded in
determining the rights of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting.

INDIRECT INVESTORS

8. Any persontowhom this notice is sent
whe is a person that has been nominated
under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006
('Act’) to enjoy information rights (a
‘Nominated Person') does nothave aright to
appoint a proxy. However, a Nominated
Parson may, under an agreement with the
registered shareholder by whom they were
nominated (a 'Refevant Member’), have a rigiht
to be appointed (or to have someone else
appointed) as a proxy tor the meeling.
Alternatively, if a Nominated Person does not
have such aright, or does not wish to exercise
it, they may have a right under any such
agreement to give instructions to the Relevant
Member as to the exercise of voting rights.

A Nominaied Person's main point of
contact in terms of their investment inthe
Company remains the Relevant Mernber (ur,
perhaps, the Nominated Person's custodian
or broker) and the Nominated Person shauld
continue to contact them (and hot the
Company) regarding any changes or querias
relating to the Nominated Person's personal
details and their interest in the Company
(including any administrative matters). The
only exception to this is where the Company
expressly requests aresponse fram the
Nominated Person.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES
THROUGH CREST

9. CREST members who wishto appoint a
proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic
proxy appointment service may do so for the
meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by
using the procedures described in the CREST
Manual. CREST personal members ot other
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CREST sponsored members. and those
CREST members wha have appointed a voting
service provider(s), sheuld refer to therr
CREST sponsor or voting service provider{s),
who will be abile to take the appropriate action
ontheir behaif.

For a proxy appointment or instruction
made using the CREST service o be valid, the
appropriate CREST message (@ 'CREST Proxy
Instruction”) must be properly authenticated
in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland
Lirnited's specifications and must contain the
information required for such instructions, as
described inthe CREST Manual, The message,
regardiess of whether it constitutes the
appcintment of a proxy or an armendment to
the instruction given to a praviously appointed
proxy must, in order tobe valid, be transmitted
s0 as to be received by the issuer's agent (ID
3RA50) by 2:30pm on 8 February 2021 or, if
the meeting is adicurned, not less than 48
hours before the time fixed for the adjourned
meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt
will be taken to be the time (as determined by
the tirnestamp applied to the message by the
CREST Applications Haost) frorm which the
issuer's agent is able to retrieve the message
by enguiry to CREST in the manner prescribed
by CREST. After this time any change of
instructionsto proxies appeinted through
CREST should be communicated to the
aprointee through other means.

CREST members and. where applicable,
their CREST sponsers or voting service
providers should note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited does not make available
special procedures in CREST for any particular
messages. Mormal system timings and
Iimitations will therefore apply in relation to the
input of CREST Proxy Instructions, Itisthe
responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take {or. if the CREST memberis
a CREST personal member or sponsored
member or has appointed a voting service
provider(s), to procure that his/her CREST
sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s))
such action as is necessary o ensure thata
message is transtmitted by means of the
CREST system by any particular time. tn this
connection, CREST members and, where
applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting
service providers are referred, in particular, to
those sections of the CREST Manual
concerning practical limitations of the CREST
system and timings.

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST
Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out

in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001.

AMENDING A PROXY

10. Tochange a proxy instruction, a member
needs to submit a new proxy appointment
using the methods set out above. Note that
the deadlines for receipt of proxy
appointments (see above) also apply in
relation to amended instructions; any
amended proxy appointment received after
the relevant deadline will be disregarded.
Where a member has appointed a proxy using
the paper proxy form and would like to change
the instructions using anather such form, that
member should contact the Registrars on +44
(0)370 7071443,

If more than one valid proxy appointment is
submitted, the appointment received last
before the deadline for the receipt of proxies
will fake precedence.

REVOKING A PROXY

11. Inorder torevoke a proxy instruction, a
signed letter clearly stating a member's
intention to revoke a proxy appoimtment must
be sert by post or by hand to the Company's
Registrars:

Computershare Investor Services PLC, The

Pavilions, Bridgwater Road,

Bristol BS99 6.4Y.

Note that the deadlines for receipt of proxy
appointments (See above) alscapply in
relation to revocations; any revocation
received after the relevant deadline will be
disregarded.

CORPORATE MEMBERS

12. Inthe case of amember whichis a
company, any proxy form, amendrment or
revocation must be executed under its
common seal or signed on its behalf by an
officar of the company or an attorney for the
company. Any power of attorney or any other
authority under which the documents are
signed {or a duly certified copy of such power
of authority) must be included. A corporate
member can appeint one or mare corporate
repressitatives who may exercise, onifts
behalf, all its powers as a member provided
that no mare than one corporate
representative exercises powers over the
same share. Members considering the
appointment of a corporate representative
should check their own legal position, the
company's articles of association and the
relevant provision of the Companies Act 2006.




JOINT HOLDERS

13. Where more than one of the joint holders
purports to vote or appoint a proxy. only the
vote or appointment submitted by the
member whose name appears first on the
register will be accepted.

QUESTIONS AT THE AGM
14. Under section 319A of the Act, the
Company must answer any question you ask
relating to the business being dealt with at the
meeting unless:
(@ answeringthe question would
inter fere unduly with the preparation
for the meeting or involve the
disclosure of confidential information;
(b) theanswer has aiready been given on
awebsite inthe formof ananswertoa
question:or
(©) itisundesirableinthe interests of the
Company or the good order of the
meeting that the question be
answered.

MEMBERS' RIGHT TO

REQUIRE CIRCULATION

OF A RESOLUTION TO BE
PROPOSED AT THE AGM

15. Under section 338 of the Act, a member
or members meeting the qualification criteria
setout at note 18 opposite, may, subject to
conditions set out at note 19. require the
Company to give to members notice of a
resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting.

MEMBERS' RIGHT TO

HAVE A MATTER OF BUSINESS
DEALT WITH AT THE AGM

16. Under section 338A of the Act, a member
or members meeting the gualification criteria
set out at note 18 opposite, may. subject to the
conditions set cut at note 19, require the
Company to include in the business to be dealt
with atthe AGM a matter (other than a
proposed resoiution) which may properly be
included in the business (a matter of
business).

WEBSITE PUBLICATION

OF ANY AUDIT CONCERNS

17. Pursuant to Chapter 5 of Part 16 of the
Act, where requested by a member or
members meeting the qualification criteria set
outat note 18 below. the Company must
pubtish on its website a statement setting out
any matter that such members propose to

Notice of Annual General Meeting

raise at the AGM relating to the audit of the

Company's accounts (inciuding the auditers'

report and the conduct of the audit) that are to

be laid before the AGM.
Where the Company is required to publish
such a statement on its website:

{&} itmay not require the members
rmaking the request to pay any
expenses incurred by the Company in
complying with the request;
it must forward the statement to the
Company's auditors no later than the
time the statement is made available
on the Company's website; and
(c) the statement may be dealt withas

part of the business of the AGM.

Therequest:

(d) may beinhard copy formorin
electronic formand must be
authenticated by the person or
persons making it (see note 19(d) and
(€) below);

{&) should either set out the statement in
full or, if supporting a statement sent
by another member, clearly identify
the statement which is being
supported; and

(f) must be received by the Company at
least one week before the AGM.

(o

o

MEMBERS' QUALIFICATION
CRITERIA
18. In order to be able to exercise the
members’' rights set out in notes 1510 17 above
the relevant request must be made by:
{a) amember or members havingaright
to vote at the AGM and holding at least
5% of total voting rights of all the
members having a right to vote on the
resolution to which the request
relates; or
{b) atleast100 members havingarightto
vote at the AGM and holding, on
average, at least £100 of paid up share
capital.

CONDITIONS
19. The conditions are that: (@) any resolution
must not, if passed, be ineffective (whether by
reason of inconsistency with any enactment
or the Company’s constitution or otherwise);
(b} theresolution cr matter of business
must not be defamatory of any
person, frivolous or vexatious;
(©) therequest:
(i) maybe in hard copy formor in
electronic form;

(i)

i)

(i)

W

()

(i

(i)

(e

~or

must identify the resolution or the

matter of business of which notice is

to be given by either settingitout in

full or, if supporting a resolution/

matter of business sent by another

member, clearly identifying the

resolution/matter of business which

is being supported:

in the case of aresolution, must be

accompanied by a statement setting

out the grounds for the request;

must be authenticated by the person

or persons making it: and

must be received by the Company not

later than six weeks before the date of

the AGM: and

in the case of arequest made in hard

copy form, such request must be:

signed by you and state your full name

and address; and

sent either: by post to

Company Secretary,

Future ple,

Quay House,

The Ambury.

Bath BALIUA; or by fax to

+44(0)1225 732266

marked for the attenticn of the

Company Secretary; and

inthe case of a request made int

electronic form, such requestmust.

(i) stateyour fullname and address,
and

(i) besentto
cosec@futurenet.com.
Please state 'AGM' in the subject
line of the email. You may not use
this electronic address to
communicate with the Company
for any other purpose.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS FY 2020 [ 173



Sharehql(ler information

U
m Financial calendar

Apnouncement of
half year results to
the six months
ending 31 March 2021

Annual General
Meeting

10 February 202}

May 2021

Eompa ny website

The Company's website at www.futureplc.com contains the (atest
information for shareholders, including press releases, Email alerts
of the latest news, press releases and financial reports about Future
ple may be obtained by registering for the email news alert service
on the website.

Share price information

The latest price of the Company's ordinary shares is available on
www.londonstockexchange.com. Future's ticker symbol is FUTR. It
is recommended that you consult your financial adviser and verify
information obtained before making any investment decision.

Registrar
The Cormmpany's share register 1s maintained by Cutnpulen sheare.

Shareholders should contact the Registrar, Computershare, in
connection with changes of address, lost share certificates,
transfers of shares and bank mandate forms to enable automated
payment of dividends.

Computershare also has a service to provide shareholders with
online access to details of their shareholdings. The service is free.
secure and easy to use.

Toregister, please visit www.investoreentre.co.uk

Bividends

The quickest, most efficient and secure way to receive your
dividends is to have ther paid direct to your bank or buflding
society account. It saves waiting for the funds 1o clear and reduces
the paper and postage we use. Using BACS (Bank Automated
Ciearing System) we are able to pay your dividend straight to your
account on the payment date.
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Announcement of
preliminary results
for the year ended
30 September 2021

December 2021

The account information you provide will not be shared with thurd
parties. It will be held by Computershare as part of your
shareholder account details. Those selecting this method will
receive a tax voucher at their registered address when the

corresponding dividend is paid.

Shareholders wishing to benefit from this service should register
at www.investorcentre.co.uk or call our registrar, Computershare
Investor Services PLC, for a form by phone on 0870 707 1443 (a
text phone facility for those with hearing difficulties is available on
0870702 0005) or by post at Computershare Investor Services

PLC at the address below.

Registered office
Quay House

The Ambury

Bath

BA1 A

Auditor
PricovwatrrbotiseConners
LLP

2 Glass Wharf

Temple Quay

Avon Street

Bristo!

BS2 OFR

Solicitor

Simmons & Simmons LLP
Aurora

FloorsSand &

Finzels Reach

Counterslip

Bristo!

BS16BX

Principal
clearing bank
HSBC Bank plc
8 Canada Square
London

E14 5HQ

Stogkbroker
Numis Securities Ltd
10 Paternoster Square
London

EC4M 7LT

Goldman Sachs
Plumtree Court
25Shoe Lane
London

EC4A 4AU2

Registrar
Computershare Investor
Services PLC

The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS13 BAE



Contacts

Future plc and
Future Publishing Ltd
Registered office
Quay House

The Ambury

Bath BA1TUA

Tel +44 (0)1225 442244

London office
1-10 Praed Mews
London W21QY

Tel +44 (0)20 7042 4000

Future US, Inc.

15th Floor,

1 W 42nd Street,
New York, NY 10036
USA

Tel +1 212 378 0448

Future Publishing
(Overseas) Ltd
Suite 3, Level 10
100 Walker Street
North Sydney
NSW 2060
Australia

Tel +612 9955 2677

www.futureplic.com
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